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Neither we nor the underwriters have authorized anyone to provide any information or to make
any representation other than as contained in this prospectus or any free writing prospectus prepared
by, or on behalf of, us. We and the underwriters take no responsibility for, and can provide no
assurance as to the reliability of, any other information that others may give you. We and the
underwriters are not making an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale
isnot permitted. The information contained in this prospectus and any free-writing prospectus prepared
by us is current only as of the respective date of such document or as of another date specified therein.
Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since those
dates.
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GLOSSARY

In this prospectus, unless the context otherwise requires or indicates:

“1031 Exchange” means a tax-deferred exchange under Section 1031 of the Code, in which we
reinvest the proceeds from the sale of real property in a new real property acquisition on a tax-
deferred basis;

“ABR” means annualized base rent. ABR is calculated by multiplying (i) cash rental payments (a) for
the month ended March 31, 2021 (or, if applicable, the next full month’s cash rent contractually

due in the case of rent abatements, rent deferrals, recently acquired properties and properties with
contractual rent increases, other than properties under development) for leases in place as of

March 31, 2021, plus (b) for properties under development, the first full month’s permanent cash
rent contractually due after the development period by (ii) 12;

“Adjusted EBITDAre” means adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization,
which is a non-GAAP measure that has the meaning set forth in “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Non-GAAP Financial Measures;”

“AFFO” means adjusted funds from operations, which is a non-GAAP measure that has the meaning
set forth in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Non-GAAP Financial Measures;”

a “blend-and-extend” acquisition means the purchase of a single-tenant commercial property with
an existing short-term lease (i.e,, one to five years remaining on the lease term) where we negotiate
with the tenant a new long-term lease of at least 10 years, blending the tenant’s existing rental rate
with a newly negotiated rental rate;

a “build-to-suit” transaction means the development of a single-tenant commercial property built to
the specifications of the future tenant, financed by us and occupied by the tenant pursuant to a
long-term lease at the end of the development stage;

“Cash NOI” means cash net operating income, which is a non-GAAP measure that has the meaning
set forth in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Non-GAAP Financial Measures;”

“Class A OP units” means Class A units of limited partnership of our operating partnership, as
described under “Description of the Partnership Agreement of Our Operating Partnership;”

“Class B OP units” means Class B units of limited partnership of our operating partnership, as
described under “Description of the Partnership Agreement of Our Operating Partnership;”

the “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended;

» «

the “Company,” “our company,” “we,” “our,” and “us” means NETSTREIT and its consolidated
subsidiaries, including the operating partnership;

“continuing investors” means the former holders of limited partnership interests in our predecessor
who now hold OP units in our operating partnership;

“Core FFO” means core funds from operations, which is a non-GAAP measure that has the meaning
set forth in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Non-GAAP Financial Measures;”

“Credit Facility” means our Term Loan together with our Revolver;
“CVS” means CVS Pharmacy;

“DK” means Davidson Kempner Capital Management;

“EB Arrow” means EB Arrow Holdings, LLC;

“EBA EverSTAR” means EBA EverSTAR, LLC, an affiliate of EB Arrow;

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;
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“FFO” means funds from operations, which is a non-GAAP measure that has the meaning set forth
in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Non-
GAAP Financial Measures;”

“formation transactions” means the series of transactions described in this prospectus that were
consummated prior to and in connection with the private offering, as described under “Structure and
Formation of Our Company;”

“GAAP” means United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles;

“investment grade profile” means a tenant with more than $1.0 billion in annual sales and a debt to
adjusted EBITDA ratio of less than 2.0x that has not pursued a credit rating;

“investment grade rating” means a credit rating of Baa3 (Moody’s Investors Service), BBB- (S&P
Global Ratings) or NAIC2 (National Association of Insurance Commissioners) or higher;

“IRS” means the Internal Revenue Service;

“JOBS Act” means the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012, as amended;
“Long Pond” means Long Pond Capital;

“MGCL” means the Maryland General Corporation Law;

“NETSTREIT” means NETSTREIT Corp., a Maryland corporation;

“NETSTREIT TRS” means NETSTREIT Management TRS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company;

“NOI” means net operating income, which is a non-GAAP financial measure that has the meaning
set forth in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Non-GAAP Financial Measures;”

“NYSE” means The New York Stock Exchange;
“occupied” means subject to a lease agreement under which the tenant is required to pay rent;
the “offering” means the public offering of our common stock as described in this prospectus;

“Omnibus Plan” or "Omnibus Incentive Plan” means the NETSTREIT Corp. 2019 Omnibus
Incentive Compensation Plan;

“OP units” means common units of limited partnership interest in our operating partnership,
including Class A OP units and Class B OP units;

“operating partnership” means NETSTREIT L.P, a Delaware limited partnership;
“our portfolio” means the portfolio of 235 properties that we own as of March 31, 2021;
“predecessor” means EverSTAR Income & Value Fund V, LP, our accounting predecessor;

“private offering” means the private offering of 11,797,645 shares of our common stock, 8,860,760 of
which were issued on December 23, 2019 and 2,936,885 of which were issued on February 6, 2020
following the exercise in full of the initial purchaser’s option to purchase additional shares, pursuant
to which we raised aggregate net proceeds of $219.0 million (after deducting the initial purchaser’s
discount and placement fees);

“property” means a property leased, or available for lease, to a single tenant;

“rent abatement” means an agreement by the Company and a tenant to suspend rent payments for a
period of time without corresponding repayment of the suspended payments;

“rent deferral” means an agreement by the Company and a tenant to defer the payment of
contractually due rent to a later period;

a “reverse build-to-suit” transaction means the acquisition of a build-to-suit single-tenant commercial
property from the developer in which we serve as the take out financing and execute, as part of the
transaction, a long-term lease with the tenant occupying the property immediately following its
development;
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+ “Revolver” means our $250.0 million senior secured revolving credit facility;
« “RSUs” means restricted stock units;

. a “sale-leaseback” transaction means the sale of a single-tenant commercial property from a
business operator in exchange for the simultaneous execution of a long-term lease of the property
back to the seller;

+ “Sarbanes-Oxley Act” means Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended;
+ “SEC” means the Securities and Exchange Commission;
« “Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended;

+ “shadow rating” means a metric developed by the Company to assess the creditworthiness of a
tenant based on a review of corporate level financial information and assessment of business risks.
A shadow rating does not constitute a published credit rating and lacks the extensive company
participation that is typically involved when a rating agency publishes a rating and, accordingly,
may not be as indicative of creditworthiness as a rating published by Moody’s, S&P, or another
nationally recognized statistical rating organization;

« “Term Loan” means our senior secured term loan;

. a ‘“triple-net” lease means a lease in which the tenant generally is responsible for materially all
property operating expenses, including property taxes, insurance and property maintenance and
repairs; however, as is common for triple-net leases, the landlord may be responsible for maintenance
of the roof and parking lot;

+ “TRS” means taxable REIT subsidiary;
+ “Tilden Park” means Tilden Park Capital Management; and

« “WALT” means weighted average remaining lease term.

OUR PORTFOLIO DATA

Unless the context otherwise requires or indicates, all portfolio data contained in this prospectus
reflects properties owned by us on March 31, 2021 and is provided as of such date.

INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA

We use market data and industry forecasts throughout this prospectus, and in particular in the
sections titled “Prospectus Summary,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations,” and “Our Business and Properties.” We have obtained certain market and industry
data from publicly available industry publications. These sources generally state that the information they
provide has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but that the accuracy and completeness of the
information are not guaranteed. The industry forecasts and projections are based on historical market data
and the preparers’ experience in the industry, and there is no assurance that any of the projected amounts will
be achieved. We believe that the market and industry research others have performed are reliable, but we
have not independently verified this information.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

On December 23, 2019, we completed a series of formation transactions pursuant to which, among
other things, our predecessor was merged with and into our operating partnership. The financial statements
for the period from January 1, 2019 to December 22, 2019 included in this prospectus are those of our
predecessor. The financial statements for the periods from December 23, 2019 to December 31, 2019 and
thereafter included in this prospectus are those of the Company or successor.
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PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary highlights selected information contained elsewhere in this prospectus, but it does not
contain all of the information that you may consider important in making your investment decision. Before
deciding to invest in our common stock, you should carefully read the entire prospectus including, in particular,
“Risk Factors” and the consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this
prospectus. The following summary is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed information and financial
statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this prospectus.

2« » « » «

Unless the context otherwise requires, references in this prospectus to “we,” “our,” “us,” “our company”
and "the Company" refer to our predecessor for the periods prior to the completion of our formation transactions,
which occurred on December 23, 2019, and, for periods after the completion of our formation transactions,
NETSTREIT Corp., a Maryland corporation, and its subsidiaries, including NETSTREIT, L.P, a Delaware
limited partnership, which we refer to in this prospectus as “our operating partnership.” See “Glossary” for
certain defined terms used in this prospectus.

Unless otherwise indicated, the information contained in this prospectus is as of December 31, 2020 and
assumes that the underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares is not exercised.

NETSTREIT Corp.

We are an internally-managed real estate company that acquires, owns and manages a diversified
portfolio of single-tenant, retail commercial real estate subject to long-term net leases with high credit
quality tenants across the United States. Our growth and diversification strategy focuses on tenants in
industries where a physical location is critical to the generation of sales and profits, with a focus on necessity
goods and essential services in the retail sector, including discount stores, grocers, drug stores and
pharmacies, home improvement, automotive service and quick-service restaurants, which we refer to as
defensive retail industries. We believe these characteristics make our tenants’ businesses e-commerce
resistant and resilient through all economic cycles. The majority of our portfolio is comprised of properties
leased to tenants operating in these defensive retail industries, with 89.1% of our ABR stemming from necessity,
discount and/or service-oriented industries. We generally target properties with a purchase price between
$1 million and $10 million, a segment of the market that we believe is undercapitalized and where we can
maintain a consistent pipeline of relatively small assets to acquire on attractive terms without the threat of
broad competition. We also selectively review larger properties with a purchase price in excess of
$10 million, which we typically lease to investment grade tenants like Walmart and Home Depot, when we
believe the acquisition will be accretive to the quality of our portfolio. The average purchase price of a property
in our portfolio is $3.1 million, and our leases typically have initial lease terms of at least 10 years and
contain two or more options for the tenant to extend the lease term, most often for additional five-year periods.
Of our ABR, 69.6% is from investment grade credit rated tenants, which historically have exhibited a strong
track record of making scheduled rental payments, showing resilience during times of economic downturn.
We believe that our multi-faceted acquisition strategy, combined with our disciplined underwriting
approach, highlighted by a dual focus on tenant credit and real estate fundamentals, and supported by a
conservative, flexible balance sheet to enable accretive growth from the outset, will allow us to maximize
stockholder value while generating attractive risk-adjusted returns with an emphasis on stable rental revenue.

Our diversified portfolio consists of 235 single-tenant retail net leased properties spanning 39 states,
with tenants representing 60 different brands or concepts across 23 retail sectors. Our portfolio generates
ABR of $48.0 million and is 100% occupied, with a WALT of 10.1 years and consisting of more than 80%
investment grade tenants and investment grade profile tenants by ABR, which we believe provides us with a
strong, stable source of recurring cash flow from which to grow our portfolio. None of our tenants represent
more than 7.8% of our portfolio by ABR, and our top 10 largest tenants represent in aggregate 53.4% of our
ABR. Our top 10 tenants are 7-Eleven, Lowe’s, Advance Auto Parts, Walmart, CVS, Dollar General,

Ollie’s Bargain Outlet, Hobby Lobby, Tractor Supply Company and Walgreens. As a result of our net lease
structure, we do not expect to incur significant capital expenditures relating to our portfolio.

Our Competitive Strengths

We believe the following competitive strengths distinguish us from our competitors and allow us to
compete effectively in the single-tenant retail net leased property market.




. Favorable Exposure to Investment Grade Credit Rated and Other High-Quality Tenants. Our
portfolio provides high-quality leases and ABR. More than 80% of our ABR is from investment grade
credit rated tenants and investment grade profile tenants, which historically have exhibited a
strong track record of making scheduled rental payments, showing resilience during times of
economic downturn and investment grade profile tenants.

- Investment Strategy that Benefits From a Fragmented, Underserved Market Segment. The
current market for retail net leased properties is fragmented and decentralized. Between 2017 and
2020, private, non-institutional buyers accounted for 60.3% of this market by volume and, in 2020,
53.7% of retail net lease transactions had a purchase price between $2.5 million and $5 million. The
relatively small transaction size of retail net lease properties, combined with the locations of many
of these properties outside of primary markets, can be a deterrent for larger, institutional buyers that
seek to deploy greater amounts of capital in larger markets and assets that generate greater ABR
per property. We generally focus on properties with a purchase price between $1 million and
$10 million and our average ABR per property is approximately $204,401. We believe this low per
property ABR concentration increases our revenue diversification. We also believe our focus on
smaller properties, a segment of the market that we believe is undercapitalized, will allow us to
maintain a consistent pipeline of relatively small assets to acquire on attractive terms without the
threat of broad competition.

- Seasoned Leadership with a Proven Track Record of Cultivating and Expanding Publicly
Traded REIT Businesses. Our Chief Executive Officer, Mark Manheimer, has over 15 years of
experience underwriting, acquiring, leasing, financing, managing and disposing of net leased
properties, with a track record of growing net lease businesses to significant scale. Prior to joining
EB Arrow as the Chief Investment Officer of its net lease portfolio, Mr. Manheimer served on the
investment committee of Spirit Realty Capital, Inc. (NYSE: SRC) (“Spirit”), overseeing the acquisition
of more than 1,500 properties and leading the effort to restructure the master lease of Spirit’s
largest tenant. Mr. Manheimer played a critical role in Spirit’s September 2012 initial public offering
and shortly thereafter led Spirit’s due diligence and reverse due diligence efforts as part of a
merger with Cole Credit Property Trust II, doubling the size of the company. We believe
Mr. Manheimer’s reputation, in-depth market knowledge and extensive network of long-standing
relationships with retailers, brokers, intermediaries, private equity firms and others in the net lease
industry will provide us with an ongoing pipeline of both marketed and off-market investment
opportunities. In addition, our Chief Financial Officer, Andrew Blocher, leads our conservative
balance sheet and capitalization strategy and manages our liabilities, capital raising, financial
reporting and investor relations activities. Mr. Blocher has over 20 years of experience in financial
reporting, debt and equity financing, investor relations, capital allocation, corporate governance and
strategy for publicly traded REITs, including five years serving as the Chief Financial Officer of
First Potomac Realty Trust (NYSE: FPO), four years serving as Chief Financial Officer and an
additional seven years serving in a capital markets and investor relations role at Federal Realty
Investment Trust (NYSE: FRT). We believe Mr. Blocher’s deep relationships with the investment
banking and institutional investor communities will assist us in future capital raising activities as we
grow our portfolio.

- Disciplined Underwriting and Active Portfolio Management Strategy. We believe our
conservative underwriting criteria will allow us to purchase properties below replacement cost and
with below market rents, providing significant long-term opportunities for growth at an attractive
basis. Our management team focuses primarily on securing long-term leases with investment
grade credit rated tenants and creditworthy tenants without an investment grade rating. We focus
on tenants in industries where a physical location is critical to the generation of sales and profits, with
a focus on necessity goods and essential services in the retail sector, including home improvement,
auto parts, drug stores and pharmacies, general retail, grocers, convenience stores, discount stores,
and quick-service restaurants. We believe these characteristics make our tenants’ businesses
e-commerce resistant and resilient through all economic cycles. In evaluating a property for
acquisition, we utilize our three-part underwriting and risk management strategy with an emphasis
on credit and real estate that includes:




Tenant Credit Underwriting: review corporate level financial information, assess business
risks and review investment rating or establish a “shadow rating” using our proprietary credit
modeling process for unrated tenants;

Real Estate Valuation: review the underlying key real estate metrics of each property,
including location and demographics that will support both tenant financial health, including
market rents, and a market for alternative use, re-leasing or redevelopment, when necessary;
and

- Unit-Level Profitability: analyze and/or estimate unit-level profitability and cost variability to
determine the likelihood of each such location sustainably operating as a profit center.

- High Quality, Defensive and Diversified Portfolio. Our portfolio consists of 235 single-tenant net
leased properties that are diversified by tenant, industry and geography, including 60 different
brands or concepts, across 23 retail sectors in 39 states. The majority of our portfolio is comprised
of properties leased to tenants operating in defensive retail industries, with 89.1% of our ABR
stemming from necessity, discount and/or service-oriented industries. Our portfolio is 100% occupied
and generates ABR of $48.0 million, with a WALT of 10.1 years, which we believe provides us with
a strong, stable source of recurring cash flows from which to grow our portfolio. Further, more than
80% of our ABR is derived from tenants with investment grade credit ratings or an investment grade
profile which historically have exhibited a strong track record of making scheduled rental payments
and demonstrating defensive, consistent performance through multiple cycles. Our current strategy
targets a scaled portfolio that, over time, will:

derive no more than (i) 5% of its ABR from any single tenant or property, (ii) 15% of its ABR
from any single retail sector, (iii) 15% of its ABR from any single state and (iv) 50% of its ABR
from its top 10 tenants;

+ be primarily leased to tenants operating in businesses we believe to be e-commerce resistant
and resilient through all economic cycles;

have more than 60% of its tenants with an investment grade credit rating; and

have a WALT of greater than 10 years.

- Proven Ability to Efficiently Deploy Capital Utilizing Proprietary Sourcing Channels to Achieve
Scale. Our ability to efficiently deploy capital is a direct result of our management team’s
extensive network of industry relationships, which we utilized to source a robust pipeline of attractive
marketed and off-market investment opportunities through which we have deployed capital,
acquiring 124 and 31 single-tenant retail net leased properties with aggregate purchase prices of
$408.6 million and $88.2 million during the year ended December 31, 2020 and three months ended
March 31, 2021, respectively. We believe our relationship-based sourcing strategy will continue to
generate a sustainable pipeline of opportunities to drive growth and achieve scale through the efficient
deployment of capital raised in this offering. While our general and administrative expenses will
continue to rise in some measure as our portfolio grows, we expect that such expenses as a percentage
of our portfolio will decrease over time following this offering, due to efficiencies and economies of
scale. With our smaller asset base relative to other public REITs that focus on acquiring net leased real
estate, we believe that superior growth can be achieved through manageable acquisition volume.

As of March 31, 2021, we were party to purchase and sale agreements and non-binding letters of
intent for the acquisition of a total of 21 properties with an aggregate expected purchase price of
approximately $78.0 million. See “—Pending Investment Activity.”

Our Business and Growth Strategies

Our objective is to maximize stockholder value by generating attractive risk-adjusted returns through
owning, managing and growing a diversified portfolio of commercially desirable properties. We intend to
pursue our objective through the following business and growth strategies.

Differentiated, Multi-faceted Investment Strategy to Drive Growth. We intend to continue to
grow our portfolio by acquiring properties occupied by high-credit quality tenants operating in




defensive industries focused on necessity retail goods and essential services. In addition to
acquiring single-tenant net leased retail properties subject to an existing stabilized long-term lease,
we intend to grow our portfolio through a multi-faceted investment strategy, which includes

“blend and extend” acquisitions, build-to-suit transactions, reverse build-to-suit transactions and sale-
leaseback transactions. Each of these types of transactions or acquisitions offers unique benefits to
our business.

- Existing stabilized leases: In existing stabilized lease transactions, we acquire single-tenant
net leased operating assets subject to an existing long-term lease through our relationships with
current owners, our extensive brokerage network or our developer relationships.

- Blend-and-extend: In blend-and-extend acquisitions, we acquire a single-tenant commercial
property with an existing short-term lease, then extend the lease term to at least ten years. Blend-
and-extend acquisitions allow us to acquire properties at a lower basis and get long-term site
commitments from tenants.

+ Build-to-suit: In build-to-suit transactions, we secure development financing for a single-
tenant commercial property pursuant to executing a long-term lease. Build-to-suit transactions
allow us to leverage our extensive developer relationships to partner on opportunities.

- Reverse build-to-suit: In reverse build-to-suit transactions, the tenant acts as the developer
and constructs the property with the project financed by the landlord. Both build-to-suit and
reverse build-to-suit transactions allow us to acquire the property at lower cost in exchange for
long lease terms and higher entry capitalization rates.

- Sale-leaseback: Sale-leaseback transactions allow us to acquire a single-tenant commercial
property used by the seller with a simultaneous long-term lease of the property back to the
seller. In sale-leaseback transactions, we strive to set rents at sustainable levels and get long-term
site commitments from tenants.

We believe this multi-faceted investment strategy will provide us with greater flexibility to
opportunistically build our portfolio and differentiate us from other public REITs pursuing a
more limited investment strategy.

+ Relationship-Based Investment Sourcing. Mr. Manheimer has been active in the single-tenant
net lease industry for more than 15 years, serving as Head of Sale-Leaseback Acquisitions for Cole
Real Estate Investments, Inc. (formerly known as Cole Credit Property Trust III, Inc. (“Cole”)) and
Executive Vice President—Head of Asset Management for Spirit. Mr. Manheimer’s extensive
experience has allowed him to develop a broad network of long-standing relationships with retailers,
brokers, intermediaries, private equity firms and others in the net lease industry, which we believe
will provide us with an ongoing pipeline of both marketed and off-market investment opportunities.
We also anticipate leveraging our extensive developer relationships to partner on build-to-suit and
reverse build-to-suit transactions.

. Structure and Manage Portfolio with Disciplined Underwriting and Risk Management
Processes. We seek to build a scaled portfolio with stable rental revenue and maximize the
long-term return on our investments by implementing our disciplined underwriting and risk
management processes. Our portfolio is focused on tenants operating in industries that are
e-commerce resistant and resilient through all economic cycles and with attractive credit
characteristics and stable operating cash flows. We seek to enter into leases with terms of at least
ten years and, when acquiring properties, look for opportunities to acquire short-term leases with a
long-term extension in place at the time of closing. In addition, we seek acquisition opportunities that
enhance the tenant, industry and geographic diversification of our portfolio and actively monitor
and manage our existing investments to reduce the risks associated with adverse developments
affecting particular tenants, industries or regions. Finally, we use our active portfolio management
strategy to (i) regularly review each of our properties for changes in unit performance, tenant
credit and local real estate conditions, (ii) identify properties that do not meet our disciplined
underwriting strategy, diversification objectives or risk management criteria, including rent coverage
ratios below 2.0x or likelihood of non-renewal upon lease expiration, and (iii) opportunistically
dispose of those properties and reinvest the proceeds in 1031 Exchanges that will generate higher




returns, enhance the credit quality of our real estate portfolio or extend our average remaining lease
term. From June 2018 to March 31, 2021, we disposed of 48 properties totaling $139.3 million in
aggregate contractual sales price and improved portfolio performance by diversifying tenant
concentration and improving key metrics such as tenant credit quality, WALT and geographic
diversity.

Maintain a Conservatively Leveraged Capital Structure. We seek to maintain a capital structure
that provides us with flexibility to manage our business and scale our platform through targeted
acquisitions, while allowing us to service our debt requirements and generate appropriate
risk-adjusted returns. As of December 31, 2020, we had no borrowings under our $250.0 million
Revolver. We intend to target a conservative net debt to EBITDA leverage ratio of 4.5x to 5.5x at scale
to best position the Company for growth, and we intend to capitalize on our leading origination,
underwriting, financing, documentation and property processes to improve our efficiency. As we
scale, we anticipate having access to the investment grade debt and equity capital markets to maintain
a prudent balance between debt and equity financing.

Achieve Sustainable Dividend Growth Well-Covered by Cash Flow. We seek to make investments
that generate strong current income as a result of the difference, or spread, between the rate we

earn on our assets and the rate we pay on our liabilities (primarily our long-term debt). We intend to
augment that income with internal growth through a target dividend payout ratio that will permit
some free cash flow reinvestment. We believe this will enable strong dividend growth without relying
exclusively on future common stock issuances to fund new portfolio investments. Additionally, our
WALT of 10.1 years and superior underwriting and portfolio monitoring capabilities, which reduce
default losses, are intended to make our cash flows highly stable.

- Smaller Net Lease Acquisitions Allow for Superior Portfolio Growth. We generally focus on
properties with a purchase price between $1 million and $10 million and our average ABR per
property is approximately $204,401. We believe this is a segment of the market that is undercapitalized
and in which we can achieve superior growth through consistent acquisition volume. Moreover,
our platform is scalable, and we expect to leverage our capabilities to improve our efficiency and
processes to achieve attractive risk-based growth.

Our Real Estate Portfolio

During the year ended December 31, 2020 and three months ended March 31, 2021, we acquired 124
and 31 single-tenant retail net lease properties with aggregate purchase prices of $408.6 million and $88.2
million, respectively. Our diversified portfolio consists of 235 single-tenant retail net leased properties
spanning 39 states, with tenants representing 60 different brands or concepts across 23 retail sectors. Our
portfolio consists of 4.4 million square feet and is 100% occupied.
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Our portfolio generates ABR of $48.0 million, has a WALT of 10.1 years and consists of more than 80%
of investment grade tenants and tenants with an investment grade profile by ABR. None of our tenants
represent more than 7.8% of our portfolio by ABR, and our top 10 largest tenants represent in aggregate 53.4%
of our ABR. Nine of our top 10 tenants are publicly traded companies and eight have investment grade
credit ratings, in addition to Ollie’s Bargain Outlet and Hobby Lobby, tenants with investment grade profiles.

7-Eleven (Baa2 (Moody’s); AA- (S&P)). 7-Eleven is the world’s largest convenience retailer. Based in
Irving, Texas, 7-Eleven operates, franchises and/or licenses more than 70,000 stores in 17 countries, including
11,800 stores in North America.

Lowe’s (Baal (Moody’s); BBB+ (S&P); NYSE: LOW). Lowe’s is a FORTUNE 50 home improvement
company in the United States, Canada and Mexico that was founded in 1946. Lowe’s operates or services
more than 2,220 home improvement and hardware stores and is headquartered in Mooresville, North Carolina.

Advance Auto Parts (Baa2 (Moody’s); BBB- (S&P); NYSE: AAP). Advance Auto Parts is a leading
automotive aftermarket parts provider in North America that serves both professional installer and do-it-
yourself customers. As of January 2, 2021, Advance operated 4,806 stores and 170 Worldpac branches in the
United States, Canada, Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands. The Company also serves 1,277 independently
owned Carquest branded stores across these locations in addition to Mexico, Grand Cayman, the Bahamas,
Turks and Caicos and British Virgin Islands. Advance Auto Parts was founded in 1932 and is headquartered
in Raleigh, North Carolina.

Walmart (Aa2 (Moody’s); AA (S&P); NYSE: WMT). Founded in 1945 and headquartered in Bentonville,
Arkansas, Walmart provides the opportunity to shop in retail stores and through e-commerce. Walmart has
approximately 11,500 stores under 56 banners, including Sam’s Club, in 27 countries and e-commerce
websites.

CVS (Baa2 (Moody’s); BBB (S&P); NYSE: CVS). CVS is the nation’s premier health innovation company
helping people on their path to better health. Headquartered in Woonsocket, Rhode Island, CVS operates
nearly 10,000 retail locations.

Dollar General (Baa2 (Moody’s); BBB (S&P); NYSE: DG). Dollar General offers products that are
frequently used and replenished, such as food, snacks, health and beauty aids, cleaning supplies, basic
apparel, housewares and seasonal items at low prices in convenient neighborhood locations since 1939. As
of October 30, 2020, Dollar General operated 16,979 stores in 46 states and is headquartered in Goodlettsville,
Tennessee.

Ollie’s Bargain Outlet (unrated; NASDAQ: OLLI). Founded in 1982 and headquartered in Harrisburg,
Pennsylvania, Ollie’s Bargain Outlet is a highly differentiated and fast-growing, extreme value retailer of
brand name merchandise at drastically reduced prices. Ollie’s Bargain Outlet operates 391 stores.

Hobby Lobby (unrated; not public). With more than 900 stores, Hobby Lobby is the largest privately
owned arts-and-crafts retailer in the world, operating in 47 states. Hobby Lobby was founded in 1970 and is
headquartered in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma.

Tractor Supply Company (Baal (Moody’s); BBB (S&P); NASDAQ: TSCO). Founded in 1938, Tractor
Supply is the largest rural lifestyle retailer in the United States, with 1,923 Tractor Supply stores in 49 states
and an e-commerce website. Tractor Supply is headquartered in Brentwood, Tennessee.

Walgreens (Baa2 (Moody’s); BBB (S&P); NASDAQ: WBA). Walgreens is a global leader in retail and
wholesale pharmacy that was founded in 1901 and is headquartered in Deerfield, Illinois. Walgreens has a
presence in more than 25 countries and has more than 21,000 stores.




Diversification by Industry, Tenant and Geography
with Concentration in Necessity, Discount and/or Service Industries

The majority of our portfolio is comprised of properties leased to tenants operating in defensive retail
industries, with 89.1% of our ABR stemming from necessity, discount and/or service-oriented industries.
Necessity-based industries are those that are considered essential by consumers and include sectors such as
drug stores, grocers and home improvement. Discount retailers offer a low price point and consist of off-
price and dollar stores. Service-oriented industries consist of retailers that provide services rather than goods,
including, for example, tire and auto services and quick service restaurants.

The following chart illustrates the percentage of our ABR attributable to defensive retail industries.

Other 10.9%

Discount 18.5% Necessity 52.7%

Service 17.9%

The breakdown of our necessity-based retail, discount-focused, service-oriented and other, non-
defensive retail industries by percentage of ABR is set forth below.




Retail Industries Percentage of ABR(1)

Necessity-Based Retail

Home Improvement . .. ... ... . 14.7%
Auto Parts . . . .o 9.7%
Drug Stores & Pharmacies . . .. . ... ... 8.3%
General Retail . ... ... .. ... . . . 6.7%
GrOCEIY v ot e e 5.9%
Farm Supplies . . .. ..o 3.0%
Healthcare . ... .. . . . .. . 2.1%
Banking . ... .. 1.4%
Wholesale Warehouse Club. . . .......... ... ... ... ... ... ...... 0.9%
Total Necessity-Based E%
Discount-Focused Industry

Discount Retail . .. ... ... ... . . . . 11.0%
Dollar Stores . . v v vt 7.5%
Total Discount-Focused . . . .. ... ....... .. ... .............. m%
Service-Oriented Industry

Convenience StOreS . . . v v vt vttt 9.1%
Quick-Service Restaurants . .. .. .. ...t 5.0%
Automotive Service . ... ... 2.0%
Casual DININg . . . oot e e e 1.9%
Total Service-Oriented . . ... ... ....... .. ... ... ... ......... 17.9%
Defensive Retail Industries .. ............................. m%

Other, Non-Defensive

Arts& Crafts . . ... ... 3.3%
Furniture Stores . . . . . . . . 1.8%
Consumer Electronics. . . . ... ot 1.8%
RV Sales . . oo 1.5%
Apparel ... 11%
Equipment Rental and Leasing . .. .......... ... ... 0.8%
Gift, Novelty & SouvenirShops . .. .......... .. ... ... ........ 0.4%
Home Furnishings . .. ... ... ... 0.3%
Total Other, Non-Defensive . . . . . ........ ... ... ... ... ...... m%
Total, AllIndustries . ............ ... ... ... ... ... .. .. ... M%

(1) Certain figures in this table may not foot due to rounding.

- Diversification by Industry. Our tenants’ business brands and concepts are diversified across
23 industries, with no one industry representing more than 14.7% of our portfolio by ABR.

- Diversification by Tenant. Our 235 properties are operated by our 60 tenants, each representing a
distinct brand or concept, with no one tenant representing more than 7.8% of our portfolio by ABR.

- Diversification by Geography. Our 235 property locations are spread across 39 states, with no
one state representing more than 14.4% of our portfolio by ABR.




Our Underwriting Philosophy

We continue to thoughtfully curate a high-quality portfolio by adhering to the following strict
underwriting criteria:

- Defensive Tenants in Necessity-Based, E-Commerce Resistant and Recession-Resilient
Industries. We focus on maintaining a healthy mix of necessity goods and essential service retail
assets, which include home improvement, auto parts, drug stores and pharmacies, general retail,
grocers, convenience stores, discount stores, and quick-service restaurants. The majority of our
portfolio is comprised of properties leased to tenants operating in defensive retail industries, with
89.1% of our ABR stemming from necessity, discount and/or service-oriented industries. Conversely,
we have not invested, and do not intend to invest, in experience-based businesses, such as
entertainment, movie theaters, and health and fitness, as these types of assets are not traditionally
considered essential and are more susceptible to recessionary pressures, as evidenced by widespread
closures across these categories during the COVID-19 pandemic.

+ Resilient, Cycle-Tested Investment Grade Tenants with Durable Cash Flows. We strive to
maintain a portfolio in which at least 60% of our ABR is derived from investment grade tenants,
which historically have exhibited a strong track record of making scheduled rental payments. We
expect that the remainder of our portfolio will be comprised of (i) tenants with an investment grade
profile but that have not received a rating, such as Ollie’s Bargain Outlet and Hobby Lobby, (ii) tenants
with sub-investment grade ratings of Ba3 (Moody’s) and BB- (S&P) or higher with strong
performance metrics, such as a rent coverage ratio greater than 2.0x and (iii) tenants with
sub-investment grade credit characteristics of Ba3 (Moody’s) and BB- (S&P) or higher that have not
received an investment rating but have strong performance metrics, such as rent coverage greater
than 2.0x (together with tenants with an investment grade profile, “unrated tenants”). We may sell
properties leased to unrated tenants from time to time to achieve or maintain a portfolio in which at
least 60% of our ABR is derived from investment grade tenants.

- Granular Assets in Highly Fragmented, Undercapitalized Market Segment. We generally aim to
acquire properties with a purchase price between $1 million and $10 million, a segment of the
market that we believe is undercapitalized and where we can acquire relatively small assets on
attractive terms. The average purchase price of a property in our portfolio is $3.1 million.

- Long Term Net Leases. Our goal is to maintain an overall portfolio WALT of at least 10.0 years.
Our portfolio has a WALT of 10.1 years.

- Attractive Basis. We seek to achieve embedded upside through below-market rents and completing
acquisitions at prices below replacement costs.

- Diversification by Industry, Tenant and Geography. Our current strategy targets a scaled
portfolio that, over time, will derive no more than (i) 5% of its ABR from any single tenant or property,
(ii) 15% of its ABR from any single retail sector, (iii) 15% of its ABR from any single state and
(iv) 50% of its ABR from its top 10 tenants. We may sell properties from time to time to achieve or
maintain our targeted diversification of ABR by industry, tenant and geography.

Overview of Our Leases

Our leases typically have initial lease terms of at least 10 years and contain two or more options for
the tenant to extend the lease term, most often for additional five-year periods. Our lease turnover through
2024 is 1.4% of ABR (assuming no exercise of contractual extension options). As we expand our portfolio, we
will seek to include rent escalation provisions as part of our leases with unrated and sub-investment grade
tenants. We currently lease properties on an individual basis, but we may implement master lease structures
as appropriate going forward, pursuant to which we will lease multiple properties to a single tenant on an all-
or-none basis.

The leases in our portfolio have a WALT of 10.1 years, with no lease expiring prior to June 2023. The
following chart illustrates the ABR of our portfolio attributable to leases expiring during the specified periods
(assuming no exercise of contractual extension options).




ABR % of Number of

Lease Expiration Year ($in000’s) ABR(1) Properties
2021 . e — — —
2022 . — — —
2023 585.5 1.2% 5
2024 . . 84.0 0.2% 1
2025 L 2,722.6 5.7% 7
2026 . . 2,544.2 5.3% 9
2027 3,124.1 6.5% 11
2028 . 3,776.4 7.9% 25
2029 . 3,582.0 7.5% 24
2030 . 7,044.8 14.7% 30
2031 andthereafter. .. .. .. ... .. .. .. ... ... .. .. .. 24,570.7 51.2% 123
Total ... ... $48,0343  100.0% 235

(1) Certain figures in this table may not foot due to rounding.
Pending Investment Activity

Our management team has leveraged its extensive network of industry relationships to establish a
robust pipeline of acquisition opportunities that consists of 206 properties with an aggregate expected
purchase price of approximately $741.3 million as of March 31, 2021. This acquisition pipeline includes
(i) 16 properties with an aggregate expected purchase price of approximately $47.1 million that are under
contract and (ii) five properties with an aggregate expected purchase price of approximately $30.9 million
that are the subject of non-binding letters of intent, each as more fully described below. The remainder of our
acquisition pipeline consists of 185 properties with an aggregate expected purchase price of approximately
$663.3 million, for which we have delivered a non-binding letter of intent for execution by the seller but
which has not yet been executed. Purchase prices for the properties that are not yet subject to fully executed,
non-binding letters of intent are estimated based on preliminary discussions with sellers or our internal
assessment of the values of such properties. We are in varying stages of negotiation and have not completed
our due diligence process with the sellers of these properties. As a result, there can be no assurance that
these acquisitions will be completed on the terms described above or at all.

Properties Under Contract

As of March 31, 2021, we were party to eight purchase and sale agreements relating to the acquisition
of 16 properties with an aggregate purchase price of $47.1 million and a WALT of 12.2 years. In connection
with these acquisitions, we expect to enter into or assume leases with ABR of $3.0 million. While we regard the
completion of these pending acquisitions to be probable, these transactions are subject to customary
closing conditions, including the completion of due diligence, and there can be no assurance that these
acquisitions will be completed on the terms described above or at all.

Properties Under Letter of Intent

As of March 31, 2021, we were party to five non-binding letters of intent relating to the acquisition of
five properties with an aggregate expected purchase price of approximately $30.9 million and a WALT of 7.5
years. These acquisitions are subject to negotiation and execution of definitive agreements and, if entered
into, will be subject to customary closing conditions, including the completion of due diligence. As a result,
we do not deem any of these potential acquisitions probable at this time and there can be no assurance that
these acquisitions will be completed on the terms described above or at all.

Pending Dispositions

On April 1, 2021, we sold one property that contributed $0.2 million to ABR. As of March 31, 2021, we
had five properties held for sale that contribute $1.3 million to ABR. Dispositions are a component of our
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active portfolio management. As of March 31, 2021, we were party to purchase and sale agreements relating
to the disposition of five properties for an aggregate sales price of $20.4 million, which are subject to
customary closing conditions, including the completion of due diligence. We do not deem any of these
potential dispositions probable at this time and there can be no assurances that these dispositions will be
completed on the terms described above or at all.

Summary Risk Factors

An investment in our common stock involves various risks, and prospective investors are urged to
carefully consider the matters discussed under “Risk Factors” prior to making an investment in our common
stock. The following is a list of some of these risks.

We are subject to risks related to commercial real estate ownership that could reduce the value of
our properties.

Global market and economic conditions may materially and adversely affect us and our tenants.

The current pandemic of COVID—19 and the future outbreak of other highly infectious or contagious
diseases could materially and adversely impact or disrupt our financial condition, results of
operations, cash flows and performance.

Our business is dependent upon our tenants successfully operating their businesses and their
failure to do so could materially and adversely affect us.

Our assessment that certain businesses are e-commerce resistant and recession-resilient, may prove
to be incorrect.

A substantial number of our properties are leased to unrated and sub-investment grade tenants and
the tools we use to determine the creditworthiness of our tenants may not be accurate.

Our portfolio has geographic market concentrations that make us especially susceptible to adverse
developments in those geographic markets.

We are subject to risks related to tenant concentration, and an adverse development with respect to
a large tenant could materially and adversely affect us.

We may be unable to renew leases, lease vacant space or re-lease space as leases expire on favorable
terms or at all.

The bankruptcy or insolvency of any of our tenants could result in the termination of such tenant’s
lease and material losses to us.

We may not be able to successfully execute our acquisition or development strategies.

Iliquidity of real estate investments could significantly impede our ability to respond to adverse
changes in the performance of our properties and harm our financial condition.

We face significant competition for tenants, which may decrease or prevent increases of the
occupancy and rental rates of our properties, and competition for acquisitions may reduce the
number of acquisitions we are able to complete and increase the costs of these acquisitions.

A loss of key management personnel could adversely affect our performance.

Any material failure, weakness, interruption, or breach in security of our information systems could
prevent us from effectively operating our business.

We may experience a decline in the fair value of our asserts, which may have a material impact on
our financial condition, liquidity and results of operations and adversely impact the market value of
our common stock.

Our level of indebtedness could materially and adversely affect our financial position, including
reducing funds available for other business purposes and reducing our operational flexibility.

Market conditions could adversely affect our ability to refinance existing indebtedness or obtain
additional financing for growth on acceptable terms or at all, which could materially and adversely
affect us.
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+ Our failure to maintain our qualification as a REIT would reduce the amount of funds we have
available for distribution and limit our ability to make distributions to our stockholders.

. Tax liabilities and implications and share ownership restrictions associated with qualifying as a
REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes could reduce our cash flow, inhibit market activity in shares
of our stock and restrict our business combination activities and our ability to engage in certain
transactions that would be treated as sales for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

+ Complying with REIT requirements may cause us to forgo otherwise attractive opportunities or
liquidate otherwise attractive investments.

- Liabilities arising under environmental laws may materially and adversely affect us.

+ We could increase or decrease the number of unauthorized shares of stock, classify and reclassify
unissued stock and issue stock without stockholder approval.

+ The ability of our stockholders to control our policies and effect a change of control of our company
is limited by certain provisions of our charter and bylaws and by Maryland law.

+ The market price of shares of our common stock may be volatile, which could cause the value of
your investment to decline.

+ We are an “emerging growth company” and we cannot be certain if the reduced disclosure
requirements applicable to an emerging growth companies will make shares of our common stock
less attractive to investors.

+ If you purchase shares of our common stock in this offering, you will experience immediate dilution.

. Future sales of our common stock or other securities convertible into our common stock could cause
the market value of our common stock to decline and could result in dilution of your shares.

Structure and Formation of our Company

We were formed as a Maryland corporation on October 11, 2019. On December 23, 2019, we issued
and sold 8,860,760 shares of our common stock in a private offering at a price of $19.75 per share, to various
institutional investors, accredited investors and offshore investors, in reliance upon exemptions from
registration provided by Rule 144A and Regulation S under the Securities Act and pursuant to Regulation D
under the Securities Act. On February 6, 2020, we issued and sold an additional 2,936,885 shares of our
common stock in the private offering pursuant to the initial purchaser’s option to purchase additional shares.
We received approximately $219.0 million of net proceeds (after deducting the initial purchaser’s discount
and placement fees) from the private offering and exercise of the option to purchase additional shares. In
connection with the private offering, we consummated a series of formation transactions that were
designed, among other things, to enable us to qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes. We
elected to be taxed as a REIT beginning with our short taxable year ended December 31, 2019.

Our predecessor, EverSTAR Income & Value Fund V, LP, merged with our operating partnership,
NETSTREIT L.P, a Delaware limited partnership, as part of our formation transactions. We are structured as
an umbrella partnership REIT, meaning that we own our properties and conduct our business through our
operating partnership, directly or through limited partnerships, limited liability companies or other
subsidiaries. NETSTREIT GP, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, is the sole general partner of
our operating partnership.

Substantially all of our assets are indirectly held by, and our operations are conducted through, our
operating partnership. We hold Class A OP units for each outstanding share of our common stock, subject
to certain adjustments. As of December 31, 2020, we owned approximately 94.2% of the limited partnership
interests in our operating partnership. Upon completion of this offering, we will own approximately 98% of
the limited partnership interests in our operating partnership. Our interest in our operating partnership
generally entitles us to share in cash distributions from, and in the profits and losses of, our operating
partnership in proportion to our percentage ownership. As the parent of the sole general partner of our
operating partnership, we have the exclusive power under the partnership agreement of our operating
partnership to manage and conduct its business and affairs, subject to certain limited approval and voting
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rights of the limited partners, which are described more fully in “Description of the Partnership Agreement
of Our Operating Partnership.”

On August 17, 2020, we completed the initial public offering of our common stock. We sold 12,244,732
shares of common stock and the selling stockholders sold 255,268 shares of common stock at a price of $18.00
per share. Our common stock began trading on the NYSE under the symbol “NTST” on August 13, 2020.

On September 16, 2020, we sold an additional 1,436,829 shares of our common stock pursuant to the
underwriters’ over-allotment option in connection with the initial public offering. We received net proceeds
from the initial public offering and over-allotment option exercise of $227.3 million, net of transaction costs
and underwriting discounts of $18.9 million. We contributed the total net proceeds from the initial public
offering to our operating partnership in exchange for 13,681,561 Class A OP units. In addition, we acquired
255,268 Class A OP units from the selling stockholders, who elected to redeem such units in exchange for
an equivalent number of shares of our common stock and then sell those shares of common stock in the initial
public offering.

Restrictions on Ownership and Transfer of Our Common Stock

Due to limitations on the concentration of ownership of REIT stock imposed by the Code, among
other reasons, our charter generally prohibits any person from actually, beneficially or constructively
owning more than 9.8% in value or number of shares, whichever is more restrictive, of our outstanding
common stock or of any class or series of our preferred stock, or more than 9.8% of the aggregate value of all
our outstanding stock. We refer to these restrictions as the “ownership limit.” Our charter permits our
board of directors, in its sole and absolute discretion, to exempt a person, prospectively or retroactively, from
the ownership limit if, among other conditions, the person’s ownership of our stock in excess of the
ownership limit would not cause us to fail to qualify as a REIT. Our charter contains certain other limits on
beneficial and constructive ownership and transfer of our stock. See “Description of Our Capital Stock—
Restrictions on Ownership and Transfer.”

Our Tax Status

We elected to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes commencing with our short
taxable year ended December 31, 2019. We believe that, commencing with our short taxable year ended
December 31, 2019, we have been organized and have operated in conformity with the requirements for
qualification and taxation as a REIT under the Code, and that our organization and current and proposed
method of operations will enable us to continue to meet the requirements for qualification and taxation as a
REIT for our taxable year ending December 31, 2021 and subsequent taxable years. To qualify as a REIT,
we must meet a number of organizational and operational requirements, including a requirement that we
annually distribute at least 90% of our taxable income to our stockholders, computed without regard to the
dividends paid deduction and excluding our net capital gain, plus 90% of our net income after tax from
foreclosure property (if any), minus the sum of various items of excess non-cash income.

In any year in which we qualify as a REIT, we generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on
that portion of our taxable income or capital gain that is distributed to stockholders. If we lose our REIT status,
and the statutory relief provisions of the Code do not apply, we will be subject to entity-level income tax on
our taxable income at regular U.S. federal corporate income tax rates. Even if we qualify as a REIT, we will be
subject to certain U.S. federal, state and local taxes on our income and property and on taxable income that
we do not distribute to our stockholders. In addition, NETSTREIT TRS will be subject to U.S. federal, state and
local income tax on its taxable income. See “U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations.”

Distribution Policy

The Code generally requires that a REIT distribute annually at least 90% of its REIT taxable income,
determined without regard to the deduction for dividends paid and excluding net capital gains, and imposes
tax on any taxable income retained by a REIT, including capital gains. To satisfy the requirements for
qualification as a REIT and generally not be subject to U.S. federal income and excise tax, we intend to make
regular quarterly distributions of all or substantially all of our REIT taxable income to holders of our
common stock out of assets legally available for such purposes.
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Any distributions will be authorized at the sole discretion of our board of directors, and their form,
timing and amount, if any, will depend upon a number of factors, including our actual and projected results
of operations, FFO, Core FFO, AFFO, liquidity, cash flows and financial condition, the revenue we actually
receive from our properties, our operating expenses, our debt service requirements, our capital expenditures,
prohibitions and other limitations under our financing arrangements, our REIT taxable income, the annual
REIT distribution requirements, applicable law and such other factors as our board of directors deems
relevant. Since completion of our initial public offering, we have declared quarterly dividend distributions to
common stockholders of $0.10 per share and $0.20 per share, respectively, that were paid on each of
September 25, 2020 and December 15, 2020 to stockholders of record on September 15, 2020 and
December 1, 2020, respectively. In addition, we declared a quarterly dividend distribution to common
stockholders of $0.20 per share to stockholders of record on March 15, 2021 that was paid on March 30,
2021.

Emerging Growth Company Status

We are an “emerging growth company,” as defined in the JOBS Act. We are eligible to take advantage
of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies
that are not “emerging growth companies.” These exemptions include not being required to comply with the
auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations
regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements and exemptions from the
requirements of holding a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation and stockholder approval of
any golden parachute payments not previously approved. We have not yet made a decision as to whether
we will take advantage of any or all of these exemptions in the future. If we do take advantage of any of these
exemptions, we do not know if some investors will find shares of our common stock less attractive as a
result. The result may be a less active trading market for shares of our common stock and the price of our
common stock may be more volatile.

In addition, the JOBS Act provides that an emerging growth company can take advantage of the
extended transition period provided in the Securities Act for complying with new or revised accounting
standards. In other words, an emerging growth company can delay the adoption of certain accounting
standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies. However, we have chosen to “opt
out” of this extended transition period, and, as a result, we will comply with new or revised accounting
standards on the relevant dates on or before which adoption of such standards is required for all public
companies that are not emerging growth companies. Our decision to opt out of the extended transition period
for complying with new or revised accounting standards is irrevocable.

We will remain an emerging growth company until the earliest to occur of (i) the last day of the fiscal
year during which our total annual revenue equals or exceeds $1.07 billion (subject to adjustment for
inflation), (if) December 31, 2025, (iii) the date on which we have, during the previous three year period,
issued more than $1.0 billion in non-convertible debt or (iv) the date on which we are deemed to be a “large
accelerated filer” under the Exchange Act.

Company Information

Our principal executive office is located at 5910 N. Central Expressway, Suite 1600, Dallas, Texas 75206.
Our telephone number is 972-200-7100. Our website address is www.NETSTREIT.com. The information on,
or otherwise accessible through, our website does not constitute a part of this prospectus.
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Common Stock Offeredby Us . ... ...

Common Stock Outstanding
Immediately After this Offering . . . .

OfferingPrice . . ................

Useof Proceeds . . ...............

NYSE Symbol . .................

Ownership and Transfer Restrictions . .

Risk Factors

The Offering

9,491,903 shares (10,915,688 shares if the underwriters exercise
their option to purchase additional shares in full)

37,695,448 shares (39,119,233 shares if the underwriters
exercise their option to purchase additional shares in full)(1)

$18.65 per share of common stock

We estimate that our net proceeds from this offering, after
deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and other
estimated offering expenses payable by us, will be approximately
$168.9 million (or approximately $194.3 million if the
underwriters exercise their option to purchase additional shares
in full). We intend to contribute the net proceeds of this

offering to our operating partnership in exchange for Class A
OP units, and our operating partnership intends to use
approximately $13.0 million of the net proceeds received from
us to repay borrowings under the Revolver that were drawn after
December 31, 2020 to fund acquisitions of properties and the
remainder for general corporate purposes, which may include
acquisition of properties in our pipeline.

See “Use of Proceeds.”
“NTST”

To assist us in qualifying as a REIT, among other purposes, our
charter generally limits beneficial ownership by any person to no
more than 9.8% in value or number of shares, whichever is

more restrictive, of our outstanding common stock or of any
class or series of our preferred stock, or more than 9.8% of the
aggregate value of all our outstanding stock. Our charter contains
certain other limits on beneficial and constructive ownership
and transfer of shares of our stock. See “Description of Our
Capital Stock—Restrictions on Ownership and Transfer.”

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk.
For a discussion of factors you should consider before making an
investment, see “Risk Factors” beginning on page 19.

(1) The number of shares of common stock to be outstanding after this offering is based on 28,203,545
shares of common stock outstanding as of December 31, 2020 and excludes: (i) an aggregate of shares
of 1,751,882 our common stock that we may issue upon redemption of outstanding OP units on a one-
for-one basis (subject to certain adjustments), (ii) 377,596 shares of our common stock underlying
outstanding RSUs that we have granted pursuant to our Omnibus Incentive Plan and (iii) 1,682,780
shares of our common stock reserved for future issuance under our Omnibus Incentive Plan.
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Summary Historical and Pro Forma Financial Data

On December 23, 2019, we completed our formation transactions pursuant to which, among other
things, our predecessor was merged with and into our operating partnership. The summary consolidated
statements of operations data presented below for the period from January 1, 2019 to December 22, 2019
relate to our predecessor and are derived from the audited consolidated financial statements that are included
in this prospectus. The summary consolidated statement of operations data for the period from December 23,
2019 to December 31, 2019 and the year ended December 31, 2020 and the consolidated balance sheet
data as of December 31, 2020 relate to the Company and are derived from the audited consolidated financial
statements that are included in this prospectus.

The pro forma summary consolidated statement of operations data for the year ended December 31,
2020 are derived from the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements included in this prospectus
and assume the completion of certain transactions as of January 1, 2020, as described in “Unaudited Pro
Forma Consolidated Financial Statements.” The pro forma summary consolidated balance sheet data as of
December 31, 2020 is derived from the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements included in
this prospectus and assumes the completion as of December 31, 2020 of certain transactions, as described
in “Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Statements.” Our pro forma financial information is not
necessarily indicative of what our actual financial position and results of operations would have been as
of the date and for the periods indicated, nor does it purport to represent our future financial position or results
of operations.

You should read the following summary historical and pro forma financial and other data together
with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” “Our
Business and Properties” and the consolidated financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere
in this prospectus.
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(in thousands, except share and per share
data)
Operating Data:
Revenues
Rental revenue (including
reimbursable) . . . ... ...
Operating expenses:
Property
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization. . . . . ...
Provision for impairment
Transaction costs

Total operating expenses
Other income (expense):
Interest expense, net
Gain on sale of real estate, net
Gain from forfeited earnest money
deposit. ... v i
Other income (expense), net

Total other income (expense), net . . .

Net income (loss)

Net income attributable to non-controlling

interests
Preferred stock dividends and redemption

Premium. . . . ..o v e

Net income (loss) attributable to common
stockholders. . . ... ... ... ...

Amounts available to common stockholders
per common share:

Basic

Diluted

Weighted average common shares

outstanding:

Basic

Statement of Cash Flow Data:
Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities
Investing activities . . . .. ...... ...
Financing activities

Other Data:
132016) P
Core FFO(D)
AFFO(L) . . o oo
EBITDA(L)
EBITDAre(1) . « oo oo
Adjusted EBITDAre(1)
NOIL) .+ v vveeeeee
Cash NOI(1)

Company Predecessor
Pro Forma Historical Historical Historical
Period from | Period from

Year Year December 23 | January 1

ended ended through through
December 31, December 31, December 31, |December 22,
2020 2020 2019 2019
(Unaudited)

$ 50,572 $ 33,727 $ 513 $ 19,805
4,786 2,569 52 1,113
11,340 11,340 51 4,090
24,053 15,459 195 10,422
2,690 2,690 — 7,186
3,169 3,169 2 535
46,038 35,227 298 22,811
(4,741) (4,741) (173) (10,712)
6,213 6,213 — 5,646
250 250 — —
10 10 - -

1,712 1,712 (173) (5,066)

6,246 212 42 (8,072)
889 (518) (14) -
42 42 — —

$ 5315 3 688 3 28 $ (8072)
$ 0.20 $ 0.04 — NA
$ 0.20 $ 0.01 — NA
26,814,085 17,322,182 8,860,760 NA
30,649,899 21,157,996 8,860,760 NA
NA $ 12,749 $ 89 $ 5,989
NA (362,133) (167,844) 75,934

NA 272,708 337,074 (82,317)
$ 26,471 $ 11,843 $ 230 $ 3,890
28,391 13,763 230 3,890
28,740 14,644 231 6,514
34,341 19,908 412 13,625
30,818 16,385 412 15,165
33,165 19,069 397 16,202
45,786 31,158 461 18,692
43,062 28,966 448 20,292
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(1) FFO, Core FFO, AFFO, EBITDA, EBITDAre, Adjusted EBITDAre, NOI and Cash NOI are non-GAAP
financial measures. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for definitions of these measures and a reconciliation
to net income (loss), the most comparable GAAP measure.

Pro Forma Historical
As of As of
December 31, December 31,
2020 2020
(In thousands) (unaudited)
Balance Sheet Data:
Total real estate,at cost . . ... ... .. $547,733 $547,733
Real estate held forinvestment,net . . ... ... .. ... 537,622 537,622
Cash, cash equivalents and restrictedcash . .. ................... 262,143 92,643
Total assets . . ... . 895,315 725,815
Total liabilities . . ... ... .. . . 198,342 197,742
Total stockholders’ equity . . ... .. ... ... . . . ... 662,998 494,098
Noncontrolling interests . ... ... ... ... 33,975 33,975
Total eQUItY . . . .o 696,973 528,073
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RISK FACTORS

An investment in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the
following material risks, as well as the other information contained in this prospectus, before making an
investment in our company. If any of the following risks actually occur, our business, prospects, financial
condition, results of operations and/or cash flow could be materially and adversely affected. In such an event,
the trading price of our common stock could decline and you could lose part or all of your investment. Some
statements in this prospectus, including statements in the following risk factors, constitute forward-looking
statements. Please refer to the section of this prospectus entitled “Forward-Looking Statements.”

Risks Related to Our Business and Properties

We are subject to risks related to commercial real estate ownership that could reduce the value of our
properties.

Our core business is the ownership of single-tenant, retail commercial real estate subject to long-term
net leases. Accordingly, our performance is subject to risks incident to the ownership of commercial real
estate, including: inability to collect rents from tenants due to financial hardship, including bankruptey;
changes in local real estate conditions in the markets in which we operate, including the availability and
demand for single-tenant, retail commercial real estate space; changes in consumer trends and preferences
that affect the demand for products and services offered by our tenants; inability to lease or sell properties
upon expiration or termination of existing leases; environmental risks, including the presence of hazardous or
toxic substances or materials on our properties; the subjectivity of real estate valuations and changes in
such valuations over time; the illiquid nature of real estate compared to most other financial assets; changes
in laws and governmental regulations, including those governing real estate usage and zoning; changes in
interest rates and the availability of financing; and changes in the general economic and business climate. The
occurrence of any of these may cause the value of our real estate to decline, which could materially and
adversely affect us.

Global market and economic conditions may materially and adversely affect us and our tenants.

Changes in global or national economic conditions, such as a global economic and financial market
downturn, including as a result of COVID-19 (as discussed below) or another pandemic in the future, may
cause, among other things, a tightening in the credit markets, lower levels of liquidity, increases in the rate of
default and bankruptcy, and lower consumer and business spending, which could materially and adversely
affect us. Potential consequences of changes in economic and financial conditions include: changes in the
performance of our tenants, which may result in lower rent and lower recoverable expenses than the
tenant can afford to pay and tenant defaults under the lease; current or potential tenants may delay or
postpone entering into long-term leases with us; the ability to borrow on terms and conditions that we find
to be acceptable, which could reduce our ability to pursue acquisition opportunities or increase future interest
expense; and the recognition of impairment charges on or reduced values of our properties, which may
adversely affect our results of operations or limit our ability to dispose of assets at attractive prices and may
reduce the availability of buyer financing. We are also limited in our ability to reduce costs to offset the
results of a prolonged or severe economic downturn given certain fixed costs and commitments associated
with our operations. Accordingly, a decline in economic conditions could materially and adversely affect us.

The current pandemic of COVID-19 and the future outbreak of other highly infectious or contagious
diseases could materially and adversely impact or disrupt our financial condition, results of operations,
cash flows and performance.

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization announced a new strain of coronavirus
(“COVID-19”) was reported worldwide, resulting in COVID-19 being declared a pandemic, and on March 13,
2020 the U.S. President announced a National Emergency relating to the disease.

COVID-19 and the measures taken to limit its spread are negatively impacting the economy across
many industries, including industries in which our tenants operate. The impacts may continue and/or
increase in severity as the duration of the pandemic lengthens. As a result, we are not yet able to determine
the full impact of COVID-19 on our operations and therefore whether any such impact will be material.
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Throughout the year, a number of our tenants across various industries announced temporary closures of
their locations and requested rent deferral or rent abatement during this pandemic. During 2020, we provided
rent deferral and rent abatement to 12 and 15 of our properties, respectively, representing 0.5%, and 1.7% of
ABR as of December 31, 2020, respectively. We have not provided for any abatements or deferrals after
August 1, 2020. All tenants with rent relief agreements in place paid in accordance with the terms of their
new lease agreements and, as of the end of the second, third and fourth quarters of 2020, we had collected
87.2%, 98.1% and 100.0%, respectively, of all 2020 contractual rent payments. Accordingly, our operations and
cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2020 were not materially impacted by COVID-19.

In addition, the majority of our employees based at our headquarters are currently working remotely.
The effects of an extended period of remote work arrangements, could strain our business continuity plans,
introduce operational risk, including but not limited to cybersecurity risks, and impair our ability to manage
our business. The COVID-19 pandemic, or a future pandemic, also may exacerbate the other risks disclosed
in these “Risk Factors” including, but not limited to, the ability of our tenants to pay rent, our ability to renew
leases, acquire properties on attractive terms or at all, and our access to external sources of capital.

The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic impacts our operations and those of our tenants will
depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted with confidence,
including the scope, severity and duration of the pandemic, the actions taken to contain the pandemic or
mitigate its impact, and the direct and indirect economic effects of the pandemic and containment measures,
among others. Additional closures by our tenants of their locations and early terminations by our tenants
of their leases could reduce our cash flows, which could impact our ability to continue paying dividends to our
stockholders at expected levels or at all.

The development and fluidity of this situation precludes any prediction as to the full adverse impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic. Nevertheless, the COVID-19 pandemic presents material uncertainty and risk
with respect to our financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and performance.

Our business is dependent upon our tenants successfully operating their businesses and their failure to
do so could materially and adversely affect us.

Each of our properties is leased by a single tenant. Therefore, we believe that the success of our
investments is materially dependent on the financial stability of our tenants. The success of any one of our
tenants is dependent on its individual business and its industry, which could be adversely affected by poor
management, global market and economic conditions in general, changes in consumer trends and
preferences that decrease demand for a tenant’s products or services or other factors over which neither
they nor we have control. Our portfolio includes properties leased to single tenants that operate in multiple
locations, which means we own numerous properties leased by the same entity (or related group of entities),
including 7-Eleven, Lowe’s, Advance Auto Parts, Walmart, CVS, Dollar General Ollie’s Bargain Outlet,
Hobby Lobby, Tractor Supply Company and Walgreens. To the extent we finance numerous properties
operated by one entity (or related group of entities), the general failure of that single entity (or related group
of entities) or a loss or significant decline in its business could materially and adversely affect us.

At any given time, any tenant may experience a downturn in its business that may weaken its operating
results or the overall financial condition of individual properties or its business as a whole. As a result, a tenant
may delay lease commencement, fail to make rental payments when due, decline to extend a lease upon its
expiration, become insolvent or declare bankruptcy. We depend on our tenants to operate the properties we
own in a manner that generates revenues sufficient to allow them to meet their obligations to us, including
their obligations to pay rent, maintain certain insurance coverage and pay real estate taxes. The ability of our
tenants to fulfill their obligations under our leases may depend, in part, upon the overall profitability of
their operations. Cash flow generated by certain tenant businesses may not be sufficient for a tenant to meet
its obligations to us. We could be materially and adversely affected if a number of our tenants were unable
to meet their obligations to us.

Single-tenant leases involve significant risks of tenant default.

Our strategy focuses primarily on investing in single-tenant, retail commercial real estate subject to
long-term net leases across the United States. The financial failure of, or default in payment by, a single
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tenant under its lease is likely to cause a significant or complete reduction in our rental revenue from that
property and a reduction in the value of the property. We may also experience difficulty or a significant delay
in re-leasing or selling such property. This risk will be magnified if we decide to lease multiple properties

to a single tenant under a master lease. A tenant failure or default under a master lease could reduce or
eliminate rental revenue from multiple properties and reduce the value of such properties. In addition, we
would be responsible for all of the operating costs of a property following a vacancy at a single-tenant building.
Because our properties have generally been built to suit a particular tenant’s specific needs, we may also
incur significant costs to make the leased premises ready for another tenant.

Our assessment that certain businesses are e-commerce resistant and recession-resilient, may prove
to be incorrect.

We primarily invest in properties leased to tenants in industries where a physical location is critical to
the generation of sales and profits with a focus on necessity goods and essential services in the retail sector
such as home improvement, auto parts, drug stores and pharmacies, general retail, grocers, convenience
stores, discount stores, and quick-service restaurants. We believe these characteristics make our tenants’
businesses e-commerce resistant and resilient through all economic cycles. While we believe this to be the
case, businesses previously thought to be internet resistant, such as the retail grocery industry, have proven to
be susceptible to competition from e-commerce. Technology and business conditions, particularly in the
retail industry, are rapidly changing, and our tenants may be adversely affected by technological innovation,
changing consumer preferences and competition from non-traditional sources. To the extent our tenants
face increased competition from non-traditional competitors, such as internet vendors, some of which may
have different business models and larger profit margins, their businesses could suffer. There can be no
assurance that our tenants will be successful in the face of any new competition, and a deterioration in our
tenants’ businesses could impair their ability to meet their lease obligations to us and materially and adversely
affect us.

A substantial number of our properties are leased to unrated tenants and the tools we use to determine
the creditworthiness of our tenants may not be accurate.

Approximately 19% of our properties are leased to unrated and sub-investment grade tenants that we
determine, through our disciplined underwriting and risk management strategy, to be creditworthy. In
evaluating a property for acquisition, we utilize our three-part underwriting and risk management strategy
with an emphasis on credit and real estate that includes (i) reviewing corporate level financial information,
assessing business risks and reviewing investment rating or establishing a “shadow rating” using our
proprietary credit modeling process for unrated tenants, (ii) reviewing the underlying key real estate metrics
of each property, including location and demographics that will support both tenant financial health,
including market rents, and a market for alternative use, re-leasing or redevelopment, when necessary, and
(iii) analyzing and/ or estimating unit-level profitability and cost variability, to determine the likelihood of
each location sustainably operating as a profit center. A shadow rating does not constitute a published
credit rating and lacks the extensive company participation that is typically involved when a rating agency
publishes a rating; accordingly, a shadow rating may not be as indicative of creditworthiness as a rating
published by Moody’s Investor Services, S&P Global Ratings, or another nationally recognized statistical
rating organization. Our calculations of shadow ratings and rent coverage ratios are based on financial
information provided to us by our tenants and prospective tenants without independent verification on our
part, and we must assume the appropriateness of estimates and judgments that were made by the party
preparing the financial information. If our measurement of credit quality proves to be inaccurate, we may
be subject to defaults, and investors may view our cash flows as less stable.

Our portfolio has geographic market concentrations that make us especially susceptible to adverse
developments in those geographic markets.

Our portfolio includes substantial holdings in Texas (14.4%), Georgia (7.6%), Ohio (5.9%) and Virginia
(5.5%) based on ABR. In addition, a significant portion of our portfolio is located in the South (51.3%) and
Midwest (25.7%) regions of the United States (as defined by the U.S. Census Bureau). This geographic
concentration could adversely affect our operating performance if conditions become less favorable in any
of the regions, states or markets within such states in which we have a concentration of properties. An
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economic downturn or other adverse events or conditions, such as natural disasters, in any of these areas or
any other area where we may have a significant concentration in the future, could materially and adversely
affect us.

We are subject to risks related to tenant concentration, and an adverse development with respect to a
large tenant could materially and adversely affect us.

The top six tenants in our portfolio—7-Eleven, Lowe’s, Advance Auto Parts, Walmart, CVS and Dollar
General—contributed 7.8%, 7.4%, 7.4%, 6.8%, 5.5% and 5.3%, respectively, of our ABR. As a result, our financial
performance depends significantly on the revenues generated from these tenants and, in turn, their
financial condition. Although our strategy targets a scaled portfolio that, over time, will increase tenant
diversification, our portfolio has six tenants that individually contribute more than five percent of our ABR.
In the future, we may experience additional tenant and industry concentrations. In the event that one of these
tenants, or another tenant that occupies a significant portion of our properties or whose lease payments
represent a significant portion of our rental revenue, were to experience financial weakness or file for
bankruptcy, it could have a material adverse effect on us.

We may be unable to renew leases, lease vacant space or re-lease space as leases expire on favorable
terms or at all.

Our results of operations depend on our ability to continue to strategically lease our properties,
including renewing expiring leases, leasing vacant space and re-leasing space in properties where leases are
expiring, optimizing our tenant mix or leasing properties on more economically favorable terms. Leases
representing 1.2% of the ABR of our portfolio are scheduled to expire during 2023 (the first year in which lease
expirations will occur following the consummation of this offering). Current tenants may decline, or may
not have the financial resources available, to renew current leases and we cannot assure you that leases that
are renewed will have terms that are as economically favorable to us as the expiring lease terms. If tenants
do not renew the leases as they expire, we will have to find new tenants to lease our properties and there is no
guarantee that we will be able to find new tenants, that our properties will be re-leased at rental rates equal
to or above the current average rental rates or that substantial rent abatements, tenant improvement
allowances, early termination rights or below-market renewal options or other tenant inducements will not
be offered to attract new tenants. We may experience significant costs in connection with re-leasing a
significant number of our properties, which could materially and adversely affect us.

In addition, the loss of a tenant, either through lease expiration or tenant bankruptcy or insolvency,
may require us to spend significant amounts of capital to renovate the property before it is suitable for a
new tenant and cause us to incur significant costs. Many of the leases we enter into or acquire are for
properties that are specially suited to the particular business of our tenants. Because these properties have
been designed or physically modified for a particular tenant, if the current lease is terminated or not renewed,
we may be subject to an uncertain period of downtime without rental income, be required to renovate the
property at substantial costs, decrease the rent we charge or provide other concessions in order to lease the
property to another tenant. In addition, in the event we are required to sell the property, we may have difficulty
selling it to a party other than the tenant due to the special purpose for which the property may have been
designed or modified. This potential illiquidity may limit our ability to quickly modify our portfolio in response
to changes in economic or other conditions, including tenant demand. These limitations may materially
and adversely affect us.

Some of our tenants operate under franchise or license agreements, which, if terminated or not
renewed prior to the expiration of their leases with us, would likely impair their ability to pay us rent.

Of the ABR of our portfolio, 13.4% is operated by tenants under franchise or license agreements.
Generally, franchise agreements have terms that end earlier than the respective expiration dates of the
related leases. In addition, a tenant’s rights as a franchisee or licensee typically may be terminated and the
tenant may be precluded from competing with the franchiser or licensor upon termination. Usually, we have
no notice or cure rights with respect to such a termination and have no rights to assignment of any such
franchise agreement. This may have an adverse effect on our ability to mitigate losses arising from a default
on any of our leases. A franchiser’s or licensor’s termination or refusal to renew a franchise or license
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agreement would likely have a material adverse effect on the ability of the tenant to make payments under
its lease, which could materially and adversely affect us.

The bankruptcy or insolvency of any of our tenants could result in the termination of such tenant’s
lease and material losses to us.

The occurrence of a tenant bankruptcy or insolvency could diminish the income we receive from that
tenant’s lease or leases or force us to “take back” a property as a result of a default or a rejection of a lease by
a tenant in bankruptcy. If a tenant becomes bankrupt or insolvent, federal law may prohibit us from
evicting such tenant based solely upon such bankruptey or insolvency. In addition, a bankrupt or insolvent
tenant may be authorized to reject and terminate its lease or leases with us. Any claims against such bankrupt
tenant for unpaid future rent would be subject to statutory limitations that would likely result in our receipt
of rental revenues that are substantially less than the contractually specified rent we are owed under the lease
or leases. In addition, any claim we have for unpaid past rent, if any, may not be paid in full. We may also be
unable to re-lease a terminated or rejected space or to re-lease it on comparable or more favorable terms. As a
result, tenant bankruptcies may materially and adversely affect us.

We may not be able to successfully execute our acquisition or development strategies.

Our ability to expand through acquisitions requires us to identify and complete acquisitions or
investment opportunities that are compatible with our growth strategy and to successfully integrate newly
acquired properties into our portfolio. We continually evaluate investment opportunities and may acquire
properties when strategic opportunities exist. Our ability to acquire properties on favorable terms and
successfully operate them may be constrained by risks associated with ownership of real estate. As a result,
we may not be able to implement our investment and acquisition strategies successfully. We cannot assure
you that our portfolio of properties will expand at all, or if it will expand at any specified rate or to any
specified size. Because we expect to invest in markets other than the ones in which our current properties
are located or properties which may be leased to tenants other than those to which we have historically leased
properties, we will also be subject to the risks associated with investment in new markets or with new
tenants that may be relatively unfamiliar to our management team.

While we do not intend to act as a developer, we may selectively provide development financing for
build to suit projects. Development is subject to, without limitation, risks relating to the availability and
timely receipt of zoning and other regulatory approvals and the cost and timely completion of construction
(including risks from factors beyond our control, such as weather or labor conditions or material shortages).
These risks could result in substantial unanticipated delays or expenses and, under certain circumstances,
could prevent completion of development activities once undertaken or provide a tenant the opportunity to
reduce rent or terminate a lease. Any of these situations may delay or eliminate proceeds or cash flows we
expect from build to suit projects, which could have an adverse effect on our financial condition.

Illiquidity of real estate investments could significantly impede our ability to respond to adverse
changes in the performance of our properties and harm our financial condition.

Our real estate investments are relatively difficult to sell quickly. As a result, our ability to promptly
sell one or more properties in our portfolio in response to changing economic, financial or investment
conditions is limited. We may be unable to realize our investment objective by sale, other disposition or
refinancing at attractive prices within any given period of time or may otherwise be unable to complete any
exit strategy. In particular, these risks could arise from weakness in or even the lack of an established
market for a property, changes in the financial condition or prospects of prospective purchasers, changes in
national or international economic conditions and changes in laws, regulations or fiscal policies of the
jurisdiction in which the property is located.

In addition, the Code imposes restrictions on a REIT’s ability to dispose of properties that are not
applicable to other types of real estate companies. In particular, the tax laws applicable to REITs effectively
require that we hold our properties for investment, rather than primarily for sale in the ordinary course of
business, which may cause us to forgo or defer sales of properties that otherwise would be in our best
interest. Therefore, we may not be able to alter our portfolio in response to economic or other conditions
promptly or on favorable terms, which may materially and adversely affect us.
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We face significant competition for tenants, which may decrease or prevent increases of the occupancy
and rental rates of our properties, and competition for acquisitions may reduce the number of
acquisitions we are able to complete and increase the costs of these acquisitions.

We compete with numerous developers, owners and operators of properties, many of which own
properties similar to ours in the same markets in which our properties are located, some of which may have
greater financial resources than we do. If our competitors offer space at rental rates below current market
rates, or below the rental rates we currently charge our tenants, we may lose existing or potential tenants
and we may be pressured to reduce our rental rates or to offer more substantial rent abatements, tenant
improvements, early termination rights or below-market renewal options in order to retain tenants when our
leases expire. This competition also may increase the demand for the types of properties in which we
typically invest and, therefore, reduce the number of suitable investment opportunities available to us and
increase the prices paid for such acquisition properties. Accordingly, competition for the acquisition of real
property and tenants could materially and adversely affect us.

Failure to hedge effectively against interest rate changes may materially and adversely affect us.

We currently hedge our interest rate volatility through interest rate swaps. These arrangements
involve risks and may not be effective in reducing our exposure to interest rate changes. In addition, the
counterparties to any hedging arrangements we enter into in the future may not honor their obligations.
Failure to hedge effectively against changes in interest rates relating to the interest expense of our future
floating-rate borrowings may materially and adversely affect us.

A loss of key management personnel could adversely affect our performance.

As an internally managed company, we are dependent on the efforts and performance of our key
management. We cannot guarantee we retain any of our senior leadership team and they could be difficult
to replace. The loss of their services until suitable replacements are found could adversely affect our business,
diminish our investment opportunities and weaken our relationships with lenders, business partners,
existing and prospective tenants and industry personnel, all of which could materially and adversely affect
us.

Any material failure, weakness, interruption or breach in security of our information systems could
prevent us from effectively operating our business.

We rely on information systems across our operations and corporate functions, including finance and
accounting, and depend on such systems to ensure payment of obligations, collection of cash, data
warehousing to support analytics, and other various processes and procedures. Our ability to efficiently
manage our business depends significantly on the reliability and capacity of these systems. The failure of
these systems to operate effectively, maintenance problems, upgrading or transitioning to new platforms, or
a breach in security of these systems, such as in the event of cyber-attacks, could result in the theft of
intellectual property, personal information or personal property, damage to our reputation and third-party
claims, as well as reduced efficiency in our operations and in the accuracy of our internal and external financial
reporting. A failure or weakness in our information systems could materially and adversely affect us, and
the remediation of any such problems could result in significant unplanned expenditures.

Failure to maintain an effective system of internal control over financial reporting could adversely
affect our ability to present accurately our financial statements and could materially and adversely
affect us, including our business, reputation, results of operations, financial condition or liquidity.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial
reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim
financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. We will rely on our internal control
over financial reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP. More broadly,
effective internal control over financial reporting is a necessary component of our program to seek to prevent,
and to detect any, fraud. Furthermore, as we grow, our business will likely become more complex, and we
may require significantly more resources to develop and maintain effective controls. Designing and
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implementing an effective system of internal control over financial reporting is a continuous effort that
requires significant resources, including the expenditure of a significant amount of time by senior members
of our management team. Any failure to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting or to
timely effect any necessary improvements to such controls could materially and adversely affect us.
Additionally, ineffective internal control over financial reporting could also adversely affect our ability to
prevent or detect fraud, harm our reputation and cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial
information.

We are not currently required to comply with the rules of the SEC implementing Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act and are therefore not required to make a formal assessment of the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting for that purpose. Although we will be required to disclose changes
made in our internal controls and procedures on a quarterly basis, we will not be required to make our first
annual assessment of our internal control over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404 until December 31,
2021. Moreover, as an emerging growth company, our independent registered public accounting firm will
not be required to formally attest to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting pursuant
to Section 404 until the later of December 31, 2021 or the date we are no longer an emerging growth
company. At such time, our independent registered public accounting firm may issue a report that is adverse
in the event it is not satisfied with the level at which our controls are documented, designed or operating.

Our properties may contain or develop harmful mold, which could lead to liability for adverse health
effects and costs of remediation.

When excessive moisture accumulates in buildings or on building materials, or moisture otherwise
occurs within a building or building materials, mold growth may occur, particularly if the moisture problem
remains undiscovered or is not addressed over a period of time. Some molds may be toxic and produce
airborne toxins or irritants. Concern about indoor exposure to mold has been increasing, as exposure to mold
may cause a variety of adverse health effects and symptoms, including allergic or other reactions. As a
result, should our tenants or their employees or customers be exposed to mold at any of our properties we
could be required to undertake a costly remediation program to contain or remove the mold from the affected
property. In addition, exposure to mold by our tenants or others could subject us to liability if property
damage or health concerns arise. If we were to become subject to significant mold-related liabilities, we could
be materially and adversely affected.

Insurance on our properties may not adequately cover all losses and uninsured losses could materially
and adversely affect us.

Our tenants generally are required to maintain liability and property insurance coverage for the
properties they lease from us pursuant to triple or double-net leases. These leases generally require our
tenants to name us (and any of our lenders that have a mortgage on the property leased by the tenant) as
additional insureds on their liability policies and additional named insured and/or loss payee (or mortgagee,
in the case of our lenders) on their property policies. Depending on the location of the property, losses of a
catastrophic nature, such as those caused by earthquakes and floods, may be covered by insurance policies
that are held by our tenant with limitations such as large deductibles or co-payments that a tenant may
not be able to meet. In addition, losses of a catastrophic nature, such as those caused by wind/hail, hurricanes,
terrorism or acts of war, may be uninsurable or not economically insurable. In addition, inflation, changes
in building codes and ordinances, environmental considerations, and other factors, including terrorism or acts
of war, may make any insurance proceeds we receive insufficient to repair or replace a property if it is
damaged or destroyed. In the event there is damage to our properties that is not covered by insurance, we
may be materially and adversely affected.

We may acquire properties or portfolios of properties through tax deferred contribution transactions,
which could result in stockholder dilution and limit our ability to sell such assets.

In the future we may acquire properties or portfolios of properties through tax deferred contribution
transactions in exchange for OP units, which may result in stockholder dilution. This acquisition structure
may have the effect of, among other things, reducing the amount of tax depreciation we could deduct over the
tax life of the acquired properties, and may require that we agree to protect the contributors’ ability to defer
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recognition of taxable gain through restrictions on our ability to dispose of the acquired properties and/or
the allocation of partnership debt to the contributors to maintain their tax bases. These restrictions could limit
our ability to sell an asset at a time, or on terms, that would be favorable absent such restrictions. In
addition, as part of the formation transactions, our predecessor made limited representations, warranties
and covenants to us regarding the contributed assets. Because many liabilities, including tax liabilities, may
not have been identified, we may have no recourse for such liabilities. Any unknown or unquantifiable
liabilities to which the properties and assets previously owned by our predecessor are subject could adversely
affect the value of those properties and as a result adversely affect us.

We may experience a decline in the fair value of our assets, which may have a material impact on our
financial condition, liquidity and results of operations and adversely impact the market value of our
common stock.

A decline in the fair market value of our assets may require us to recognize an other-than-temporary
impairment against such assets under GAAP if we were to determine that we do not have the ability and
intent to hold any assets in unrealized loss positions to maturity or for a period of time sufficient to allow for
recovery to the amortized cost of such assets. In such event, we would recognize unrealized losses through
earnings and write down the amortized cost of such assets to a new cost basis, based on the fair value of such
assets on the date they are considered to be other-than-temporarily impaired. Such impairment charges
reflect non-cash losses at the time of recognition; subsequent disposition or sale of such assets could further
affect our future losses or gains, as they are based on the difference between the sale price received and
adjusted amortized cost of such assets at the time of sale, which may adversely affect our financial condition,
liquidity and results of operations.

The form, timing and/or amount of dividend distributions in future periods may vary and be affected
by economic and other considerations.

The form, timing and/or amount of dividend distributions will be authorized at the discretion of our
board of directors and will depend on actual cash from operations, our financial condition, capital
requirements, the annual distribution requirements applicable to REITs under the Code and other factors as
our board of directors may consider relevant.

Risks Related to Financing our Business

Our growth depends on external sources of capital that are outside of our control and may not be
available to us on commercially reasonable terms or at all.

In order to maintain our qualification as a REIT, we are required under the Code, among other things,
to distribute annually at least 90% of our REIT taxable income, determined without regard to the dividends
paid deduction and excluding any net capital gain. In addition, we will be subject to income tax at the corporate
rate to the extent that we distribute less than 100% of our REIT taxable income, determined without regard
to the dividends paid deduction and including any net capital gain. Because of these distribution requirements,
we may not be able to fund future capital needs, including any necessary acquisition financing, from
operating cash flow. Consequently, we may rely on third-party sources to fund our capital needs, and we may
not be able to obtain financing on favorable terms or at all. Any additional debt we incur will increase our
leverage and likelihood of default. Our access to third-party sources of capital depends, in part, on: general
market conditions; the market’s perception of our growth potential; our current debt levels; our current and
expected future earnings; our cash flow and cash distributions; and the price per share of our common
stock. If we cannot obtain capital from third-party sources, we may not be able to acquire properties when
strategic opportunities exist, meet the capital and operating needs of our existing properties, satisfy our debt
service obligations or make the cash distributions to our stockholders necessary to qualify as a REIT. In
addition, if we are unable to obtain financing in order to make distributions required to maintain our
qualification as a REIT, we may make taxable in-kind distributions of our own stock, which may cause our
stockholders to be required to pay income taxes with respect to such distributions in excess of any cash they
receive, or we may be required to withhold taxes with respect to such distributions in excess of any cash
our stockholders receive.

26



Our level of indebtedness could materially and adversely affect our financial position, including
reducing funds available for other business purposes and reducing our operational flexibility.

As of December 31, 2020, we had $175.0 million outstanding on our Term Loan and no borrowings
under our Revolver. Payments of principal and interest on borrowings may leave us with insufficient cash
resources to meet our cash needs or make the distributions to our common stockholders currently
contemplated or necessary to qualify as a REIT. Our level of debt and the limitations imposed on us by our
debt agreements could have significant adverse consequences, including the following: our cash flow may be
insufficient to meet our required principal and interest payments; cash interest expense and financial
covenants relating to our indebtedness may limit or eliminate our ability to make distributions to our common
stockholders; we may be unable to borrow additional funds as needed or on favorable terms, which could,
among other things, adversely affect our ability to capitalize upon investment opportunities or meet
operational needs; we may be unable to refinance our indebtedness at maturity or the refinancing terms
may be less favorable than the terms of our original indebtedness; counterparties may fail to honor their
obligations under any hedge agreements we enter into, such agreements may not effectively hedge interest
rate fluctuation risk, and, upon the expiration of any hedge agreements we enter into, we would be exposed to
then-existing market rates of interest and future interest rate volatility; we may be forced to dispose of
properties, possibly on unfavorable terms or in violation of certain covenants to which we may be subject;
we may default on our obligations and the lenders or mortgagees may foreclose on our properties or our
interests in the entities that own the properties that secure their loans and receive an assignment of rents and
leases; we may be restricted from accessing some of our excess cash flow after debt service if certain of our
tenants fail to meet certain financial performance metric thresholds; we may violate restrictive covenants in
our loan documents, which would entitle the lenders to accelerate our debt obligations; and our default
under any loan with cross default provisions could result in a default on other indebtedness. The occurrence
of any of these events could materially and adversely affect us. Furthermore, foreclosures could create
taxable income without accompanying cash proceeds, which could hinder our ability to meet the REIT
distribution requirements imposed by the Code.

Market conditions could adversely affect our ability to refinance existing indebtedness or obtain
additional financing for growth on acceptable terms or at all, which could materially and adversely
affect us.

Credit markets may experience significant price volatility, displacement and liquidity disruptions,
including the bankruptcy, insolvency or restructuring of certain financial institutions. Such circumstances
could materially impact liquidity in the financial markets, making financing terms for borrowers less attractive,
and potentially result in the unavailability of various types of debt financing. As a result, we may be unable
to obtain debt financing on favorable terms or at all or fully refinance maturing indebtedness with new
indebtedness. Reductions in our available borrowing capacity or inability to obtain credit, including under
the Credit Facility, when required or when business conditions warrant could materially and adversely affect
us.

Furthermore, if prevailing interest rates or other factors at the time of refinancing result in higher
interest rates upon refinancing, then the interest expense relating to that refinanced indebtedness would
increase. Higher interest rates on newly incurred debt may negatively impact us as well. If interest rates
increase, our interest costs and overall costs of capital will increase, which could materially and adversely
affect us and our ability to make distributions to our stockholders.

Our debt financing agreements, including the Credit Facility, contain or may contain restrictions and
covenants which may limit our ability to enter into or obtain funding for certain transactions, operate our
business or make distributions to our common stockholders.

The Credit Facility and other debt agreements we may enter into in the future contain or may contain
financial and other covenants with which we are or will be required to comply and that limit or will limit our
ability to operate our business. These covenants, as well as any additional covenants to which we may be
subject in the future because of additional borrowings, could cause us to have to forego investment
opportunities, reduce or eliminate distributions to our common stockholders or obtain financing that is
more expensive than financing we could obtain if we were not subject to the covenants. In addition, the
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agreements governing our borrowings may have cross default provisions, which provide that a default
under one of our debt financing agreements would lead to a default on all of our debt financing agreements.

The covenants and other restrictions under our debt agreements may affect, among other things, our
ability to: incur indebtedness; create liens on assets; cause our subsidiaries to distribute cash to us to fund
distributions to stockholders or to otherwise use in our business; sell or substitute assets; modify certain terms
of our leases; manage our cash flows; and make distributions to equity holders, including our common
stockholders. Additionally, these restrictions may adversely affect our operating and financial flexibility and
may limit our ability to respond to changes in our business or competitive environment, all of which may
materially and adversely affect us.

Risks Related to Government Regulation and Tax Matters

Our failure to qualify or maintain our qualification as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes
would reduce the amount of funds we have available for distribution and limit our ability to make
distributions to our stockholders.

We believe that our organization and current and proposed method of operation have enabled us to
meet the requirements for qualification and taxation as a REIT commencing with our short taxable year
ended December 31, 2019, and we intend to continue to operate in such a manner. However, we cannot assure
you that we will qualify and remain qualified as a REIT. If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year,
we will face serious tax consequences that will substantially reduce the funds available for distributions to
our stockholders because: we would not be allowed a deduction for dividends paid to stockholders in
computing our taxable income and would be subject to U.S. federal income tax at the corporate rate; we
could be subject to increased state and local taxes; and unless we are entitled to relief under certain U.S. federal
income tax laws, we could not re-elect REIT status until the fifth calendar year after the year in which we
failed to qualify as a REIT. In addition, if we fail to qualify as a REIT, we will no longer be required to make
distributions. As a result of all these factors, our failure to qualify as a REIT could impair our ability to expand
our business and raise capital, and it would adversely affect the value of our common stock.

Qualification as a REIT involves the application of highly technical and complex Code provisions for
which there are only limited judicial and administrative interpretations. The determination of various factual
matters and circumstances not entirely within our control may affect our ability to qualify as a REIT. To
qualify as a REIT, we must satisfy a number of requirements, including requirements regarding the ownership
of our stock, requirements regarding the composition of our assets and a requirement that certain
specified percentages of our gross income in any year must be derived from qualifying sources, such as
“rents from real property.” Also, we must make distributions to stockholders aggregating annually at least
90% of our REIT taxable income, determined without regard to the dividends paid deduction and excluding
any net capital gains. In addition, legislation, new regulations, administrative interpretations or court decisions
may materially and adversely affect our investors, our ability to qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income
tax purposes or the desirability of an investment in a REIT relative to other investments.

Even if we qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we may be subject to other tax
liabilities that reduce our cash flow and our ability to make distributions to you.

Even if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we may be subject to certain U.S. federal, state and local
income, property and excise taxes on our income or property and, in certain cases, a 100% penalty tax, in the
event we sell property as a dealer. In addition, NETSTREIT TRS and any additional TRSs we form will be
subject to U.S. federal income tax and applicable state and local taxes on their net income. Any of these taxes
would reduce our cash available for distribution to you.

Failure to make required distributions would subject us to U.S. federal corporate income tax.

We intend to continue to operate in a manner so as to qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax
purposes. In order to maintain our qualification as a REIT, we generally are required to distribute at least
90% of our REIT taxable income, determined without regard to the dividends paid deduction and excluding
any net capital gain, each year to our stockholders. To the extent that we satisfy this distribution requirement,
but distribute less than 100% of our REIT taxable income, we will be subject to U.S. federal corporate
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income tax on our undistributed taxable income. In addition, we will be subject to a 4% nondeductible excise
tax if the actual amount that we pay out to our stockholders in a calendar year is less than the minimum
amount specified under the Code.

If our operating partnership failed to qualify as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we
would cease to qualify as a REIT.

We believe that our operating partnership will be treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax
purposes. As a partnership, our operating partnership generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax
on its income. Instead, each of its partners, including us, will be allocated, and may be required to pay tax
with respect to, its share of our operating partnership’s income. We cannot assure you, however, that the IRS
will not challenge the status of our operating partnership or any other subsidiary partnership in which we
own an interest as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes, or that a court would not sustain such
a challenge. If the IRS were successful in treating our operating partnership or any such other subsidiary
partnership as an entity taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we would fail to meet
the gross income tests and certain of the asset tests applicable to REITs and, accordingly, we would likely
cease to qualify as a REIT. Also, the failure of our operating partnership or any subsidiary partnerships to
qualify as a partnership could cause it to become subject to U.S. federal and state corporate income tax, which
would reduce significantly the amount of cash available for debt service and for distribution to its partners,
including us.

Dividends payable by REITs generally do not qualify for the reduced tax rates available for some
dividends.

Currently, the maximum tax rate applicable to qualified dividend income payable to U.S. stockholders
that are individuals, trusts and estates is 20%. Dividends payable by REITs, however, generally are not eligible
for this reduced rate. Under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “TCJA”), however, U.S. stockholders that are
individuals, trusts and estates generally may deduct up to 20% of the ordinary dividends (e.g,, dividends not
designated as capital gain dividends or qualified dividend income) received from a REIT for taxable years
beginning after December 31, 2017 and before January 1, 2026. To qualify for this deduction, the U.S.
stockholder receiving such dividends must hold the dividend-paying REIT stock for at least 46 days (taking
into account certain special holding period rules) of the 91-day period beginning 45 days before the stock
becomes ex-dividend and cannot be under an obligation (whether pursuant to a short sale or otherwise) to
make related payments with respect to a position in substantially similar or related property. Although this
deduction reduces the effective U.S. federal income tax rate applicable to such dividends paid by REITs
(generally to 29.6% assuming the stockholder is subject to the 37% maximum rate), such tax rate is still higher
than the tax rate applicable to corporate dividends that constitute qualified dividend income. Accordingly,
investors who are individuals, trusts and estates may perceive investments in REITs to be relatively less
attractive than investments in the stocks of non-REIT corporations that pay dividends, which could
materially and adversely affect the value of the stock of REITs, including the per share trading price of our
common stock.

The share ownership restrictions of the Code for REITs and the 9.8% share ownership limit in our
charter may inhibit market activity in shares of our stock and restrict our business combination
opportunities.

In order to qualify as a REIT, five or fewer individuals, as defined in the Code, may not own, actually or
constructively, more than 50% in value of our issued and outstanding shares of stock at any time during the
last half of each taxable year, other than the first year for which a REIT election is made. Attribution rules in the
Code determine if any individual or entity actually or constructively owns shares of our common stock
under this requirement. Additionally, at least 100 persons must beneficially own shares of our common stock
during at least 335 days of a taxable year for each taxable year, other than the first year for which a REIT
election is made. To help ensure that we meet these tests, among other purposes, our charter restricts the
acquisition and ownership of shares of our common stock.

Our charter, with certain exceptions, authorizes our directors to take such actions as are necessary or
appropriate to preserve our qualification as a REIT while we so qualify. Unless exempted by our board of
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directors (prospectively or retroactively), for so long as we qualify as a REIT, our charter prohibits, among
other limitations on ownership and transfer of shares of our stock, any person from beneficially or
constructively owning (applying certain attribution rules under the Code) more than 9.8% in value or
number of shares, whichever is more restrictive, of our outstanding common stock or of any class or series
of our preferred stock, or more than 9.8% of the aggregate value of all of our outstanding stock. Our board of
directors may not grant an exemption from these restrictions to any proposed transferee whose ownership
in excess of the 9.8% ownership limit would, among other things, result in our failing to qualify as a REIT. The
board may grant waivers from the ownership limits for certain stockholders. These waivers may be subject
to initial and ongoing conditions designed to protect our status as a REIT. These restrictions on transferability
and ownership will not apply, however, if our board of directors determines that it is no longer in our best
interest to qualify as a REIT or that compliance with such restriction is no longer required in order for us to
so qualify as a REIT.

These ownership limits could delay or prevent a transaction or a change in control that might involve
a premium price for our common stock or otherwise be in the best interest of the stockholders.

The tax imposed on REITs engaging in “prohibited transactions” may limit our ability to engage in
transactions which would be treated as sales for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

A REIT’s net income from prohibited transactions is subject to a 100% penalty tax. In general,
prohibited transactions are sales or other dispositions of property, other than foreclosure property, held
primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of business. Although we do not intend to hold any
properties that would be characterized as held for sale to customers in the ordinary course of our business,
unless a sale or disposition qualifies under certain statutory safe harbors, such characterization is a factual
determination and no guarantee can be given that the IRS would agree with our characterization of our
properties or that we will always be able to make use of the available safe harbors. The 100% tax does not
apply to gains from the sale of property that is held through a TRS or other taxable corporation, although such
income will be subject to tax in the hands of the corporation at regular corporate rates. We intend to
structure our activities to avoid the prohibited transaction tax.

If a transaction intended to qualify as a 1031 Exchange is later determined to be taxable, we may face
adverse consequences, and if the laws applicable to such transactions are amended or repealed, we may
not be able to dispose of properties on a tax-deferred basis.

In order to avoid potentially significant taxable gains upon the sale of properties that no longer meet
our investment criteria, we intend to dispose of properties in 1031 Exchanges. It is possible that the
qualification of a transaction as a 1031 Exchange could be successfully challenged and determined to be
currently taxable. In such case, our taxable income and earnings and profits would increase. This could
increase the dividend income to our stockholders by reducing any return of capital they received. In some
circumstances, we may be required to pay additional dividends or, in lieu of that, corporate income tax, possibly
including interest and penalties. In addition, such recharacterization could result in such property sale, and
potentially other property sales, being subject to the 100% penalty tax on net income from prohibited
transactions. As a result, we may be required to borrow funds in order to pay additional dividends or taxes,
and the payment of such taxes could cause us to have less cash available to distribute to our stockholders. In
addition, if a 1031 Exchange were later to be determined to be taxable, we may be required to amend our
tax returns for the applicable year in question, including any information reports we sent our stockholders.
Moreover, it is possible that legislation could be enacted that could modify or repeal the laws with respect to
1031 Exchanges, which could make it more difficult or impossible for us to dispose of properties on a tax
deferred basis.

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our ability to hedge our liabilities effectively and may
cause us to incur tax liabilities.

The REIT provisions of the Code substantially limit our ability to hedge our assets and liabilities. Any
income from a hedging transaction that we enter into to manage the risk of interest rate changes with respect
to borrowings made or to be made to acquire or carry real estate assets, or from certain terminations of
such hedging positions, does not constitute “gross income” for purposes of the 75% or 95% gross income
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tests that apply to REITs, provided that certain identification requirements are met. To the extent that we
enter into other types of hedging transactions, the income from those transactions will likely be treated as
non-qualifying income for purposes of both of the gross income tests. As a result of these rules, we may need
to limit our use of advantageous hedging techniques or implement those hedges through a TRS. This

could increase the cost of our hedging activities because our TRSs would be subject to tax on gains or expose
us to greater risks associated with changes in interest rates than we would otherwise want to bear. In
addition, losses in any TRS in which we own an interest will generally not provide any tax benefit, except
that such losses could theoretically be carried forward against future taxable income in such TRS.

Complying with REIT requirements may cause us to forego otherwise attractive opportunities or
liquidate otherwise attractive investments.

To maintain our qualification as a REIT, we must continually satisfy tests concerning, among other
things, the nature and diversification of our assets, the sources of our income and the amounts we distribute
to our stockholders. We may be required to liquidate or forgo otherwise attractive investments in order to
satisfy the asset and income tests or to qualify under certain statutory relief provisions. We also may be
required to make distributions to stockholders at disadvantageous times or when we do not have funds readily
available for distribution. As a result, having to comply with the distribution requirement could cause us to:
(i) sell assets in adverse market conditions; (ii) borrow on unfavorable terms; or (iii) distribute amounts that
would otherwise be invested in future acquisitions, capital expenditures or repayment of debt. Accordingly,
satisfying the REIT requirements could materially and adversely affect us. Moreover, if we are compelled to
liquidate our investments to meet any of these asset, income or distribution tests, or to repay obligations to
our lenders, we may be unable to comply with one or more of the requirements applicable to REITs or may be
subject to a 100% tax on any resulting gain if such sales constitute prohibited transactions.

The ability of the board to revoke our REIT qualification without stockholder approval may cause
adverse consequences to our stockholders.

Our board may revoke or otherwise terminate our REIT election, without the approval of our
stockholders, if it determines that it is no longer in our best interest to continue to qualify as a REIT. If we
cease to be a REIT, we would not be allowed a deduction for dividends paid to stockholders in computing our
taxable income would be subject to U.S. federal income tax at the regular corporate rate and state and local
taxes, and would no longer be required to distribute most of our taxable income to our stockholders, which
may have adverse consequences on our total return to our stockholders.

Although our use of TRSs may partially mitigate the impact of meeting certain requirements necessary
to maintain our qualification as a REIT, there are limits on our ability to own TRSs, and a failure to
comply with the limits would jeopardize our REIT qualification and may result in the application of a
100% excise tax.

A REIT may own up to 100% of the stock of one or more TRSs. A TRS may hold assets and earn
income that would not be qualifying assets or income if held or earned directly by a REIT. Both the subsidiary
and the REIT must jointly elect to treat the subsidiary as a TRS. A corporation of which a TRS directly or
indirectly owns more than 35% of the voting power or value of the stock will automatically be treated as a TRS.
Overall, no more than 20% of the value of a REIT’s assets may consist of securities of one or more TRSs. In
addition, the Code imposes a 100% excise tax on certain transactions between a TRS and its parent REIT that
are treated as not being conducted on an arm’s-length basis.

NETSTREIT TRS and any other TRSs that we form will pay U.S. federal, state and local income tax on
the TRS’ taxable income, and the TRSs’ after-tax net income will be available for distribution to us but is not
required to be distributed to us. Although we will monitor the aggregate value of the securities of such
TRSs and intend to conduct our affairs so that such securities will represent less than 20% of the value of our
total assets, there can be no assurance that we will be able to comply with the TRS limitation in all market
conditions.

Liabilities arising under environmental laws may materially and adversely affect us.

The properties we own or have owned in the past may subject us to known and unknown environmental
liabilities. Under various federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations, as a current or former
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owner or operator of real property, we may be jointly, severally and strictly liable for costs and damages
resulting from the presence or release of hazardous substances or petroleum products at a property, including
costs to investigate or clean up contamination and liability for personal injury, property damage or harm to
natural resources.

We typically obtain Phase I environmental site assessments on the properties that we finance or
acquire. The Phase I environmental site assessments are limited in scope and therefore there could be
undiscovered environmental liabilities on the properties we own. The known or potential presence of
hazardous substances on a property may adversely affect our ability to sell, lease or improve the property or
to borrow using the property as collateral. In addition, environmental laws may create liens on contaminated
properties in favor of the government for damages and costs it incurs to address such contamination.

In addition, although our leases generally require our tenants to operate in compliance with all applicable
laws and to indemnify us against any environmental liabilities arising from a tenant’s activities on the
property, we could be subject to strict, joint and several liability by virtue of our ownership interest.
Noncompliance with environmental laws or discovery of environmental liabilities could each individually or
collectively affect such tenant’s ability to make payments to us, including rental payments and, where
applicable, indemnification payments.

Although we may obtain insurance for environmental liability for certain properties that are deemed
to warrant coverage, our insurance may be insufficient to address any particular environmental situation
and we may be unable to continue to obtain insurance for environmental matters, at a reasonable cost or at
all, in the future.

We are subject to various environmental laws that regulate the presence of asbestos containing
materials (ACM), vapor intrusion, lead based paint and other hazardous materials. Such laws may impose
fines, penalties, or other obligations for failure to comply with these requirements or expose us to third-party
liability.

Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and fire, safety and other regulations may require
us to make unanticipated expenditures that materially and adversely affect us.

Our properties are subject to the Americans with Disabilities Act, or ADA. Under the ADA, all public
accommodations must meet federal requirements related to access and use by disabled persons. Compliance
with the ADA requirements could require removal of access barriers and non-compliance could result in
imposition of fines by the U.S. government or an award of damages to private litigants, or both. While our
tenants are obligated by law to comply with the ADA and typically obligated under our leases to cover costs
associated with compliance, if required changes involve greater expenditures than anticipated, or if the
changes must be made on a more accelerated basis than anticipated, the ability of our tenants to cover costs
could be adversely affected. We could be required to expend our own funds to comply with the provisions
of the ADA, which could materially and adversely affect us.

In addition, we are required to operate our properties in compliance with fire and safety regulations,
building codes and other land use regulations, as they may be adopted by governmental agencies and
bodies and become applicable to our properties. We may be required to make substantial capital expenditures
to comply with those requirements and may be required to obtain approvals from various authorities with
respect to our properties, including prior to acquiring a property or when undertaking renovations of any of
our existing properties. There can be no assurance that existing laws and regulatory policies will not
adversely affect us or the timing or cost of any future acquisitions or renovations, or that additional
regulations will not be adopted that increase such delays or result in additional costs. Additionally, failure to
comply with any of these requirements could result in the imposition of fines by governmental authorities
or awards of damages to private litigants. While we intend to only acquire properties that we believe are
currently in substantial compliance with all regulatory requirements, these requirements may change and
new requirements may be imposed which would require significant unanticipated expenditures by us and
could materially and adversely affect us.
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Risks Related to Our Organizational Structure, Ownership of Our Common Stock and this Offering

Our charter contains certain restrictions on ownership and transfer of our stock that may delay, defer
or prevent a change of control transaction, even if such a change in control may be in your interest, and
as a result may depress the market price of our common stock.

Our charter contains various provisions that are intended to assist us in qualifying as a REIT, among
other reasons, and, subject to certain exceptions, authorizes our directors to take such actions as are necessary
or appropriate to qualify as a REIT. For example, our charter prohibits the actual, beneficial or constructive
ownership by any person of more than 9.8% in value or in number of shares, whichever is more restrictive, of
the outstanding shares of our common stock or of any class or series of our preferred stock, or more than
9.8% in value of the aggregate of the outstanding shares of all classes and series of our stock. Our board of
directors, in its sole and absolute discretion, may exempt a person, prospectively or retroactively, from these
ownership limits if certain conditions are satisfied. The restrictions on ownership and transfer of our stock
may, among other things: discourage a tender offer or other transactions or a change in management or of
control that might involve a premium price for our common stock or that our stockholders otherwise
believe to be in their best interests; or result in the transfer of shares acquired in excess of the restrictions to
a trust for the benefit of one or more charitable beneficiaries and, as a result, the forfeiture by the acquirer
of the benefits of owning the additional shares.

We could increase or decrease the number of authorized shares of stock, classify and reclassify
unissued stock and issue stock without stockholder approval.

Our board of directors, without stockholder approval, has the power to amend our charter to increase
or decrease the aggregate number of shares of stock or the number of shares of stock of any class or series
that we are authorized to issue, to authorize us to issue authorized but unissued shares of our common stock
or preferred stock and to classify or reclassify any unissued shares of our common stock or preferred stock
into one or more classes or series of stock and to set the terms of such newly classified or reclassified shares.
As a result, we may issue one or more classes or series of common stock or preferred stock with preferences,
conversion or other rights, voting powers, restrictions, limitations as to dividends or other distributions,
qualifications or terms or conditions of redemption that are senior to, or otherwise conflict with, the rights
of our common stockholders. Although our board of directors has no such intention at the present time, it
could establish a class or series of common stock or preferred stock that could, depending on the terms of such
class or series, delay, defer or prevent a transaction or a change of control that might involve a premium
price for our common stock or otherwise be in the best interest of our stockholders.

Our bylaws designate the Circuit Court for Baltimore City, Maryland as the sole and exclusive forum
for certain types of actions and proceedings that may be initiated by our stockholders and provide that
claims relating to causes of action under the Securities Act may only be brought in federal district
courts, which could limit stockholders’ ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes with us
or our directors, officers or employees and could discourage lawsuits against us and our directors,
officers and employees.

Our bylaws provide that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the
Circuit Court for Baltimore City, Maryland, or, if that court does not have jurisdiction, the United States
District Court for the District of Maryland, Northern Division, will be the sole and exclusive forum for (a) any
Internal Corporate Claim, as such term is defined in the MGCL, (b) any derivative action or proceeding
brought on our behalf (other than actions arising under federal securities laws), (c) any action asserting a
claim of breach of any duty owed by any of our directors, officers or other employees to us or to our
stockholders, (d) any action asserting a claim against us or any of our directors, officers or other employees
arising pursuant to any provision of the MGCL or our charter or bylaws or (e) any other action asserting a
claim against us or any of our directors, officers or other employees that is governed by the internal affairs
doctrine. These choice of forum provisions will not apply to suits brought to enforce a duty or liability created
by the Securities Act, the Exchange Act, or any other claim for which federal courts have exclusive
jurisdiction. Furthermore, our bylaws provide that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an
alternative forum, the federal district courts of the United States of America shall, to the fullest extent
permitted by law, be the sole and exclusive forum for the resolution of any claim arising under the Securities
Act.
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These exclusive forum provisions may limit the ability of our stockholders to bring a claim in a
judicial forum that such stockholders find favorable for disputes with us or our directors, officers, or
employees, which may discourage such lawsuits against us and our directors, officers, and employees.
Alternatively, if a court were to find the choice of forum provisions contained in our bylaws to be inapplicable
or unenforceable in an action, we may incur additional costs associated with resolving such action in other
jurisdictions, which could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, and operating results.
For example, under the Securities Act, federal courts have concurrent jurisdiction over all suits brought to
enforce any duty or liability created by the Securities Act, and investors cannot waive compliance with the
federal securities laws and the rules and regulations thereunder. In addition, the exclusive forum provisions
described above do not apply to any actions brought under the Exchange Act.

Our board of directors may change our investment and financing policies without stockholder approval
and we may become more highly leveraged, which may increase our risk of default under our debt
obligations.

Our investment and financing policies are exclusively determined by our board of directors.
Accordingly, our stockholders do not control these policies. Further, our organizational documents do not
limit the amount or percentage of indebtedness, funded or otherwise, that we may incur. Although we are not
required to maintain a particular leverage ratio, we generally intend to target a conservative level of net
debt (which includes recourse and non-recourse borrowings and any outstanding preferred stock issuance
less unrestricted cash and cash equivalents). Our board of directors may alter or eliminate our current policy
on borrowing at any time without stockholder approval. If this policy changes, we could become more
highly leveraged, which could result in an increase in our debt service. Higher leverage also increases the
risk of default on our obligations. In addition, a change in our investment policies, including the manner in
which we allocate our resources across our portfolio or the types of assets in which we seek to invest, may
increase our exposure to interest rate risk, real estate market fluctuations and liquidity risk. Changes to
our policies with regards to the foregoing could materially and adversely affect us.

Our rights and the rights of our stockholders to take action against our directors and officers are
limited.

As permitted by Maryland law, our charter eliminates the liability of our directors and officers to us
and our stockholders for money damages to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law. Therefore, our
directors and officers will be subject to monetary liability resulting only from: actual receipt of an improper
benefit or profit in money, property or services; or active and deliberate dishonesty by the director or officer
that is established by a final judgment and is being material to the cause of action adjudicated.

As a result, we and our stockholders have rights against our directors and officers that are more limited
than might otherwise exist. Accordingly, in the event that actions taken by any of our directors or officers
impede the performance of our company, your and our ability to recover damages from such director or officer
will be limited. In addition, our charter requires us to indemnify and advance expenses to our directors and
officers for actions taken by them in those and certain other capacities to the maximum extent permitted by
Maryland law.

We are a holding company with no direct operations and we rely on funds received from our operating
partnership to pay liabilities.

We are a holding company and we conduct substantially all of our operations through our operating
partnership. We do not have, apart from an interest in our operating partnership, any independent operations.
As a result, we rely on distributions from our operating partnership to pay any dividends and other
distributions we might declare on shares of our common stock. We also rely on distributions from our
operating partnership to meet any of our obligations, including any tax liability on taxable income allocated
to us from our operating partnership. In addition, because we are a holding company, your claims as
stockholders will be structurally subordinated to all existing and future liabilities and obligations (whether
or not for borrowed money) of our operating partnership and its subsidiaries. Therefore, in the event of our
bankruptey, liquidation or reorganization, our assets and those of our operating partnership and its
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subsidiaries will be able to satisfy the claims of our stockholders only after all of our and our operating
partnership’s and its subsidiaries’ liabilities and obligations have been paid in full.

In connection with our future acquisition of properties or otherwise, we may issue units of our
operating partnership to third parties. Such issuances would reduce our ownership in our operating
partnership. Because you will not directly own units of our operating partnership, you will not have any
voting rights with respect to any such issuances or other partnership level activities of our operating
partnership.

Conflicts of interest could arise in the future between the interests of our stockholders and the interests
of holders of OP units, which may impede business decisions that could benefit our stockholders.

Conlflicts of interest could arise in the future as a result of the relationships between us and our affiliates,
on the one hand, and our operating partnership or any future partner thereof, on the other. Our directors and
officers have duties to our company under applicable Maryland law in connection with the management of
our company. At the same time, one of our wholly-owned subsidiaries, NETSTREIT GP, LLC, as the general
partner of our operating partnership, has fiduciary duties and obligations to our operating partnership and
its limited partners under Delaware law and the partnership agreement of our operating partnership in
connection with the management of our operating partnership. The fiduciary duties and obligations of
NETSTREIT GP, LLC, as the general partner of our operating partnership, and its limited partners may come
into conflict with the duties of our directors and officers to our company.

Under the terms of the partnership agreement of our operating partnership, if there is a conflict
between the interests of our stockholders on one hand and any limited partners on the other hand, we will
endeavor in good faith to resolve the conflict in a manner not adverse to either our stockholders or any limited
partners; provided, however, that any conflict that cannot be resolved in a manner not adverse to either our
stockholders or any limited partners must be resolved in favor of our stockholders.

The partnership agreement of our operating partnership requires the general partner to obtain the
approval of a majority in interest of the outside limited partners in our operating partnership (which
excludes us and our subsidiaries) to transfer any of its or our interest in our operating partnership in
connection with certain mergers, consolidations or other combinations of us, or a sale of all or
substantially all of our assets.

The partnership agreement of our operating partnership also provides that the general partner will not
be liable to our operating partnership, its partners or any other person bound by the partnership agreement
for monetary damages for losses sustained, liabilities incurred or benefits not derived by our operating
partnership or any limited partner, except for liability for the general partner’s intentional harm or gross
negligence. Moreover, the partnership agreement of our operating partnership provides that our operating
partnership is required to indemnify the general partner and its members, managers, managing members,
officers, employees, agents and designees from and against any and all claims that relate to the operations
of our operating partnership, except (i) if the act or omission of the person was material to the matter giving
rise to the action and either was committed in bad faith or was the result of active or deliberate dishonesty,
(ii) for any transaction for which the indemnified party received an improper personal benefit, in money,
property or services or otherwise in violation or breach of any provision of the partnership agreement or
(iii) in the case of a criminal proceeding, if the indemnified person had reasonable cause to believe that the
act or omission was unlawful.

The market price of shares of our common stock may be volatile, which could cause the value of your
investment to decline.

The market price of our common stock may be highly volatile and could be subject to wide fluctuations.
Securities markets worldwide experience significant price and volume fluctuations. This market volatility, as
well as general economic, market or political conditions, could reduce the market price of shares of our
common stock in spite of our operating performance. In addition, our results of operations could be below
the expectations of public market analysts and investors due to a number of potential factors, including
variations in our quarterly results of operations, additions or departures of key management personnel, failure
to meet analysts’ earnings estimates, publication of research reports about our industry, litigation and
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government investigations, changes or proposed changes in laws or regulations or differing interpretations
or enforcement thereof affecting our business, adverse market reaction to any indebtedness we may incur or
securities we may issue in the future, changes in market valuations of similar companies or speculation in
the press or investment community, announcements by our competitors of significant acquisitions,
dispositions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital commitments and adverse publicity about our
industry in or individual scandals, and in response the market price of shares of our common stock could
decrease significantly.

In the past few years, stock markets have experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations. In the
past, following periods of volatility in the overall market and the market price of a company’s securities,
securities class action litigation has often been instituted against these companies. This litigation, if instituted
against us, could result in substantial costs and a diversion of our management’s attention and resources.

We are an “emerging growth company,” and we cannot be certain if the reduced disclosure requirements
applicable to emerging growth companies will make shares of our common stock less attractive to
investors.

We are an “emerging growth company” as defined in the JOBS Act, and we intend to take advantage
of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies
that are not emerging growth companies, including not being required to comply with the auditor attestation
requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive
compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements, an extended transition period for complying
with new or revised accounting standards and exemptions from the requirements of holding a nonbinding
advisory vote on executive compensation and stockholder approval of any golden parachute payments not
previously approved. We cannot predict if investors will find our common stock less attractive because we
will rely on these exemptions. If some investors find our common stock less attractive as a result, there may
be a less active trading market for our common stock and our stock price may be more volatile. We may take
advantage of these reporting exemptions until we are no longer an emerging growth company. We will
remain an emerging growth company until the earliest to occur of (i) the last day of the fiscal year during
which our total annual revenue equals or exceeds $1.07 billion (subject to adjustment for inflation),

(ii) December 31, 2025, (iii) the date on which we have, during the previous three-year period, issued more
than $1.0 billion in non-convertible debt or (iv) the date on which we are deemed to be a “large accelerated
filer” under the Exchange Act.

Ifyou purchase shares of our common stock in this offering, you will experience immediate dilution.

The offering price of our common stock is higher than the net tangible book value per share of our
common stock outstanding upon the completion of this offering. Accordingly, if you purchase our common
stock in this offering, we estimate you will experience immediate dilution of approximately $0.98 in net
tangible book value per share of our common stock, based on the public offering price of $18.65 per share.

Future sales of our common stock or other securities convertible into our common stock could cause the
market value of our common stock to decline and could result in dilution of your shares.

Our board of directors is authorized to increase the total number of shares of stock that we are
authorized to issue and, without your approval, to cause us to issue additional shares of our stock or to raise
capital through the issuance of preferred stock, options, warrants and other rights on terms and for
consideration as our board of directors in its sole discretion may determine. Sales of substantial amounts of
our common stock will dilute your ownership and could cause the market price of our common stock to
decrease significantly. We cannot predict the effect, if any, of future sales of our common stock, or the
availability of our common stock for future sales, on the value of our common stock. Sales of substantial
amounts of our common stock, or the perception that such sales could occur, may adversely affect the market
price of our common stock.

In addition, our operating partnership may issue additional OP units to third parties without the
consent of our stockholders, which would reduce our ownership percentage in our operating partnership
and would have a dilutive effect on the amount of distributions made to us by our operating partnership and,
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therefore, the amount of distributions we can make to our stockholders. Any such issuances, or the perception
of such issuances, could materially and adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

Future offerings of debt securities or preferred stock, which would rank senior to our common stock
upon our bankruptcy or liquidation, and future offerings of equity securities that may be senior to our
common stock for the purposes of dividend and liquidating distributions, may adversely affect the market
price of our common stock.

In the future, we may attempt to raise additional capital by making offerings of debt securities or
additional offerings of equity securities, including preferred stock. Upon bankruptcy or liquidation, holders
of our debt securities and shares of preferred stock and lenders with respect to other borrowings will receive a
distribution of our available assets prior to the holders of our common stock. Our preferred stock, if issued,
could have a preference on liquidating distributions or a preference on dividend payments or both that could
limit our ability to pay a dividend or other distribution to the holders of our common stock. Our decision to
issue securities in any future offering will depend on market conditions and other factors beyond our control.
As aresult, we cannot predict or estimate the amount, timing or nature of our future offerings, and purchasers
of our common stock in this offering bear the risk of our future offerings reducing the market price of our
common stock and diluting their ownership interest in our company.

We will have broad discretion in the use of a significant part of the net proceeds from this offering and
may not use them effectively.

Our management currently intends to use the net proceeds from this offering in the manner described
in “Use of Proceeds,” and will have broad discretion in the application of the net proceeds from this offering.
The failure by our management to apply these funds effectively could affect our ability to operate and
grow our business.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The information in this prospectus includes “forward-looking statements.” All statements, other than
statements of historical fact, included in this prospectus regarding, among other things, our strategy, future
operations, financial position, projected costs, our acquisition pipeline, prospects, plans and objectives of
management are forward-looking statements. When used in this prospectus, the words “could,” “believe,”
“anticipate,” “intend,” “estimate,” “expect,” “project” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-
looking statements, although not all forward-looking statements contain such identifying words. These
forward-looking statements are based on our current expectations and assumptions about future events and
are based on currently available information as to the outcome and timing of future events. When
considering forward-looking statements, you should keep in mind the risk factors and other cautionary
statements described under the heading “Risk Factors” included in this prospectus. These forward-looking
statements are based on management’s current belief, based on currently available information, as to the
outcome and timing of future events. Our forward-looking statements involve significant risks and
uncertainties (some of which are beyond our control) and assumptions that could cause actual results to
differ materially from our historical experience and our present expectations or projections. Important factors
that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements include,
but are not limited to:

- risks inherent in the real estate business, including tenant defaults, illiquidity of real estate
investments, potential liability relating to environmental matters and potential damages from
natural disasters;

.+ general business and economic conditions;
- the impact of COVID-19 on our business and the global economy;

+ the accuracy of our assessment that certain businesses are e-commerce resistant and recession-
resilient;

+ the accuracy of the tools we use to determine the creditworthiness of our tenants;

. concentration of our business within certain geographic markets, tenant categories and with certain
tenants;

- demand for restaurant and retail space;

- ability to renew leases, lease vacant space or re-lease space as existing leases expire or are terminated;
- our ability to successfully execute our acquisition or development strategies;

- the degree and nature of our competition;

. inflation and interest rate fluctuations;

- our ability to retain our key management personnel;

- failure, weakness, interruption or breach in security of our information systems;

- access to capital markets;

- our failure to generate sufficient cash flows to service our outstanding indebtedness;

- continued volatility and uncertainty in the credit markets and broader financial markets;
- failure to qualify or remain qualified for taxation as a REIT;

- changes in, or the failure or inability to comply with, applicable law or regulation;

. future sales or issuances of our common stock or other securities convertible into our common
stock, or the perception thereof, could cause the market value of our common stock to decline and
could result in dilution; and

- the other risks identified in this prospectus including, without limitation, those under the headings
“Risk Factors,” “Our Business and Properties” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”
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These factors are not necessarily all of the important factors that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those expressed in any of our forward-looking statements. Other unknown or unpredictable
factors also could have material adverse effects on our future results. Our future results will depend upon
various other risks and uncertainties, including those described elsewhere in this prospectus under the
heading, “Risk Factors.” Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements,
which speak only as of the date hereof. We undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking
statements after the date they are made, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
All forward-looking statements attributable to us are qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

We estimate that our net proceeds from this offering, after deducting underwriting discounts and
commissions and other estimated offering expenses payable by us, will be approximately $168.9 million (or
approximately $194.3 million if the underwriters exercise their option to purchase additional shares in

full).

We intend to contribute the net proceeds of this offering to our operating partnership in exchange for
Class A OP units, and our operating partnership intends to use approximately $13.0 million of the net
proceeds received from us to repay borrowings under the Revolver that were drawn after December 31, 2020
to fund acquisitions of properties and the remainder for general corporate purposes, which may include
acquisition of properties in our pipeline.

The Revolver bears interest at either (i) LIBOR, plus a margin ranging from 1.35% to 2.30%, based on
our consolidated total leverage ratio or (ii) a Base Rate (as defined in the Credit Facility), plus a margin
ranging from 0.35% to 1.30%, based on our consolidated total leverage ratio. The Revolver matures on
December 23, 2023. Borrowings under the Revolver were incurred to fund property acquisitions.

Wells Fargo Securities, LLC and its affiliate serve as the administrative agent and lead arranger under
the Credit Facility. In addition, affiliates of one or more underwriters are lenders under the Credit Facility
and will receive a portion of the proceeds from this offering. See “Underwriting—Relationships.”

Pending application of the net proceeds, we will invest the net proceeds in short-term, interest-bearing
securities that are consistent with our election to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes.
Such investments may include, for example, government and government agency certificates, government
bonds, certificates of deposit, interest-bearing bank deposits, money market accounts and mortgage loan
participations.
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DISTRIBUTION POLICY

We elected to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes commencing with our short
taxable year ended December 31, 2019. We believe that, commencing with our short taxable year ended
December 31, 2019, we have been organized and have operated in conformity with the requirements for
qualification and taxation as a REIT under the Code, and that our organization and current and proposed
method of operations will enable us to continue to meet the requirements for qualification and taxation as a
REIT for our taxable year ending December 31, 2021 and subsequent taxable years. The Code generally
requires that a REIT distribute annually at least 90% of its REIT taxable income, determined without regard
to the deduction for dividends paid and excluding net capital gains, and imposes tax on any taxable income
retained by a REIT, including capital gains. To satisfy the requirements for qualification as a REIT and
generally not be subject to U.S. federal income and excise tax, we intend to make regular quarterly distributions
of all or substantially all of our REIT taxable income to holders of our common stock out of assets legally
available for such purposes.

Any distributions will be authorized at the sole discretion of our board of directors, and their form,
timing and amount, if any, will depend upon a number of factors, including our actual and projected results
of operations, FFO, Core FFO, AFFO, liquidity, cash flows and financial condition, the revenue we actually
receive from our properties, our operating expenses, our debt service requirements, our capital expenditures,
prohibitions and other limitations under our financing arrangements, our REIT taxable income, the annual
REIT distribution requirements, applicable law and such other factors as our board of directors deems
relevant. Since completion of our initial public offering, we have declared quarterly dividend distributions to
common stockholders of $0.10 per share and $0.20 per share, respectively, that were paid on each of
September 25, 2020 and December 15, 2020 to stockholders of record on September 15, 2020 and
December 1, 2020, respectively. In addition, we declared a quarterly dividend distribution to common
stockholders of $0.20 per share to stockholders of record on March 15, 2021 that was paid on March 30,
2021. We cannot assure you that future distributions will be made or sustained or that our board of directors
will not change our distribution policy in the future. Any dividends or other distributions that we pay in
the future will depend upon our actual results of operations, economic conditions, debt service requirements,
capital expenditures and other factors that could differ materially from our current expectations. Our
actual results of operations will be affected by a number of factors, including our revenue, operating expenses,
interest expense and unanticipated expenditures. For more information regarding risk factors that could
materially adversely affect our actual results of operations and therefore our ability to make distributions to
our stockholders, see “Risk Factors.”
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CAPITALIZATION
The following table sets forth, as of December 31, 2020:
- our historical capitalization on an actual basis; and

. our capitalization on an as adjusted basis to give effect to the issuance and sale of 9,491,903 shares
common stock in this offering at the public offering price of $18.65 per share and the use of proceeds
therefrom as described in “Use of Proceeds.”

You should read the following table in conjunction with the more detailed information contained in

the financial statements and related notes and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations” included in this offering memorandum.

As of December 31, 2020
Historical As Adjusted

(unaudited)
(in thousands, except
share and per
share data)

Cash, cash equivalents and restrictedcash . . .. .......... ... ... ... .... $ 92,643 $262,143
Debt:

Credit Facility(1) . .. v v oee e $174105  $174105
Stakeholders’ Equity:

Common stock, $0.01 par value per share, 400,000,000 shares authorized,

28,203,545 shares issued and outstanding actual; 37,695,448 shares

issued and outstanding, as adjusted(2) . ............. .. ... ... 282 377
Additional paidincapital . ... ... ... .. . . .. ... 501,045 669,850
Retained (loss) €arnings . . ... ..o oot ii i (7,464) (7,464)

Accumulated other comprehensive income. . .. .................... 235 235

Total stockholders’equity . .......... ... ... . 494,098 662,998
Noncontrolling interests(3) . . . . . ..o it 33,975 33,975
Total eqQUItY . . . v oot 528,073 696,973

Total Capitalization . . ... ... ... ... ... ... .. . ... ... $702,178 $871,078

@

@

©)

The Credit Facility consists of a $175.0 million Term Loan and a $250.0 million Revolver. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity
and Capital Resources—Credit Facility” for additional information. Does not reflect $13.0 million of
borrowings on the Revolver as of March 31, 2021 that will be repaid with the proceeds of this offering.

The number of shares of our common stock to be outstanding after this offering is based on 28,203,545
shares of common stock outstanding as of December 31, 2020 and excludes: (i) an aggregate of
1,751,882 shares of our common stock that we may issue upon redemption of outstanding OP units on
a one-for-one basis (subject to certain adjustments), (ii) 377,596 shares of our common stock
underlying outstanding RSUs that we have granted pursuant to our Omnibus Incentive Plan and

(iii) 1,682,780 shares of our common stock reserved for future issuance under our Omnibus Incentive
Plan.

Represents OP units owned by our continuing investors which are considered noncontrolling interest
for financial reporting purposes.
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DILUTION

If you invest in our common stock, your ownership interest will be diluted to the extent of the difference
between the public offering price in this offering per share of our common stock and the net tangible book
value per share of our common stock upon consummation of this offering. Net tangible book value per share
represents the book value of our total tangible assets less the book value of our total liabilities (excluding
applicable lease intangible liabilities and unamortized deferred financing costs on our $175.0 million Term
Loan) divided by the number of shares of common stock outstanding, assuming all OP units are redeemed in
exchange for shares of our common stock.

Our net tangible book value as of December 31, 2020 was approximately $528.1 million or
approximately $17.63 per share based on 29,955,427 shares of common stock and OP units issued and
outstanding as of such date on a fully diluted basis. After giving effect to our sale of common stock in this
offering at the public offering price of $18.65 per share and after deducting the estimated underwriting
discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us, our as adjusted net tangible
book value as of December 31, 2020 would have been $697,0 million, or $17.67 per share (assuming no
exercise of the underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares of common stock). This represents an
immediate dilution of $0.98 per share to new investors purchasing common stock in this offering.

The following table illustrates this dilution per share assuming the underwriters do not exercise their
option to purchase additional shares of common stock:

Public offering price pershare . . . .. .. ... . .. $18.65
Net tangible book value per share, before giving effect to this offering ... .......... $17.63
Increase in net tangible book value per share attributable to this offering . ... ... .. .. 0.04
Net tangible book value per share, after thisoffering .. ...... ... ... ... .. .... 17.67
Dilution in net tangible book value per share to new investors in this offering . ... .. .. $ 0.98

If the underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares of common stock is fully exercised, the net
tangible book value per share after this offering as of December 31, 2020 would be approximately $17.68
per share and the dilution to new investors per share after this offering would be $0.97 per share at the public
offering price of $18.65 per share.

43



NETSTREIT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements, prepared in accordance with
Article 11 of Regulation S-X, were derived from the historical consolidated financial statements of the
Company and are being presented to give effect to the completed and proposed transactions described
below.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements have been derived by applying pro forma
adjustments to the historical consolidated financial statements of the Company presented elsewhere in this
prospectus.

The pro forma adjustments give effect to events that are (1) directly attributable to the transactions
referred to below, (2) factually supportable, and (3) with respect to the statement of operations and
comprehensive income (loss), expected to have a continuing impact on us. The adjustments necessary to
fairly present the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements have been based on available
information and assumptions that we believe are reasonable. The adjustments are described in the notes to
the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements and present how our consolidated financial
statements may have appeared had our capital structure reflected the below transactions as of the dates noted
below.

Our Public Offering

In connection with this public offering, the following has or will occur:

We sold 9,491,903 shares of our common stock in this offering at a price of $18.65 per share. We
have also granted the underwriters an option to purchase up to an additional 1,423,785 shares of our
common stock at the public offering price, less the underwriting discount, within 30 days after the
date of this prospectus. These unaudited pro forma financial statements assume no exercise by the
underwriters of their option to purchase additional shares.

We contributed the net proceeds from this offering to our operating partnership in exchange for a
number of Class A OP units equal to the number of shares of our common stock we issued and sold
in this offering.

Our operating partnership will use the net proceeds received from the public offering as described
under “Use of Proceeds” and “Capitalization.”

We will repay the outstanding borrowings under the $250.0 million Revolver that we expect to draw
to fund specifically identified property acquisitions during 2021.

2020 Acquisitions

During the period from January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020, we completed 124 property
acquisitions with an aggregate purchase price, including transaction costs, of $408.6 million, which are
included in the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements. The completed 2020 acquisitions
were funded through cash and cash equivalents from proceeds received in our initial public offering and
borrowings on our $250.0 million Revolver, which are included in the unaudited pro forma consolidated
financial statements.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31,
2020 are presented as if our borrowings under the Revolver and the completion of this offering and the use
of proceeds therefrom had all occurred on December 31, 2020 for the unaudited pro forma consolidated
balance sheet and our completed 2020 acquisitions had occurred on January 1, 2020 for the unaudited
pro forma consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). Additionally, the number
of shares used in the calculation of the pro forma per share amounts are based on the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period adjusted to give effect to the number of shares issued to
consummate the offering as if the shares were outstanding as of January 1, 2020.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the
historical consolidated financial statements of the Company and its predecessor, including the notes
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thereto, and other financial information and analysis, including the section captioned “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” presented elsewhere in this
prospectus. The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements (i) are based on available information
and assumptions that we deem reasonable; (ii) are presented for informational purposes only; (iii) do not
purport to represent our financial position or results of operations or cash flows that would actually have
occurred assuming completion of the transactions described above on the dates specified; and (iv) do not
purport to be indicative of our future results of operations or our financial position.

45



NETSTREIT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020
(in thousands)
Pro Forma Adjustments
Use of
Cash Received Proceeds

Historical From Borrowings Proceeds From From This
Company on Revolver This Offering Offering Company

(B) (¢:)) © (D) Pro Forma
Assets
Real estate, at cost:
Land ... ... . $189,373 $ - $ - $ —  $189,373
Buildings and improvements . . . ... ........... 358,360 — — — 358,360
Total real estate,atcost . . .. oo i 547,733 — — — 547,733
Less accumulated depreciation . .............. (10,111) — — - (10,111)
Real estate held for investment,net . .. ........... 537,622 — — — 537,622
Assetsheldforsale .. ... ... ... . . ... 14,802 — — — 14,802
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash ... ... ... 92,643 13,000 169,500 (13,000) 262,143
Acquired lease intangible assets,net .. ........... 75,024 — — — 75,024
Otherassets,net . ......... ... .. 5,724 — — — 5,724
Total assets . . . . $725,815 $13,000 $169,500 $(13,000) $895,315
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities:
Termloan, net. . .. ... $174,105 $ — $ — $ — $174,105
Lease intangible liabilities,net .. ... ............ 16,930 — — 16,930
Revolving credit facility . ... ....... ... ... ...... — 13,000 — (13,000) —
Liabilities related to assets held forsale . ... ... .. .. 399 — — — 399
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
liabilities . . ... ... 6,308 — 600 — 6,908
Total liabilities . . .. ........ ... .. .. ...... 197,742 13,000 600 (13,000) 198,342
Commitments and contingencies
Equity:
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock, $0.01l parvalue . . .. ............. 282 — 95 — 377
Additional paid-incapital . . . ...... .. .. .. .. ... 501,045 — 168,905 — 669,850
Retained (loss) earnings . . . . . ... . ... .. ... (7,464) — — — (7,464)
Accumulated other comprehensive income . ....... 235 — — — 235
Total stockholders’ equity ... .............. 494,098 — 168,900 — 662,998
Noncontrolling interests . .. .................. 33,975 — — — 33,975
Totalequity .. ....... ... ... ... 528,073 — 168,900 — 696,973
Total liabilities and equity . ... ............. $725,815 $13,000 $169,500 $(13,000) $895,315

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements
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NETSTREIT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Pro Forma
Adjustments
Completed
Historical 2020
Company Acquisitions Company Pro
(B) ) Forma
Revenues
Rental revenue (including reimbursable) . . . ......... ... ... .. ... .. $ 33,727 $16,845 $ 50,572
Operating expenses
Property . . . .. 2,569 2,217 4,786
General and administrative . ... ... ... ... ... 11,340 — 11,340
Depreciation and amortization . . .. .. ... .. 15,459 8,594 24,053
Provisions for impairment ... ....... ... .. .. ... ... 2,690 — 2,690
Transaction CoStS . . . v v v i i it 3,169 - 3,169
Total operating eXpenses . . . . ..ot i it 35,227 10,811 46,038
Other income (expense)
Interest eXpense, Met . . . v v v vt it (4,741) — (4,741)
Gainon sales of real estate,net . . . . . ... 6,213 — 6,213
Gain on forfeited earnest money deposit . ... .................... 250 — 250
Other income (EXPense), Net . . . . .o vt v v vt ittt (10) — (10)
Total other income (expense),net . .......................... 1,712 — 1,712
Netincome (I0SS) . . . v vt i v 212 6,034 6,246
Net (loss) income attributable to noncontrolling
INEETESES © . v v v e e e e e e e e (518) 1,407 889
Preferred stock dividends and redemption premium . . .. .............. 42 — 42
Net income (loss) attributable to common
stockholders . . . . . $ 688 $ 4,627 $ 5,315
Amounts available to common stockholders per common share:
Basic . . e $ 0.04 $ 0.20
Diluted . . ... $ 0.01 $ 0.20
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
BaSIC vt 17,322,182 26,814,085
Diluted . . ... 21,157,996 30,649,899
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Netincome (10SS) . . . oo vttt $ 212 $ 6,034 $ 6,246
Change in unrealized gain on derivatives,net ... ................... 253 — 253
Total comprehensive income (loss) . . . ... ... 465 6,034 6,499
Comprehensive (loss) income attributable to noncontrolling interests . . . . . . (500) 1,407 907
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to common stockholders . . ... .. $ 965 $ 4,627 $ 5,592

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements
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NETSTREIT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Adjustments to the Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Balance Sheet

The adjustments to the unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2020 are
as follows:

A. Reflects the audited historical consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of December 31, 2020.

B. Reflects $13.0 million we expect to borrow under our $250.0 million Revolver to fund specifically
identified property acquisitions.

C. Reflects net proceeds from the sale of approximately 9,491,903 shares of common stock in this
offering at the offering price of $18.65 per share, net of underwriting discounts and other estimated
offering expenses payable by us. The net proceeds from this offering consist of the following (in

thousands):
Gross proceeds from thisoffering .. ........ ... ... . ... ... .. ... ... $ 177,024
Less: Underwriting diSCounts . . . . . oot ittt e (7,524)
Proceeds before offering expenses paid or payablebyus. .. ................. 169,500
Estimated offering expenses paid or payablebyus . . ............ ... ... .. ... (600)
Net proceeds from thisoffering . ... ... ... ... ... .. .. ... ... . ... ... $ 168,900

D. Reflects the use of proceeds from this offering to repay outstanding borrowings on our $250.0 million
Revolver.

Adjustments to the Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

The adjustments to the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive
income (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2020 are as follows:

E. Reflects the audited historical consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss)
of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020.

F.  During 2020, we completed 124 property acquisitions with an aggregate purchase price, including
transaction costs, of $408.6 million. The table below reflects the impact of these completed property
acquisitions on the historical consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss),
assuming completion of the acquisitions had occurred on January 1, 2020:

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2020
Rental revenue (including reimbursable) . . ... ....... .. ... L. $16,845
Property eXpenses . . .. ..o 2,217
Depreciation and amortization . . . . ... ..ot 8,594
Net (loss) income attributable to noncontrolling interests . . . .......... 1,407

Rental revenue is based on contractually specified cash base rent for these properties in effect on the
date of acquisition, recorded on a straight-line basis, inclusive of any amortization of related above and below-
market lease intangibles and reimbursable amounts.

Property expenses are based on estimated costs accrued in 2020, information obtained during our due
diligence process when acquiring the properties, and the contractual terms within the respective leases. It
should be noted that the adjustment to property expenses are based on current estimates and may not be
indicative of our results of operations had we actually owned these properties from January 1, 2020.
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Depreciation and amortization expense has been calculated on a straight-line basis based on the
estimated useful lives of up to 35 years for buildings, up to 15 years for site improvements and the shorter of
the remaining lease term or useful life for tenant improvements and, with respect to acquired in-place
leases, the remaining terms of the respective leases.

Net (loss) income attributable to noncontrolling interests is calculated based on the effective
noncontrolling interests for each month during 2020.

G. Represents the total weighted average number of basic shares used as the denominator in calculating
basic pro forma earnings per share, and is comprised of the following:

The total number of shares issued and outstanding from the private offering and formation
transactions, including the option granted to purchase additional shares;

The total number of shares issued and outstanding from our initial public offering, including the
overallotment option granted to the underwriters;

0.3 million of shares issued to selling stockholders in connection with the redemption of such
selling stockholders’ Class A OP units, which for the purposes of the unaudited pro forma consolidated
statements of operations is assumed to have occurred on January 1, 2020;

The total number of Class A and Class B OP units that have been redeemed for shares of common
stock on a one-for-one basis; and

The total number of shares of common stock in this offering, excluding 1.2 million shares of
common stock that may be issued by us upon the exercise of the underwriters’ option to purchase
additional shares in this offering;

H. Represents the total weighted average number of diluted shares used as the denominator in calculating
diluted pro forma earnings per share, and is comprised of the following:

The total number of unvested RSUs that were dilutive for the year ended December 31, 2020; and

The total number of dilutive shares resulting from the potential redemption of Class A and Class B
OP units in exchange for shares of the Company's common stock for the year ended December 31,
2020. The Company has noncontrolling interests in the form of OP Units, which represent
potentially dilutive securities, as the OP Units may be redeemed for cash or, at the Company’s
election, exchanged for shares of the Company’s common stock on a one-for-one basis.

The table below presents our pro forma basic and diluted earnings per share based on the total
weighted average common shares outstanding immediately after the completion of this offering, assuming
no exercise by the underwriters of their option to purchase additional shares and assuming the 9,491,903
shares of common stock were outstanding as of the beginning of the period presented:

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2020
Amounts available to common stockholders per common share:
Basic . $ 0.20
Diluted . . ... $ 0.20
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic . . . 26,814,085
Diluted . ... .. e 30,649,899

The table above is provided for illustrative purposes only and may not be indicative of our basic and
diluted earnings per share had the total weighted average basic and diluted number of common shares
actually been outstanding from January 1, 2020.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations in
conjunction with the more detailed information set forth under the captions “Prospectus Summary—Summary
Historical and Pro Forma Financial Information,” “Selected Historical Financial Data,” and in our audited
financial statements and related notes in this prospectus. You should also read the information under the
captions “Risk Factors” and “Forward-Looking Statements” for a discussion of important factors that could
cause actual results to differ materially from the results described in or implied by our forward-looking
statements.

Overview

We are an internally-managed real estate company that acquires, owns and manages a diversified
portfolio of single-tenant, retail commercial real estate subject to long-term net leases with high credit
quality tenants across the United States. Our diversified portfolio consists of 235 single-tenant retail net
leased properties spanning 39 states, with tenants representing 60 different brands or concepts across 23
retail sectors. Our portfolio generates ABR of $48.0 million and is 100% occupied, with a WALT of 10.1 years
and consisting of more than 80% of investment grade tenants and investment grade profile tenants by
ABR, which we believe provides us with a strong, stable source of recurring cash flow. Our tenants operate in
industries where a physical location is critical to the generation of sales and profits, with a focus on
necessity goods and essential services in the retail sector, including home improvement, auto parts, drug
stores and pharmacies, general retail, grocers, convenience stores, discount stores, and quick-service
restaurants, which we refer to as defensive retail industries. We believe these characteristics make our
tenants’ businesses e-commerce resistant and resilient through all economic cycles. We completed our initial
public offering on August 17, 2020 and our common stock trades on the NYSE under the symbol “NTST.”

COVID-19

We continue to monitor the global outbreak of COVID-19 and to take steps to mitigate the potential
risks to us posed by the pandemic. In addition, we continue to stay in close contact with our tenants and
monitor the timeliness of rental payments and any significant changes in our tenants’ businesses. During
2020, we provided rent deferral and rent abatement to 12 and 15 of our properties, respectively, representing
0.5%, and 1.7% of ABR, as of December 31, 2020, respectively. All tenants with rent relief agreements in
place paid in accordance with the terms of their new lease agreements and as of the end of the second, third
and fourth quarters of 2020, the Company had collected 87.2%, 98.1% and 100.0%, respectively, of all 2020
contractual rent payments. The Company has not provided for any abatements or deferrals after August 1,
2020. Accordingly, the Company’s operations and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2020 were not
materially impacted by COVID-19.

Outlook

We seek to maximize long-term earnings growth and stockholder value primarily through the
acquisition of strategically positioned assets throughout the U.S,, specifically focusing on properties with
tenants which are considered essential businesses. We have deployed $147.5 million of the $227.3 million
from the Company’s initial public offering to fund acquisitions through December 31, 2020. In addition, we
have repaid $50 million of outstanding borrowings under our Revolver as of December 31, 2020. We
intend to use the remainder of the net proceeds from our initial public offering for general corporate purposes,
including the acquisition of properties in our pipeline. As of March 4, 2021, we have identified 38 properties
in our pipeline as acquisition opportunities for a combined purchase price, including acquisition costs, of
approximately $122 million that we expect to purchase in the next 60 days. Additionally, we have acquired
eight properties, or $17.4 million of property assets, subsequent to December 31, 2020.

Results of Operations

Overall

The Company continued to grow its assets held for investment by increasing its asset base from 94
properties as of December 31, 2019 to 203 properties as of the end of December 31, 2020. This growth was
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facilitated by successfully raising equity capital of $219.0 million and $227.3 million as result of the private
offerings and initial public offering, respectively, totaling $446.3 million of net capital raised by the Company
since December 23, 2019.

Acquisitions

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company acquired 124 retail net lease properties for a
total purchase price, inclusive of capitalized acquisition costs, of $408.6 million. The acquisitions were all
accounted for as asset acquisitions. These properties are located in 30 states with a weighted average lease
term of approximately 11.2 years. The underwritten weighted-average capitalization rate on the Company’s
year to date acquisitions was approximately 6.7%.

Dispositions

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company sold 15 properties for a total sales price, net
of disposal costs, of $48.1 million, recognizing a gain on sale of $6.2 million.

Year Ended December 31, 2020 Compared with the Periods from January 1 to December 22, 2019
and from December 23 to December 31, 2019

The following table sets forth our operating results for the periods indicated (in thousands):

Successor Predecessor
For the For the
Period from Period from

Year Ended  December 23to  January 1 to
December 31, December 31, December 22,

2020 2019
Revenues
Rental revenue (including reimbursable) . . . .. ... .. $33,727 $ 513 $ 19,805
Operating expenses
Property .. ... ... .. ... 2,569 52 1,113
General and administrative . ................ 11,340 49 3,555
Depreciation and amortization . . .. ........... 15,459 195 10,422
Provisions for impairment . . ... ... .......... 2,690 — 7,186
Transactioncosts . ... ... ... .. 3,169 2 535
Total operating expenses . .. .............. 35,227 % 22,811
Other income (expense)
Interest expense,net . . . .. ..ot (4,741) 173) (10,712)
Gain on sales of real estate,net . . ... .......... 6,213 — 5,646
Gain on forfeited earnest money deposit . . ... ... 250 — —
Other income (expense),net . ............... (10) — —
Total other income (expense),net . .......... 1,712 ﬁ) (5,066)
Netincome (loss) . . . . ..o i $ 212 m $ (8,072)

Revenue. Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2020 increased by $13.4 million to $33.7 million
from $19.8 million for the period from January 1, 2019 to December 22, 2019 and $0.5 million for the period
from December 23, 2019 to December 31, 2019. This is primarily due to an increase in the real estate
portfolio from 122 properties as of January 1, 2019 to 203 properties as of December 31, 2020. The increase
includes an increase in rental income of $8.4 million, straight-line rental revenue of $2.7 million, property
expense reimbursement revenue of $1.4 million, amortization of above- and below market lease related
intangible assets of $0.6 million, lower bad debt expense of $0.2 million and other net increases of $0.1 million.
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Total Operating Expenses. Total expenses increased by $12.1 million to $35.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2020 as compared to $22.8 million for the period from January 1, 2019 to December 22,
2019 and $0.3 million for the period from December 23, 2019 to December 31, 2019. The increase in
operating expenses is attributed to the increase in the number of operating properties and the completion of
the Company’s initial public offering in August 2020. Total operating expenses include the following:

- Property Expenses. Property expenses increased $1.4 million to $2.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020. The increase is primarily attributed to the increase in the real estate portfolio
from 122 to 203 properties. The largest increases are from property taxes of $0.9 million and
maintenance of $0.4 million.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses increased $7.7 million
to $11.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase is primarily due to payroll
expense associated with the internalization of management to support the Company as a newly
public company of $3.0 million, an increase of restricted-share based expense of $2.5 million, an
increase of employee bonus compensation of $1.6 million, offset by the elimination of management
fees of $2.8 million charged to the Company by affiliates. The increase also includes insurance
related expenses of $0.6 million, general corporate office related expenses of $0.4 million and
professional and administrative expenses of $2.4 million primarily comprised of audit fees of

$0.9 million, board fees of $0.5 million, and consulting and other professional services of $0.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2020.

. Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $4.9 million
to $15.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2020. The increase in depreciation and amortization
is proportionate to the increase in the size of the portfolio over the comparable period primarily
with associated increases in building depreciation expense of $2.5 million and in-place lease
depreciation expense of $2.4 million.

« Provisions for Impairment. Provisions for impairment decreased by $4.5 million to $2.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2020. Of the properties impaired during 2020, three were disposed of
during the year and two were classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2020. Of the properties
impaired during 2019, four were disposed of during the prior year and two were classified as held for
sale as of December 31, 2019. These impairments and subsequent disposals relate to strategically
identifying properties that can be re-leased or disposed of in an effort to improve returns and manage
risk exposure.

Transaction costs. Transaction costs increased by $2.7 million to $3.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020. The increase in transaction costs includes costs incurred by the Company to
facilitate the private and public offerings of common stock of $1.8 million and costs associated with
abandoned acquisitions as well fees incurred for property acquisitions throughout the period of
$0.9 million.

. Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased by $6.2 million to $4.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020. The decrease is primarily attributed to the decrease in the effective interest rate
and total borrowings outstanding throughout the period as compared to the prior year.

+ Net Gain on Sales of Real Estate. Net gain on sales of real estate increased $0.6 million to $6.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2020. The table below summarizes the properties sold for the
periods indicated (in thousands):

Successor Predecessor
For the For the
Period from Period from

Year Ended  December 23to  January 1 to
December 31, December 31, December 22,

2020 2019
Number of propertiessold . . . .. ............... 15 — 30
Sales price, net of disposalcost . ... ............ $48,065 $ — $77,616
Gain on sales of real estate,net .. .............. $ 6,213 $ — $ 5,646
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Net Income (Loss). Net income increased $7.9 million to $0.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2020 from a net loss of $8.0 million for the prior year. Net income increased primarily due to the growth in
the size of our real estate investment portfolio, which generated additional rental revenues, and due to the
decreases in impairment and interest expenses, offset by the impact of increases in depreciation and
amortization expenses related to our growth, and to increases in general and administrative expenses and
transaction costs, primarily the result of becoming a public company, as set forth above.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary capital requirements are to fund property acquisitions and required interest payments, as
well as working capital needs, operating expenses, and capital expenditures. Our capital resources primarily
consist of cash from operations, sales of equity securities (including the private offering and initial public
offering) and borrowings under our Credit Facility. As of December 31, 2020, we had a $175.0 million Term
Loan and no borrowings outstanding under our $250.0 million Revolver. We believe that the net proceeds of
$227.3 million from our initial public offering plus both our cash flows from operations and available
borrowing capacity will be adequate to support our ongoing operations and to fund our debt service
requirements, capital expenditures and working capital for at least the next 12 months.

Credit Facility

In December 2019, we entered into a Credit Facility consisting of (i) a $175.0 million senior secured
Term Loan and (ii) a $250.0 million senior secured Revolver. Wells Fargo Securities, LLC is lead arranger
and bookrunner and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association is administrative agent under the Credit Facility
(the “Administrative Agent”).

The Term Loan matures on December 23, 2024 and the Revolver matures on December 23, 2023,
subject to extension of up to one year. The Administrative Agent released the collateral in connection with
the Company’s satisfaction of the Collateral Release Requirements in the fourth quarter of 2020, therefore
interest rates under the Credit Facility are based on the Company’s consolidated total leverage ratio, and
are determined by (A) in the case of the Term Loan either (i) LIBOR, plus a margin ranging from 1.15% to
1.60%, based on the Company’s consolidated total leverage ratio, or (ii) a Base Rate (as defined in the Credit
Facility), plus a margin ranging from 0.15% to 0.60%, based on the Company’s consolidated total leverage
ratio and (B) in the case of the Revolver either (i) LIBOR, plus a margin ranging from 1.20% to 1.80%, based
on the Company’s consolidated total leverage ratio, or (ii) a Base Rate (as defined in the Credit Facility), plus
a margin ranging from 0.20% to 0.80%, based on the Company’s consolidated total leverage ratio.

Prior to the collateral release, the Credit Facility was secured by a first priority perfected security interest
in and lien on all existing and future equity interests of the Company’s direct and indirect subsidiaries of
any Eligible Property (as defined in the Credit Facility) owned by the Company or any of the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Credit Facility provided that the Administrative Agent has the option to release the collateral
securing the Credit Facility upon delivery of satisfactory evidence from the Company that Collateral
Release Requirements (as defined in the Credit Facility) have been met, which requirements include, among
others, conditions related to the unencumbered asset value and asset diversification of the Company.

The Company uses interest rate derivative contracts to manage its exposure to changes in interest rates
on its variable rate debt. These derivatives are considered cash flow hedges and are recorded on a gross basis
at fair value. Effective September 28, 2020, such derivatives were used to hedge the variable cash flows
associated with the Term Loan.

Historical Cash Flow Information

Year Ended December 31, 2020 Compared with the Period from January 1 to December 22, 2019

To assist with the understanding of historical cash flows, we have discussed changes from our
Predecessor’s statement of cash flows data for the period ended December 22, 2019 to the year ended
December 31, 2020. We believe this provides the most meaningful information despite the 2019 period
having nine fewer days of cash flow activity than the 2020 period.
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Successor Predecessor

For the
Period from
Year Ended January 1 to
December 31, December 22,

(in thousands) 2020 2019
Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities . . . . . oo vttt $ 12,749 $ 5,989
Investing activities. . . . . . oot i (362,133) 75,934
Financing activities . . .. .. ...t 272,708 (82,317)

Cash Flows Provided By Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating activities increased by
$6.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 compared to the period from January 1, 2019 to
December 22, 2019. The increase was largely attributed to the increase in total number of properties as well
as increases of $5.1 million in depreciation and amortization expense, $2.5 million in stock based
compensation, $3.1 million in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities, offset
primarily by a decrease of $4.5 million in the provision for impairments.

Cash Flows Used In Investing Activities. Net cash used in investing activities increased by
$438.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 compared to the period from January 1, 2019 to
December 22, 2019. The Company spent $408.6 million on the acquisition of real estate during the year
ended December 31, 2020 compared to $1.2 million for the period from January 1, 2019 to December 22, 2019.
Additionally, the Company sold 15 properties during the year ended December 31, 2020 for net proceeds
of $48.1 million compared to 30 properties sold for the period from January 1, 2019 to December 22, 2019 for
net proceeds of $77.6 million.

Cash Flows Provided By Financing Activities. Net cash provided by financing activities increased by
$355.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 compared to the period from January 1, 2019 to
December 22, 2019. The increase is attributed to the private offering of common stock of $54.5 million and
the initial public offering of $227.3 million which occurred during 2020. Additionally, the Company had no net
borrowings or payments on debt during 2020 compared to net payments of $77.0 million for the period
from January 1, 2019 to December 22, 2019.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

As of December 31, 2020, we had one contractual obligation related to the maturity on our
$175.0 million Term Loan with the scheduled principal payment due on December 23, 2024.

During 2020, the Company borrowed and repaid $50.0 million on our $250.0 million Revolver at a
weighted average interest rate, exclusive of deferred financing costs, of 1.54% to fund specifically identified
property acquisitions.

The following table provides information with respect to our commitments as of December 31, 2020
(in thousands):

Payment Due by Period
Total Lessthanl Year 1-3Years 3-5Years

Contractual Obligations

Term Loan—Principal .. ................. $175,000 $ - $ - $175,000
Term Loan—Variable interest(1) . ... ........ 9,452 2,376 4752 2,324
Unutilized borrowing fees on Revolver(2) ... .. 1,861 625 1,236 —

Total ... ... $186,313 $3,001 $5,988 $177,324
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(1) Effective September 28, 2020, the Company entered into an interest rate hedge to fix the total
Company interest rate on the Company’s Term Loan. Accordingly, the projected interest rate obligations
for the variable rate Term Loan is based on the hedged fixed rate (one-month) of 0.21% compared to
the variable Term Loan one-month LIBOR rate as of December 31, 2020 of 0.15%, plus a margin of 1.15%
based on the $175.0 million Term Loan outstanding through the maturity date of December 23, 2024.

(2)  We are subject to a variable unutilized borrowing fee on the unused portion of our $250.0 million
Revolver. As of December 31, 2020, we have no borrowings on our $250.0 million Revolver and incurred
a fee at 0.25%. This reflects our projected unutilized borrowing fee as if the Revolver has no borrowing
through the maturity date of December 23, 2023 at 0.25%.

Income Taxes

We elected to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes commencing with our short
taxable year ended December 31, 2019. We believe that, commencing with our short taxable year ended
December 31, 2019, we have been organized and have operated in conformity with the requirements for
qualification and taxation as a REIT under the Code, and that our organization and current and proposed
method of operations will enable us to continue to meet the requirements for qualification and taxation as a
REIT for our taxable year ending December 31, 2021 and subsequent taxable years. As a REIT, we generally
will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on income that we distribute to our stockholders. If we fail to
qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on our taxable income
at the regular corporate tax rate. We must declare and pay dividends to maintain our status as a REIT and
we were required to declare and pay a dividend of $0.2 million relating to our 2019 fiscal period by
December 31, 2020. Accordingly, we declared and paid dividends in the second half of 2020 which were
inclusive of the $0.2 million obligation for 2019. See “Note 9—Stockholders’ Equity, Partners’ Capital and
Preferred Equity” of our consolidated financial statements.

We made a joint election with NETSTREIT TRS for it to be treated as a TRS. As a TRS, NETSTREIT
TRS will be subject to U.S. federal, state, and local income taxes on its taxable income. In general, NETSTREIT
TRS may perform services for our tenants, hold assets that we cannot hold directly and may engage in any
real estate or non-real estate-related business.

Our predecessor was not a federal taxable entity and no provision for federal income taxes was
recognized in its consolidated financial information.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

A discussion of new accounting standards and the possible effects of these standards on our
consolidated financial statements is included in “Note 2—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” of
our consolidated financial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our accounting policies have been established to conform with U.S. GAAP. The preparation of
financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires us to use judgment in the application of
accounting policies, including making estimates and assumptions. These judgments affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. Management
believes that we have made these estimates and assumptions in an appropriate manner and in a way that
accurately reflects our financial condition. We continually test and evaluate these estimates and
assumptions using our historical knowledge of the business, as well as other factors, to ensure that they are
reasonable for reporting purposes. However, actual results may differ from these estimates and assumptions.
If our judgment or interpretation of the facts and circumstances relating to the various transactions had
been different, it is possible that different accounting policies would have been applied, thus resulting in a
different presentation of the financial statements. Additionally, other companies may utilize different estimates
that may impact comparability of our results of operations to those of companies in similar businesses.
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This summary should be read in conjunction with the more complete discussion of our accounting policies
and procedures included in “Note 2—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” of our consolidated
financial statements.

Real Estate Held for Investment

Real estate is recorded and stated at cost less any provision for impairment. Our operating partnership
acquired our initial portfolio of 93 properties from our Predecessor and, as a result, our initial portfolio was
initially recorded at the fair value of the operating partnership’s ownership interest issued at the date of the
Private Offering. For real property acquired from third parties, assets are recognized at fair value at
acquisition date. For properties that we develop, all direct and indirect costs related to planning, development
and construction, including interest, real estate taxes and other miscellaneous costs incurred during the
construction period, are capitalized for financial reporting purposes and recorded as property under
development until construction has been completed.

Purchase Price Allocation of Acquired Properties

We evaluate each acquisition transaction to determine whether the acquired asset meets the definition
of a business and therefore accounted for as a business combination or if the acquisition transaction should
be accounted for as an asset acquisition. Under Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2017-01, “Business
Combinations (Topic 805): Clarifying the Definition of a Business” (“ASU 2017-01”), an acquisition does not
qualify as a business when substantially all of the fair value is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or
group of similar identifiable assets or the acquisition does not include a substantive process in the form of an
acquired workforce or an acquired contract that cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort or delay.
Transaction costs related to acquisitions that qualify as asset acquisitions are capitalized as part of the cost
basis of the acquired assets, while transaction costs for acquisitions that are deemed to be acquisitions of a
business are expensed as incurred.

We allocate the purchase price of acquired properties accounted for as asset acquisitions to tangible
and identifiable intangible assets or liabilities based on their relative fair values. Tangible assets may include
land, buildings, site improvements and tenant improvements. Intangible assets include the value of in-
place leases and above-market leases and intangible liabilities include below-market leases.

The fair value of the tangible assets of an acquired property with an in-place operating lease is
determined by valuing the property as if it were vacant, and the “as-if-vacant” value is then allocated to the
tangible assets based on the fair value of the tangible assets. The fair value of in-place leases is determined by
considering estimates of carrying costs during the expected lease-up periods, current market conditions, as
well as costs to execute similar leases based on the specific characteristics of each tenant’s lease. We estimate
the cost to execute leases with terms similar to the remaining lease terms of the in-place leases, including
leasing commissions, legal and other related expenses. The fair value of above-market or below-market leases
is recorded based on the net present value (using a discount rate that reflects the risks associated with the
leases acquired) of the difference between the contractual amount to be paid pursuant to the in-place lease
and our estimate of the fair market lease rate for the corresponding in-place lease, measured over the remaining
non-cancelable term of the lease including any below-market fixed rate renewal options for below-market
leases. In making estimates of fair values for purposes of allocating purchase price, we utilize a number of
sources, including real estate valuations prepared by independent valuation firms. We also consider
information and other factors including market conditions, the industry that the tenant operates in,
characteristics of the real estate; e.g, location, size, demographics, value and comparative rental rates; tenant
credit profile and the importance of the location of the real estate to the operations of the tenant’s business.
Additionally, we consider information obtained about each property as a result of its pre-acquisition due
diligence, marketing and leasing activities in estimating the fair value of the tangible and intangible assets
and liabilities acquired.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Fair value measurement of an asset occurs when events or changes in circumstances related to an
asset indicate that the carrying amount of the asset is no longer recoverable. If indicators are present, we
will prepare a projection of the undiscounted future cash flows of the property, excluding interest charges,
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and determine if the carrying amount of the real estate is recoverable. When a carrying amount is not
recoverable, an impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
fair market value. We estimate fair value using data such as operating income, estimated capitalization
rates or multiples, leasing prospects, local market information, and with regard to assets held for sale, based
on the estimated or negotiated selling price, less estimated costs of disposal.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Our reported results are presented in accordance with GAAP. We also disclose the following non-
GAAP financial measures: FFO, Core FFO, AFFO, earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (“EBITDA”), EBITDA adjusted to exclude gains (or losses) on sales of depreciable property
and real estate impairment losses (“EBITDAre”), EBITDAre further adjusted to exclude straight-line rent,
gains from forfeited earnest money deposits, non-recurring public company costs, representing consulting
fees that we have incurred in preparing to become a public company and non-cash compensation expense
(“Adjusted EBITDAre”), NOI and Cash NOI. We believe these non-GAAP financial measures are industry
measures used by analysts and investors to compare the operating performance of REITs.

FFO, Core FFO and AFFO

FFO is a non-GAAP financial measure defined by NAREIT as net income (computed in accordance
with GAAP), excluding real estate-related expenses including, but not limited to, gains (losses) from sales,
impairment adjustments, and depreciation and amortization, and after adjustments for unconsolidated
partnerships and joint ventures. Our calculation of FFO is consistent with FFO as defined by NAREIT.

Core FFO is a non-GAAP financial measure defined as FFO adjusted for gains from forfeited earnest
money deposits and non-recurring public company costs. We believe the presentation of Core FFO provides
investors with a metric to assist in their evaluation of our operating performance across multiple periods
because it removes the effect of unusual and non-recurring items that are not expected to impact our operating
performance on an ongoing basis.

ATFFO is a non-GAAP financial measure defined as Core FFO adjusted for GAAP net income related to
non-cash revenues and expenses, such as straight-line rent, amortization of above- and below-market lease-
related intangibles, non-cash compensation expense, and amortization of deferred financing costs.

Historical cost accounting for real estate assets implicitly assumes that the value of real estate assets
diminishes predictably over time. In fact, real estate values historically have risen or fallen with market
conditions. FFO is intended to be a standard supplemental measure of operating performance that excludes
historical cost depreciation and valuation adjustments from net income. We consider FFO to be useful in
evaluating potential property acquisitions and measuring operating performance. We further consider Core
FFO and AFFO to be useful in determining funds available for payment of distributions. FFO, Core FFO
and AFFO do not represent net income or cash flows from operations as defined by GAAP. You should not
consider FFO, Core FFO and AFFO to be alternatives to net income as a reliable measure of our operating
performance; nor should you consider FFO, Core FFO and AFFO to be alternatives to cash flows from
operating, investing or financing activities (as defined by GAAP) as measures of liquidity.

FFO, Core FFO and AFFO do not measure whether cash flow is sufficient to fund all of our cash needs,
including principal amortization, capital improvements and distributions to stockholders. FFO, Core FFO
and AFFO do not represent cash flows from operating, investing or financing activities as defined by GAAP.
Further, FFO, Core FFO and AFFO as disclosed by other REITs might not be comparable to our calculations
of FFO, Core FFO and AFFO.

The following table sets forth a reconciliation of FFO, Core FFO and AFFO for the periods presented
to net income (loss) before allocation to noncontrolling interests, as computed in accordance with GAAP (in
thousands):
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Successor Predecessor

For the For the
Period from Period from
Year Ended December 23to  January1lto
December 31, December 31, December 22,

2020 2019
Netincome (Ioss) . . . ..o v it $ 212 $ 42 $(8,072)
Depreciation and amortization of real estate . . . . 15,154 188 10,422
Provision for impairment ... .............. 2,690 — 7,186
Gain on sale of real estate,net . . . . ... . ...... (6,213) - (5,646)
FFO oot 11,843 230 3,890
Adjustments:
Gain on forfeited earnest money deposit . ... .. (250) — —
144A and IPO transaction costs(1) . ......... 2,170 - 450
Cote FFO ..o\ 13,763 230 4,340
Adjustments:
Straight-line rental revenue . .............. (1,688) (15) 1,037
Amortization of deferred financing costs ... ... 621 14 1,024
Amortization of above/below market lease
intangibles .. ..... ... .. ... . .. ... (504) 2 563
Non-cash compensation expense . .......... 2,452 — —
AFFO ...\ $14,644 $231 $ 6,964

(1) These expenses represent a subset of transaction costs as presented on the consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss).

EBITDA, EBITDAre and Adjusted EBITDAre

We compute EBITDA as earnings before interest, income taxes and depreciation and amortization. In
2017, NAREIT issued a white paper recommending that companies that report EBITDA also report
EBITDAre. We compute EBITDAre in accordance with the definition adopted by NAREIT. NAREIT defines
EBITDAre as EBITDA (as defined above) excluding gains (or losses) from the sales of depreciable property
and real estate impairment losses.

Adjusted EBITDAre is a non-GAAP financial measure defined as EBITDAre further adjusted to
exclude straight-line rent, gains from forfeited earnest money deposits, non-recurring public company costs,
representing consulting fees that we have incurred in preparing to become a public company and non-cash
compensation expense.

We present EBITDA, EBITDAre and Adjusted EBITDAre as they are measures commonly used in our
industry. We believe that these measures are useful to investors and analysts because they provide
supplemental information concerning our operating performance, exclusive of certain non-cash items and
other costs. We use EBITDA, EBITDAre and Adjusted EBITDAre as measures of our operating performance
and not as measures of liquidity.

EBITDA, EBITDAre and Adjusted EBITDAre do not include all items of revenue and expense included
in net income, they do not represent cash generated from operating activities and they are not necessarily
indicative of cash available to fund cash requirements; accordingly, they should not be considered alternatives
to net income as a performance measure or cash flows from operations as a liquidity measure and should
be considered in addition to, and not in lieu of, GAAP financial measures. Additionally, our computation of
EBITDA, EBITDAre and Adjusted EBITDAre may differ from the methodology for calculating these metrics
used by other equity REITs and, therefore, may not be comparable to similarly titled measures reported by
other equity REITs.
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The following table sets forth a reconciliation of EBITDA, EBITDAre and Adjusted EBITDAre for the
periods presented to net income (loss) before allocation to noncontrolling interests, as computed in
accordance with GAAP (in thousands):

Successor Predecessor
For the For the
Period from Period from

Year Ended  December 23to  January 1 to
December 31, December 31, December 22,

2020 2019
Netincome (Ioss) . . . ..o v i $ 212 $ 42 $(8,072)
Depreciation and amortization of real estate . . . . 15,154 188 10,422
Amortization of above/below market lease
intangibles .. ....... ... ... L. (504) 2 563
Non-real estate depreciation and amortization . . 305 7 —
Interest expense,net .. .................. 4741 173 10,712
EBITDA . . . 19,908 E 13,625
Adjustments:
Provision for impairments .. .............. 2,690 — 7,186
Gain on sale of real estate,net . . . ........... (6,213) - (5,646)
EBITDAIC . . . oo\ o oo 16,385 412 15,165
Adjustments:
Straight-line rental revenue . .............. (1,688) 15) 1,037
Gain on forfeited earnest money deposit . .. ... (250) — —
144A and IPO transaction costs(1) .......... 2,170 - 450
Non-cash compensation expense . .......... 2,452 — —
Adjusted EBITDAre . . ..o oo i e $19,069 533? $16,652

(1) These expenses represent a subset of transaction costs as presented on the consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss).

NOI and Cash NOI

NOI and Cash NOI are non-GAAP financial measures which we use to assess our operating results.
We compute NOI as net income (loss) (computed in accordance with GAAP), excluding general and
administrative expenses, interest expense (or income), depreciation and amortization, gains (or losses) on
sales of depreciable property, transaction costs, gain from forfeited earnest money deposits and real estate
impairment losses. We further adjust NOI for non-cash revenue components of straight-line rent and
amortization of lease intangibles to derive Cash NOI. We believe NOI and Cash NOI provide useful and
relevant information because they reflect only those income and expense items that are incurred at the
property level and present such items on an unlevered basis.

NOI and Cash NOI are not measurements of financial performance under GAAP, and our NOI and
Cash NOI may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies. You should not consider
our NOI and Cash NOI as alternatives to net income or cash flows from operating activities determined in
accordance with GAAP.
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The following table sets forth a reconciliation of NOI and Cash NOI for the periods presented (in
thousands):

Successor Predecessor
For the For the
Period from Period from

Year Ended December 23to  January1lto
December 31, December 31, December 22,

2020 2019
Netincome (loss) . . . . ... oo $ 212 $ 42 $(8,072)
General and administrative . ... ............. 11,340 49 3,555
Depreciation and amortization . . .. ........... 15,459 195 10,422
Provisions for impairment . . ... ... .......... 2,690 - 7,186
Transactioncosts . .. ... ... .. 3,169 2 535
Interest expense,net . .. ......... ... ... ... 4741 173 10,712
Gain on sales of real estate,net . . .. ........... (6,213) — (5,646)
Gain on forfeited earnest money deposit . .. ... .. (250) — —
Other (income) expense, net . ............... 10 - —
N R $31,158 $461 $18,692
Straight-line rental revenue .. ..... ... ... ... (1,688) E) 1,037
Amortization of above/below market lease
intangibles . . .. ... ... ... L (504) 2 563
CashNOT . ..o oot $29,966 $448 $20,292
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OUR BUSINESS AND PROPERTIES

Overview

We are an internally-managed real estate company that acquires, owns and manages a diversified
portfolio of single-tenant, retail commercial real estate subject to long-term net leases with high credit
quality tenants across the United States. Our diversified portfolio consists of 235 single-tenant retail net
leased properties spanning 39 states, with tenants representing 60 different brands or concepts across 23
retail sectors. Our portfolio generates ABR of $48.0 million and is 100% occupied, with a WALT of 10.1 years
consisting of more than 80% investment grade tenants and investment grade profile tenants by ABR,
which we believe provides us with a strong, stable source of recurring cash flow from which to grow our
portfolio.

Our History

We were formed as a Maryland corporation on October 11, 2019. On December 23, 2019, we issued
and sold 8,860,760 shares of our common stock in a private offering at a price of $19.75 per share, to various
institutional investors, accredited investors and offshore investors, in reliance upon exemptions from
registration provided by Rule 144A and Regulation S under the Securities Act and pursuant to Regulation D
under the Securities Act. On February 6, 2020, we issued and sold an additional 2,936,885 shares of our
common stock in the private offering pursuant to the initial purchaser’s option to purchase additional shares.
We received approximately $219.0 million of net proceeds (after deducting the initial purchaser’s discount
and placement fees) from the private offering and exercise of the option to purchase additional shares. In
connection with the private offering, we consummated a series of formation transactions that were
designed, among other things, to enable us to qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes. We
elected to be taxed as a REIT beginning with our short taxable year ended December 31, 2019.

Our predecessor, EverSTAR Income & Value Fund V, LP, merged with our operating partnership as
part of the formation transactions. We are structured as an umbrella partnership REIT, meaning that we own
our properties and conduct our business through our operating partnership, directly or through limited
partnerships, limited liability companies or other subsidiaries. NETSTREIT GP, LLC, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, is the sole general partner of our operating partnership. Upon completion of this
offering, we will own approximately 98% of the limited partnership interests in our operating partnership

To assist us in maintaining our status as a REIT, on January 27, 2020, we issued and sold 125 shares of
our 12.0% Series A Cumulative Non-Voting Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share (“Series A Preferred
Stock”) for $1,000 per share to accredited investors pursuant to Regulation D under the Securities Act. We
redeemed all 125 outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock upon the completion of our initial public
offering.

On August 17, 2020, we completed the initial public offering of our common stock. We sold 12,244,732
shares of common stock and the selling stockholders sold 255,268 shares of common stock at a price of $18.00
per share. Our common stock began trading on the NYSE under the symbol “NTST” on August 13, 2020.

On September 16, 2020, we sold an additional 1,436,829 shares of our common stock pursuant to the
underwriters’ over-allotment option in connection with the initial public offering. We received net proceeds
from the initial public offering and over-allotment option exercise of $227.3 million, net of transaction costs
and underwriting discounts of $18.9 million. We contributed the total net proceeds from the initial public
offering to our operating partnership in exchange for 13,681,561 Class A OP units. In addition, we acquired
255,268 Class A OP units from the selling stockholders, who elected to redeem such units in exchange for
an equivalent number of shares of our common stock and then sell those shares of common stock in the initial
public offering.

Our Competitive Strengths

We believe the following competitive strengths distinguish us from our competitors and allow us to
compete effectively in the single-tenant retail net leased property market.

- Favorable Exposure to Investment Grade Credit Rated and Other High-Quality Tenants. Our
portfolio provides high-quality leases and ABR. More than 80% of our ABR is from investment grade
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credit rated tenants, which historically have exhibited a strong track record of making scheduled
rental payments, showing resilience during times of economic downturn and investment grade profile
tenants.

Investment Strategy that Benefits From a Fragmented, Underserved Market Segment. The
current market for retail net leased properties is fragmented and decentralized. Between 2017 and
2020, private, non-institutional buyers accounted for 60.3% of this market by volume and, in 2020,
53.7% of retail net lease transactions had a purchase price between $2.5 million and $5 million. The
relatively small transaction size of retail net lease properties, combined with the locations of many
of these properties outside of primary markets, can be a deterrent for larger, institutional buyers that
seek to deploy greater amounts of capital in larger markets and assets that generate greater ABR
per property. We generally focus on properties with a purchase price between $1 million and

$10 million and our average ABR per property is approximately $204,401. We believe this low per
property ABR concentration increases our revenue diversification. We also believe our focus on
smaller properties, a segment of the market that we believe is undercapitalized, will allow us to
maintain a consistent pipeline of relatively small assets to acquire on attractive terms without the
threat of broad competition.

Seasoned Leadership with a Proven Track Record of Cultivating and Expanding Publicly
Traded REIT Businesses. Our Chief Executive Officer, Mark Manheimer, has over 15 years of
experience underwriting, acquiring, leasing, financing, managing and disposing of net leased
properties, with a track record of growing net lease businesses to significant scale. Prior to joining
EB Arrow as the Chief Investment Officer of its net lease portfolio, Mr. Manheimer served on the
investment committee of Spirit, overseeing the acquisition of more than 1,500 properties and leading
the effort to restructure the master lease of Spirit’s largest tenant. Mr. Manheimer played a critical
role in Spirit’s September 2012 initial public offering and shortly thereafter led Spirit’s due diligence
and reverse due diligence efforts as part of a merger with Cole Credit Property Trust II, doubling

the size of the company. We believe Mr. Manheimer’s reputation, in-depth market knowledge and
extensive network of long-standing relationships with retailers, brokers, intermediaries, private equity
firms and others in the net lease industry will provide us with an ongoing pipeline of both marketed
and off-market investment opportunities. In addition, our Chief Financial Officer, Andrew Blocher,
leads our conservative balance sheet and capitalization strategy and manages our liabilities, capital
raising, financial reporting and investor relations activities. Mr. Blocher has over 20 years of
experience in financial reporting, debt and equity financing, investor relations, capital allocation,
corporate governance and strategy for publicly traded REITs, including five years serving as the Chief
Financial Officer of First Potomac Realty Trust (NYSE: FPO), four years serving as Chief Financial
Officer and an additional seven years serving in a capital markets and investor relations role at Federal
Realty Investment Trust (NYSE: FRT). We believe Mr. Blocher’s deep relationships with the
investment banking and institutional investor communities will assist us in future capital raising
activities as we grow our portfolio.

Disciplined Underwriting and Active Portfolio Management Strategy. We believe our
conservative underwriting criteria will allow us to purchase properties below replacement cost and
with below market rents, providing significant long-term opportunities for growth at an attractive
basis. Our management team focuses primarily on securing long-term leases with investment

grade credit rated tenants and creditworthy tenants without an investment grade rating. We focus
on tenants in industries where a physical location is critical to the generation of sales and profits, with
a focus on necessity goods and essential services in the retail sector, including home improvement,
auto parts, drug stores and pharmacies, general retail, grocers, convenience stores, discount stores,
and quick-service restaurants. We believe these characteristics make our tenants’ businesses
e-commerce resistant and resilient through all economic cycles. In evaluating a property for
acquisition, we utilize our three-part underwriting and risk management strategy with an emphasis
on credit and real estate that includes:

- Tenant Credit Underwriting: review corporate level financial information, assess business
risks and review investment rating or establish a “shadow rating” using our proprietary credit
modeling process for unrated tenants;
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Real Estate Valuation: review the underlying key real estate metrics of each property,
including location and demographics that will support both tenant financial health, including
market rents, and a market for alternative use, re-leasing or redevelopment, when necessary;
and

Unit-Level Profitability: analyze and/or estimate unit-level profitability and cost variability
to determine the likelihood of each such location sustainably operating as a profit center.

- High Quality, Defensive and Diversified Portfolio. Our portfolio consists of 235 single-tenant
net leased properties that are diversified by tenant, industry and geography, including 60 different
brands or concepts, across 23 retail sectors in 39 states. The majority of our portfolio is comprised of
properties leased to tenants operating in defensive retail industries, with 89.1% of our ABR stemming
from necessity, discount and/or service-oriented industries. Our portfolio is 100% occupied and
generates ABR of $48.0 million, with a WALT of 10.1 years, which we believe provides us with a strong,
stable source of recurring cash flows from which to grow our portfolio. Further, more than 80% of
our ABR is derived from tenants with investment grade credit ratings or an investment grade profile
which historically have exhibited a strong track record of making scheduled rental payments and
demonstrating defensive, consistent performance through multiple cycles. Our current strategy
targets a scaled portfolio that, over time, will:

derive no more than (i) 5% of its ABR from any single tenant or property, (ii) 15% of its ABR
from any single retail sector, (iii) 15% of its ABR from any single state and (iv) 50% of its ABR
from its top 10 tenants;

+ be primarily leased to tenants operating in businesses we believe to be e-commerce resistant
and resilient through all economic cycles;

have more than 60% of its tenants with an investment grade credit rating; and
- have a WALT of greater than 10 years.

Proven Ability to Efficiently Deploy Capital Utilizing Proprietary Sourcing Channels to Achieve
Scale. Our ability to efficiently deploy capital is a direct result of our management team’s
extensive network of industry relationships, which we utilized to source a robust pipeline of attractive
marketed and off-market investment opportunities through which we have deployed capital,
acquiring 124 and 31 single-tenant retail net leased properties with aggregate purchase prices of
$408.6 million and $88.2 million during the year ended December 31, 2020 and three months ended
March 31, 2021, respectively. We believe our relationship-based sourcing strategy will continue to
generate a sustainable pipeline of opportunities to drive growth and achieve scale through the efficient
deployment of capital raised in this offering. While our general and administrative expenses will
continue to rise in some measure as our portfolio grows, we expect that such expenses as a percentage
of our portfolio will decrease over time following this offering, due to efficiencies and economies of
scale. With our smaller asset base relative to other public REITs that focus on acquiring net leased real
estate, we believe that superior growth can be achieved through manageable acquisition volume.

As of March 31, 2021, we were party to purchase and sale agreements and non-binding letters of
intent for the acquisition of a total of 21 properties with an aggregate expected purchase price of
approximately $78.0 million. See “Prospectus Summary—Pending Investment Activity.”

Our Business and Growth Strategies

Our objective is to maximize stockholder value by generating attractive risk-adjusted returns through
owning, managing and growing a diversified portfolio of commercially desirable properties. We intend to
pursue our objective through the following business and growth strategies.

Differentiated, Multi-faceted Investment Strategy to Drive Growth. We intend to continue to
grow our portfolio by acquiring properties occupied by high-credit quality tenants operating in
defensive industries focused on necessity retail goods and essential services. In addition to acquiring
single-tenant net leased retail properties subject to an existing stabilized long-term lease, we

intend to grow our portfolio through a multi-faceted investment strategy, which includes “blend and
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extend” acquisitions, build-to-suit transactions, reverse build-to-suit transactions and sale-leaseback
transactions. Each of these types of transactions or acquisitions offers unique benefits to our
business:

- Existing stabilized leases: In existing stabilized lease transactions, we acquire single-tenant
net leased operating assets subject to an existing long-term lease through our relationships
with current owners, our extensive brokerage network or our developer relationships.

- Blend-and-extend: Inblend-and-extend acquisitions, we acquire a single-tenant commercial
property with an existing short-term lease, then extend the lease term to at least ten years.
Blend-and-extend acquisitions allow us to acquire properties at a lower basis and get long-term
site commitments from tenants.

+ Build-to-suit: In build-to-suit transactions, we secure development financing for a single-
tenant commercial property pursuant to executing a long-term lease. Build-to-suit transactions
allow us to leverage our extensive developer relationships to partner on opportunities.

+ Reverse build-to-suit: In reverse build-to-suit transactions, the tenant acts as the developer
and constructs the property with the project financed by the landlord. Both build-to-suit and
reverse build-to-suit transactions allow us to acquire the property at lower cost in exchange
for long lease terms and higher entry capitalization rates.

- Sale-leaseback: Sale-leaseback transactions allow us to acquire a single-tenant commercial
property used by the seller with a simultaneous long-term lease of the property back to the
seller. In sale-leaseback transactions, we strive to set rents at sustainable levels and get
long-term site commitments from tenants.

We believe this multi-faceted investment strategy will provide us with greater flexibility to
opportunistically build our portfolio and differentiate us from other public REITs pursuing a more limited
investment strategy.

+ Relationship-Based Investment Sourcing. Mr. Manheimer has been active in the single-tenant
net lease industry for more than 15 years, serving as Head of Sale-Leaseback Acquisitions for Cole
and Executive Vice President—Head of Asset Management for Spirit. Mr. Manheimer’s extensive
experience has allowed him to develop a broad network of long-standing relationships with
retailers, brokers, intermediaries, private equity firms and others in the net lease industry, which we
believe will provide us with an ongoing pipeline of both marketed and off-market investment
opportunities. We also anticipate leveraging our extensive developer relationships to partner on build-
to-suit and reverse build-to-suit transactions.

. Structure and Manage Portfolio with Disciplined Underwriting and Risk Management Processes.
We seek to build a scaled portfolio with stable rental revenue and maximize the long-term return
on our investments by implementing our disciplined underwriting and risk management processes.
Our portfolio is focused on tenants operating in industries that are e-commerce resistant and
resilient through all economic cycles and with attractive credit characteristics and stable operating
cash flows. We seek to enter into leases with terms of at least ten years and, when acquiring properties,
look for opportunities to acquire short-term leases with a long-term extension in place at the time
of closing. In addition, we seek acquisition opportunities that enhance the tenant, industry and
geographic diversification of our portfolio and actively monitor and manage our existing investments
to reduce the risks associated with adverse developments affecting particular tenants, industries or
regions. Finally, we use our active portfolio management strategy to (i) regularly review each of our
properties for changes in unit performance, tenant credit and local real estate conditions, (ii) identify
properties that do not meet our disciplined underwriting strategy, diversification objectives or risk
management criteria, including rent coverage ratios below 2.0x or likelihood of non-renewal upon
lease expiration, and (iii) opportunistically dispose of those properties and reinvest the proceeds in
1031 Exchanges, that will generate higher returns, enhance the credit quality of our real estate
portfolio or extend our average remaining lease term. From June 2018 to March 31,2021, we disposed
of 48 properties totaling $139.3 million in aggregate contractual sales price and improved portfolio
performance by diversifying tenant concentration and improving key metrics such as tenant credit
quality, WALT and geographic diversity.
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+ Maintain a Conservatively Leveraged Capital Structure. We seek to maintain a capital structure
that provides us with flexibility to manage our business and scale our platform through targeted
acquisitions, while allowing us to service our debt requirements and generate appropriate
risk-adjusted returns. As of December 31, 2020, we had no borrowings under our $250.0 million
Revolver. We intend to target a conservative net debt to EBITDA leverage ratio of 4.5x to 5.5x at scale
to best position the Company for growth, and we intend to capitalize on our leading origination,
underwriting, financing, documentation and property processes to improve our efficiency. As we
scale, we anticipate having access to the investment grade debt and equity capital markets to maintain
a prudent balance between debt and equity financing.

+ Achieve Sustainable Dividend Growth Well-Covered by Cash Flow. We seek to make investments
that generate strong current income as a result of the difference, or spread, between the rate we
earn on our assets and the rate we pay on our liabilities (primarily our long-term debt). We intend to
augment that income with internal growth through a target dividend payout ratio that will permit
some free cash flow reinvestment. We believe this will enable strong dividend growth without relying
exclusively on future common stock issuances to fund new portfolio investments. Additionally, our
WALT of 10.1 years and superior underwriting and portfolio monitoring capabilities, which reduce
default losses, are intended to make our cash flows highly stable.

- Smaller Net Lease Acquisitions Allow for Superior Portfolio Growth. We generally focus on
properties with a purchase price between $1 million and $10 million and our average ABR per
property is approximately $204,401. We believe this is a segment of the market that is undercapitalized
and in which we can achieve superior growth through consistent acquisition volume. Moreover,
our platform is scalable, and we expect to leverage our capabilities to improve our efficiency and
processes to achieve attractive risk-based growth.

Our Real Estate Portfolio

During the year ended December 31, 2020 and three months ended March 31, 2021, we acquired 124
and 31 single-tenant retail net lease properties with aggregate purchase prices of $408.6 million and $88.2
million, respectively. Our diversified portfolio consists of 235 single-tenant retail net leased properties
spanning 39 states, with tenants representing 60 different brands or concepts across 23 retail sectors. Our
portfolio consists of 4.4 million square feet and is 100% occupied.

Property Map

>10% ABR [l >5% and <10% ABR [l >3% and <5% ABR
[ >1% and <3% ABR [ <1% ABR 0% ABR

Our portfolio generates ABR of $48.0 million, has a WALT of 10.1 years and consists of more than 80%
of investment grade tenants and tenants with an investment grade profile by ABR. None of our tenants
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represent more than 7.8% of our portfolio by ABR, and our top 10 largest tenants represent in aggregate
53.4% of our ABR. Nine of our top 10 tenants are publicly traded companies and eight have investment grade
credit ratings, in addition to Ollie’s Bargain Qutlet and Hobby Lobby, tenants with investment grade
profiles.

7-Eleven (Baa2 (Moody’s); AA- (S&P)). 7-Eleven is the world’s largest convenience retailer. Based in
Irving, Texas, 7-Eleven operates, franchises and/or licenses more than 70,000 stores in 17 countries, including
11,800 stores in North America.

Lowe’s (Baal (Moody’s); BBB+ (S&P); NYSE: LOW). Lowe’s is a FORTUNE 50 home improvement
company in the United States, Canada and Mexico that was founded in 1946. Lowe’s operates or services
more than 2,220 home improvement and hardware stores and is headquartered in Mooresville, North Carolina.

Advance Auto Parts (Baa2 (Moody’s); BBB- (S&P); NYSE: AAP). Advance Auto Parts is a leading
automotive aftermarket parts provider in North America that serves both professional installer and do-it-
yourself customers. As of January 2, 2021, Advance operated 4,806 stores and 170 Worldpac branches in the
United States, Canada, Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands. The Company also serves 1,277 independently
owned Carquest branded stores across these locations in addition to Mexico, Grand Cayman, the Bahamas,
Turks and Caicos and British Virgin Islands. Advance Auto Parts was founded in 1932 and is headquartered
in Raleigh, North Carolina.

Walmart (Aa2 (Moody’s); AA (S&P); NYSE: WMT). Founded in 1945 and headquartered in Bentonville,
Arkansas, Walmart provides the opportunity to shop in retail stores and through e-commerce. Walmart has
approximately 11,500 stores under 56 banners, including Sam’s Club, in 27 countries and e-commerce
websites.

CVS (Baa2 (Moody’s); BBB (S&P); NYSE: CVS). CVS is the nation’s premier health innovation company
helping people on their path to better health. Headquartered in Woonsocket, Rhode Island, CVS operates
nearly 10,000 retail locations.

Dollar General (Baa2 (Moody’s); BBB (S&P); NYSE: DG). Dollar General offers products that are
frequently used and replenished, such as food, snacks, health and beauty aids, cleaning supplies, basic
apparel, housewares and seasonal items at low prices in convenient neighborhood locations since 1939. As
of October 30, 2020, Dollar General operated 16,979 stores in 46 states and is headquartered in Goodlettsville,
Tennessee.

Ollie’s Bargain Outlet (unrated; NASDAQ: OLLI). Founded in 1982 and headquartered in Harrisburg,
Pennsylvania, Ollie’s Bargain Outlet is a highly differentiated and fast-growing, extreme value retailer of
brand name merchandise at drastically reduced prices. Ollie’s Bargain Outlet operates 391 stores.

Hobby Lobby (unrated; not public). With more than 900 stores, Hobby Lobby is the largest privately
owned arts-and-crafts retailer in the world, operating in 47 states. Hobby Lobby was founded in 1970 and is
headquartered in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma.

Tractor Supply Company (Baal (Moody’s); BBB (S&P); NASDAQ: TSCO). Founded in 1938, Tractor
Supply is the largest rural lifestyle retailer in the United States, with 1,923 Tractor Supply stores in 49 states
and an e-commerce website. Tractor Supply is headquartered in Brentwood, Tennessee.

Walgreens (Baa2 (Moody’s); BBB (S&P); NASDAQ: WBA). Walgreens is a global leader in retail and
wholesale pharmacy that was founded in 1901 and is headquartered in Deerfield, Illinois. Walgreens has a
presence in more than 25 countries and has more than 21,000 stores.

Our 235 properties were operated by 60 tenants, each representing a distinct brand or concept, with
no one tenant representing more than 7.8% of our portfolio by ABR. The following table details information
about our tenants (dollars in thousands, except per square foot amounts):
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Tenant(1)
7-Eleven,Inc. .. .............
Lowe’s Companies, Inc. . .......

Advance Stores Company, Inc.
(Advance Auto Parts) . . ......

Walmart Stores, Inc. . .........
CVS Health Corporation . ......
Dollar General Corporation . . ...
Ollie’s Bargain Outlet, Inc. . ... ..
Hobby Lobby .. .............
Tractor Supply Company . ......
WalgreenCo. .. .............

Koninklijke Ahold Delhaize N.V.
(Food Lion / Stop & Shop) . . . . .

Home Depot U.S.A,Inc. . ... ....
Kohl’s Department Stores, Inc. . . .

Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. / Family
Dollar Stores, Inc. .. ........

Fresenius Medical Care Holdings,
Ine. ...

Biglots . . .................

Burlington Coat Factory
Warehouse Corporation . . . . . .

Best Buy Stores, L.P.. .. ..... ...

Floor & Décor Outlets of America,
Inc. ... ... ..

CWGS Group, Inc. (Camping
World) . ...

Top 20 Subtotal .. ...........
Other ....................
Total / Weighted Average(3) . . .

(1) Represents tenant or guarantor.

(2) Weighted by ABR.

Tenant Industry Diversification

Weighted

Number Average
of Square % of ABR per Lease
Properties Feet ABR(2) ABR SquareFoot Term(2)

15 63,461 $ 3,729  7.8% $58.75 14.3
4 501,771 3578  74% 713 13.0
36 260,075 3,562 7.4% 13.70 10.2
5 771,538 3,288 6.8% 4.26 7.7
14 157,407 2,663 5.5% 16.92 13.5
26 244,816 2,536 5.3% 10.36 8.0
7 272,495 1,918 4.0% 7.04 8.9
4 226,953 1,584 3.3% 6.98 9.7
6 135,341 1,459 3.0% 10.78 8.6
4 60,725 1,329  2.8% 21.89 10.7
2 66,158 1,268 2.6% 19.17 6.3
1 116,818 1,202 2.5% 10.29 6.1
165,870 1,147 2.4% 6.91 4.8
10 97,063 1,067 2.2% 10.99 8.0
4 31,182 1,022 2.1% 32.77 10.8
4 146,262 948 2.0% 6.48 8.3
73,459 917 1.9% 12.48 8.9
76,400 854 1.8% 11.18 6.2
1 84,177 815 1.7% 9.69 8.8
1 66,056 705  1.5% 10.68 12.8
150 3,618,026 35592  74.1% 9.84 10.0
85 820,565 12,442  25.9% 15.16 10.6
235 4,438,591 $48,034  100% $10.82 10.1

The majority of our portfolio is comprised of properties leased to tenants operating in defensive retail

industries, with 89.1% of our ABR coming from necessity, service-oriented, and/or discount industries.
Necessity-based industries are those that are considered essential by consumers and include sectors such as
home improvement, auto parts, drug stores, general retail, and grocers. Service-oriented industries consist
of retailers that provide services rather than goods, including, for example, convenience stores, quick service

and casual dining restaurants, and tire and auto services. Discount retailers offer a low price point and

consist of off-price and dollar stores.
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The following chart illustrates the percentage of our ABR attributable to defensive retail industries:

Other 10.9%

Discount 18.5%

Necessity 52.7%

Service 17.9%

The breakdown of our necessity-based retail, service-oriented, discount-focused, and other, non-
defensive retail industries by sector and by percentage of ABR is set forth below (dollars in thousands):

Number of ABR(1) Gross Leasable Area
Tenant Industry and Sector Leases Dollars % of Total SquareFeet % of Total
Necessity-Based Retail
Home Improvement . . .. .......... 17 7,066 14.7% 810,614 18.3%
AutoParts. .................... 53 4,647 9.7% 336,470 8.3%
Drug Stores & Pharmacies. . . .. ... .. 18 3,992 8.3% 218,132 4.9%
GeneralRetail .. ................ 5 3,226 6.7% 787,083 17.7%
GroCery . .......oiiii.. 7 2,834 5.9% 222,826 5.0%
Farm Supplies . . ................ 6 1,459 3.0% 135,341 3.0%
Healthcare . ... .. ... ..... 4 1,022 2.1% 31,182 0.7%
Banking . ............ ... .. ... 5 660 1.4% 15,388 0.3%
Wholesale Warehouse Club .. ... ... 1 417 0.9% 110,858 2.5%
Total Necessity-Based Retail . . . . ... .. E 25,322 52.7% 2,697,894 60.8%
Discount-Focused Industry
DiscountRetail . ................ 17 5,302 11.0% 710,917 16.0%
DollarStores . . .. .. ..o 36 3,602 7.5% 341,879 7.7%
Total Discount-Focused Industry . . ... E 8,904 18.5% 1,052,796 23.7%
Service-Oriented Industry o
Convenience Stores . . . ........... 18 4,346 9.1% 80,780 1.8%
Quick Service Restaurants . ........ 15 2,380 5.0% 44 407 1.0%
Automotive Service . ... ... .. ..... 10 947 2.0% 43,793 1.0%
CasualDining . ... .............. 5 903 1.9% 25,886 0.6%
Total Service-Oriented Industry . . . . . . E 8,576 17.9% 194,865 4.4%
Defensive Retail Industries . . . . ... ... E 42,803 89.1% 3,945,555 84.5%
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Number of ABR(1) Gross Leasable Area
Tenant Industry and Sector Leases Dollars % of Total Square Feet % of Total
Other, Non-Defensive Industries
Arts& Crafts . . ......... ... .. ... 4 1,584 3.3% 226,953 51%
Furniture Stores . . . .. ... .. ... .. .. 2 878 1.8% 47101 1.1%
Consumer Electronics . ........... 2 854 1.8% 76,400 1.7%
RVSales . ..................... 1 705 1.5% 66,056 1.5%
Apparel ........... ... ... ... 4 506 1.1% 39,126 0.9%
Equipment Rental and Leasing . ... .. 3 369 0.8% 25,206 0.6%
Gift, Novelty, and Souvenir Shops . . . . 1 200 0.4% 8,081 0.2%
Home Furnishings . .. ............ 1 134 0.3% 4114 0.1%
Total Other, Non-Defensive . . . . . . .. TB 5,232 10.9% 493,036 11.1%
Total, All Industries . ... ........... E 48,034 100.0% 4,438,591 100.0%

(1) Certain figures in this table may not foot due to rounding.

Geographic Diversification

The following table presents ABR by state for our portfolio (dollars in thousands):

Number of ABR Gross Leasable Area
Tenant State Leases Dollars % of Total SquareFeet % of Total
Texas. . .o 31 6,937 14.4% 349,397 7.9%
Georgia . . oo 15 3,664 7.6% 524,945 11.8%
Ohio ..o 15 2,814 5.9% 300,625 6.8%
Virginia . .. .. ... 5 2,655 5.5% 181,736 4.1%
NewYork . ...................... 6 2,364 4.9% 337,543 7.6%
MissisSIpPi. v v v vt e 12 2,326 4.8% 383,090 8.6%
Florida.............. .. .. ....... 15 2,275 4.7% 102,070 2.3%
Indiana . ........... ... ... ... ... 10 2,170 4.5% 183,391 4.1%
Hlinois . .. oo 6 2,127 4.4% 201,959 4.6%
Pennsylvania .................... 14 1,977 4.1% 125,441 2.8%
Alabama ......... .. .. .. .. 12 1,736 3.6% 100,753 2.3%
Michigan . . ...... ... .. ... ....... 5 1,501 3.1% 142,192 3.2%
Washington . .................... 3 1,432 3.0% 116,222 2.6%
Tennessee ... ... ... ... . ... . ... 5 1,249 2.6% 91,970 2.1%
Arkansas . ......... ... 7 1,182 2.5% 46,275 1.0%
Minnesota . ... ... 4 1,146 2.4% 92,535 2.1%
Missouri . ...... ... 5 960 2.0% 114,252 2.6%
NewMexico . ... ..o v i i it 3 916 1.9% 39,290 0.9%
California. .. ....... .. .. .. .. .. ... 1 815 1.7% 84,177 1.9%
NewJdersey . .................... 6 780 1.6% 26,740 0.6%
Arizona .. ... ... 2 672 1.4% 70,269 1.6%
Massachusetts. . . ... oo i 3 639 1.3% 142,639 3.2%
Iowa. . v 6 623 1.3% 118,838 2.7%
North Carolina . .................. 2 611 1.3% 131,643 3.0%
Other(1)......... i 42 4,465 9.3% 430,599 9.7%
Total .. ....... ... ... ... ... .. ... 235 48,034 100.0% 4438,591 100.0%

(1) Includes 15 states generating less than 1.25% of ABR.
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Lease Terms and Expirations

Our leases typically have initial lease terms of at least 10 years and contain two or more options for
the tenant to extend the lease term, most often for additional five-year periods. All of our tenants are subject
to net lease agreements. Under a triple-net lease, the tenant is generally responsible for materially all
property operating expenses, including property taxes, insurance, and property maintenance and repairs;
however as is common for triple-net leases, the landlord may be responsible for maintenance of the roof and
parking lot. Under a double-net lease, the tenant is generally responsible for materially all property
expenses, including property taxes and insurance, but excluding property maintenance and repairs. The
leases in our portfolio provide for an average 0.76% increase in ABR.

The leases in our portfolio have a WALT of 10.1 years, with no lease expiring prior to June 2023. The
following table illustrates contractual lease expirations within the Company’s portfolio assuming no exercise
of contractual extension options (dollars in thousands):

Number of ABR(1) Gross Leasable Area
Year Leases Dollars % of Total SquareFeet % of Total
2021 .. — — —% — —%
2022 . - — —% — —%
2023 .. 5 586 1.2% 86,156 1.9%
2024 .. 1 84 0.2% 27,000 0.6%
2025 .. 7 2,723 5.7% 339,197 7.6%
2026 ... 9 2,544 5.3% 336,797 7.6%
2027 11 3,124 6.5% 257,450 5.8%
2028 .. 25 3,776 7.9% 403,567 9.1%
2029 .. 24 3,582 7.5% 285,306 6.4%
2030 .. 30 7,045 14.7% 797,729 18.0%
2031 .. 39 6,322 13.2% 525,959 11.8%
2032 . 13 3,329 6.9% 617,989 13.9%
2033 .. 20 2,687 5.6% 210,289 4.7%
2034 ... 10 1,394 2.9% 40,900 0.9%
2035 24 7,904 16.5% 388,478 8.8%
Thereafter .. ...... ... ... ... ...... 17 2,934 6.1% 121,776 2.7%
Total ........ ... ... . ......... @ 48,034 100.0% 4,438,591 100.0%

(1) Certain figures in this table may not foot due to rounding.

Developments

During the fourth quarter of 2020, construction was completed on a build-to-suit project with rent
commencing in January 2021. Total cost of the project was $1.6 million.

During the second quarter of 2020, construction was completed on a build-to-suit project with rent
commencing in July 2020. Total cost of the project was $0.8 million.

Actual or
Anticipated
Land Lease Lease Rent
Tenant Acquired Location Structure Term Commencement Status
Circle K. . 1/14/2020 North Little Rock, AR  Build-to-Suit 20 years 7/1/2020 Complete
Circle K .. 4/3/2020 North Little Rock, AR Build-to-Suit 20 years 1/1/2021 Complete
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General Investment Criteria

Our current strategy targets a scaled portfolio that, over time, will (i) derive no more than (a) 5% of its
ABR from any single tenant or property, (b) 15% of its ABR from any single retail sector, (¢) 15% of its ABR
from any single state and (d) 50% of its ABR from its top 10 tenants, (ii) be primarily leased to tenants operating
in businesses we believe to be e-commerce resistant and resilient through all economic cycles, (iii) have
more than 60% of its tenants with an investment grade rating and (iv) have a WALT of greater than 10 years.
While we consider the foregoing when making investments, we may be opportunistic in managing our
business and make investments that do not meet one or more of these criteria if we believe the opportunity
presents an attractive risk-adjusted return. We intend to engage in future investment activities in a manner
that is consistent with the maintenance of our status as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes. In
addition, we may purchase assets for long-term investment, expand and improve the properties we presently
own or other acquired properties, or sell such properties, in whole or in part, when circumstances warrant.

Our Target Properties

We seek to acquire, own and manage a diversified portfolio of single-tenant, retail commercial real
estate subject to long-term net leases with high credit quality tenants across the United States. Our growth
and diversification strategy focuses on tenants in industries where a physical location is critical to the
generation of sales and profits, with a focus on necessity goods and essential services in the retail sector,
including home improvement, auto parts, drug stores and pharmacies, general retail, grocers, convenience
stores, discount stores, and quick-service restaurants. We believe these characteristics make our tenants’
businesses e-commerce resistant and resilient through all economic cycles. Our management team
focuses primarily on securing long-term leases with investment grade credit rated tenants and creditworthy
tenants without an investment grade rating. We generally target properties with a purchase price between
$1 million and $10 million, a segment of the market that we believe is undercapitalized and where we can
maintain a consistent pipeline of relatively small assets to acquire on attractive terms without the threat of
broad competition. We also selectively review larger properties with a purchase price in excess of
$10 million, which we typically lease to investment grade tenants like Walmart and Home Depot, when we
believe the acquisition will be accretive to the quality of our portfolio. The average purchase price of a property
in our portfolio is $3.1 million, and our leases typically have initial lease terms of at least 10 years and
contain two or more options for the tenant to extend the lease term, most often for additional five-year periods.

We seek to invest in properties that have strong unit-level economics to reduce the risk of default on a
particular property. We also seek to acquire commercially desirable properties by reviewing the underlying
key real estate metrics of each property, including location and demographics that will support both tenant
financial health, including market rents, and a market for alternative use, re-leasing or redevelopment,
when necessary, which we believe maximizes both investment residual value and recovery default value.

Investment Origination Process

Our current investment pipeline has been, and our investments going forward will be, identified by
our senior management team, led by Mr. Manheimer. Mr. Manheimer has been active in the single-tenant
net lease industry for more than 15 years. Mr. Manheimer’s extensive experience has allowed him to develop
a broad network of long-standing relationships with retailers, brokers, intermediaries, private equity firms
and others in the net lease industry, which we believe will provide us with an ongoing pipeline of both
marketed and off-market investment opportunities. In addition, we plan to leverage our developer relationships
to partner on build-to-suit opportunities with triple-net leases and desirable tenants. We believe our
developer partnerships on build-to-suit projects, which provide higher yields than acquisitions, will
differentiate us from our competitors without development expertise.

Underwriting

The Company assesses its investments and actively manages its existing portfolio using a three-part
underwriting and risk management strategy that includes assessing (i) tenant and guarantor credit, (ii) real
estate valuation and (iii) unit-level profitability. As it relates to tenant and guarantor credit, we review corporate
level financial information and assess business risks, including barriers to entry and technology risks. As
part of this analysis, we look for tenants that operate in industries where a physical location is critical to the
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generation of sales and profits, with a focus on necessity goods and essential services in the retail sector,
including home improvement, auto parts, drug stores and pharmacies, general retail, grocers, convenience
stores, discount stores, and quick-service restaurants. We believe these characteristics make our tenants’
businesses e-commerce resistant and resilient through all economic cycles. We then review the tenant’s
investment rating or establish a “shadow rating” using our proprietary credit modeling process for unrated
tenants. We assess the underlying real estate metrics of each property, including location and demographics
that will support both tenant financial health, including market rents, and a market for alternative use, re-
leasing or redevelopment, when necessary. We believe implementation of this underwriting and risk
management criteria will continue to build a portfolio that provides a strong, stable source of recurring cash
flows. Finally, we analyze and/ or estimate unit-level profitability and cost variability, to determine the
likelihood of each location sustainably operating as a profit center.

Tax Status

We elected to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes commencing with our short
taxable year ended December 31, 2019. We believe that, commencing with our short taxable year ended
December 31, 2019, we have been organized and have operated in conformity with the requirements for
qualification and taxation as a REIT under the Code, and that our organization and current and proposed
method of operations will enable us to continue to meet the requirements for qualification and taxation as a
REIT for our taxable year ending December 31, 2021 and subsequent taxable years. To qualify as a REIT,
we must meet a number of organizational and operational requirements, including a requirement that we
annually distribute at least 90% of our taxable income to our stockholders, computed without regard to the
dividends paid deduction and excluding our net capital gain, plus 90% of our net income after tax from
foreclosure property (if any), minus the sum of various items of excess non-cash income.

Regulation

General

Our properties are subject to various laws, ordinances and regulations, including those relating to fire
and safety requirements, and affirmative and negative covenants and, in some instances, common area
obligations. Our tenants have primary responsibility for compliance with these requirements pursuant to
our leases. We believe that each of our properties has the necessary permits and approvals.

Environmental and Related Matters

Federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations regulate, and impose liability for, releases
of hazardous or toxic substances into the environment. Under various of these laws and regulations, a current
or previous owner, operator or tenant of real estate may be required to investigate and clean up hazardous
or toxic substances, hazardous wastes or petroleum product releases or threats of releases at the property, and
may be held liable to a government entity or to third parties for property damage and for investigation,
clean-up and monitoring costs incurred by those parties in connection with the actual or threatened
contamination. These laws may impose clean-up responsibility and liability without regard to fault, or
whether or not the owner, operator or tenant knew of or caused the presence of the contamination. The liability
under these laws may be joint and several for the full amount of the investigation, clean-up and monitoring
costs incurred or to be incurred or actions to be undertaken, although a party held jointly and severally liable
may seek to obtain contributions from other identified, solvent, responsible parties of their fair share
toward these costs. These costs may be substantial, and can exceed the value of the property. In addition,
some environmental laws may create a lien on the contaminated site in favor of the government for damages
and costs it incurs in connection with the contamination. As the owner or operator of real estate, we also
may be liable under common law to third parties for damages and injuries resulting from environmental
contamination emanating from the real estate. The presence of contamination, or the failure to properly
remediate contamination, on a property may adversely affect the ability of the owner, operator or tenant to sell
or rent that property or to borrow using the property as collateral, and may adversely impact our investment
in that property.

Environmental laws regulate a variety of activities that can occur on a property, including the storage
of petroleum products or other hazardous or toxic substances, air emissions, water discharges and exposure
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to lead-based paint. Such laws may impose fines or penalties for violations, and may require permits or other
governmental approvals to be obtained for the operation of a business involving such activities. As a result
of the foregoing, we could be materially and adversely affected.

Environmental laws also govern the presence, maintenance and removal of asbestos-containing
materials (“ACM”) and impose various requirements, including operation and maintenance plans for the
presence of any suspect ACM. Significant fines can be assessed for violation of these regulations. As a result
of these regulations, building owners and those exercising control over a building’s management may be
subject to an increased risk of personal injury lawsuits by workers and others exposed to ACM. The regulations
may affect the value of a building containing ACM in which we have invested. Federal, state and local laws
and regulations also govern the removal, encapsulation, disturbance, handling and/or disposal of ACM when
those materials are in poor condition or in the event of construction, remodeling, renovation or demolition
of a building. These laws may impose liability for improper handling or a release into the environment of ACM
and may provide for fines to, and for third parties to seek recovery from, owners or operators of real properties
for personal injury or improper work exposure associated with ACM.

When excessive moisture accumulates in buildings or on building materials or moisture is otherwise
present, mold growth may occur, particularly if the moisture problem remains undiscovered or is not
addressed over a period of time. Some molds may be toxic and produce airborne toxins or irritants. Indoor
air quality issues can also stem from inadequate ventilation, chemical contamination from indoor or outdoor
sources, and other biological contaminants such as pollen, viruses and bacteria. Indoor exposure to
airborne toxins or irritants above certain levels can be alleged to cause a variety of adverse health effects
and symptoms, including allergic or other reactions. As a result, the presence of significant mold or other
airborne contaminants at any of our properties could require us to undertake a costly remediation program
to contain or remove the mold or other airborne contaminants from the affected property or increase indoor
ventilation. In addition, the presence of significant mold or other airborne contaminants could expose us
to liability from our tenants, employees of our tenants or others if property damage or personal injury occurs.

Generally, our leases require the lessee to comply with environmental law and provide that the lessee
will indemnify us for any loss or expense we incur as a result of lessee’s violation of environmental law or
the presence, use or release of hazardous materials on our property attributable to the lessee. If our lessees
do not comply with environmental law, or we are unable to enforce the indemnification obligations of our
lessees, our results of operations would be adversely affected.

We cannot predict what other environmental legislation or regulations will be enacted in the future,
how existing or future laws or regulations will be administered or interpreted or what environmental
conditions may be found to exist on the properties in the future. Compliance with existing and new laws and
regulations may require us or our tenants to spend funds to remedy environmental noncompliance or
investigate and cleanup contamination. If we or our tenants were to become subject to significant
environmental liabilities, we could be materially and adversely affected.

Americans with Disabilities Act and Similar Laws

Under Title ITI of the Americans with Disabilities Act (the “ADA”), and rules promulgated thereunder,
in order to protect individuals with disabilities, public accommodations must remove architectural and
communication barriers that are structural in nature from existing places of public accommodation to the
extent “readily achievable.” In addition, under the ADA, alterations to a place of public accommodation or a
commercial facility are to be made so that, to the maximum extent feasible, such altered portions are
readily accessible to and usable by disabled individuals. The “readily achievable” standard takes into account,
among other factors, the financial resources of the affected site and the owner, lessor or other applicable
person.

Compliance with the ADA, as well as other federal, state and local laws, may require modifications to
properties we currently own or may purchase, or may restrict renovations of those properties. Failure to
comply with these laws or regulations could result in the imposition of fines or an award of damages to private
litigants, as well as the incurrence of the costs of making modifications to attain compliance, and future
legislation could impose additional obligations or restrictions on our properties. Although our tenants are
generally responsible for all maintenance and repairs of the property pursuant to our leases, including
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compliance with the ADA and other similar laws or regulations, we could be held liable as the owner of the
property for a failure of one of our tenants to comply with these laws or regulations.

Insurance

Our tenants are generally required to maintain liability and property insurance coverage for the
properties they lease from us pursuant to triple or double-net leases. These leases generally require our
tenants to name us (and any of our lenders that have a mortgage on the property leased by the tenant) as
additional insureds on their liability policies and additional named insured and/or loss payee (or mortgagee,
in the case of our lenders) on their property policies. Depending on the location of the property, losses of a
catastrophic nature, such as those caused by earthquakes and floods, may be covered by insurance policies
that are held by our tenant with limitations such as large deductibles or co-payments that a tenant may
not be able to meet. In addition, losses of a catastrophic nature, such as those caused by wind, hail, hurricanes,
terrorism or acts of war, may be uninsurable or not economically insurable. In the event there is damage to
our properties that is not covered by insurance and such properties are subject to recourse indebtedness, we
will continue to be liable for the indebtedness, even if these properties are irreparably damaged.

In addition to being a named insured on our tenants’ liability policies, we separately maintain
commercial general liability coverage. We also maintain full property coverage on all untenanted properties
and other property coverage as may be required by our lenders, which are not required to be carried by our
tenants under our leases.

Competition

We face competition for acquisitions of real property from investors, including traded and non-traded
public REITs, private equity investors and institutional investment funds, some of which have greater
financial resources than we do, a greater ability to borrow funds to acquire properties and the ability to accept
more risk. We also believe that competition for real estate financing comes from middle-market business
owners themselves, many of whom have had a historic preference to own, rather than lease, the real estate they
use in their businesses. This competition may increase the demand for the types of properties in which we
typically invest and, therefore, reduce the number of suitable investment opportunities available to us and
increase the prices paid for such acquisition properties. This competition will increase if investments in real
estate become more attractive relative to other forms of investment.

As alandlord, we compete in the multi-billion dollar commercial real estate market with numerous
developers and owners of properties, many of which own properties similar to ours in the same markets in
which our properties are located. Some of our competitors have greater economies of scale, lower costs of
capital, access to more resources and greater name recognition than we do. If our competitors offer space at
rental rates below current market rates or below the rental rates we currently charge our tenants, we may
lose our tenants or prospective tenants and we may be pressured to reduce our rental rates or to offer
substantial rent abatements, tenant improvement allowances, early termination rights or below-market
renewal options in order to retain tenants when our leases expire.

Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we may be party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise
in the ordinary course of our business. We are not currently subject to any lawsuits, claims or other legal
proceedings.

Employees

As of March 31, 2021, we have 19 full-time employees. Our staff is mostly comprised of professional
employees engaged in origination, underwriting, closing, financial reporting, portfolio management and
capital markets activities essential to our business. In addition, Company leadership has allowed our
employees the ability to work remotely until further notice due to COVID-19 and maintains key relationships
with third-party professional service firms that could assist and supplement our current workforce if the
need arises.
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MANAGEMENT

Executive Officers, Key Employees and Directors

Our board of directors currently consists of seven directors. Our board of directors has determined
that five of our seven directors are “independent” in accordance with the listing standards established by the
NYSE.

Set forth below are the names, ages and positions of our executive officers, key employees and
directors as of March 31, 2021. Our directors have been elected to serve a term ending at our annual
meeting of stockholders to be held in 2021.

Name Age Position with the Company

Mark Manheimer ......... Z President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Andrew Blocher. ... ....... 56  Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary
JeffFuge ................ 38  Senior Vice President, Acquisitions

Randy Haugh ............ 43 Senior Vice President, Finance
KirkKlatt................ 44  Senior Vice President, Real Estate

Patricia McBratney . ....... 46  Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer
Chad Shafer.............. 45  Senior Vice President, Credit and Underwriting
Todd Minnis ............. 50  Chair of the Board

Michael Christodolou. .. ... 59  Director

Heidi Everett............. 43 Director

Matthew Troxell .......... 63  Lead Independent Director

Lori Wittman. ............ 62  Director

Robin Zeigler............. 48  Director

Executive Officers

Mark Manheimer has served as our President, Chief Executive Officer and a director since
October 2019. Prior to that, Mr. Manheimer served as Chief Investment Officer of EB Arrow and
Fund Manager of EB Arrow’s Single-Tenant Net-Lease Group from February 2018 to October 2019. From
April 2012 through September 2016, Mr. Manheimer was Executive Vice President—Head of Asset
Management of Spirit (NYSE: SRC), a REIT that invests primarily in single-tenant net-leased real estate.
Mr. Manheimer was a member of Spirit’s Investment Committee and Executive Committee. Prior to Spirit,
Mr. Manheimer was the Head of Sale-Leaseback Acquisitions at Cole, a real estate investment services
company, from October 2009 to April 2012. Mr. Manheimer previously worked at Realty Income Corporation
(NYSE: O), a REIT that invests in free-standing, single-tenant commercial properties that are subject to triple-
net leases, underwriting net lease real estate transactions, at Patriarch Partners, a private investment firm,
investing and managing distressed debt and equity investments, and at First Union Securities, a financial
services firm, in their Leveraged Finance department. Mr. Manheimer holds a B.S. in Finance from the
University of Florida and an M.B.A. from the University of Notre Dame. Mr. Manheimer’s industry experience,
leadership abilities and strategic insight make him a valued member of the board of directors.

Andrew Blocher has served as our Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary since January 2020.
Mr. Blocher founded APBlocher Executive Consulting in October 2017 and served as a principal for that
company until January 2019. Prior to that, Mr. Blocher served as Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer at First Potomac Realty Trust (NYSE: FPO), a REIT that invested in industrial properties,
business parks and office properties, from September 2012 to October 2017, when it was acquired by
Government Properties Income Trust (Nasdag: GOV). Mr. Blocher previously served in a variety of roles at
Federal Realty Investment Trust (NYSE: FRT), most recently Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer. Mr. Blocher holds a B.S. in Finance from Indiana University’s Kelley School of Business and
an M.B.A. from The George Washington University.
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Key Employees

Jeff Fuge has served as our Senior Vice President, Acquisitions since December 2019. Prior to that,
Mr. Fuge served as Director of Capital Markets at EB Arrow from September 2018 to December 2019. From
July 2015 to August 2018, Mr. Fuge served as Senior Vice President at Compass Point Research & Trading,
LLC, an investment bank focused on financial services, real estate and related industries. From
September 2010 to July 2015, Mr. Fuge served as Client Relations Director at Aegis Financial. Mr. Fuge
holds a B.A. in History and minor in Business Administration from the College of Charleston and an M.B.A.
from The George Washington University.

Randy Haugh has served as our Senior Vice President, Finance since February 2020. Mr. Haugh most
recently served in the U.S. Real Estate fund management group at The Carlyle Group (Nasdag: CG), a private
equity, alternative asset management and financial services corporation, from January 2018 to February 2020.
Prior to that, Mr. Haugh served as Vice President of Finance from July 2015 to October 2017 and Director
of Finance from 2013 to July 2015 at First Potomac Realty Trust, a REIT that invested in industrial properties,
business parks and office properties. Mr. Haugh holds a B.S. in Economics and a Certificate of Accounting
from University of Virginia.

Kirk Klatt has served as our Senior Vice President, Real Estate since December 2019. Prior to that,
Mr. Klatt served as Chief Acquisitions Officer, Single-Tenant Net-Lease Group of EB Arrow from July 2010
to December 2019. From 2008 to 2010, Mr. Klatt served as Development Services Manager for Duke Realty
Corporation (NYSE: DRE), an industrial logistics property REIT. Prior to his work with Duke, Mr. Klatt
managed large-scale public and private site development projects as a licensed professional engineer.
Mr. Klatt holds a B.S. in Civil Engineering from Texas Tech University and an M.B.A. from the University of
Texas at Dallas. Mr. Klatt is also a licensed real estate salesperson in the State of Texas.

Patricia McBratney has served as our Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer since
May 2020. Prior to that, Ms. McBratney served as Chief Accounting Officer of American Bath Group, a
manufacturer of bathing products, from July 2017 to May 2020. From May 2015 to June 2017, Ms. McBratney
served as Chief Accounting and Administrative Officer of Mill Creek Residential Trust LLC, a real estate
developer. From 2013 to March 2015, Ms. McBratney served as Vice President and Controller of CyrusOne,
a REIT. Ms. McBratney started her career at Deloitte & Touche LLP. Ms. McBratney holds a B.S. in Accounting
from Oklahoma State University. Ms. McBratney is also a Certified Public Accountant.

Chad Shafer has served as our Senior Vice President, Credit and Underwriting since May 2020. Prior
to that, Mr. Shafer served in various roles at JPMorgan Chase & Co,, a financial services firm (“JPM”), from
1998 to May 2020, including most recently as the Executive Director—Wholesale Credit Risk from
November 2019 to May 2020. Mr. Shafer’s prior positions at JPM include Executive Director—Head of Real
Estate Banking Portfolio Management (November 2017 to November 2019), Executive Director—Head of Key
Relationship Group—Credit Risk (May 2016 to November 2017), Executive Director—Credit Risk—
Commercial Term Lending (2014 to May 2016), Vice President—Credit Manager (2010 to 2014), Vice
President—Global Non—Profit Healthcare Underwriter (2009 to 2010), Vice President CMBS (2004 to 2008),
Associate—REIT Investment Banking Coverage (2003 to 2004), Commercial Real Estate Underwriter
(2000 to 2003) and Credit Analyst/Sr. Credit Analyst (1998 to 2000). Mr. Shafer holds a B.S. in Finance from
Butler University.

Directors

Todd Minnis has served as a director since October 2019. Mr. Minnis founded EB Arrow, a real estate
investment platform specializing in retail property investment in 2009 as its Managing Partner and has
served as its Chief Executive Officer since May 2009. Prior to EB Arrow, Mr. Minnis served as the Managing
Director of Cypress Equities, the development subsidiary of The Staubach Company, from March 2003 to
January 2009 and worked at The Staubach Company from 1992 to 2003. Mr. Minnis holds a B.S. in Economics
and a B.A. in Foreign Languages from Southern Methodist University and an M.B.A. from the University of
Texas at Austin McCombs School of Business. Mr. Minnis’ leadership, executive and business experience,
along with his 25 years of experience in the commercial real estate investment industry make him a
valued member of the board of directors.
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Michael Christodolou has served as a director since August 2020. Mr. Christodolou is the Manager of
Inwood Capital Management LLC, an investment management firm he founded in 2000. From 1988 to 1999,
Mr. Christodolou was employed by Bass Brothers/Taylor & Company, an investment firm. Mr. Christodolou
has served as a director of Lindsay Corporation (NYSE: LNN), a manufacturer of agricultural irrigation and
transportation infrastructure products, since 1999 and served as Chair of the Board of Lindsay Corporation
from 2003 to January 2015. He currently serves as a member of Lindsay Corporation’s Audit Committee and
Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee. From 2016 until it was acquired in December 2017,

Mr. Christodolou served on the Board of Directors of Omega Protein Corporation, a nutritional products
company. From 2015 to 2016, Mr. Christodolou served on the Board of Directors of Farmland Partners, Inc.
(NYSE: FPI), a REIT that acquires and owns high-quality North American farmland. Mr. Christodolou also
previously served on the Board of Directors of XTRA Corporation from 1998 until 2001 when it was
acquired by Berkshire Hathaway Inc. Mr. Christodolou received an M.B.A. and a B.S. in Economics from the
Wharton School. Mr. Christodolou’s knowledge of the investment and capital markets and his experience as a
director of public companies make him a valued member of the board of directors.

Heidi Everett has served as a director since August 2020. Ms. Everett is the President and Chief
Executive Officer of Star Cypress Partners, LLC, a management consulting company that she founded in
2012. Previously, Ms. Everett was Vice President of The Wentworth Group, a private equity firm, and a Board
Director for the Stafford Family Foundation. Prior to that, Ms. Everett was Lead Associate at Booz Allen
Hamilton, an information technology consulting firm, within the Strategy & Organization Team from 2004
to 2011. Ms. Everett received an M.B.A. in Strategy and Operations from Georgetown University—The
McDonough School of Business and a B.S. in Biology from Duke University. Ms. Everett’s broad consulting
experience, in particular in strategy and organizational development, change management and workforce
development, gives her a unique perspective that makes her a valued member of the board of directors.

Matthew Troxell, CFA®, has served as a director since December 2019. Mr. Troxell joined AEW
Capital Management, LP (“AEW”), a real estate investment manager, as the first member of AEW’s Real
Estate Securities Group in September 1994. Prior to his retirement in December 2019, he served as a
Managing Director and Senior Portfolio Manager of AEW, and was also a member of the firm’s Management
Committee and Risk Management Committee. As Head of the Securities Group, he was responsible for all
of AEW’s domestic and global REIT portfolios, managing a team with offices in Boston, London and Singapore.
Prior to joining AEW, Mr. Troxell was a Vice President and Assistant to the President of Landmark Land
Company, a real estate management company, from 1984 to 1992. From 1980 to 1984, he was an equity
securities analyst at A.G. Becker Paribas. Mr. Troxell received his B.A. in Economics from Tufts University and
is a CFA charterholder. Mr. Troxell’s REIT investment experience and strategic insight make him a valued
member of the board of directors.

Lori Wittman has served as a director since December 2019. Ms. Wittman has served as an advisor to
Big Rock Partners Acquisition Corp. (“Big Rock”), a blank check company, since February 2020. From
September 2017 to February 2020, Ms. Wittman served as Chief Financial Officer and a member of the Board
of Directors of Big Rock. From August 2015 to August 2017, Ms. Wittman was the Chief Financial Officer
of Care Capital Properties, Inc. (NYSE: CCP), a public healthcare REIT with a diversified portfolio of triple-
net leased properties, which merged with Sabra Healthcare REIT, Inc. in 2017. Previously, Ms. Wittman was
Senior Vice President of Capital Markets and Investor Relations at Ventas, Inc., a REIT focused on the
healthcare sector from 2011 to August 2015. Prior to her time at Ventas, Ms. Wittman served in a number of
finance, accounting and capital markets-related roles at various companies, including General Growth
Properties, Big Rock Partners, LLC and Heitman Financial. Ms. Wittman has been a director of IMH Financial
Corporation (“IMH”), a real estate investment and finance company, since July 2014, and currently serves
as Chair of the Compensation Committee and as a member of the Audit Committee of IMH. Ms. Wittman has
also served as a director of Global Medical REIT Inc. (NYSE: GMRE), a REIT engaged primarily in the
acquisition of healthcare facilities, since May 2018, and currently serves as Chair of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Compensation Committee of GMRE. Ms. Wittman also serves as a director of Freehold
Properties, a real estate investment company, and currently serves as the Chair of the Audit Committee.
Ms. Wittman received an M.B.A,, Finance and Accounting from the University of Chicago, an M.C.P, Housing
and Real Estate Finance from the University of Pennsylvania and a B.A. from Clark University. Ms. Wittman’s
thorough knowledge of finance, accounting, capital markets, taxes, control systems and her experience
with REITs make her a valued member of the board of directors.
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Robin Zeigler has served as a director since July 2020. Ms. Zeigler has served as Chief Operating
Officer, Executive Vice President of Cedar Realty Investment Trust (NYSE: CDR), an equity REIT, since
March 2016. From January 2015 to March 2016, Ms. Zeigler served as Executive Vice President—Head of
Operations of Penzance, a commercial real estate investment company. Prior to that, Ms. Zeigler served as
Chief Operating Officer, Mid Atlantic Region of Federal Realty Investment Trust (NYSE: FRT), an equity REIT,
from 2004 to January 2015. Earlier in her career, Ms. Zeigler served in various roles at KeyBank Real Estate
Capital, Lendlease Real Estate Investments and Ernst & Young LLP. Ms. Zeigler received an M.B.A. in Real
Estate from Georgia State University and a B.S. in Accounting from Florida A&M University. Ms. Zeigler’s
real estate investment experience and public company experience make her a valued member of the board of
directors.

Corporate Governance Highlights

The following is a summary of our corporate governance highlights:

Each member of our board of directors is elected annually and we may not elect to classify our
board of directors pursuant to Subtitle 8 of Title 3 of the MGCL without stockholder approval.

Five of our seven directors meet the independence requirements of the NYSE.
- Each committee of our board of directors is comprised entirely of independent directors.
We have a separate Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer.
We have a Lead Independent Director.
43% of our board of directors are women.
Our directors are elected by a majority of the votes cast in uncontested elections.

- We have opted out of the Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act of the MGCL, and we may not opt
in to the provisions of the Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act without the approval of our
stockholders.

We have exempted any business combination between us and any person from the Maryland
Business Combination Act of the MGCL, and we may not opt in to the provisions of the Maryland
Business Combination Act without the approval of our stockholders.

Our bylaws may be amended by the vote of stockholders entitled to cast at least a majority of the
votes entitled to be cast upon at a duly organized meeting of stockholders.

Board of Directors

Pursuant to our charter and bylaws, the number of our directors may not be fewer than the minimum
number required by Maryland law, which is one, and may not be greater than fifteen, and will generally be
determined from time-to-time by resolution of the board of directors. Our board of directors currently consists
of seven persons.

Our board of directors has determined that Michael Christodolou, Heidi Everett, Matthew Troxell, Lori
Wittman and Robin Zeigler meet the independence standards of the NYSE. Our board of directors believes
its members collectively have the experience, qualifications, attributes and skills to effectively oversee the
management of our company, including a high degree of personal and professional integrity, an ability to
exercise sound business judgment on a broad range of issues, sufficient experience and background to have
an appreciation of the issues facing our company, a willingness to devote the necessary time to board of
directors duties, a commitment to representing the best interests of our company and our stockholders and
a dedication to enhancing stockholder value.

Role of Our Board of Directors in Risk Oversight

One of the key functions of our board of directors is informed oversight of our risk management
process. Our board of directors administers this oversight function directly, with support from its four
standing committees, the Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee, the Nominating and Corporate
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Governance Committee and the Investment Committee, each of which addresses risks specific to its
respective areas of oversight. In particular, as more fully described below, our Audit Committee has the
responsibility to consider and discuss our major financial risk exposures and the steps our management has
taken to monitor and control these exposures, including guidelines and policies to govern the process by
which risk assessment and management is undertaken. The Audit Committee also monitors compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, in addition to oversight of the performance of our internal audit function.
Our Compensation Committee assesses and monitors whether any of our compensation policies and
programs has the potential to encourage excessive risk-taking. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee provides oversight with respect to corporate governance and ethical conduct and monitors the
effectiveness of our corporate governance guidelines, including whether such guidelines are successful in
preventing illegal or improper liability-creating conduct. Our Investment Committee provides oversight
with respect to the Company’s investments.

Committees of the Board of Directors

Our board of directors has four committees: the Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee, the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and the Investment Committee, each of which meets
the NYSE independence standards and other governance requirements for such a committee. The principal
functions of each committee are briefly described below. Additionally, our board of directors may from
time to time establish other committees to facilitate the board of directors’ oversight of management of the
business and affairs of our company. The charters of the Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee and
the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee are available on our website at www.NETSTREIT.com.
The information on, or otherwise accessible through, our website does not constitute a part of this
prospectus.

Audit Committee. The Audit Committee charter defines the Audit Committee’s principal functions,
including oversight related to:

« the integrity of our financial statements and financial reporting process;

- the evaluation of the qualifications, independence and performance of our independent registered
public accounting firm;

. our accounting and financial reporting processes;

+ our systems of disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting;
+ the performance of our internal audit functions;

- our compliance with financial, legal and regulatory requirements; and

+ our overall risk exposure and management.

The audit committee is also responsible for appointing, compensating, retaining and overseeing an
independent registered public accounting firm, reviewing with the independent registered public accounting
firm the plans for and results of the audit engagement, approving services that may be provided by the
independent registered public accounting firm, including audit and non-audit services, reviewing the
independence of the independent registered public accounting firm, considering the range of audit and
non-audit fees and reviewing the adequacy of our internal accounting controls. The audit committee also will
prepare the audit committee report required by SEC regulations to be included in our annual report.

Our Audit Committee consists of three members, Lori Wittman, Matthew Troxell and Michael
Christodolou, with Lori Wittman serving as chairperson. Our board of directors has affirmatively determined
that all directors serving on the Audit Committee meet the definition of “independent director” based on
the standards of the NYSE, and satisfy the independence requirements of Rule 10A-3 of the Exchange Act.
Our board of directors has also determined that (i) each member of the Audit Committee qualifies as an “audit
committee financial expert” under SEC rules and regulations and (ii) each member of the Audit Committee
is “financially literate” as the term is defined by NYSE listing standards.

Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee charter defines the Compensation
Committee’s principal functions, including oversight related to:
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+ annually review and approve our corporate goals and objectives with respect to compensation for
our Chief Executive Officer and, at least annually, evaluating the Chief Executive Officer’s
performance in light of those goals and objectives to set his or her annual compensation, including
salary, bonus, fees, benefits, incentive awards and perquisites;

- review and approve compensation of other executive officers, including salaries, bonuses, fees,
benefits, incentive awards and perquisites;

. review and approve new incentive compensation plans and equity-based plans and amendments to
any existing plans;

- assist the board of directors in developing and evaluating potential candidates for executive officer
positions and overseeing the development of executive succession plans;

- review and discuss with management our compensation discussion and analysis required by SEC
regulations and recommending to the board of directors that such compensation discussion and
analysis be included in our annual report; and

. prepare the compensation committee report to be included in our annual report.

The Compensation Committee has the authority, in its sole discretion, to retain or obtain the advice of
a compensation consultant, legal counsel or other adviser as it deems appropriate. Our Compensation
Committee consists of three members, Matthew Troxell, Heidi Everett and Robin Zeigler, with Matthew
Troxell serving as chair. Our board of directors has affirmatively determined that all directors who serve on
the Compensation Committee are independent under applicable NYSE rules and that each member of our
Compensation Committee meets the definition of a “non-employee trustee” for the purposes of serving on
our Compensation Committee under the Exchange Act.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. The Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee charter defines the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee’s principal functions,
including oversight related to:

- identifying and recommending candidates to fill vacancies on the board of directors and for
election by the stockholders;

- recommending committee assignments for members to the board of directors;

- facilitating the board of directors’ annual evaluation of the performance of the board of directors, its
committees and individual directors; and

. developing and recommending to the board of directors appropriate corporate governance policies,
practices and procedures for our company.

Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee currently consists of, Robin Zeigler, Heidi
Everett and Lori Wittman, with Robin Zeigler serving as chairperson. Our board of directors has affirmatively
determined that all directors who serve on the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee are
independent under NYSE listing standards.

Investment Committee. The Investment Committee charter defines the Investment Committee’s
principal functions, including oversight related to:

- reviewing and approving transactions resulting in (i) an acquisition involving an investment by the
Company in a single property, either directly or indirectly, in an amount equal to or greater than
$25 million; (ii) an acquisition involving an investment by the Company in a portfolio of properties,
either directly or indirectly, where the investment in property leased to a single tenant or credit is
an amount equal or greater than $25 million; (iii) an acquisition of property or assets from a “related
person” (as defined in the Company’s Related Party Transactions Policies and Procedures); or
(iv) a disposition of property in a transaction or series of related transactions involving an amount
equal to or greater than $15 million;

- reviewing and approving, on an annual basis, a budget for capital expenditures for the succeeding
fiscal year; and
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- at least annually, reviewing and evaluating the investment performance of the Company’s portfolio
with management.

Our Investment Committee currently consists of three members, Matthew Troxell, Michael
Christodolou and Robin Zeigler, with Matthew Troxell serving as chair. Our board of directors has
affirmatively determined that all directors who serve on the Investment Committee are independent under
NYSE listing standards.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted a code of business conduct and ethics that seeks to identify and mitigate conflicts of
interest between our employees, directors and officers, including with respect to corporate opportunities.
However, we cannot assure you that these policies or provisions of law will always be successful in eliminating
or minimizing the influence of such conflicts, and if they are not successful, decisions could be made that
might fail to reflect fully the interests of our stockholders. Among other matters, our code of business conduct
and ethics will be designed to deter wrongdoing and to promote:

+ honest and ethical conduect, including the ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of interest
between personal and professional relationships;

- full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable disclosure in our SEC reports and other public
communications;

- compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations;
- prompt internal reporting of violations of the code to appropriate persons identified in the code;
+ accountability for adherence to the code of business conduct and ethics;

+ the protection of the Company’s legitimate business interests, including its assets and corporate
opportunities; and

. confidentiality of information entrusted to directors, officers and employees by the Company and its
tenants.

Any waiver of the code of business conduct and ethics for our directors or executive officers must be
approved by a majority of our independent directors, and any such waiver shall be promptly disclosed as
required by law and NYSE regulations.

Limitations on Liabilities and Indemnification of Directors and Officers

To the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law in effect from time to time, our charter obligates
us to indemnify any individual who is made or threatened to be made a party to, or witness in, a proceeding
by reason of his or her service:

- as a present or former director or officer; or

+ while a director or officer and at our request, as a director, officer, partner, manager, member or
trustee of another corporation, REIT, partnership, joint venture, trust, limited liability company,
employee benefit plan or other enterprise

in each case, from and against any claim or liability to which he or she may become subject or that he or she
may incur by reason of his or her service in any of these capacities. Our charter requires us, without
requiring a preliminary determination of such individual’s ultimate entitlement to indemnification, to pay or
reimburse any such individual’s reasonable expenses in advance of final disposition of a proceeding.

We have entered into indemnification agreements with each of our directors and executive officers that
provide for indemnification and advance of expenses to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

None of our executive officers serves, or in the past has served, as a member of the board of directors
or compensation committee, or other committee serving an equivalent function, of any entity that has one
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or more executive officers who serve as members of our board of directors or our Compensation Committee.
None of the members of our Compensation Committee is, or has ever been, an officer or employee of the
Company.

Employment Agreements

We have entered into employment agreements with each of Mark Manheimer, our President and Chief
Executive Officer, and Andrew Blocher, our Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary. See “Executive
Compensation—Employment Agreements.

Director Compensation

2020 Director Compensation

The following table presents information regarding the compensation earned or paid during fiscal
year 2020 to our non-employee directors who served on the board of directors during the year. Directors
who are employees of us or any of our subsidiaries do not receive any compensation for their services as
directors.

Fees Earned or All Other
Paid in Cash  Stock Awards Compensation  Total

Name(1) () A € €

Todd Minnis . .................... 100,000 — 100,000
Matthew Troxell . ... ... ... ... ... ... 84,307 — — 84,307
LoriWittman .. ................... 87,778 — — 87,778
RobinZeigler . . ................... 39,389 37,486 — 76,875
HeidiEverett .. ................... 27,921 28,134 — 56,055
Michael Christodolou .. ............. 27,921 28,134 — 56,055
DavidBusker .. ....... ... ... .. .... 47,079 — — 47,079
Murtaza AL ... ... ... 36,365 74,991 — 111,356

(1) Mr. Ali and Ms. Zeigler were elected to the board of directors on February 21, 2020 and July 10, 2020,
respectively. On August 17, 2020, in connection with the closing of our initial public offering, Messrs.
Busker and Ali resigned from the board of directors, effective immediately, and the board of directors
elected Ms. Everett and Mr. Christodolou to serve as directors and fill the vacancies on the board created
by such resignations.

(2) The amounts reported in this column include cash retainers and other fees earned for service as
directors in 2020, prior to and following the closing of our initial public offering (as described in more
detail below under “— Director Compensation Program”). The cash fees reported in this column for
Messrs. Busker and Ali were paid to Tilden Park Capital Management LP and Davidson Kempner
Hawthorne Partners LLC, respectively, in respect of each applicable director’s service on the board of
directors.

(3) The amounts reported in this column represent for each non-employee director, the grant date fair
value of the annual restricted stock unit (“RSU”) awards granted to our non-employee directors in 2020
(as summarized below under the heading, “2020 Restricted Stock Unit Grants”). The grant date fair
value of each award was calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. For a discussion of the
assumptions and methodologies used in calculating the grant date fair value of the RSU awards, please
see Note 10 to our audited consolidated financial statements included herein. The RSUs reported in
this column for Mr. Ali were issued to Davidson Kempner Hawthorne Partners LLC in respect of Mr. Ali’s
service as a director. As of December 31, 2020, each non-employee director held the following
outstanding equity awards (other than Messrs. Busker and Ali, who ceased serving as directors prior to
that date and forfeited any unvested awards): (i) Mr. Minnis—3,375 unvested RSUs; (i) Mr. Troxell—
2.531 unvested RSUs; (iii) Ms. Wittman—2,531 unvested RSUs; (iv) Ms. Zeigler—1,898 unvested RSUs;
(v) Ms. Everett—1,563 unvested RSUs; and (vi) Mr. Christodolou—1,563 unvested RSUs.
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Director Compensation Program

Our board of directors has established a compensation program for our non-employee directors.
Effective upon the closing of our private offering and through the closing of our initial public offering, our non-
employee directors received the following compensation:

+ Annual Cash Retainer: $75,000 annually, payable in quarterly installments in arrears (and prorated
for partial service).

Chair Fees: Mr. Minnis received an additional $25,000 annual cash retainer in 2020 for his service
as Chair of the board of directors. In addition, effective May 12, 2020, Ms. Wittman began receiving an
Audit Committee Chair fee ($5,000 per quarter; prorated for the second quarter of 2020) in respect
of the services she performed for the Company and the board of directors in advance of the initial
public offering.

Equity Awards: Annual award of RSUs with a value at grant of approximately $75,000, vesting
ratably over three years (with the Chair of the board of directors receiving an additional award of
RSUs with a value at grant of approximately $25,000), subject to continued service as a director
through each vesting date. The non-employee directors who were in service on the board of directors
on the closing date of our private offering received their annual RSU awards at that time (and
received no awards in 2020). Any directors who began serving on the board of directors following
the closing of our private offering (either prior to or at the closing of the initial public offering)
received prorated RSU grants at the time that they commenced providing services as directors.

Effective upon the closing of our initial public offering, the board of directors established a non-
employee director compensation program with the following components:

- Annual Cash Retainer: $75,000 annually, payable in quarterly installments in arrears (and prorated
for partial service).

« Chair Fees: Mr. Minnis continues to receive an additional $25,000 annual cash retainer for his
service as Chair of the board of directors. Also, the Chairs of the Audit Committee, the Compensation
Committee, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and the Investment Committee
receive an additional annual cash retainer of $20,000, $15,000, $10,000 and $10,000, respectively.

Equity Awards: Annual award of RSUs with a value at grant of approximately $75,000, vesting on
the first anniversary of the grant date, generally subject to continued service as a director through the
vesting date. Effective with our initial public offering, the Chair of the board of directors receives

the same annual RSU award as other non-employee directors (i.e., the Chair no longer receives an
additional annual award of RSUs with a value of $25,000 at grant).

We also reimburse our directors for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the
performance of their duties as directors, including without limitation travel expenses in connection with
their attendance in-person at board of directors and committee meetings.

2020 Restricted Stock Unit Grants

In 2020, our non-employee directors received awards of RSUs prior to and at the time of completion of
our initial public offering, as summarized below:

In connection with their commencement of service as directors prior to the completion of our initial
public offering, Mr. Ali received 3,797 RSUs on February 21, 2020 (which he forfeited in connection
with his resignation, as noted above) and Ms. Zeigler received 1,898 RSUs on July 10, 2020, in each
case, vesting in approximately equal installments on each of the first three anniversaries of the
grant date and generally subject to continued service as a director through each applicable vesting
date.

- On the date of completion of our initial public offering and commensurate with their commencement
of service as directors, Ms. Everett and Mr. Christodolou each received 1,563 RSUs vesting in
approximately equal installments on each of the first three anniversaries of August 17, 2020,
generally subject to continued service as a director through each applicable vesting date.

Messrs. Busker, Minnis and Troxell and Ms. Wittman did not receive RSU awards in 2020.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following provides compensation information for fiscal years 2020 and 2019 pursuant to the
scaled disclosure rules applicable to emerging growth companies under SEC rules and the JOBS Act with
respect to (i) Mark Manheimer, our President and Chief Executive Officer, and (ii) Andrew Blocher, our Chief
Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary, and our only other executive officer serving in fiscal year 2020
(collectively, our “named executive officers”).

Summary Compensation Table

The following Summary Compensation Table discloses compensation information for fiscal years
2020 and 2019 with respect to our named executive officers. Certain other information is provided in the
narrative sections following the Summary Compensation Table.

Stock All Other
Salary  Bonus Awards Compensation Total
Name and Principal Position Year (%) (€]¢H) ($)(2) (6] (%)
Mark Manheimer. . ... ... ..... 2020 550,000 687,500 549,990 11,400 1,798,890
President and Chief Executive 2019 16,042 — 3,000,005 _ 3,016,047
Officer
Andrew Blocher(4). ........... 2020 346,023 437,500 2,049,983 9,917 2,843,423

Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Secretary

(1) The amounts reported in this column represent discretionary bonuses paid with respect to 2020.
Fifty percent (50%) of the amounts reported in this column for 2020 were paid in the form of RSUs
pursuant to the Alignment of Interest Program described below.

(2) The amounts reported in this column for 2020 represent the grant date fair value of time-vested RSU
awards granted to our named executive officers, calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. For
a discussion of the assumptions and methodologies used in calculating the grant date fair value of
the RSU awards, please see Note 10 to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2020 included herein.

(38) The amounts reported in this column for 2020 represent employer matching contributions under the
Company’s 401 (k) plan made to each named executive officer.

(4) Mr. Blocher commenced employment as Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary on January 6,
2020. Mr. Blocher was not a named executive officer in 2019 and thus, only 2020 compensation
information is shown for him in this table.

Narrative to Summary Compensation Table

Base Salary

Base salaries are intended to provide a level of compensation sufficient to attract and retain an
effective management team, when considered in combination with the other components of our executive
compensation program. The base salaries paid to our named executive are set forth below:

2020 Base Salary Rate ($) 2021 Base Salary Rate ($)

Name (Effective January 1, 2020) (Effective January 1, 2021)
Mark Manheimer. . . . ... .. ... .. .. ... 550,000 600,000
Andrew Blocher(1). .. ............. ... 350,000 375,000

(1) Mr. Blocher’s 2020 base salary rate was effective on January 6, 2020, his employment start date.
Discretionary Annual Cash Incentive

Each of our named executive officers was eligible to receive a discretionary cash bonus with respect to
2020 as determined by the Compensation Committee, based on a target opportunity equal to 100% of base
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salary. Given the success of our initial public offering in 2020, the Compensation Committee determined to
pay each of Messrs. Manheimer and Blocher 2020 cash bonuses at 125% of target, i.e., $687,500 for

Mr. Manheimer and $437,500 for Mr. Blocher. As noted below under the heading, “Outstanding Equity
Awards at 2020 Fiscal Year-End—Alignment of Interest Program,” each of Messrs. Manheimer and Blocher
elected to receive RSUs in lieu of 50% of their 2020 annual cash bonuses.

Employee Benefit and Retirement Programs

In 2020, we did not maintain a qualified defined benefit plan or nonqualified deferred compensation
plan for our named executive officers or other employees. We maintain a health and welfare plan and a
qualified defined contribution 401(k) plan in which all of our eligible employees, including our named
executive officers, may participate. The Company will match 100% of up to the first 3% and 50% for the next
2% of a participant’s deferral per year under the 401(k) plan. Eligible employees are 100% vested in their
401(k) plan accounts.

Employment Agreements

We have entered into employment agreements with Messrs. Manheimer and Blocher. There is no
specified term under either employment agreement and each executive’s employment thereunder constitutes
“at will” employment.

Each employment agreement provides for, among other things: (i) an annual base salary of $550,000
for Mr. Manheimer and $350,000 for Mr. Blocher, (ii) an annual cash incentive bonus with a target bonus
opportunity of 100% of annual base salary, with the actual amount earned ranging from 0% to 200% of target
based on actual achievement against performance metrics to be established by the Compensation
Committee, (iii) eligibility to receive annual long-term incentive compensation awards in form, including
vesting restrictions, and amount determined in the sole discretion of the Compensation Committee and the
board of directors and (iv) participation in the Company’s employee benefit and welfare plans.

Upon a termination of Mr. Manheimer’s or Mr. Blocher’s employment by the Company without “cause”
subject to a general release of claims in favor of the Company, the executive is entitled to: (i) severance equal
to two times the executive’s base salary, (ii) a prorated annual incentive bonus for the year of termination
based on actual performance, (iii) reimbursement of up to 18 months of COBRA premiums and (iv) full
acceleration of time-based equity awards and pro-rated vesting of performance-based equity awards based on
actual performance. Mr. Blocher is also entitled to receive the foregoing severance benefits in the event of
his resignation from employment in the event that the Company requires him, without his consent, to relocate
his primary place of employment more than 50 miles from its location as of his employment start date.

“Cause” generally means the executive’s: (i) conviction of, or plea of guilty or no contest to, any
felony or any crime involving fraud or moral turpitude, (ii) commission of any acts or omissions constituting
gross negligence or gross misconduct that causes material financial or reputation harm to the company,
(iii) commission of fraud, theft, embezzlement, self-dealing, misappropriation or other malfeasance against
the business of the Company, (iv) violation of any of the material terms of the employment agreement or any
written Company policy, (v) breach of fiduciary duty owed to the Company, (vi) failure to perform any
material aspect of the executive’s lawful duties or responsibilities of employment or failure to comply with
any lawful directive of our board of directors or (vii) disqualification or bar by any governmental or self-
regulatory authority from serving in the capacity required by the executive’s job description, or loss of any
governmental or self-regulatory license that is reasonably necessary for the executive to perform his duties
or responsibilities.

Each employment agreement also contains confidentiality and non-disparagement provisions, which
apply indefinitely, and non-competition as well as client and employee non-solicitation provisions that
apply during the term of the employment agreement and for two years (in the case of Mr. Manheimer) or
one year (in the case of Mr. Blocher), in each case, following a termination of such executive’s employment
for any reason.

If prior to the date that the Company no longer qualifies as an emerging growth company within the
meaning of the Securities Act or otherwise becomes required to hold a shareholder advisory vote on executive

85



compensation pursuant to the Exchange Act (“EGC Status End Date”) and Mr. Manheimer or Mr. Blocher
become liable for the excise tax imposed by Code Section 4999 (“Excise Tax”) in connection with their
employment, then the Company shall pay an amount equal to the sum of the Excise Tax payable by the
executive, plus the amount necessary to put the executive in the same after-tax position in which the
executive would have been if the executive had not incurred any tax liability under Code Section 4999. From
and after the EGC Status End Date, if Mr. Manheimer or Mr. Blocher become liable for the Excise Tax in
connection with their employment, then the payments that give rise to the Excise Tax liability will be reduced
by the Company to the extent necessary so that no portion of the payments is subject to the Excise Tax,

only to the extent that such reduction results in the executive retaining a greater amount of payments on an
after-tax basis.

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2020 Fiscal Year-End

The following table shows outstanding equity awards as of December 31, 2020 held by our named
executive officers.

Stock Awards
Equity Incentive Equity Incentive
Market Value Plan Awards: Plan Awards:

Number of  of Shares or Number of Market or Payout
Shares or Units of Unearned Shares, Value of Unearned

Units of Stock That Units, or Other Shares, Units or
Stock That Have Not Rights That Other Rights That

Have Not Vested Have Not Vested =~ Have Not Vested

Name Vested(#) () @(#) (%)

Mark Manheimer. . . . ........ 30,555(2) 595,517 — —
121,519(3) 2,368,405 — —

Andrew Blocher . ........... 30,555(2) 595,517 - -
75,949(3) 1,480,246 — —

(1) The value of the unvested RSU awards is shown assuming a market value of $19.49 per share, the
closing market price of a share of our common stock on December 31, 2020.

(2) Asnoted below under the heading, “IPO Awards,” Messrs. Manheimer and Blocher received awards of
RSUs under the Omnibus Plan in connection with our initial public offering. These RSUs vest ratably
on each of the first five anniversaries of August 17, 2020, respectively, generally subject to each
executive’s continued employment through each vesting date.

(3) Asnoted below under the heading, “Private Offering Awards,” Messrs. Manheimer and Blocher
received awards of RSUs under the Omnibus Plan in connection with the private offering. These RSUs
vest ratably on each of the first five anniversaries of December 23, 2019 and January 6, 2020,
respectively, generally subject to each executive’s continued employment through each vesting date.

Omnibus Incentive Plan

Our board of directors adopted, and our stockholders approved, the Omnibus Plan, effective
December 23, 2019. The purposes of the Omnibus Plan are to give us a competitive advantage in attracting,
retaining and motivating employees (including prospective employees), directors and consultants, align
the interests of those individuals with the Company’s stockholders and promote ownership of the Company’s
equity. To accomplish these purposes, the Omnibus Plan provides for the grant of stock options (both
stock options intended to be “incentive stock options” intended to meet the requirements under Section 422
of the Code and “nonqualified stock options” that do not meet such requirements), stock appreciation
rights (“SARs”), restricted shares, RSUs, long-term incentive plan units (“LTIP units”), dividend equivalent
rights, other share-based, share-related or cash-based awards (including performance-based awards)
(collectively “awards”), with each grant evidenced by an award agreement providing the terms of the award.
Incentive stock options may be granted only to our employees; all other awards may be granted to our
employees, directors and consultants.
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Private Offering Awards

In connection with the private offering, we issued 151,899 RSUs pursuant to the Omnibus Plan to
Mr. Manheimer and 75,949 RSUs to Mr. Blocher. These RSU grants vest ratably on each of the first five
anniversaries of the grant date, generally subject to each executive’s continued employment through the
applicable vesting dates and will receive accelerated vesting if we terminate an executive’s employment
without “cause,” as such term is defined in each executive’s employment agreement.

IPO Awards

In connection with our initial public offering, we issued 30,555 RSUs to each of Messrs. Manheimer
and Blocher and 105,557 RSUs to other employees pursuant to the Omnibus Plan. These RSU grants will
vest ratably on each of the first five anniversaries of the grant date, subject to each grantee’s continued
employment through the applicable vesting dates and will receive accelerated vesting if we terminate the
grantee’s employment without “cause” or, if applicable, the grantee resigns with “good reason,” as such terms
are defined in each executive’s employment agreement.

Alignment of Interest Program

On March 3, 2021, the Compensation Committee adopted an Alignment of Interest Program (the
“Program”) pursuant to the Omnibus Plan. The Program allows individuals who are eligible to receive
awards under the Omnibus Plan, as selected by the Compensation Committee from time to time, to elect to
receive RSUs under the Omnibus Plan in lieu of a specified percentage of cash compensation. The amount of
compensation that a participant elects to reduce will be applied to the issuance of an award of RSUs under
the Omnibus Plan (the “Alignment RSUs”), and the participant will receive an additional award of RSUs under
the Omnibus Plan based upon a multiple of the Alignment RSUs (the “Vesting Multiple”) that corresponds
to the length of the vesting period selected by the participant (the “Additional RSUs,” and collectively with the
Alignment RSUs, the “Awarded RSUs”). The number of Alignment RSUs will be determined as of the
second business day following the release of the Company’s fourth quarter earnings for the most recently
completed fiscal year, or, if such date is not a trading day, then the trading day immediately following such
date, and the Awarded RSUs will be granted to a participant as soon as administratively feasible following
such date.

The Compensation Committee will determine the minimum and maximum percentage of each
compensation type that may be reduced and applied to Alignment RSUs, the lengths of the vesting periods
and the corresponding Vesting Multiples that may apply under the Program. Currently, participants may elect
to receive Alignment RSUs in lieu of 10%, 25% or 50% of short-term incentive compensation that is earned
with respect to a fiscal year, with the number of Additional RSUs being determined by application of a Vesting
Multiple of 0.25x%. Awarded RSUs will vest over three years, in substantially equal annual installments,
generally subject to continued provision of services. As set forth in the form of RSU agreement governing
the Awarded RSUs, in the event of a termination by the Company without “cause” or a resignation for “good
reason” (each as defined in the Omnibus Plan), the Awarded RSUs will immediately vest in full.

Messrs. Manheimer and Blocher, along with certain other selected employees of the Company, are
eligible to participate in the Program. Each of Messrs. Manheimer and Blocher elected to receive Alignment
RSUs in lieu of 50% of their short-term incentive compensation with respect to the Company’s 2020 fiscal
year.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Formation Transactions

In connection with the private offering, we consummated the formation transactions, as described
under “Structure and Formation of Our Company.”

Operating Partnership Agreement

In December 2019, we entered into the partnership agreement of NETSTREIT, L.P. See “Description of
The Partnership Agreement of Our Operating Partnership.”

Facilities Agreement with EB Arrow

In December 2019, we entered into a facilities agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of EB Arrow
pursuant to which we license a portion of EB Arrow’s office space for our Dallas, Texas headquarters for
approximately $18,000 per month. In addition, we and EB Arrow have agreed to use commercially reasonable
efforts to cooperate regarding certain shared services, including human resources, information technology
and administrative/executive assistants. The facilities agreement has an initial term of three years, subject to
automatic, successive one-year extension periods, unless either party gives the other party written notice of
its desire not to automatically renew the agreement at least 60 days prior to the expiration of the initial term or
then-applicable renewal term, as applicable.

Employment Agreements

We have entered into employment agreements with each of Mark Manheimer, our Chief Executive
Officer, and Andrew Blocher, our Chief Financial Officer. See “Executive Compensation—Employment
Agreements.”

Indemnification of Our Directors and Officers

To the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law in effect from time to time, our charter obligates
us to indemnify any individual who is made or threatened to be made a party to, or witness in, a proceeding
by reason of his or her service:

- as a present or former director or officer; or

- while a director or officer and at our request, as a director, officer, partner, manager, member or
trustee of another corporation, REIT, partnership, joint venture, trust, limited liability company, employee
benefit plan or other enterprise in each case, from and against any claim or liability to which he or she may
become subject or that he or she may incur by reason of his or her service in any of these capacities. Our
charter requires us, without requiring a preliminary determination of such individual’s ultimate entitlement
to indemnification, to pay or reimburse any such individual’s reasonable expenses in advance of final
disposition of a proceeding.

We have entered into indemnification agreements with each of our directors and executive officers
that provide for indemnification and advance of expenses to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland
law. See “Management—Limitations on Liabilities and Indemnification of Directors and Officers.”
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The SEC has defined “beneficial ownership” of a security to mean the possession, directly or indirectly,
of voting power and/or investment power over such security. A stockholder is also deemed to be, as of any
date, the beneficial owner of all securities that such stockholder has the right to acquire within 60 days after
that date through (1) the exercise of any option, warrant or right, (2) the conversion of a security, (3) the
power to revoke a trust, discretionary account or similar arrangement or (4) the automatic termination of a
trust, discretionary account or similar arrangement.

The percentage of beneficial ownership of common stock prior to this offering is based on 28,203,545
shares of common stock outstanding as of December 31, 2020. The percentage of beneficial ownership after
this offering is based on issuance by us of 9,491,903 shares of our common stock in this offering. The
following table sets forth information, as of March 31, 2021, known to us about the beneficial ownership of
shares of our common stock by our 5% or greater stockholders and by our executive officers, directors and
director nominees both immediately before and immediately after this offering. In computing the number
of shares beneficially owned by a person and the percentage ownership of that person, shares of our common
stock subject to options or other rights (as set forth above) held by that person that are exercisable as of
March 31, 2021 or will become exercisable within 60 days thereafter, are deemed outstanding, while such
shares are not deemed outstanding for purposes of computing percentage ownership of any other person. The
following table does not assume that the outstanding OP units are redeemed for shares of our common
stock on a one-for-one basis. The following table also assumes no exercise of the underwriters’ option to
purchase additional shares.

Each person named in the table has sole voting and investment power with respect to all of the shares
of our common stock shown as beneficially owned by such person, except as otherwise set forth in the notes
to the table. Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each named person is ¢/o NETSTREIT Corp., 5910
N. Central Expressway, Suite 1600, Dallas, TX 75206. No shares beneficially owned by any executive officer,
director or director nominee have been pledged as security.
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Common Stock and Securities

Exchangeable for
Common Stock(1)(2)
Immediately Immediately
Prior to After
this Offering this Offering
Number of
Shares of
Common
Stock Percent
Beneficially of Percent of

Name of Beneficial Owner Owned Class(3) Class(3)
5% or Greater Stockholders

Affiliates of Tilden Park(4) . . . ... .. .. .. ... .. .. .. .... 2,784,809 9.9% 7.4%

Affiliates of DK(5) . . o o v vt 2,708,860 9.6% 7.2%

Affiliatesof LongPond(6). . . ... ... ... . ... ... 2,708,809 9.6% 7.2%

Morgan Stanley (7) . ... ..o 1,719,360 6.1% 4.6%
Executive Officers and Directors

Mark Manheimer(8). . . .. ... ... .. ... ... 35,663 * *

Andrew Blocher(9). . .. ... ... 12,228 * *

Todd Minnis(10) . . . oo vt e 1,688 * *

Michael Christodolou(11). . . .. ... ... 7,500 * *

Heidi Everett(12). . . . oo vttt - - —

Matthew Troxell(13) .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 16,266 * *

Lori Wittman(14) . . .. ..ottt 5,016 * *

Robin Zeigler(15) . . ... .. - — —
All executive officers and directors as a group

(BPErSONS) . o vt ittt e e e 78,361 * *

*

@

@

©)
4

©)

Less than 1%.

Upon the completion of this offering, there will be a total of 37,695,448 shares of common stock
outstanding. This excludes (i) an aggregate of 1,751,882 shares of our common stock that we may
issue upon redemption of outstanding OP units (as described further in Note 2 below), (ii) 377,596
shares of our common stock underlying outstanding RSUs that we have granted pursuant to our
Omnibus Incentive Plan and (iii) 1,682,780 shares of our common stock reserved for future issuance
under our Omnibus Incentive Plan.

The holders of OP units have the right to redeem their OP units for shares of our common stock on a one-
for-one basis (subject to certain adjustments and conditions).

Percentages are rounded.

Based solely on a Schedule 13G filed by Tilden Park with the SEC on February 1, 2021. Represents
2,784,809 shares of common stock owned by Tilden Park Investment Master Fund LP, a Cayman Islands
exempted limited partnership and an affiliate of Tilden Park. The address for Tilden Park Investment
Master Fund LP is c/o Tilden Park Capital Management LP, 452 Fifth Avenue, 28™ Floor, New York, New
York 10028.

Based solely on a Schedule 13G filed by DK with the SEC on February 11, 2021. Represents (i) 79,370
shares of common stock owned by M.H. Davidson & Co., a New York limited partnership and affiliate of
DK, (ii) 495,450 shares of common stock owned by Davidson Kempner Partners, a New York limited
partnership and affiliate of DK, (iii) 1,044,807 shares of common stock owned by Davidson Kempner
Institutional Partners, L.P,, a Delaware limited partnership and affiliate of DK and (iv) 1,089,233 shares
of common stock owned by Davidson Kempner International, Ltd.,, a British Virgin Islands business
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company and affiliate of DK (collectively, the “DK Entities”). The address for the DK Entities is 520
Madison Avenue, 30" Floor, New York, New York 10022.

Based solely on a Schedule 13G filed by Long Pond with the SEC on February 12, 2021. Represents

(i) 2,035,443 shares of common stock owned by Long Pond US Master, LP, a Delaware limited partnership
and affiliate of Long Pond, and (ii) 673,417 shares of common stock owned by Long Pond Offshore

(D) LLC, a Cayman Islands limited liability company and affiliate of Long Pond (collectively, the “Long
Pond Entities”). The address for the Long Pond Entities is ¢/o Long Pond Capital, LP, 527 Madison
Avenue, 15% Floor, New York, New York 10022.

Based solely on a Schedule 13G filed by Morgan Stanley and Morgan Stanley Investment Management
Inc. (“Morgan Stanley Investment Management”) with the SEC on February 11, 2021. The address for
Morgan Stanley is 1585 Broadway, New York, New York 10036 and the address for Morgan Stanley
Investment Management is 522 5™ Avenue, 6 Floor, New York, New York 10036.

Includes 8,884 Class B OP units, which may be redeemed for shares of common stock on a one-for-one
basis and are held in Mr. Manheimer’s IRA account. Excludes 229,332 unvested RSUs.

Includes 2,000 shares of common stock held in accounts for the benefit of Mr. Blocher's children and
of which Mr. Blocher acts as custodian. Excludes 129,772 unvested RSUs.

Excludes 7,668 unvested RSUs.
Excludes 5,856 unvested RSUs.
Excludes 5,856 unvested RSUs.
Excludes 6,824 unvested RSUs.
Excludes 6,824 unvested RSUs.
Excludes 6,191 unvested RSUs.
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STRUCTURE AND FORMATION OF OUR COMPANY

Our Company

We were formed as a Maryland corporation on October 11, 2019. On December 23, 2019, we issued
and sold 8,860,760 shares of our common stock in a private offering at a price of $19.75 per share, to various
institutional investors, accredited investors and offshore investors, in reliance upon exemptions from
registration provided by Rule 144A and Regulation S under the Securities Act and pursuant to Regulation D
under the Securities Act. On February 6, 2020, we issued and sold an additional 2,936,885 shares of our
common stock in the private offering pursuant to the initial purchaser’s option to purchase additional shares.
We received approximately $219.0 million of net proceeds (after deducting the initial purchaser’s discount
and placement fees) from the private offering and exercise of the option to purchase additional shares. In
connection with the private offering, we consummated a series of formation transactions that were
designed, among other things, to enable us to qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes. We
elected to be taxed as a REIT beginning with our short taxable year ended December 31, 2019.

Our predecessor, EverSTAR Income & Value Fund V, LP, merged with our operating partnership as
part of our formation transactions. We are structured as an umbrella partnership REIT, meaning that we own
our properties and conduct our business through our operating partnership, directly or through limited
partnerships, limited liability companies or other subsidiaries. NETSTREIT GP, LLC, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, is the sole general partner of our operating partnership.

On August 17, 2020, we completed the initial public offering of our common stock. We sold 12,244,732
shares of common stock and the selling stockholders sold 255,268 shares of common stock at a price of $18.00
per share. Our common stock began trading on the NYSE under the symbol “NTST” on August 13, 2020.

On September 16, 2020, we sold an additional 1,436,829 shares of our common stock pursuant to the
underwriters’ over-allotment option in connection with the initial public offering. We received net proceeds
from the initial public offering and over-allotment option exercise was $227.3 million, net of transaction costs
and underwriting discounts of $18.9 million. We contributed the total net proceeds from the initial public
offering to our operating partnership in exchange for 13,681,561 Class A OP units. In addition, we acquired
255,268 Class A OP units from the selling stockholders, who elected to redeem such units in exchange for
an equivalent number of shares of our common stock and then sell those shares of common stock in the initial
public offering.

Our Operating Partnership

Substantially all of our assets are indirectly held by, and our operations are conducted through, our
operating partnership. We hold Class A OP units for each outstanding share of our common stock, subject
to certain adjustments. As of December 31, 2020, we owned approximately 94.2% of the limited partnership
interests in our operating partnership. Our interest in our operating partnership generally entitles us to
share in cash distributions from, and in the profits and losses of, our operating partnership in proportion to
our percentage ownership. As the parent of the sole general partner of our operating partnership, we have the
exclusive power under the partnership agreement of our operating partnership to manage and conduct its
business and affairs, subject to certain limited approval and voting rights of the limited partners, which are
described more fully in “Description of the Partnership Agreement of Our Operating Partnership.”

The Formation Transactions

In connection with the private offering, we consummated the following formation transactions:

We formed our operating partnership, NETSTREIT, L.P, as a Delaware limited partnership and the
general partner of the operating partnership, NETSTREIT GP, LLC, as a Delaware limited liability
company. We contributed the net proceeds of the private offering to the operating partnership in
exchange for 11,797,645 Class A OP units.

In December 2019, upon the initial closing of the private offering, our predecessor was merged with
and into our operating partnership, with the operating partnership surviving, and the continuing
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investors receiving an aggregate of 3,652,149 Class A OP units, other than Mr. Manheimer, who
received 8,884 Class B OP units, and an affiliate of EB Arrow, which received 287,234 Class B OP
units.

In December 2019, upon the initial closing of the private offering, our operating partnership formed
NETSTREIT TRS and we jointly elected with NETSTREIT TRS for NETSTREIT TRS to be treated
as a taxable REIT subsidiary under the Code for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Our operating partnership entered into a contribution agreement with EBA EverSTAR to internalize
our management infrastructure, whereby EBA EverSTAR contributed 100% of the membership
interests in EBA EverSTAR Management, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, to our operating
partnership in exchange for 500,752 Class B OP units. In connection with the internalization, EBA
EverSTAR Management, LLC was re-domiciled in Delaware and its name was changed to NETSTREIT
Management, LLC. A 0.01% interest in the Manager was issued to NETSTREIT TRS.

Affiliates of each of Tilden Park, DK and Long Pond collectively purchased 8,202,529 shares of our
common stock in the private offering.

In December 2019, upon the initial closing of the private offering, we entered into a tax protection
agreement with certain limited partners of our predecessor pursuant to which we have agreed to
indemnify such limited partners against certain tax liabilities upon the sale, transfer, conveyance or
other taxable disposition of any of the nine properties currently leased to CVS. The indemnification
obligation is structured as an interest-free loan that is repayable upon the sale of all or substantially all
of the operating partnership’s assets or the liquidation of the operating partnership. If any of the
applicable properties are sold in a 1031 Exchange, no indemnification obligations will exist. The tax
protection agreement is the continuation of an obligation of our predecessor agreed to as part of

the acquisition of the nine properties currently leased to CVS.

In December 2019, upon the initial closing of the private offering, we entered into a facilities
agreement with a wholly owned subsidiary of EB Arrow, pursuant to which we licensed a portion of
EB Arrow’s office space for our Dallas, Texas headquarters and agreed to use commercially reasonable
efforts to cooperate regarding certain shared services, including human resources, information
technology and administrative/executive assistants. See “Certain Relationships and Related Party
Transactions—Facilities Agreement with EB Arrow.”

In December 2019, upon the initial closing of the private offering, we entered into the $175.0 million
Term Loan and the $250.0 million Revolver, the proceeds of which were used to pay off our prior
credit agreement. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources—Credit Facility.
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POLICIES WITH RESPECT TO CERTAIN ACTIVITIES

The following is a discussion of certain of our investment, financing and other policies. These policies
have been determined by our board of directors and, in general, may be amended or revised from time to
time by our board of directors without a vote of our stockholders.

Investment Policies

Investments in Real Estate or Interests in Real Estate

We conduct all of our investment activities through our operating partnership and its subsidiaries.
Our objective is to maximize stockholder value by generating attractive risk-adjusted returns through
owning, managing and growing a diversified portfolio of commercially desirable properties. For a discussion
of our properties and our acquisition and other strategic objectives, see “Our Business and Properties.”

We expect to pursue our objective primarily through the ownership by our operating partnership of
our existing properties and other acquired properties and assets. We seek to acquire single-tenant, retail
commercial real estate net leased on a long-term basis (at least ten years) to high credit quality tenants in
industries where a physical location is critical to the generation of sales and profits, with a focus on necessity
goods and essential services in the retail sector, including discount stores, grocers, drug stores and
pharmacies, home improvement, automotive service and quick service restaurants. We believe these
characteristics make our tenants’ businesses e-commerce resistant and resilient through all economic
cycles. Our current strategy targets a scaled portfolio that, over time, will (i) derive no more than (a) 5% of its
ABR from any single tenant or property, (b) 15% of its ABR from any single retail sector, (¢) 15% of its ABR
from any single state and (d) 50% of its ABR from its top 10 tenants, (ii) be primarily leased to tenants operating
in businesses we believe to be e-commerce resistant and resilient through all economic cycles, (iii) have
more than 60% of its tenants with an investment grade rating and (iv) have a WALT of greater than 10 years.
While we consider the foregoing when making investments, we may be opportunistic in managing our
business and make investments that do not meet one or more of these criteria if we believe the opportunity
presents an attractive risk-adjusted return. We intend to engage in future investment activities in a manner
that is consistent with the maintenance of our status as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes. In
addition, we may purchase assets for long-term investment, expand and improve the properties we presently
own or other acquired properties, or sell such properties, in whole or in part, when circumstances warrant.

Any transaction or series of transactions that would result in (i) an acquisition involving an investment
by the Company in a single property, either directly or indirectly, in an amount equal to or greater than
$25 million; (ii) an acquisition involving an investment by the Company in a portfolio of properties, either
directly or indirectly, where the investment in property leased to a single tenant or credit is an amount equal
or greater than $25 million; (iii) an acquisition of property or assets from a “related person” (as defined in
the Company’s Related Party Transactions Policies and Procedures); or (iv) a disposition of property in a
transaction or series of related transactions involving an amount equal to or greater than $15 million is subject
to the review and approval of our Investment Committee.

We may also participate with third parties in property ownership, through joint ventures or other types
of co-ownership. These types of investments may permit us to own interests in larger assets without unduly
reducing our diversification and, therefore, provide us with flexibility in structuring our portfolio. We will not,
however, enter into a joint venture or other partnership arrangement to make an investment that would not
otherwise meet our investment policies.

Equity investments in acquired properties may be subject to existing mortgage financing and other
indebtedness or to new indebtedness which may be incurred in connection with acquiring or refinancing
these properties. Debt service on such financing or indebtedness will have a priority over any distributions
with respect to our common stock. Investments are also subject to our policy not to be treated as an “investment
company” under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or the 1940 Act.

Securities of or Interests in Persons Primarily Engaged in Real Estate Activities and Other Issuers

Subject to the percentage of ownership limitations and the income and asset tests necessary for REIT
qualification, we may invest in securities of other REITSs, other entities engaged in real estate activities or
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securities of other issuers, including for the purpose of exercising control over such entities. We do not
intend that our investments in securities will require us to register as an investment company under the 1940
Act, and we would intend to divest such securities before any such registration would be required.

Investments in Other Securities

Other than as described above, we do not intend to invest in any additional securities such as bonds,
preferred stocks or common stock.

Dispositions

In order to maximize the performance and manage the risks within our portfolio, we intend to
selectively dispose of any of our properties that we determine are not suitable for long-term investment
purposes based upon management’s review of our portfolio. We also may sell properties from time to time
to achieve or maintain our targeted portfolio metrics for diversification and percentage of investment grade
tenants. Wherever possible, we will structure dispositions as part of a 1031 Exchange. We will ensure that
such action would be in our best interest and consistent with our intention to qualify as REIT.

Financings and Leverage Policy

We anticipate using a number of different sources to finance our acquisitions and operations, including
cash flows from operations, asset sales, seller financing, issuance of debt securities, private financings (such
as additional bank credit facilities, which may or may not be secured by our assets), property-level mortgage
debt, common or preferred equity issuances or any combination of these sources, to the extent available to us,
or other sources that may become available from time to time. Any debt that we incur may be recourse or non-
recourse and may be secured or unsecured. We also may take advantage of joint venture or other partnering
opportunities as such opportunities arise in order to acquire properties that would otherwise be unavailable
to us. We may use the proceeds of our borrowings to acquire assets, to refinance existing debt or for
general corporate purposes.

Although we are not required to maintain any particular leverage ratio, we intend, when appropriate,
to employ prudent amounts of leverage and to use debt as a means of providing additional funds for the
acquisition of assets, to refinance existing debt or for general corporate purposes. Our current strategy targets
leverage that, over time, will be 25% to 35% of our gross asset value. Our charter and bylaws do not limit the
amount of debt that we may incur. Our board of directors has not adopted a policy limiting the total amount of
debt that we may incur.

Our board of directors will consider a number of factors in evaluating the amount of debt that we may
incur. Our board of directors may from time to time modify its views regarding the appropriate amount of
debt financing in light of then-current economic conditions, relative costs of debt and equity capital, market
values of our properties, general conditions in the market for debt and equity securities, fluctuations in the
market price of our common stock, growth and investment opportunities and other factors. Our decision to
use leverage in the future to finance our assets will be at our discretion and will not be subject to the
approval of our stockholders.

Equity Capital Policies

To the extent that our board of directors determines to obtain additional capital, we may issue debt or
equity securities, including senior securities, retain earnings (subject to provisions in the Code requiring
distributions of income to maintain REIT qualification) or pursue a combination of these methods.

Existing stockholders will have no preemptive right to common or preferred stock or units issued in
any securities offering by us, and any such offering might cause a dilution of a stockholder’s investment in
us. Although we have no current plans to do so, we may in the future issue shares of our common stock or OP
units, including one or more additional classes of common stock or OP units, in connection with acquisitions
of property.

We may, under certain circumstances, purchase shares of our common stock or other securities in the
open market or in private transactions with our stockholders, provided that those purchases are approved by
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our board of directors. Our board of directors has no present intention of causing us to repurchase any
shares of our common stock or other securities, and any such action would only be taken in conformity with
applicable federal and state laws and the applicable requirements for qualification as a REIT.

We have not issued common stock or any other securities in exchange for property or any other
purpose, but we may engage in such activities in the future.

We have not engaged in trading, underwriting or agency distribution or sale of securities of other than
our operating partnership and do not intend to do so.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted a code of business conduct and ethics that seeks to identify and mitigate conflicts of
interest between our employees, directors and officers, including with respect to corporate opportunities.
However, we cannot assure you that these policies or provisions of law will always be successful in eliminating
or minimizing the influence of such conflicts, and if they are not successful, decisions could be made that
might fail to reflect fully the interests of our stockholders. See “Management—Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics.”

Interested Director Transactions

Pursuant to the MGCL, a contract or other transaction between us and a director or between us and
any other corporation or other entity in which any of our directors is a director or has a material financial
interest is not void or voidable solely because of such common directorship or interest, the presence of such
director at the meeting at which the contract or transaction is authorized, approved or ratified or the
counting of the director’s vote in favor thereof, if:

+ the fact of the common directorship or interest is disclosed or known to our board of directors or a
committee of our board, and our board or such committee authorizes, approves or ratifies the contract
or transaction by a majority of disinterested directors, even if the disinterested directors constitute
less than a quorum;

- the fact of the common directorship or interest is disclosed or known to our stockholders entitled to
vote thereon, and the contract or transaction is authorized, approved or ratified by a majority of
the votes cast by the stockholders entitled to vote other than the votes of shares owned of record or
beneficially by the interested director or corporation, firm or other entity; or

- the contract or transaction is fair and reasonable to us.

We have adopted a written statement of policy regarding transactions with related persons, which we
refer to as our “Related Party Transactions Policies and Procedures.” Our Related Party Transactions Policies
and Procedures requires that a “related person” (as defined as in paragraph (a) of Item 404 of Regulation S-K)
must promptly disclose to us any “related person transaction” (defined as any transaction that is anticipated
would be reportable by us under Item 404(a) of Regulation S-K in which we were or are to be a participant and
the amount involved exceeds $120,000 and in which any related person had or will have a direct or indirect
material interest) and all material facts with respect thereto. We then promptly communicate that information
to our board of directors. No related person transaction is executed without the approval or ratification of
our board of directors or a duly authorized committee of our board of directors. It is our policy that directors
interested in a related person transaction recuse themselves from any vote on a related person transaction
in which they have an interest.

Reporting Policies

We intend to make available to our stockholders our annual reports, including our audited financial
statements. After this offering, we will become subject to the information reporting requirements of the
Exchange Act. Pursuant to those requirements, we will be required to file annual and periodic reports, proxy
statements and other information, including audited financial statements, with the SEC.

96



DESCRIPTION OF OUR CAPITAL STOCK

The following is a description of the material terms of our stock and is only a summary. For a complete
description, we refer you to our charter and our bylaws, which are filed as exhibits to the registration statement
of which this prospectus is a part, and applicable Maryland law.

General

Our charter provides that we may issue 400,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.01 par value per
share (our “common stock”), and 100,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $0.01 par value per share. A majority
of our entire board of directors has the power, without stockholder approval, to amend our charter to
increase or decrease the aggregate number of shares of stock or the number of shares of stock of any class
or series that we are authorized to issue. Upon the completion of this offering, we expect that 37,695,448 shares
(39,119,233 shares if the underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares is exercised in full) of our
common stock will be issued and outstanding.

Under Maryland law, our stockholders generally are not liable for our debts or obligations solely as a
result of stockholders’ status as stockholders.

Dividends, Distributions, Liquidation and Other Rights

Common stockholders are entitled to receive distributions when, as and if authorized by our board of
directors and declared by us out of assets legally available for the payment of dividends. Common stockholders
are also entitled to share ratably in our assets legally available for distribution to our stockholders in the
event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, after payment of, or adequate provision for, all of our
known debts and liabilities. These rights are subject to the preferential rights of any other class or series of
our stock, including any shares of preferred stock that we may issue, and to the provisions of our charter
regarding restrictions on ownership and transfer of our stock.

Our common stockholders have no preference, conversion, exchange, sinking fund or redemption
rights and have no preemptive rights to subscribe for any of our capital stock. Our charter provides that our
stockholders generally have no appraisal rights unless our board of directors determines that appraisal
rights will apply to one or more transactions in which our common stockholders would otherwise be entitled
to exercise such rights. Subject to our charter restrictions on ownership and transfer of our stock, holders
of shares of our common stock will initially have equal dividend, liquidation and other rights.

Voting Rights of Common Stock

Subject to our charter restrictions on ownership and transfer of our stock and the terms of any other
class or series of our stock that we may issue, each outstanding share of our common stock entitles the
holder thereof to one vote on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders, including the election of
directors. Cumulative voting in the election of directors is not permitted. In uncontested elections, directors
are elected by the affirmative vote of a majority of all the votes cast “for” and “against” each director
nominee. In contested elections (i.e, where the number of nominees exceeds the number of directors to be
elected), directors are elected by a plurality of the votes cast. This means that the holders of a majority of the
outstanding shares of our common stock can effectively elect all of the directors then standing for election,
and the holders of the remaining shares will not be able to elect any directors.

Under Maryland law and our charter, we generally cannot dissolve, amend our charter, merge, transfer
all or substantially all of our assets, convert into another form of entity, engage in a statutory share exchange
or engage in a similar transaction unless such transaction is declared advisable by our board of directors
and approved by the affirmative vote of stockholders entitled to cast a majority of all of the votes entitled to
be cast on the matter, except that the affirmative vote of stockholders holding at least two-thirds of the shares
entitled to vote on such matter is required to amend the provisions of our charter relating to the removal of
directors or the vote required to amend the removal provisions.

Maryland law also permits us to transfer all or substantially all of our assets without the approval of
our stockholders to an entity all of the equity interests of which are owned, directly or indirectly, by us.
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Because our operating assets may be held by our operating partnership or its wholly owned subsidiaries,
these subsidiaries may be able to merge or transfer all or substantially all of their assets without the approval
of our stockholders.

Power to Reclassify Our Unissued Shares of Capital Stock

Our charter authorizes our board of directors to reclassify any unissued shares of our common stock
into other classes or series of stock, including additional classes or series of common stock or classes or
series of preferred stock, and to establish the designation and number of shares of each such class or series
and to set, subject to the provisions of our charter regarding the restrictions on ownership and transfer of our
stock, the preferences, conversion or other rights, voting powers, restrictions, limitations as to dividends
and other distributions, qualifications and terms and conditions of redemption of each such class or series.
Thus, our board of directors could authorize the issuance of shares of common stock or preferred stock with
terms that could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a transaction or a change in control
that might involve a premium price for our common stock or that our common stockholders otherwise believe
to be in their best interests.

Power to Increase or Decrease Authorized Capital Stock and Issue Additional Shares of Our Common
Stock and Preferred Stock

A majority of our entire board of directors has the power to increase or decrease the aggregate number
of authorized shares of stock or the number of shares of any class or series of stock that we are authorized to
issue, to classify and reclassify any unissued shares of our stock into other classes or series of stock, and to
authorize us to issue the newly classified shares. As a result, our board of directors could authorize the issuance
of shares of common stock or another class or series of stock, including a class or series of preferred stock,
that could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of us. These actions may be
taken without stockholder approval unless such approval is required by applicable law, the terms of any
other class or series of our stock or the rules of any stock exchange or automated quotation system on which
any of our stock is listed or traded. We believe that the power of our board of directors to increase or
decrease the number of authorized shares of stock and to classify or reclassify unissued shares of our common
stock or preferred stock and thereafter to cause us to issue such shares of stock will provide us with
increased flexibility in structuring possible future financings and acquisitions and in meeting other needs
which might arise.

Restrictions on Ownership and Transfer

In order for us to qualify as a REIT under the Code, our stock must be beneficially owned by 100 or
more persons during at least 335 days of a taxable year of 12 months (other than the first year for which an
election to be taxed as a REIT has been made) or during a proportionate part of a shorter taxable year. Also, not
more than 50% of the value of the outstanding shares of stock (after taking into account options to acquire
shares of stock) may be owned, directly or through certain constructive ownership rules, by five or fewer
individuals (as defined in the Code to include certain entities such as private foundations) at any time
during the last half of a taxable year (other than the first year for which an election to be taxed as a REIT has
been made).

Our charter contains restrictions on the ownership and transfer of our stock that are intended to assist
us in complying with these requirements and qualifying as a REIT, among other reasons. The relevant
sections of our charter provide that, subject to the exceptions described below, no person or entity may
actually or beneficially own, or be deemed to own by virtue of the applicable constructive ownership provisions
of the Code, more than 9.8% in value or in number of shares, whichever is more restrictive, of our outstanding
common stock or of any class or series of our preferred stock, or more than 9.8% of the aggregate value of
all of our outstanding stock, in each case excluding any shares of our stock that are not treated as outstanding
for U.S. federal income tax purposes. We refer to each of these restrictions as an “ownership limit” and
collectively as the “ownership limits.” A person or entity that would have acquired actual, beneficial or
constructive ownership of our stock but for the application of the ownership limits or any of the other
restrictions on ownership and transfer of our stock discussed below is referred to as a “prohibited owner.”
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The constructive ownership rules under the Code are complex and may cause stock owned actually or
constructively by a group of related individuals and/or entities to be owned constructively by one individual
or entity. As a result, the acquisition of less than 9.8% of our common stock or of any class or series of our
preferred stock (or the acquisition of an interest in an entity that owns, actually or constructively, our common
stock or our preferred stock) by an individual or entity could, nevertheless, cause that individual or entity,
or another individual or entity, to own constructively in excess of 9.8% (in value or in number of shares,
whichever is more restrictive) of the outstanding shares of our common stock or of any class or series of
preferred stock and thereby violate the applicable ownership limit.

Our charter provides that our board of directors, subject to certain limits, upon receipt of a request that
complies with the requirements of our charter may retroactively or prospectively exempt a person from any
or all of the ownership limits and establish a different limit on ownership for such person. As a condition of the
exception, our board of directors may require an opinion of counsel or IRS ruling, in either case in form and
substance satisfactory to our board of directors, in order to determine or ensure our status as a REIT and such
representations and/or agreements as it may deem necessary or prudent. Notwithstanding the receipt of
any ruling or opinion, our board of directors may impose such conditions or restrictions as it deems
appropriate in connection with such an exception. In connection with the private offering, our board of
directors granted waivers to each of Tilden Park, DK and Long Pond to each own up to 30.6% of our
outstanding shares of common stock.

Our board of directors may increase or decrease any or all of the ownership limits for one or more
persons, except that a decreased ownership limit will not be effective for any person whose actual, beneficial
or constructive ownership of our stock exceeds the decreased ownership limit at the time of the decrease
until the person’s actual, beneficial or constructive ownership of our stock equals or falls below the decreased
ownership limit, although any further acquisition of our stock (other than by a previously exempted
person) will violate the decreased ownership limit. Our board of directors may not increase or decrease any
ownership limit if the new ownership limit would allow five or fewer persons to actually or beneficially own
more than 49.9% in value of our outstanding stock or could cause us to be “closely held” under Section 856(h)
of the Code (without regard to whether the ownership interest is held during the last half of a taxable year) or
otherwise cause us to fail to qualify as a REIT.

Our charter further prohibits:

+ any person from actually, beneficially or constructively owning shares of our stock that could result
in us being “closely held” under Section 856(h) of the Code (without regard to whether the
ownership interest is held during the last half of a taxable year) or otherwise cause us to fail to
qualify as a REIT (including, but not limited to, actual, beneficial or constructive ownership of shares
of our stock that could result in us owning (actually or constructively) an interest in a tenant that is
described in Section 856(d)(2)(B) of the Code if the income we derive from such tenant, taking into
account our other income that would not qualify under the gross income requirements of
Section 856(c) of the Code, would cause us to fail to satisfy any the gross income requirements
imposed on REITs); and

- any person from transferring shares of our stock if such transfer would result in shares of our stock

being beneficially owned by fewer than 100 persons (determined under the principles of
Section 856(a)(5) of the Code).

Any person who acquires or attempts or intends to acquire actual, beneficial or constructive ownership
of shares of our stock that will or may violate the ownership limits or any of the other restrictions on ownership
and transfer of our stock described above must give written notice immediately to us or, in the case of a
proposed or attempted transaction, provide us at least 15 days prior written notice, and provide us with such
other information as we may request in order to determine the effect, if any, of such transfer on our status
as a REIT.

The ownership limits and other restrictions on ownership and transfer of our stock described above
will not apply if our board of directors determines that it is no longer in our best interests to qualify as a
REIT or that compliance with any such restriction is no longer required in order for us to qualify as a REIT.
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Pursuant to our charter, if any purported transfer of our stock or other event that would cause a change
in the beneficial or constructive ownership of our stock would (i) result in any person violating any of the
ownership limits described above or such other ownership limit established by our board of directors, (ii) result
in us being “closely held” within the meaning of Section 856(h) of the Code (without regard to whether the
ownership interest is held during the last half of a taxable year) or (iii) otherwise cause us to fail to qualify as
a REIT, then the number of shares causing the violation (rounded up to the nearest whole share) will be
automatically transferred to, and held by, a trust for the exclusive benefit of one or more charitable beneficiaries
selected by us. The prohibited owner will have no rights in shares of our stock held by the trustee. The
automatic transfer will be effective as of the close of business on the business day prior to the date of the
violative transfer or other event that results in the transfer to the trust. Any dividend or other distribution paid
to the prohibited owner prior to our discovery that the shares had been automatically transferred to a trust
as described above must be repaid to the trustee upon demand. If the transfer to the trust as described above
is not automatically effective, for any reason, to prevent violation of the applicable restriction on ownership
and transfer of our stock, then the transfer of the number of shares that otherwise would cause any person to
violate the above restrictions will be void and of no force or effect, regardless of any action or inaction by
the board of directors, and the intended transferee will acquire no rights in the shares. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, if any transfer of our stock would result in shares of our stock being beneficially owned by fewer
than 100 persons (determined under the principles of Section 856(a)(5) of the Code), then any such
purported transfer will be void and of no force or effect and the intended transferee will acquire no rights in
the shares.

Shares of our stock transferred to the trustee are deemed offered for sale to us, or our designee, at a
price per share equal to the lesser of (i) the price per share in the transaction that resulted in the transfer of
the shares to the trust (or, if the event causing the transfer to the trust did not involve a purchase of such shares
at Market Price (as defined in our charter), the Market Price of the shares on the day of the event causing
the transfer of the trust) and (ii) the Market Price on the date we accept, or our designee accepts, such offer.
We may reduce the amount payable to the trustee by the amount of dividends and distributions paid to the
prohibited owner and owed by the prohibited owner to the trustee and pay the amount of such reduction to
the trustee for the benefit of the charitable beneficiary. We have the right to accept such offer until the trustee
has sold the shares of our stock held in the trust. Upon a sale to us, the interest of the charitable beneficiary
in the shares sold terminates and the trustee must distribute the net proceeds of the sale to the prohibited
owner and any dividends or other distributions held by the trustee with respect to such stock will be paid
to the charitable beneficiary.

If we do not exercise our right to purchase the shares held in the trust, the trustee must sell the shares
to a person or persons designated by the trustee who could own the shares without violating the ownership
limits or other restrictions on ownership and transfer of our stock within 20 days of receiving notice from us of
the transfer of shares to the trust. Upon such sale, the trustee must distribute to the prohibited owner an
amount equal to the lesser of (i) the price paid by the prohibited owner for the shares (or, if the event causing
the transfer to the trust did not involve a purchase of such shares at Market Price, the Market Price of the
shares on the day of the event causing the transfer of the trust) and (ii) the sales proceeds (net of commissions
and other expenses of sale) received by the trustee for the shares. The trustee may reduce the amount
payable to the prohibited owner by the amount of dividends and other distributions paid to the prohibited
owner and owed by the prohibited owner to the trustee. Any net sales proceeds in excess of the amount
payable to the prohibited owner will be immediately paid to the charitable beneficiary, together with any
dividends or other distributions thereon. In addition, if, prior to discovery by us that shares of our stock
have been transferred to the trustee, such shares of stock are sold by a prohibited owner, then such shares
shall be deemed to have been sold on behalf of the trust and, to the extent that the prohibited owner received
an amount for or in respect of such shares that exceeds the amount that such prohibited owner was
entitled to receive, such excess amount must be paid to the trustee upon demand.

The trustee will be designated by us and will be unaffiliated with us and with any prohibited owner.
Prior to the sale of any shares by the trust, the trustee will receive, in trust for the beneficiary, all dividends
and other distributions paid by us with respect to such shares, and may exercise all voting rights with respect
to such shares for the exclusive benefit of the charitable beneficiary.

Subject to Maryland law, effective as of the date that the shares have been transferred to the trust, the
trustee may, at the trustee’s sole and absolute discretion:
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- rescind as void any vote cast by a prohibited owner prior to our discovery that the shares have been
transferred to the trust; and

. recast the vote in accordance with the desires of the trustee acting for the benefit of the charitable
beneficiary.

However, if we have already taken irreversible corporate action, then the trustee may not rescind and
recast the vote.

If our board of directors determines that a proposed transfer or other event has taken place that
violates the restrictions on ownership and transfer of our stock set forth in our charter, our board of directors
may take such action as it deems advisable to refuse to give effect to or to prevent such transfer, including,
but not limited to, causing us to redeem shares of stock, refusing to give effect to the transfer on our books or
instituting proceedings to enjoin the transfer.

Every owner of 5% or more (or such lower percentage as required by the Code or the Treasury
Regulations promulgated thereunder) of the outstanding shares of our stock, within 30 days after the end of
each taxable year, must give written notice to us stating the name and address of such owner, the number
of shares of each class and series of our stock that the owner actually or beneficially owns and a description
of the manner in which the shares are held. Each such owner also must provide us in writing with any
additional information that we may request in order to determine the effect, if any, of the person’s actual or
beneficial ownership on our status as a REIT and to ensure compliance with the ownership limits and the
other restrictions on ownership and transfer of our stock set forth in our charter. In addition, any person
that is an actual, beneficial owner or constructive owner of shares of our stock and any person (including the
stockholder of record) who is holding shares of our stock for an actual, beneficial owner or constructive
owner must promptly disclose to us in writing such information as we may request in order to determine our
status as a REIT and comply with requirements of any taxing authority or governmental authority or to
determine such compliance.

Any certificates representing shares of our stock will bear a legend referring to the restrictions on
ownership and transfer of our stock described above or a statement that we will furnish a full statement
about the restrictions on ownership and transfer to a stockholder or request and without charge.

These restrictions on ownership and transfer could delay, defer or prevent a transaction or a change of
control of our company that might involve a premium price for our common stock that our stockholders
believe to be in their best interest.

Exchange Listing

Our common stock is listed on the NYSE under the symbol “NTST.” As of March 1, 2021, our common
stock was held by approximately 42 stockholders of record.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Our transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
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CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF MARYLAND LAW AND OUR CHARTER AND BYLAWS

The following is a description of certain provisions of Maryland law and of our charter and bylaws and
is only a summary. For a complete description, we refer you to our charter and our bylaws, which are filed as
exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part, and applicable Maryland law.

Our Board of Directors

Under our charter and bylaws, the number of directors of our company may be established, increased
or decreased only by a majority of our entire board of directors, but may not be fewer than the minimum
number required under the MGCL (which is one) nor, unless our bylaws are amended, more than 15. We have
elected by a provision of our charter to be subject to a provision of Maryland law requiring that, subject to
the rights of holders of one or more classes or series of stock, any vacancy may be filled only by a majority of
the remaining directors, even if the remaining directors do not constitute a quorum, and any director
elected to fill a vacancy will serve for the full term of the directorship in which such vacancy occurred and
until his or her successor is duly elected and qualifies.

Removal of Directors

Our charter provides that, subject to the rights of holders of one or more classes or series of preferred
stock to elect or remove one or more directors, a director may be removed, with or without cause, but only by
the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast generally in the election of directors.

Subtitle 8

Subtitle 8 of Title 3 of the MGCL permits a Maryland corporation with a class of equity securities
registered under the Exchange Act and at least three independent directors to elect, by provision in its
charter or bylaws or a resolution of its board of directors and notwithstanding any contrary provision in the
charter or bylaws, to be subject to any or all of five provisions which provide for:

+ aclassified board;
a two-thirds vote requirement for removing a director;
a requirement that the number of directors be fixed only by vote of the directors;

a requirement that a vacancy on the board of directors be filled only by a vote of the remaining
directors (whether or not they constitute a quorum) and for the remainder of the full term of the class
of directors in which the vacancy occurred and until a successor is elected and qualifies; or

+ a majority requirement for the calling of a special meeting of stockholders.

Our charter provides that vacancies on our board of directors may be filled only by the remaining
directors (whether or not they constitute a quorum) and that a director elected by the board of directors to
fill a vacancy will serve for the remainder of the full term of the directorship and until his or her successor is
duly elected and qualifies. We have not elected to be subject to any of the other provisions of Subtitle 8,
including the provisions that would permit us to classify our board of directors without stockholder approval.
Moreover, our charter provides that, without the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast on the
matter by stockholders entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, we may not elect to be subject
to the classified board provisions of Subtitle 8. Through provisions in our charter and bylaws unrelated to
Subtitle 8, we (i) vest in our board of directors the exclusive power to fix the number of directors, (ii) require,
unless called by our Chair, our chief executive officer, our president or our board of directors, the request of
stockholders entitled to cast a majority of all the votes entitled to be cast at the meeting to call a special
meeting of stockholders and (iii) provide that a director may be removed, with or without cause, but only by
the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast generally in the election of directors.

Meetings of Stockholders

Under our bylaws and pursuant to Maryland law, annual meetings of stockholders will be held each
year at a date and at the time and place determined by our board of directors. Special meetings of stockholders
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may be called by our board of directors, the Chair of our board of directors, our president or our chief
executive officer. Additionally, subject to the provisions of our bylaws, special meetings of the stockholders
to act on any matter must be called by our secretary upon the written request of stockholders entitled to cast
a majority of all the votes entitled to be cast on such matter at such meeting who have requested the

special meeting in accordance with the procedures set forth in, and provided the information and certifications
required by, our bylaws. Only matters set forth in the notice of the special meeting may be considered and
acted upon at such a meeting. Our secretary will inform the requesting stockholders of the reasonably
estimated cost of preparing and delivering the notice of meeting (including our proxy materials), and the
requesting stockholder must pay such estimated cost before our secretary may prepare and deliver the notice
of the special meeting.

Amendments to Our Charter and Bylaws

Under the MGCL and our charter, we generally cannot amend our charter unless declared advisable
by our board of directors and approved by the affirmative vote of stockholders entitled to cast a majority of
the votes entitled to be cast on the matter except for certain amendments related to the removal of directors
and the vote required to amend the provisions relating to removal, which must be declared advisable by
our board of directors and approved by the affirmative vote of stockholders entitled to cast not less than
two-thirds of all the votes entitled to be cast on the matter. Our board of directors, with the approval of a
majority of the entire board, and without any action by our stockholders, may also amend our charter to
increase or decrease the aggregate number of shares of stock or the number of shares of stock of any class or
series we are authorized to issue. Our board of directors may also amend our charter to change our name
or make certain other ministerial changes without stockholder approval.

Our board of directors has the power to adopt, alter or repeal any provision of our bylaws and to make
new bylaws. However, our board of directors may not amend the provisions of our bylaws relating to our
exemption from the “business combination” provisions of the MGCL, the “control share” provisions of the
MGCL or the adoption of a stockholder rights plan without the approval of a majority of the votes cast on the
matter by our stockholders entitled to vote generally in the election of directors. Our bylaws also provide
stockholders with the concurrent right to amend our bylaws by the affirmative vote of a majority of all votes
entitled to be cast on a matter.

Advance Notice of Director Nominations and New Business

Our bylaws provide that, with respect to an annual meeting of stockholders, nominations of individuals
for election to our board of directors and the proposal of business to be considered by stockholders at the
meeting may be made only:

. pursuant to our notice of the meeting;
+ by or at the direction of our board of directors; or

- by a stockholder who was a stockholder of record at the record date set by the board of directors for
the meeting, at the time of giving of the notice of the meeting and at the time of the meeting (and
any postponement or adjustment thereof), who is entitled to vote at the meeting in the election of each
individual so nominated or on such other business and who has complied with the advance notice
procedures set forth in, and provided the information and certifications required by, our bylaws.

With respect to special meetings of stockholders, our bylaws provide that only the business specified
in our notice of meeting may be brought before the special meeting of stockholders, and nominations of
individuals for election to our board of directors may be made only:

by or at the direction of our board of directors;

+ by a stockholder who has requested a special meeting for the purpose of electing directors in
compliance with our bylaws and has supplied the information required by our bylaws for each
individual the stockholder proposes to nominate for election; or

- provided that the meeting has been called in accordance with our bylaws for the purpose of electing
directors, by a stockholder who is a stockholder of record at the record date for the meeting, at the
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time of giving of the notice required by our bylaws and at the time of the meeting (and any
postponement or adjustment thereof), who is entitled to vote at the meeting in the election of each
individual so nominated and who has complied with the advance notice provisions set forth in, and
provided the information and certifications required by, our bylaws.

The purpose of requiring stockholders to give advance notice of nominations and other proposals is to
afford our board of directors and our stockholders the opportunity to consider the qualifications of the
proposed nominees or the advisability of the other proposals and, to the extent considered necessary by our
board of directors, to inform stockholders and make recommendations regarding the nominations or other
proposals. Although our bylaws do not give our board of directors the power to disapprove timely stockholder
nominations and proposals, our bylaws may have the effect of precluding a contest for the election of
directors or proposals for other action if the proper procedures are not followed, and of discouraging or
deterring a third party from conducting a solicitation of proxies to elect its own slate of directors to our board
of directors or to approve its own proposal.

Anti-Takeover Effect of Certain Provisions of Maryland Law and of Our Charter and Bylaws

The restrictions on ownership and transfer of our stock, the supermajority vote required to remove
directors, our election to be subject to the provision of Subtitle 8 vesting in our board of directors the
exclusive power to fill vacancies on our board of directors and the advance notice provisions of our bylaws
could delay, defer or prevent a transaction or a change of control of our company.

Further, a majority of our entire board of directors has the power to increase or decrease the aggregate
number of authorized shares of stock or the number of shares of any class or series of stock that we are
authorized to issue, to classify and reclassify any unissued shares of our stock into other classes or series of
stock, and to authorize us to issue the newly classified shares, as discussed above under the caption “Common
Stock.” As a result, our board of directors could authorize the issuance of shares of common stock or
another class or series of stock, including a class or series of preferred stock, that could have the effect of
delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of us. These actions may be taken without stockholder
approval unless such approval is required by applicable law, the terms of any other class or series of our
stock or the rules of any stock exchange or automated quotation system on which any of our stock is listed
or traded. We believe that the power of our board of directors to increase or decrease the number of authorized
shares of stock and to classify or reclassify unissued shares of our common stock or preferred stock and
thereafter to cause us to issue such shares of stock will provide us with increased flexibility in structuring
possible future financings and acquisitions and in meeting other needs which might arise.

Our charter and bylaws also provide that the number of our directors may be established only by our
board of directors, which prevents our stockholders from increasing the number of our directors and filling
any vacancies created by such increase with their own nominees. The provisions of our bylaws discussed
above under the captions “—Meetings of Stockholders” and “—Advance Notice of Director Nominations
and New Business” require stockholders seeking to call a special meeting, nominate an individual for election
as a director or propose other business at an annual or special meeting to comply with certain notice and
information requirements. We believe that these provisions will help to assure the continuity and stability of
our business strategies and policies as determined by our board of directors and promote good corporate
governance by providing us with clear procedures for calling special meetings, information about a
stockholder proponent’s interest in us and adequate time to consider stockholder nominees and other
business proposals. However, these provisions, alone or in combination, could make it more difficult for our
stockholders to remove incumbent directors or fill vacancies on our board of directors with their own
nominees and could delay, defer or prevent a change in control, including a proxy contest or tender offer
that might involve a premium price for our common stockholders or otherwise be in the best interest of our
stockholders.

No Stockholder Rights Plan

We do not currently have a stockholder rights plan, and our bylaws provide that we may not adopt a
stockholder rights plan in the future without (i) the approval of our stockholders by a majority of the votes
cast on the matter or (ii) ratification from our stockholders by a majority of the votes cast on the matter within
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12 months of adoption of the plan if the board of directors determines, in the exercise of its duties under
applicable law, that it is in our best interest to adopt a rights plan without the delay of seeking prior stockholder
approval.

Exclusive Forum

Our bylaws provide that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the
Circuit Court for Baltimore City, Maryland, or, if that court does not have jurisdiction, the United States
District Court for the District of Maryland, Northern Division, will be the sole and exclusive forum for (a) any
Internal Corporate Claim, as such term is defined in the MGCL, (b) any derivative action or proceeding
brought on our behalf (other than actions arising under federal securities laws), (c) any action asserting a
claim of breach of any duty owed by any of our directors, officers or other employees to us or to our
stockholders, (d) any action asserting a claim against us or any of our directors, officers or other employees
arising pursuant to any provision of the MGCL or our charter or bylaws or I any other action asserting a claim
against us or any of our directors, officers or other employees that is governed by the internal affairs
doctrine. These choice of forum provisions will not apply to suits brought to enforce a duty or liability
created by the Securities Act, the Exchange Act, or any other claim for which federal courts have exclusive
jurisdiction. Furthermore, our bylaws provide that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an
alternative forum, the federal district courts of the United States of America shall, to the fullest extent
permitted by law, be the sole and exclusive forum for the resolution of any claim arising under the Securities
Act. Although our bylaws contain the choice of forum provisions described above, it is possible that a court
could rule that such provisions are inapplicable for a particular claim or action or that such provisions are
unenforceable. For example, under the Securities Act, federal courts have concurrent jurisdiction over all
suits brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Securities Act, and investors cannot waive
compliance with the federal securities laws and the rules and regulations thereunder. In addition, the exclusive
forum provisions described above do not apply to any actions brought under the Exchange Act.

Limitation of Liability and Indemnification of Directors and Officers

Maryland law permits a Maryland corporation to include in its charter a provision eliminating the
liability of its directors and officers to the corporation and its stockholders for money damages except for
liability resulting from actual receipt of an improper benefit or profit in money, property or services or active
and deliberate dishonesty that is established by a final judgment and is material to the cause of action. Our
charter contains such a provision that eliminates such liability to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland
law.

The MGCL requires a Maryland corporation (unless its charter provides otherwise, which our charter
does not) to indemnify a director or officer who has been successful, on the merits or otherwise, in the defense
of any proceeding to which he or she is made or threatened to be made a party by reason of his or her
service in that capacity. The MGCL permits a Maryland corporation to indemnify its present and former
directors and officers, among others, against judgments, penalties, fines, settlements and reasonable expenses
actually incurred by them in connection with any proceeding to or in which they may be made or are
threatened to be made a party or witness by reason of their service in those or other capacities unless it is

established that:

+ the act or omission of the director or officer was material to the matter giving rise to the proceeding
and was committed in bad faith or was the result of active and deliberate dishonesty;

- the director or officer actually received an improper personal benefit in money, property or services;
or

+ in the case of any criminal proceeding, the director or officer had reasonable cause to believe that
the act or omission was unlawful.

However, under the MGCL, a Maryland corporation may not indemnify a director or officer for an
adverse judgment in a suit by or on behalf of the corporation or if the director or officer was adjudged liable
on the basis that personal benefit was improperly received, unless, in either case, a court orders
indemnification, and then only for expenses. A court may order indemnification if it determines that the
director or officer is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnification, even though the director or officer did
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not meet the prescribed standard of conduct or was adjudged liable on the basis that personal benefit was
improperly received. In addition, the MGCL permits a Maryland corporation to advance reasonable expenses
to a director or officer upon the corporation’s receipt of:

. awritten affirmation by the director or officer of his or her good faith belief that he or she has met
the standard of conduct necessary for indemnification by the corporation; and

+ a written undertaking, which may be unsecured, by the director or officer or on the director’s or
officer’s behalf to repay the amount paid if it shall ultimately be determined that the standard of
conduct has not been met.

Our charter obligates us, to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland law in effect from time to
time, to indemnify and to pay or reimburse reasonable expenses in advance of final disposition of a
proceeding without requiring a preliminary determination of the director’s or officer’s ultimate entitlement
to indemnification to:

. any present or former director or officer who is made or threatened to be made a party to, or witness
in, the proceeding by reason of his or her service in that capacity; or

+ any individual who, while a director or officer of our company and at our request, serves or has
served as a director, officer, partner, member, manager, trustee, employee or agent of another
corporation, real estate investment trust, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, trust,
employee benefit plan or any other enterprise and who is made or threatened to be made a party to, or
witness, in the proceeding by reason of his or her service in that capacity.

Our charter also permits us, with the approval of our board of directors, to indemnify and advance
expenses to any person who served a predecessor of ours in any of the capacities described above and to
any employee or agent of our company or a predecessor of our company.

Insofar as the foregoing provisions permit indemnification of directors, officers or persons controlling
us for liability arising under the Securities Act, we have been informed that, in the opinion of the SEC, this
indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable.

We have entered into indemnification agreements with each of our directors and executive officers.

REIT Qualification

Our charter provides that our board of directors may revoke or otherwise terminate our REIT election,
without approval of our stockholders, if it determines that it is no longer in our best interest to attempt to, or
continue to, qualify as a REIT.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT OF OUR OPERATING PARTNERSHIP

The following is a summary of the material provisions of the limited partnership agreement of NETSTREIT,
L.P, which we refer to as the “partnership agreement.” The following description does not purport to be complete
and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference to applicable provisions of the Delaware Revised
Uniform Limited Partnership Act, as amended, and the partnership agreement. For a complete description, we
refer you to the partnership agreement, which is filed as an exhibit to the registration statement of which this
prospectus is a part. For the purposes of this section, references to the “general partner” refer to NETSTREIT GP,
LLC.

General

Substantially all of our assets are indirectly held by, and our operations are conducted through, our
operating partnership. Our operating partnership has two classes of OP units, Class A OP units and Class B
OP units. The Class A OP units and Class B OP units have identical rights and preferences. We hold
Class A OP units for each outstanding share of our common stock, subject to certain adjustments.
NETSTREIT GP, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary, is the sole general partner of our operating partnership.
Upon completion of this offering, we will own approximately 98% of the limited partnership interests in our
operating partnership.

Each limited partner of our operating partnership has the right to require our operating partnership to
redeem part or all of its OP units for cash, based upon the value of an equivalent number of shares of our
common stock at the time of the redemption, or, at our election, shares of our common stock on a one-for-
one basis, subject to certain adjustments and the restrictions on ownership and transfer of our stock set forth
in our charter and described under the section entitled “Description of Our Capital Stock—Restrictions on
Ownership and Transfer.”

In the future some of our property acquisitions could be financed by issuing units of our operating
partnership in exchange for property owned by third parties. Such third parties would then be entitled to
share in cash distributions from, and in the profits and losses of, our operating partnership in proportion to
their respective percentage interests in our operating partnership if and to the extent authorized by us. These
operating partnership units generally would be exchangeable for cash or, at our election, shares of our
common stock at a one-to-one ratio, subject to adjustment in certain circumstances, from time to time when
the operating partnership units are issued. The OP units are not listed on any exchange or quoted on any
national market system.

Provisions in the partnership agreement may delay or make more difficult unsolicited acquisitions of
us or changes in our control. These provisions could discourage third parties from making proposals
involving an unsolicited acquisition of us or change of our control, although some stockholders might
consider such proposals, if made, desirable. These provisions also make it more difficult for third parties to
alter the management structure of our operating partnership without the concurrence of our board of directors.
These provisions include, among others:

- redemption rights of limited partners and certain assignees units or other operating partnership
interests;

- transfer restrictions on units or other partnership interests and admission restrictions;

+ arequirement that NETSTREIT GP, LLC may not be removed as the general partner of our operating
partnership without its consent;

- the ability of the general partner in some cases to amend the partnership agreement and to cause
our operating partnership to issue preferred partnership interests in our operating partnership with
terms that it may determine, in either case, without the approval or consent of any limited partner;
and

- the right of any limited partners to consent to transfers of units or other operating partnership
interests except under specified circumstances, including in connection with mergers, consolidations
and other business combinations involving us.
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Purpose, Business and Management

Our operating partnership is formed for the purpose of conducting any business permitted by or
under the Delaware Revised Uniform Limited Partnership Act. Our operating partnership may enter into
any partnership, joint venture or other similar arrangement and may own interests in any other entity engaged
in any business permitted by or under the Delaware Revised Uniform Limited Partnership Act. However,
our operating partnership may not, without the general partner’s specific consent, which it may give or
withhold in its sole and absolute discretion, take, or refrain from taking, any action that, in its judgment, in its
sole and absolute discretion:

- could adversely affect our ability to qualify or to continue to qualify as a REIT;

+ could subject us to any additional taxes under Section 857 or Section 4981 of the Code or any other
related or successor provision of the Code; or

+ could violate any law or regulation of any governmental body or agency having jurisdiction over us,
our securities or our operating partnership.

In general, our board of directors will manage the business and affairs of our operating partnership
through our control of the general partner, which directs the operating partnership’s business and affairs. If
there is a conflict between the interests of our stockholders on one hand and any limited partners on the other
hand, we will endeavor in good faith to resolve the conflict in a manner not adverse to either our stockholders
or any limited partners; provided, however, that at such times as we own a controlling economic interest
in our operating partnership, any conflict that cannot be resolved in a manner not adverse to either our
stockholders or any limited partners shall be resolved in favor of our stockholders. The partnership agreement
also provides that the general partner will not be liable to our operating partnership, its partners or any
other person bound by the partnership agreement for monetary damages for losses sustained, liabilities
incurred or benefits not derived by our operating partnership or any limited partner, except for liability for
the general partner’s intentional harm or gross negligence. Moreover, the partnership agreement provides
that our operating partnership is required to indemnify the general partner and its trustees, directors,
officers, shareholders, partners, members, employees, representatives or agents, or affiliates of the general
partner against any and all claims that relate to the operations of our operating partnership, except (i) if the
act or omission of the person was material to the matter giving rise to the action and either was committed in
bad faith or was the result of active and deliberate dishonesty, (ii) for any loss resulting from any transaction
for which the indemnified party actually received an improper personal benefit in money, property or
services or otherwise in violation or breach of any provision of the partnership agreement or (iii) in the case
of a criminal proceeding, if the indemnified person had reason to believe that the act or omission was
unlawful.

Except as otherwise expressly provided in the partnership agreement and subject to the rights of
future holders of any class or series of partnership interest, all management powers over the business and
affairs of our operating partnership are exclusively vested in NETSTREIT GP, LLC, in its capacity as the sole
general partner of our operating partnership. No limited partner, in its capacity as a limited partner, will
have any right to participate in the operation, management or control of our operating partnership’s business,
transact any business in our operating partnership’s name or have the power to sign documents for or
otherwise bind our operating partnership. NETSTREIT GP, LLC may not be removed as the general partner
of our operating partnership, with or without cause, without its consent, which it may give or withhold in its
sole and absolute discretion. In addition to the powers granted to the general partner under applicable law
or any provision of the partnership agreement, but subject to certain other provisions of the partnership
agreement and the rights of future holders of any class or series of partnership interest, NETSTREIT GP,
LLGC, in its capacity as the general partner of our operating partnership, has the full power and authority to
do all things that it deems necessary or desirable to conduct the business and affairs of our operating
partnership, to exercise or direct the exercise of all of the powers of our operating partnership and to effectuate
the purposes of our operating partnership without the approval or consent of any limited partner. The
general partner may authorize our operating partnership to incur debt and enter into credit, guarantee,
financing or refinancing arrangements for any purpose, including, without limitation, in connection with
any acquisition of properties, on such terms as it determines to be appropriate, and to acquire or dispose of
any, all or substantially all of its assets (including goodwill), dissolve, merge, consolidate, reorganize or
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otherwise combine with another entity, without the approval or consent of any limited partner. Subject to the
exceptions described below, the general partner may execute, deliver and perform agreements and
transactions on behalf of our operating partnership without the approval or consent of any limited partner.

Transferability of Operating Partnership Units; Extraordinary Transactions

NETSTREIT GP, LLC, the general partner of our operating partnership, is generally unable to withdraw
voluntarily from our operating partnership or transfer any of its interest in our operating partnership unless
the withdrawal or transfer is: (i) to our affiliate; (ii) to a wholly owned subsidiary of the general partner or
the owner of all of the ownership interests of the general partner; or (iii) otherwise expressly permitted under
the partnership agreement. With certain limited exceptions, the limited partners may not transfer their
interests in our operating partnership, in whole or in part, without the general partner’s prior written consent,
which consent may be withheld in the general partner’s sole and absolute discretion.

The partnership agreement requires the general partner or us, as the parent of the general partner, to
obtain the approval of a majority in interest of the outside limited partners in our operating partnership
(which excludes us and our subsidiaries) to transfer any of its interest in our operating partnership in
connection with a merger, consolidation or other combination of the operating partnership’s assets with
another entity not in the ordinary course of our operating partnership’s business, a sale of all or substantially
all of the operating partnership’s assets or a reclassification, recapitalization or change of any outstanding
shares of our or the general partner’s stock or other outstanding equity interests, unless:

- in connection with such a transaction, all limited partners (other than us), will receive, or will have
the right to elect to receive, for each common unit an amount of cash, securities or other property
equal in value to the greatest amount of cash, securities or other property paid in the transaction to a
holder of shares of our common stock, provided, that if, in connection with the transaction, a
purchase, tender or exchange offer shall have been made to and accepted by the holders of more
than 50% of the outstanding shares of our common stock, each holder of common units (other than
those held by us) shall receive, or shall have the right to elect to receive, the greatest amount of cash,
securities or other property that a limited partner would have received had it exercised its
redemption right and received shares of our common stock in exchange for its partnership units
immediately prior to the expiration of such purchase, tender or exchange offer and had thereupon
accepted such purchase, tender or exchange offer;

- all of the following conditions are met: (i) substantially all of the assets of the surviving entity are
owned, directly or indirectly, by our operating partnership or another limited partnership or limited
liability company, which is the survivor of a merger, consolidation or combination of assets with the
operating partnership, which we refer to as the surviving partnership; (ii) the limited partners that
held common units immediately prior to consummation of the transaction, other than us, own
a percentage interest of the surviving partnership based on the relative fair market values of the net
assets of the operating partnership and the other net assets of the surviving partnership
immediately prior to the consummation of such transaction; (iii) the rights, preferences and privileges
of the limited partners in the surviving partnership are at least as favorable as those in effect
immediately prior to the consummation of such transaction and as those applicable to any other
limited partners or non-managing members of the surviving partnership; and (iv) the rights of such
limited partners include at least one of the following: (A) the right to redeem their interests in the
surviving partnership for consideration paid in the transaction to a holder of shares of our common
stock or (B) the right to redeem their interests in the surviving partnership for cash on terms
substantially equivalent to those in effect immediately prior to consummation of such transaction,
or, if the ultimate controlling person of the surviving partnership has publicly traded common equity
securities, such common equity securities, with an exchange ratio based on the determination of
relative fair market value of such securities and the shares of our common stock as of the time of the
transaction; or

.+ we are the surviving entity in the transaction, the shares of our common stock remain outstanding
and our stockholders do not receive cash, securities or other property in the transaction.
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Additional Limited Partners

We may cause our operating partnership to issue additional units or other partnership interests and to
admit additional limited partners to our operating partnership from time to time, on such terms and
conditions and for such capital contributions as we may establish in our sole and absolute discretion, without
the approval or consent of any limited partner, including:

- upon the conversion, redemption or exchange of any debt, units or other partnership interests or
securities issued by our operating partnership;

. for less than fair market value; or

- in connection with any merger of any other entity into our operating partnership.

The net capital contribution need not be equal for all limited partners. Each person admitted as an
additional limited partner must make certain representations to each other partner relating to, among other
matters, such person’s ownership of any tenant of us or our operating partnership. No person may be
admitted as an additional limited partner without our consent, which we may give or withhold in our sole
and absolute discretion, and no approval or consent of any limited partner will be required in connection with
the admission of any additional limited partner.

Our operating partnership may issue additional partnership interests in one or more classes, or one or
more series of any of such classes, with such designations, preferences, conversion or other rights, voting
powers or rights, restrictions, limitations as to distributions, qualifications or terms or conditions of redemption
(including, without limitation, terms that may be senior or otherwise entitled to preference over the units)
as we may determine, in our sole and absolute discretion, without the approval of any limited partner or any
other person. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, we may specify, as to any such class or
series of partnership interest:

- the allocations of items of partnership income, gain, loss, deduction and credit to each such class or
series of partnership interest;

- the right of each such class or series of partnership interest to share, on a junior, senior or pari passu
basis, in distributions;

+ the rights of each such class or series of partnership interest upon dissolution and liquidation of our
operating partnership;

- the voting rights, if any, of each such class or series of partnership interest; and

- the conversion, redemption or exchange rights applicable to each such class or series of partnership
interest.

Ability to Engage in Other Businesses; Conflicts of Interest

We may not conduct any business other than in connection with the ownership, acquisition and
disposition of partnership interests, the management of the business and affairs of our operating partnership
and its general partner, our operation as a reporting company with a class (or classes) of securities registered
under the Exchange Act, our operations as a REIT, the offering, sale, syndication, private placement or
public offering of stock, bonds, securities or other interests, financing or refinancing of any type related to
our operating partnership or its assets or activities and such activities as are incidental to those activities
discussed above. In general, we must contribute any assets or funds that we acquire to our operating
partnership in exchange for additional partnership interests. We may, however, in our sole and absolute
discretion, from time to time hold or acquire assets in our own name or otherwise other than through our
operating partnership so long as we take commercially reasonable measures to ensure that the economic
benefits and burdens of such property are otherwise vested in our operating partnership.
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U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following discussion summarizes the taxation of the Company and the material U.S. federal
income tax consequences to holders of shares of our common stock. The tax treatment of a holder will vary
depending upon the holder’s particular situation, and this summary addresses only holders that hold these
shares as capital assets and does not deal with all aspects of taxation that may be relevant to particular
holders in light of their personal investment or tax circumstances. This summary also does not deal with all
aspects of taxation that may be relevant to certain types of holders to which special provisions of the U.S.
federal income tax laws apply, including:

. dealers in securities or currencies;

- traders in securities that elect to use a mark-to-market method of accounting for such traders’
securities holdings;

+ banks;

+ insurance companies;

- entities treated as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes;
. persons liable for the alternative minimum tax;

- tax-exempt organizations (except to the limited extent discussed in “—Taxation of Tax-Exempt U.S.
Holders of Our Common Stock” below);

«

+ non-U.S. individuals and foreign corporations (except to the limited extent discussed in “—Taxation

of Non-U.S. Holders of Our Common Stock” below);
« U.S. expatriates;
+ subchapter S corporations;
- regulated investment companies and REITs;
. trust and estates;

+ holders who receive our stock through the exercise of employee stock options or otherwise as
compensation;

» o« ” «

- persons holding our stock as part of a “straddle,” “hedge,” “conversion transaction,” “synthetic

security” or other integrated investment;
+ persons holding our stock through a partnership or similar pass-through entity;

- persons that purchase or sell shares of common stock as part of a wash sale for U.S. federal income
tax purposes;

- persons subject to special tax accounting rules as a result of their use of applicable financial
statements within the meaning of Section 451(b)(3) of the Code; and

.+ U.S. stockholders whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar.

This summary is based on the Code, its legislative history, existing and proposed regulations under
the Code, published rulings and court decisions. This summary describes the provisions of these sources of
law only as they are currently in effect. All of these sources of law may change at any time, and any change
in the law may apply retroactively.

If a partnership holds shares of our common stock, the U.S. federal income tax treatment of a partner
will generally depend on the status of the partner and the tax treatment of the partnership. A partnerin a
partnership holding our common stock should consult such partner’s tax advisor with regard to the U.S.
federal income tax treatment of an investment in our common stock.

We urge you to consult with your tax advisors regarding the tax consequences to you of acquiring,
owning and selling our common stock, including the U.S. federal, state, local and foreign tax
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consequences of acquiring, owning and selling our common stock in your particular circumstances
and potential changes in applicable laws.

Taxation of the Company

We elected to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes commencing with our short
taxable year ended December 31, 2019. We believe that, commencing with our short taxable year ended
December 31, 2019, we have been organized and have operated in conformity with the requirements for
qualification and taxation as a REIT under the Code, and that our organization and current and proposed
method of operations will enable us to continue to meet the requirements for qualification and taxation as a
REIT for our taxable year ending December 31, 2021 and subsequent taxable years.

In connection with this offering, Winston & Strawn LLP will render an opinion that we qualified to be
taxed as a REIT under the U.S. federal income tax laws commencing with our short taxable year ended
December 31, 2019, and our organization and current and proposed method of operations will enable us to
continue to satisfy the requirements for qualification and taxation as a REIT under the U.S. federal income tax
laws for our taxable year ending December 31, 2021 and subsequent taxable years. Investors should be
aware that Winston & Strawn LLP’s opinion will be based upon customary assumptions, will be conditioned
upon certain representations made by us as to factual matters, including representations regarding the
nature of our assets and the conduct of our business, is not binding upon the IRS, or any court and speaks
only as of the date issued. In addition, Winston & Strawn LLP’s opinion will be based on existing U.S. federal
income tax law governing qualification as a REIT, which is subject to change either prospectively or
retroactively. Moreover, our qualification and taxation as a REIT will depend upon our ability to meet on a
continuing basis, through actual results, certain qualification tests set forth in the U.S. federal income tax laws.
Those qualification tests involve the percentage of income that we earn from specified sources, the percentage
of our assets that falls within specified categories, the diversity of our capital stock ownership, and
the percentage of our earnings that we distribute. In addition, certain of the asset tests depend upon the fair
market values of assets that we own directly or indirectly, and such values may not be susceptible to a
precise determination. Winston & Strawn LLP will not review our compliance with those tests on a continuing
basis. Accordingly, no assurance can be given that our actual results of operations for any particular
taxable year will satisfy such requirements. Winston & Strawn LLP’s opinion does not foreclose the possibility
that we may have to use one or more of the REIT savings provisions described below, which could require
us to pay an excise or penalty tax (which could be material) in order for us to maintain our REIT qualification.
For a discussion of the tax consequences of our failure to qualify as a REIT, see “—Failure to Qualify.”

Taxation of REITs in General

As indicated above, our qualification and taxation as a REIT depends upon our ability to meet, on a
continuing basis, various qualification requirements imposed upon REITs by the Code. The principal
qualification requirements are summarized below under “—Requirements for Qualification—General.” While
we intend to operate so that we qualify as a REIT, no assurance can be given that the IRS will not challenge
our qualification, or that we will be able to operate in accordance with the REIT requirements in the future. See
“—Failure to Qualify.”

Provided that we qualify as a REIT, generally we will be entitled to a deduction for distributions that
we pay that are treated as dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes and therefore will not be subject to
U.S. federal corporate income tax on our taxable income that is currently distributed to our stockholders.
This treatment substantially eliminates the “double taxation” at the corporate and stockholder levels that
generally results from owning stock in a regular corporation. In general, the income that we generate is taxed
only at the stockholder level upon distribution to our stockholders.

Currently, most domestic stockholders of regular corporations that are individuals, trusts or estates are
taxed on corporate distributions at a maximum tax rate of 20% (the same tax rate that applies to long-term
capital gains). Dividends payable by REITs, however, generally are not eligible for such reduced rates. However,
for taxable years beginning before January 1, 2026, a 20% deduction (subject to certain limitations) is
available to individual taxpayers with respect to ordinary dividends, resulting in a 29.6% maximum U.S.
federal income tax rate (plus the 3.8% Medicare tax, if applicable) for individual U.S. stockholders. See
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“—Taxation of Stockholders.” For certain individuals, trusts and estates, an additional 3.8% Medicare tax also
applies to net investment income (such as dividends and capital gains).

Our tax attributes, such as net operating losses (if any), generally do not pass through to our

stockholders, subject to special rules for certain items such as the capital gains that we recognize. See
“—Taxation of Stockholders.”

If we qualify as a REIT, we will nonetheless be subject to U.S. federal tax in the following circumstances:

We will be taxed at the regular corporate rate on any undistributed taxable income, including
undistributed net capital gains.

If we have net income from prohibited transactions, which are, in general, sales or other dispositions
of inventory or property held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of business,
other than foreclosure property, such income will be subject to a 100% tax. See “—Prohibited
Transactions” below.

If we elect to treat property that we acquire in connection with a foreclosure of a mortgage loan or
certain leasehold terminations as “foreclosure property,” we may thereby avoid the 100% tax on gain
from a resale of that property (if the sale would otherwise constitute a prohibited transaction), but
the income from the sale or operation of the property may be subject to corporate income tax at the
corporate tax rate.

If we fail to satisfy the 75% gross income test or the 95% gross income test, as discussed below under
“—Income Tests,” but nonetheless maintain our qualification as a REIT because we satisfy other
requirements, we will be subject to a 100% tax on an amount based on the magnitude of the failure,
as adjusted to reflect the profit margin associated with our gross income.

If we violate the asset tests (other than certain de minimis violations) or other requirements
applicable to REITS, as described below, and yet maintain our qualification as a REIT because there
is reasonable cause for the failure and other applicable requirements are met, we may be subject to an
excise tax. In that case, the amount of the excise tax will be at least $50,000 per failure, and, in the
case of certain asset test failures, will be determined as the amount of net income generated by the
assets in question multiplied by the corporate tax rate if that amount exceeds $50,000 per failure.

If we fail to distribute during each calendar year at least the sum of (a) 85% of our REIT ordinary
income for such year, (b) 95% of our REIT capital gain net income for such year, and (c) any
undistributed taxable income from prior periods, we would be subject to a nondeductible 4% excise
tax on the excess of the required distribution over the sum of (i) the amounts that we actually
distributed and (ii) the amounts we retained and upon which we paid income tax at the corporate
level.

We may be required to pay monetary penalties to the IRS in certain circumstances, including if we
fail to meet record keeping requirements intended to monitor our compliance with rules relating to
the composition of a REIT’s stockholders, as described below in “—Requirements for Qualification—
General”

A 100% tax may be imposed on transactions between us and a TRS that do not reflect arm’s-length
terms.

If we acquire any asset from a C corporation, or a corporation that generally is subject to full corporate-
level tax, in a merger or other transaction in which we acquire a basis in the asset that is determined
by reference either to the C corporation’s basis in the asset or to another asset, we will pay tax at

the corporate tax rate if we recognize gain on the sale or disposition of the asset during the five-year
period after we acquire the asset provided no election is made for the transaction to be taxable on

a current basis. The amount of gain on which we will pay tax is the lesser of:

- the amount of gain that we recognize at the time of the sale or disposition, and

+ the amount of gain that we would have recognized if we had sold the asset at the time we
acquired it.
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- The earnings of any of our subsidiaries that are subchapter C corporations, including NETSTREIT
TRS and any other subsidiary we may elect to treat as a TRS, are subject to U.S. federal corporate
income tax.

In addition, we and our subsidiaries may be subject to a variety of taxes, including payroll taxes and
state and local and foreign income, property and other taxes on our assets and operations. We could also be
subject to tax in situations and on transactions not presently contemplated.

Requirements for Qualification—General
The Code defines a REIT as a corporation, trust or association:
(1) thatis managed by one or more trustees or directors;

(2) the beneficial ownership of which is evidenced by transferable shares, or by transferable
certificates of beneficial interest;

(3) that would be taxable as a domestic corporation but for its election to be subject to tax as a REIT;

(4) that is neither a financial institution nor an insurance company subject to specific provisions of

the Code;
(5) the beneficial ownership of which is held by 100 or more persons;

(6) inwhich, during the last half of each taxable year, not more than 50% in value of the outstanding
stock is owned, directly or indirectly, by five or fewer “individuals” (as defined in the Code to
include specified tax-exempt entities);

(7) that elects to be taxed as a REIT, or has made such election for a previous taxable year, and
satisfies all relevant filing and other administrative requirements that must be met to elect and
maintain REIT qualification; and

(8) that meets other tests described below, including with respect to the nature of its income and
assets.

The Code provides that conditions (1) through (4), (7) and (8) must be met during the entire taxable
year, and that condition (5) must be met during at least 335 days of a taxable year of 12 months, or during a
proportionate part of a shorter taxable year. Conditions (5) and (6) applied to us beginning with our 2020 tax
year.

In addition, our charter contains restrictions on the ownership and transfer of our stock that are
intended to assist us in continuing to satisfy these requirements; however, they may not ensure that we will,
in all cases, be able to satisfy these requirements. The provisions of our charter restricting the ownership
and transfer of our common stock are described in “Description of Our Capital Stock—Restrictions on
Ownership and Transfer.”

To monitor compliance with the share ownership requirements, we generally are required to maintain
records regarding the actual ownership of our shares. To do so, we must demand written statements each
year from the record holders of significant percentages of our stock pursuant to which the record holders must
disclose the actual owners of the shares (i.e, the persons required to include our distributions in their gross
income). We must maintain a list of those persons failing or refusing to comply with this demand as part of our
records. We could be subject to monetary penalties if we fail to comply with these record-keeping
requirements. If you fail or refuse to comply with the demands, you will be required by Treasury regulations
to submit a statement with your U.S. federal income tax return disclosing your actual ownership of our
shares and other information.

In addition, a corporation generally may not elect to become a REIT unless its taxable year is the
calendar year. We have adopted December 31 as our year-end, and thereby satisfy this requirement.

The Code provides relief from violations of the REIT gross income requirements, as described below
under “—Income Tests,” in cases where a violation is due to reasonable cause and not willful neglect, and
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other requirements are met, including the payment of a penalty tax that is based upon the magnitude of the
violation. In addition, certain provisions of the Code extend similar relief in the case of certain violations

of the REIT asset requirements (see “—Asset Tests” below) and other REIT requirements, again provided that
the violation is due to reasonable cause and not willful neglect, and other conditions are met, including the
payment of a penalty tax. If we fail to satisfy any of the various REIT requirements, there can be no assurance
that these relief provisions would be available to enable us to maintain our qualification as a REIT, and,

even if such relief provisions are available, the amount of any resultant penalty tax could be substantial.

Effect of Subsidiary Entities

Ownership of Partnership Interests

An unincorporated domestic entity, such as a partnership, limited liability company, or trust, that has a
single owner, generally is not treated as an entity separate from its owner for U.S. federal income tax purposes.
An unincorporated domestic entity with two or more owners for U.S. federal income tax purposes generally
is treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes. If we are a partner in an entity that is treated as
a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes, Treasury regulations provide that we are deemed to
own our proportionate share of the partnership’s assets, and to earn our proportionate share of the
partnership’s income, for purposes of the asset and gross income tests applicable to REITs. Our proportionate
share of a partnership’s assets and income is based on our capital interest in the partnership (except that,
for purposes of the 10% asset test (see “—Asset Tests” below), our proportionate share of the partnership’s
assets is based on our proportionate interest in the equity and certain debt securities issued by the
partnership). In addition, the assets and gross income of the partnership are deemed to retain the same
character in our hands. Thus, our proportionate share of the assets and items of income of any partnerships
in which we own interests will be treated as our assets and items of income for purposes of applying the REIT
requirements.

Disregarded Subsidiaries

If we own a corporate subsidiary that is a “qualified REIT subsidiary,” that subsidiary is generally
disregarded for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and all of the subsidiary’s assets, liabilities and items of
income, deduction and credit are treated for U.S. federal income tax purposes as our assets, liabilities and
items of income, deduction and credit, including for purposes of the gross income and asset tests applicable
to REITs. A qualified REIT subsidiary is any corporation, other than a TRS (as described below), with
respect to which 100% of the stock of such corporation is held by the REIT. Other domestic entities that are
wholly owned by us, including single member limited liability companies that have not elected to be taxed as
corporations for U.S. federal income tax purposes, are also generally disregarded as separate entities for
U.S. federal income tax purposes, including for purposes of the REIT income and asset tests. Disregarded
subsidiaries, along with any partnerships in which we hold an equity interest, are sometimes referred to herein
as “pass-through subsidiaries.”

In the event that a disregarded subsidiary of ours ceases to be wholly owned—for example, if any
equity interest in the subsidiary is acquired by a person other than us or another disregarded subsidiary of
ours—the subsidiary’s separate existence would no longer be disregarded for U.S. federal income tax purposes.
Instead, the subsidiary would have multiple owners and would be treated as either a partnership or a
taxable corporation. Such an event could, depending on the circumstances, adversely affect our ability to
satisfy the various asset and gross income requirements applicable to REITs, including the requirement that
REITs generally may not own, directly or indirectly, more than 10% of the securities of another corporation.
See “—Asset Tests” and “—Income Tests.”

Taxable REIT Subsidiaries

We may jointly elect with any of our subsidiary corporations, whether or not wholly owned, to treat
such subsidiary corporations as TRSs. A REIT is permitted to own up to 100% of the stock of one or more
TRSs. A domestic TRS is a fully taxable corporation that may earn income that would not be qualifying income
if earned directly by the parent REIT. The subsidiary and the REIT must jointly elect to treat the subsidiary
as a TRS. A corporation with respect to which a TRS directly or indirectly owns more than 35% of the voting
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power or value of the stock will automatically be treated as a TRS. We generally may not own more than 10%
of the securities of a taxable corporation, as measured by voting power or value, unless we and such
corporation jointly elect to treat such corporation as a TRS. Overall, no more than 20% of the value of a
REIT’s assets may consist of stock or securities of one or more TRSs. We currently have one TRS, NETSTREIT
TRS.

The separate existence of a TRS or other taxable corporation is not ignored for U.S. federal income tax
purposes. Accordingly, a TRS or other taxable corporation generally will be subject to U.S. federal corporate
income tax on its earnings, which may reduce the cash flow that we and our subsidiaries generate in the
aggregate, and may reduce our ability to make distributions to our stockholders.

We are not treated for U.S. federal income tax purposes as holding the assets of a TRS or other taxable
subsidiary corporation or as receiving any income that the subsidiary earns. Rather, the stock issued by a
taxable subsidiary to us is an asset in our hands, and we treat the distributions paid to us from such taxable
subsidiary, if any, as income. This treatment can affect our income and asset test calculations, as described
below. Because we do not include the assets and income of TRSs or other taxable subsidiary corporations
in determining our compliance with the REIT requirements, we may use such entities to undertake indirectly
activities that the REIT rules might otherwise preclude us from doing directly or through pass-through
subsidiaries. For example, we may use TRSs or other taxable subsidiary corporations to conduct activities
that give rise to certain categories of income such as management fees or activities that would be treated in
our hands as prohibited transactions.

Certain restrictions imposed on TRSs (as well as on taxable corporations generally) are intended to
ensure that such entities will be subject to appropriate levels of U.S. federal income taxation. First, overall
limitations on the deductibility of net interest expense by businesses could apply to our TRS. In addition, if
amounts are paid to a REIT or deducted by a TRS due to transactions between the REIT and a TRS that exceed
the amount that would be paid to or deducted by a party in an arm’s-length transaction, the REIT generally
will be subject to an excise tax equal to 100% of such excess. We intend to scrutinize all of our transactions with
any of our subsidiaries that are treated as TRSs in an effort to ensure that we do not become subject to this
excise tax; however, we cannot assure you that we will be successful in avoiding this excise tax.

Income Tests

In order to qualify as a REIT, we must satisfy two gross income requirements on an annual basis. First,
at least 75% of our gross income for each taxable year, excluding gross income from sales of inventory or
dealer property in “prohibited transactions” and from certain hedging transactions, generally must be derived
from investments relating to real property or mortgages on real property, including interest income
derived from mortgage loans secured by real property or interests in real property (including certain types
of mortgage-backed securities), “rents from real property,” distributions received from other REITs, income
derived from REMICs in proportion to the real estate mortgages held by the REMIC, and gains from the
sale of real estate assets, as well as specified income from temporary investments.

Second, at least 95% of our gross income in each taxable year, excluding gross income from prohibited
transactions and certain hedging transactions, must be derived from some combination of such income
from investments in real property (i.e., income that qualifies under the 75% income test described above), as
well as other distributions, interest, and gain from the sale or disposition of stock or securities, which need
not have any relation to real property.

Rents received by us will qualify as “rents from real property” in satisfying the gross income
requirements described above only if several conditions are met. If rent is partly attributable to personal
property leased in connection with a lease of real property, the portion of the rent that is attributable to the
personal property will not qualify as “rents from real property” unless it constitutes 15% or less of the total rent
received under the lease. In addition, the amount of rent must not be based in whole or in part on the
income or profits of any person. Amounts received as rent, however, generally will not be excluded from
rents from real property solely by reason of being based on fixed percentages of gross receipts or sales.
Moreover, for rents received to qualify as “rents from real property,” we generally must not operate or manage
the property or furnish or render services to the tenants of such property, other than through an “independent
contractor” from which we derive no revenue. We are permitted, however, to perform services that are
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“usually or customarily rendered” in connection with the rental of space for occupancy only and which are
not otherwise considered rendered to the occupant of the property. In addition, we may directly or indirectly
provide noncustomary services to tenants of our properties without disqualifying all of the rent from the
property if the payments for such services do not exceed 1% of the total gross income from the properties.
For purposes of this test, we are deemed to have received income from such noncustomary services in an
amount equal to at least 150% of the direct cost of providing the services. Moreover, we are generally permitted
to provide services to tenants or others through a TRS without disqualifying the rental income received
from tenants for purposes of the income tests. Also, rental income will qualify as rents from real property
only to the extent that we do not directly or constructively hold a 10% or greater interest, as measured by vote
or value, in the tenant’s equity.

We may directly or indirectly receive distributions from TRSs or other corporations that are not REITs
or qualified REIT subsidiaries. These distributions generally are treated as dividend income to the extent of
the earnings and profits of the distributing corporation. Such distributions will generally constitute
qualifying income for purposes of the 95% gross income test, but not for purposes of the 75% gross income
test. Any distributions that we receive from a REIT, however, will be qualifying income for purposes of both the
95% and 75% income tests.

We and our subsidiaries may enter into hedging transactions with respect to one or more of our assets
or liabilities. Hedging transactions could take a variety of forms, including interest rate swap agreements,
interest rate cap agreements, options, futures contracts, forward rate agreements or similar financial
instruments. Except to the extent provided by Treasury regulations, any income from a hedging transaction
we entered into (i) in the normal course of our business primarily to manage risk of interest rate, inflation
and/or currency fluctuations with respect to borrowings made or to be made, or ordinary obligations incurred
or to be incurred, to acquire or carry real estate assets, which is clearly identified as specified in Treasury
regulations before the closing of the day on which it was acquired, originated, or entered into, including gain
from the sale or disposition of such a transaction, or (i) primarily to manage risk of currency fluctuations
with respect to any item of income or gain that would be qualifying income under the 75% or 95% income tests
which is clearly identified as such before the closing of the day on which it was acquired, originated, or
entered to, will not constitute gross income for purposes of the 75% or 95% gross income tests. To the extent
that we enter into other types of hedging transactions, the income from those transactions is likely to be
treated as non-qualifying income for purposes of the 75% or 95% gross income tests. We intend to structure
any hedging transactions in a manner that does not jeopardize our qualification as a REIT.

If we fail to satisfy one or both of the 75% or 95% gross income tests for any taxable year, we may still
qualify as a REIT for such year if we are entitled to relief under applicable provisions of the Code. These
relief provisions will be generally available if (i) our failure to meet these tests was due to reasonable cause
and not due to willful neglect and (ii) following our identification of the failure to meet the 75% or 95% gross
income test for any taxable year, we file a schedule with the IRS setting forth each item of our gross
income for purposes of the 75% or 95% gross income test for such taxable year in accordance with Treasury
regulations. It is not possible to state whether we would be entitled to the benefit of these relief provisions in
all circumstances. If these relief provisions are inapplicable to a particular set of circumstances, we will not
qualify as a REIT. As discussed above under “—Taxation of REITs in General,” even where these relief
provisions apply, the Code imposes a tax based upon the amount by which we fail to satisfy the particular
gross income test.

Asset Tests

At the close of each calendar quarter, we must also satisfy tests relating to the nature of our assets.
First, at least 75% of the value of our total assets must be represented by some combination of “real estate
assets,” cash, cash items, U.S. government securities, and, under some circumstances, temporary investments
in stock or debt instruments purchased with new capital. For this purpose, real estate assets include
interests in real property, such as land, buildings, leasehold interests in real property, equity interests in
other entities that qualify as REITs, debt instruments of “publicly offered REITs” (i.e., REITs that are required
to file periodic and annual reports with the SEC under the Exchange Act), mortgage loans secured by real
property or interests in real property, and residual and regular interests in REMICs if at least 95% of the
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REMIC’s assets constitute qualifying mortgage loans. Assets that do not qualify for purposes of the 75% test
and debt instruments of publicly offered REITs are subject to certain additional asset tests described
below.

Second, the value of any one issuer’s securities that we own may not exceed 5% of the value of our total
assets. Third, we may not own more than 10% of any one issuer’s outstanding securities, as measured by
either voting power or value. The 5% and 10% asset tests do not apply to securities of TRSs and qualified REIT
subsidiaries and the 10% asset test does not apply to “straight debt” having specified characteristics and to
certain other securities that meet specified statutory requirements. Solely for purposes of the 10% asset test,
the determination of our interest in the assets of a partnership or limited liability company in which we
own an interest will be based on our proportionate interest in any securities issued by the partnership or
limited liability company, excluding for this purpose certain securities described in the Code. Fourth, the
aggregate value of all securities of TRSs that we hold may not exceed 20% of the value of our total assets.
Finally, not more than 25% of the value of our total assets may be represented by debt instruments of publicly
offered REITs that are not secured by real property or interests in real property.

Notwithstanding the general rule, as noted above, that for purposes of the REIT income and asset tests
we are treated as owning our proportionate share of the underlying assets of a subsidiary partnership. If we
hold indebtedness issued by a partnership, the indebtedness will be subject to, and may cause a violation of,
the asset tests unless the indebtedness is a qualifying mortgage asset or other conditions are met. Moreover,
if the IRS successfully challenges the partnership status of any of the partnerships in which we maintain a
more than 10% vote or value interest, and the partnership is reclassified as a corporation or a publicly
traded partnership taxable as a corporation, we could lose our status as a REIT. In addition, in the case of
such a successful challenge, we could lose our REIT status if such recharacterization results in us otherwise
failing one of the asset tests described above.

Certain relief provisions are available to REITs to satisfy the asset requirements or to maintain REIT
qualification notwithstanding certain violations of the asset tests and other requirements. One such provision
allows a REIT which fails one or more of the asset requirements to nevertheless maintain its REIT
qualification if (i) the REIT provides the IRS with a description of each asset causing the failure, (ii) the
failure is due to reasonable cause and not willful neglect, (iii) the REIT pays a tax equal to the greater of
(a) $50,000 per failure, and (b) the product of the net income generated by the assets that caused the failure
multiplied by the U.S. federal corporate income tax rate, and (iv) the REIT either disposes of the assets causing
the failure within six months after the last day of the quarter in which it identifies the failure, or otherwise
satisfies the relevant asset tests within that time frame.

In the case of de minimis violations of the 10% and 5% asset tests, a REIT may maintain its qualification
despite a violation of such requirements if (i) the value of the assets causing the violation does not exceed
the lesser of 1% of the REIT’s total assets and $10,000,000, and (ii) the REIT either disposes of the assets
causing the failure within six months after the last day of the quarter in which it identifies the failure, or the
relevant tests are otherwise satisfied within that time frame.

We believe that our holdings of securities and other assets will comply with the foregoing REIT asset
requirements, and we intend to monitor compliance on an ongoing basis.

No independent appraisals will be obtained to support our conclusions as to the value of our total
assets or the value of any particular security or securities. Moreover, values of some assets may not be
susceptible to a precise determination, and values are subject to change in the future. Accordingly, there can
be no assurance that the IRS will not contend that our interests in our subsidiaries or in the securities of
other issuers will not cause a violation of the REIT asset tests.

If we fail to satisfy the asset tests at the end of a calendar quarter, such a failure would not cause us to
lose our REIT qualification if we (i) satisfied the asset tests at the close of the preceding calendar quarter
and (ii) the discrepancy between the value of our assets and the asset requirements was not wholly or partly
caused by an acquisition of non-qualifying assets, but instead arose from changes in the market value of
our assets. If the condition described in (ii) were not satisfied, we still could avoid disqualification by
eliminating any discrepancy within 30 days after the close of the calendar quarter in which it arose or by
making use of relief provisions described above.
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Annual Distribution Requirements

In order to qualify to be taxed as a REIT, we are required to distribute dividends, other than capital
gain distributions, to our stockholders in an amount at least equal to:

(1) thesumof

(a) 90% of our “REIT taxable income,” computed without regard to our net capital gains and
the dividends paid deduction; and

(b) 90% of our net income, if any, (after tax) from foreclosure property, minus

(2) the excess of the sum of specified items of non-cash income (including original issue discount
on any loans) over 5% of our REIT taxable income, computed without regard to the dividends paid
deduction and our net capital gain.

We generally must make these distributions in the taxable year to which they relate, or in the following
taxable year if either (i) the distributions are declared before we timely file our U.S. federal income tax return
for the year and paid with or before the first regular distribution payment after such declaration; or (ii) the
distributions are declared in October, November or December of the taxable year, payable to stockholders of
record on a specified day in any such month, and actually paid before the end of January of the following
year. The distributions under clause (i) are taxable to the holders of our common stock in the year in which
paid, and the distributions in clause (ii) are treated as paid on December 31 of the prior taxable year. In both
instances, these distributions relate to our prior taxable year for purposes of the 90% distribution
requirement.

To the extent that we distribute at least 90%, but less than 100%, of our “REIT taxable income,” as
adjusted, we will be subject to U.S. federal income tax at the U.S. federal corporate income tax rate on the
retained portion of such income. We may elect to retain, rather than distribute, our net long-term capital gains
and pay tax on such gains. In this case, we could elect for our stockholders to include their proportionate
shares of such undistributed long-term capital gains in income, and to receive a corresponding credit for their
share of the tax that we paid. Our stockholders would then increase their adjusted tax basis of their stock
by the difference between (a) the amounts of capital gain distributions that we designated and that they
include in their taxable income, minus (b) the tax that we paid on their behalf with respect to that income.

To the extent that we have available net operating losses carried forward from prior taxable years, such
losses may reduce the amount of distributions that we must make in order to comply with the REIT
distribution requirements. Such losses, however, will generally not affect the character, in the hands of our
stockholders, of any distributions that are actually made as ordinary dividends or capital gains. See “—Taxation
of Stockholders” below.

If we should fail to distribute during each calendar year at least the sum of (a) 85% of our REIT
ordinary income for such year, (b) 95% of our REIT capital gain net income for such year, and (c) any
undistributed taxable income from prior periods, we would be subject to a non-deductible 4% excise tax on
the excess of such required distribution over the sum of (x) the amounts actually distributed, plus (y) the
amounts of income we retained and on which we have paid U.S. federal corporate income tax.

It is possible that, from time to time, we may experience timing differences between the actual receipt
of income and actual payment of deductible expenses and the inclusion of that income and deduction of
such expenses in arriving at our REIT taxable income. For example, under the TCJA, we generally will be
required to take certain amounts in income no later than the time such amounts are reflected in our financial
statements. This rule may require the accrual of income with respect to certain assets earlier than would be
the case under the general U.S. federal income tax rules. Also, we may not deduct recognized capital losses
from our “REIT taxable income.” As a result of the foregoing, we may have less cash than is necessary to
distribute taxable income sufficient to avoid U.S. federal corporate income tax and the excise tax imposed
on certain undistributed income or even to meet the 90% distribution requirement. In such a situation, we may
need to borrow funds or, if possible, pay dividends in the form of taxable stock dividends.

We may be able to rectify a failure to meet the distribution requirements for a year by paying “deficiency
dividends” to stockholders in a later taxable year, which may be included in our deduction for distributions
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paid for the earlier taxable year. In this case, we may be able to avoid losing REIT qualification or being
taxed on amounts distributed as deficiency dividends. We will be required to pay interest and a penalty based
on the amount of any deduction taken for deficiency dividends.

Recordkeeping Requirements

To avoid a monetary penalty, we must request on an annual basis information from our stockholders
designed to disclose the actual ownership of our outstanding stock. We intend to comply with these
requirements.

Failure to Qualify

If we fail to satisfy one or more requirements for REIT qualification other than the gross income or
asset tests, we could avoid disqualification if our failure is due to reasonable cause and not to willful neglect
and we pay a penalty of $50,000 for each such failure. Relief provisions are available for failures of the
gross income tests and asset tests, as described above in “—Income Tests” and “—Asset Tests.”

If we fail to qualify for taxation as a REIT in any taxable year, and the relief provisions described above
do not apply, we would be subject to tax on our taxable income at the regular U.S. federal corporate income
tax rate. Any such corporate tax liability could be substantial and would reduce the amount of cash available
for distribution to our stockholders, which in turn could have an adverse impact on the value of, and
trading prices for, our stock.

Unless we are entitled to relief under specific statutory provisions, we would also be disqualified from re-
electing to be taxed as a REIT for the four taxable years following the year during which we lost qualification.
It is not possible to state whether, in all circumstances, we would be entitled to this statutory relief.

Prohibited Transactions

Net income that we derive from a prohibited transaction is subject to a 100% tax. The term “prohibited
transaction” generally includes a sale or other disposition of property (other than foreclosure property) that
is held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of a trade or business. We intend to conduct
our operations so that no asset that we own (or are treated as owning) will be treated as, or as having been,
held for sale to customers, and that a sale of any such asset will not be treated as having been in the ordinary
course of our business. Whether property is held “primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of
a trade or business” depends on the particular facts and circumstances. No assurance can be given that any
property that we sell will not be treated as property held for sale to customers, or that we can comply with
certain safe-harbor provisions of the Code that would prevent such treatment. The 100% tax does not apply
to gains from the sale of property that is held through a TRS or other taxable corporation, although such
income will potentially be subject to tax in the hands of the corporation at the regular U.S. federal corporate
income rate, nor does the tax apply to sales that qualify for a safe harbor as described in Section 857(b)(6) of
the Code.

Tax Aspects of Investments in Partnerships

General

We currently hold and anticipate holding direct or indirect interests in one or more partnerships,
including the operating partnership. Such non-corporate entities would generally be organized as limited
liability companies, partnerships or trusts that would either be disregarded as entities for U.S. federal income
tax purposes or treated as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

We expect that our operating partnership will be treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax
purposes. The following is a summary of the U.S. federal income tax consequences of our investment in the
operating partnership provided the operating partnership is treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income
tax purposes. This discussion should also generally apply to any investment by us in other entities taxable
as partnerships for such purposes.
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A partnership (that is not a publicly traded partnership taxed as a corporation) is not subject to tax as
an entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Rather, partners are allocated their allocable share of the
items of income, gain, loss, deduction and credit of the partnership, and are potentially subject to tax thereon,
without regard to whether the partners receive any distributions from the partnership. We will be required
to take into account our allocable share of the foregoing items for purposes of the various REIT gross income
and asset tests, and in the computation of our REIT taxable income and U.S. federal income tax liability.
Further, there can be no assurance that distributions from the operating partnership will be sufficient to pay
the tax liabilities resulting from an investment in the operating partnership.

We intend that interests in the operating partnership (and any partnership invested in by the operating
partnership) will fall within one of the “safe harbors” for the partnership to avoid being classified as a publicly
traded partnership. However, we reserve the right to not satisfy any safe harbor. Even if a partnership is a
publicly traded partnership, it generally will not be treated as a corporation if at least 90% of its gross income
each taxable year is from certain sources, which generally include rents from real property and other types
of passive income. We believe that our operating partnership will have sufficient qualifying income so that it
would be taxed as a partnership, even if it were treated as a publicly traded partnership.

If for any reason the operating partnership (or any partnership invested in by the operating partnership)
is taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, the character of our assets and items of gross
income would change, and as a result, we would most likely be unable to satisfy the applicable REIT
requirements under U.S. federal income tax laws discussed above. In addition, any change in the status of
any partnership may be treated as a taxable event, in which case we could incur a tax liability without a related
cash distribution. Further, if any partnership were treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax
purposes, items of income, gain, loss, deduction and credit of such partnership would be subject to U.S.
federal corporate income tax, and the partners of any such partnership would be treated as stockholders,
with distributions to such partners being treated as dividends.

Anti-abuse Treasury regulations have been issued under the partnership provisions of the Code that
authorize the IRS, in some abusive transactions involving partnerships, to disregard the form of a transaction
and recast it as it deems appropriate. The anti-abuse regulations apply where a partnership is utilized in
connection with a transaction (or series of related transactions) with a principal purpose of substantially
reducing the present value of the partners’ aggregate U.S. federal tax liability in a manner inconsistent with
the intent of the partnership provisions. The anti-abuse regulations contain an example in which a REIT
contributes the proceeds of a public offering to a partnership in exchange for a general partnership
interest. The limited partners contribute real property assets to the partnership, subject to liabilities that
exceed their respective aggregate bases in such property. The example concludes that the use of the
partnership is not inconsistent with the intent of the partnership provisions, and thus, cannot be recast by
the IRS. However, the anti-abuse regulations are extraordinarily broad in scope and are applied based on an
analysis of all the facts and circumstances. As a result, we cannot assure you that the IRS will not attempt
to apply the anti-abuse regulations to the operating partnership (or any partnership invested in by the
operating partnership). Any such action could potentially jeopardize our qualification as a REIT and
materially affect the tax consequences and economic return resulting from an investment in us.

Income Taxation of Partnerships and Their Partners

Although a partnership agreement generally will determine the allocation of a partnership’s income
and losses among the partners, such allocations may be disregarded for U.S. federal income tax purposes
under Code Section 704(b) and the Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder. If any allocation is not
recognized for U.S. federal income tax purposes, the item subject to the allocation will be reallocated in
accordance with the partners’ economic interests in the partnership. We believe that the allocations of taxable
income and loss in the operating partnership’s partnership agreement comply with the requirements of
Code Section 704(b) and the Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder.

In some cases, special allocations of net profits or net losses will be required to comply with the U.S.
federal income tax principles governing partnership tax allocations. Additionally, pursuant to Code
Section 704(c), income, gain, loss and deduction attributable to property contributed to the operating
partnership in exchange for units must be allocated in a manner so that the contributing partner is charged
with, or benefits from, the unrealized gain or loss attributable to the property at the time of contribution.
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The amount of such unrealized gain or loss is generally equal to the difference between the fair market
value and the adjusted tax basis of the property at the time of contribution. These allocations are designed
to eliminate book-tax differences by allocating to contributing partners lower amounts of depreciation
deductions and increased taxable income and gain attributable to the contributed property than would
ordinarily be the case for economic or book purposes. The application of the principles of Code Section 704(c)
in tiered partnership arrangements is not entirely clear. Accordingly, the IRS may assert a different allocation
method than the one selected by the operating partnership to cure any book-tax differences. In certain
circumstances, we create book-tax differences by adjusting the values of properties for economic or book
purposes and generally the rules of Code Section 704(c) would apply to such differences as well.

For properties contributed to the operating partnership, depreciation deductions are calculated based
on the transferor’s tax basis and depreciation method. Because depreciation deductions are based on the
transferor’s tax basis in the contributed property, the operating partnership generally would be entitled to less
depreciation than if the properties were purchased in a taxable transaction. The burden of lower depreciation
generally will fall first on the contributing partner, but also may reduce the depreciation allocated to other
partners, including us.

Some expenses incurred in the conduct of the operating partnership’s activities may not be deducted
in the year they were paid. To the extent this occurs, the taxable income of the operating partnership may
exceed its cash receipts for the year in which the expense is paid. As discussed above, the costs of acquiring
properties must generally be recovered through depreciation deductions over a number of years. Prepaid
interest and loan fees, and prepaid management fees are other examples of expenses that may not be deducted
in the year they were paid.

Partnership Audit Rules

Any audit adjustment to items of income, gain, loss, deduction, or credit of a partnership (and any
partner’s distributive share thereof) is determined, and taxes, interest, or penalties attributable thereto are
generally assessed and collected at the partnership level regardless of changes in composition of the partners
(or their relative ownership) between the year under audit and the year of the adjustment. The partnership
audit rules also include an elective alternative method under which the additional taxes resulting from the
adjustment are assessed from the affected partners, subject to a higher rate of interest than otherwise would
apply. The partnership audit rules could result in the operating partnership (or any other partnership
invested in by the operating partnership) being required to pay additional taxes, interest and penalties as a
result of an audit adjustment, and we, as a direct or indirect partner of these partnerships, could be required to
bear the economic burden of those taxes, interest, and penalties even though we, as a REIT, may not
otherwise have been required to pay additional corporate-level taxes as a result of the related audit
adjustment. Investors are urged to consult their tax advisors with respect to these changes and their potential
impact on their investment in our common stock.

Taxation of Stockholders

Taxation of Taxable U.S. Holders of Our Common Stock

The following summary describes certain U.S. federal income tax considerations for taxable U.S.
Holders (as hereinafter defined) relating to ownership of shares of our common stock. Certain U.S. federal
income tax consequences applicable to tax-exempt stockholders are described under the subheading
“—Taxation of Tax-Exempt U.S. Holders of Our Common Stock,” below and certain U.S. federal income tax
consequences applicable to Non-U.S. Holders are described under the subheading “—Taxation of Non-U.S.
Holders of Our Common Stock,” below.

As used herein, the term “U.S. Holder” means a beneficial owner of our common stock who, for U.S.
federal income tax purposes:

. is an individual who is a citizen or resident of the United States;

+ is a corporation (or other entity classified as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes)
created or organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state thereof or the District of
Columbia;
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is an estate the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source; or

any trust if (i) a court is able to exercise primary supervision over the administration of such trust
and one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust or (ii) it
has a valid election in place to be treated as a U.S. person.

If a partnership, including for this purpose any arrangement or entity that is treated as a partnership
for U.S. federal income tax purposes, holds shares of our common stock, the tax treatment of a partner in the
partnership will generally depend on the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. If you
are a partner in a partnership holding shares of our common stock, you are urged to consult with your tax
advisors about the consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposition of shares of our common stock
by the partnership.

Distributions Generally

Aslong as we qualify as a REIT, distributions out of our current or accumulated earnings and profits,
other than capital gain dividends discussed below, generally will constitute dividends taxable to our taxable
U.S. Holders as ordinary income. These distributions will not be eligible for the dividends-received
deduction in the case of U.S. Holders that are corporations.

Because, as discussed above, we generally are not subject to U.S. federal income tax on the portion of
our REIT taxable income distributed to our stockholders, our ordinary dividends generally are not eligible
for the preferential rate on “qualified dividend income” currently available to most non-corporate taxpayers.
However, individuals, trusts and estates generally may deduct up to 20% of certain pass-through income,
including ordinary REIT dividends that are not “capital gain dividends” or “qualified dividend income,”
subject to certain limitations (the “pass-through deduction”). For taxable years before January 1, 2026, the
maximum tax rate for U.S. stockholders taxed at individual rates is 37%. For taxpayers qualifying for the full
pass-through deduction, the effective maximum tax rate on ordinary REIT dividends for taxable years
before January 1, 2026 would be 29.6%. To qualify for this deduction, the U.S. Holder receiving such dividends
must hold the dividend-paying REIT stock for at least 46 days (taking into account certain special holding
period rules) of the 91-day period beginning 45 days before the stock becomes ex-dividend and cannot be
under an obligation to make related payments with respect to a position in substantially similar or related

property.

We may designate a portion of our dividends as eligible for the preferential rate on qualified dividend
income, provided that the amount so designated may not exceed that portion of our distributions attributable
to:

dividends received by us from non-REIT corporations, such as a TRS; and

income upon which we have paid U.S. federal corporate income tax (for example, if we distribute
taxable income that we retained and paid tax on in the prior year).

To the extent that we make distributions in excess of our current and accumulated earnings and
profits, these distributions will be treated first as a tax-free return of capital to each U.S. Holder. This
treatment will reduce the adjusted tax basis that each U.S. Holder has in its shares of our common stock for
U.S. federal tax purposes by the amount of the distribution (but not below zero). Distributions in excess of a
U.S. Holder’s adjusted tax basis in its shares of our common stock will be taxable as capital gains (provided
that the shares of our common stock have been held as a capital asset) and will be taxable as long-term capital
gain if the shares of our common stock have been held for more than one year. Dividends we declare in
October, November, or December of any year and payable to a stockholder of record on a specified date in
any of these months will be treated as both paid by us and received by the stockholders on December 31 of
that year, provided we actually pay the dividend on or before January 31 of the following calendar year.
Stockholders may not include in their own income tax returns any of our net operating losses or capital
losses.

Capital Gain Distributions

Distributions that we properly designate as capital gain dividends (and undistributed amounts for
which we properly make a capital gains designation) will be taxable to U.S. Holders as gains (to the extent
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that they do not exceed our actual net capital gain for the taxable year) from the sale or disposition of a
capital asset. Depending on the period of time we have held the assets which produced these gains, and on
certain designations, if any, which we may make, these gains may be taxable to non-corporate U.S. Holders at
preferential rates, depending on the nature of the asset giving rise to the gain. Corporate U.S. Holders may,
however, be required to treat up to 20% of certain capital gain dividends as ordinary income.

Passive Activity Losses and Investment Interest Limitations

Distributions we make and gain arising from the sale or exchange by a U.S. Holder of shares of our
common stock will be treated as portfolio income. As a result, U.S. Holders generally will not be able to
apply any “passive losses” against this income or gain. A U.S. Holder may elect to treat capital gain dividends,
capital gains from the disposition of shares of our common stock and qualified dividend income as
investment income for purposes of computing the investment interest limitation, but in such case, the
stockholders will be taxed at ordinary income rates on such amount. Other distributions we make (to the
extent they do not constitute a return of capital) generally will be treated as investment income for purposes
of computing the investment interest limitation. Gain arising from the sale or other disposition of shares
of our common stock, however, will not be treated as investment income under certain circumstances.

Retention of Net Long-Term Capital Gains

We may elect to retain, rather than distribute as a capital gain dividend, our net long-term capital
gains. If we make this election (a “Capital Gains Designation”), we would pay tax on our retained net
long-term capital gains. In addition, to the extent we make a Capital Gains Designation, a U.S. Holder
generally would:

+ include its proportionate share of our undistributed long-term capital gains in computing its
long-term capital gains in its U.S. federal income tax return for its taxable year in which the last day
of our taxable year falls (subject to certain limitations as to the amount that is includable);

- be deemed to have paid the capital gains tax imposed on us on the designated amounts included in
the U.S. Holder’s long-term capital gains;

« receive a credit or refund for the amount of tax deemed paid by it;

+ increase the adjusted tax basis of its shares of our common stock by the difference between the
amount of includable gains and the tax deemed to have been paid by it; and

- in the case of a U.S. Holder that is a corporation, appropriately adjust its earnings and profits for the
retained capital gains in accordance with Treasury regulations to be promulgated.

Dispositions of Shares of Our Common Stock

Generally, if you are a U.S. Holder and you sell or dispose of your shares of our common stock, you will
recognize gain or loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes in an amount equal to the difference between the
amount of cash and the fair market value of any property you receive on the sale or other disposition and
your adjusted tax basis in the shares of our common stock for tax purposes. This gain or loss will be capital
if you have held the shares of our common stock as a capital asset and, except as provided below, will be
long-term capital gain or loss if you have held the shares of our common stock for more than one year.
However, if you are a U.S. Holder and you recognize loss upon the sale or other disposition of shares of our
common stock that you have held for six months or less (after applying certain holding period rules), the loss
you recognize will be treated as a long-term capital loss, to the extent you received distributions from us
that were required to be treated as long-term capital gains. Certain non-corporate U.S. Holders (including
individuals) may be eligible for reduced rates of taxation in respect of long-term capital gains. The deductibility
of capital losses is subject to certain limitations.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

We report to our U.S. Holders of shares of our common stock and the IRS the amount of dividends
paid during each calendar year, and the amount of any tax withheld. Under the backup withholding rules, a
stockholder may be subject to backup withholding with respect to dividends paid unless the holder is a
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corporation or comes within certain other exempt categories and, when required, demonstrates this fact, or
provides a taxpayer identification number, certifies as to no loss of exemption from backup withholding, and
otherwise complies with applicable requirements of the backup withholding rules. A U.S. Holder that does
not provide us with its correct taxpayer identification number may also be subject to penalties imposed by the
IRS. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Rather, any amounts withheld under the backup
withholding rules will generally be allowed as a credit against your U.S. federal income tax liability and may
entitle you to a refund, provided the required information is timely furnished to the IRS.

Medicare Tax

Certain U.S. Holders of shares of our common stock that are individuals, estates or trusts and whose
income exceeds certain thresholds will be subject to a 3.8% Medicare tax on, among other things, dividends
on and capital gains from the sale or other disposition of stock, unless such dividends or gains are derived in
the ordinary course of the conduct of a trade or business (other than a trade or business that consists of
certain passive or trading activities). If you are a U.S. Holder that is an individual, estate or trust, you are urged
to consult your tax advisors regarding the applicability of the Medicare tax to your income and gains in
respect of your investment in our common stock.

Taxation of Tax-Exempt U.S. Holders of Our Common Stock

Our distributions to a U.S. Holder that is a domestic tax-exempt entity generally should not constitute
unrelated business taxable income (“UBTI”), unless the U.S. Holder borrows funds (or otherwise incurs
acquisition indebtedness within the meaning of the Code) to acquire or to carry its common shares, or the
common shares are otherwise used in an unrelated trade or business of the tax-exempt entity.

Tax-exempt stockholders that are social clubs, voluntary employee benefit associations, supplemental
unemployment benefit trusts and qualified group legal services plans exempt from U.S. federal income
taxation under Sections 501(c)(7), (c)(9), (¢)(17) and (c)(20) of the Code, respectively, are subject to different
UBTI rules, that generally will require them to characterize distributions from us as UBTIL.

Notwithstanding the above, a pension trust (i) that is described in Section 401(a) of the Code and is
tax-exempt under Section 501(a) of the Code and (ii) that owns more than 10% of the value of shares of our
common stock could be required to treat a percentage of the dividends from us as UBTI if we are a pension-
held REIT. We will not be a pension-held REIT unless (i) either (a) one pension trust owns more than 25%
of the value of shares of our common stock or (b) a group of pension trusts, each individually holding more
than 10% of the value of shares of our common stock, collectively owns more than 50% of our outstanding
shares of our common stock and (ii) we would not have qualified as a REIT without relying upon the “look
through” exemption for certain trusts under Section 856(h)(3) of the Code to satisfy the requirement that not
more than 50% in value of our outstanding shares of our common stock is owned by five or fewer individuals.
We do not expect to be classified as a pension-held REIT.

Tax-exempt stockholders are encouraged to consult their tax advisors concerning the U.S. federal,
state, local and foreign tax consequences of an investment in shares of our common stock.

Taxation of Non-U.S. Holders of Our Common Stock

The following summary describes certain U.S. federal income tax considerations for Non-U.S. Holders
(as hereinafter defined) relating to ownership of shares of our common stock. As used herein, a “Non-U.S.
Holder” means a beneficial owner of shares of our common stock that, for U.S. federal income tax purposes,
is an individual, corporation or estate that is not a U.S. Holder. The rules governing U.S. federal income taxation
of Non-U.S. Holders of shares of our common stock are complex. Non-U.S. Holders are urged to consult
their tax advisors concerning the U.S. federal, state, local and foreign tax consequences to them of an
acquisition of shares of our common stock, including tax return filing requirements and the U.S. federal, state,
local and foreign tax treatment of dispositions of interests in, and the receipt of distributions from, us.

Distributions Generally

Distributions that are neither attributable to gain from our sale or exchange of “U.S. real property
interests” (as hereinafter defined) nor designated by us as capital gain dividends will be treated as dividends
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to the extent that they are made out of our current or accumulated earnings and profits. Such distributions
ordinarily will be subject to withholding of U.S. federal income tax at a 30% rate or such lower rate as may be
specified by an applicable income tax treaty, unless the distributions are treated as effectively connected
with the conduct by you of a U.S. trade or business. Under some treaties, however, lower withholding rates
generally applicable to dividends do not apply to dividends from REITs.

Dividends that are treated as effectively connected with the conduct of a U.S. trade or business of a
Non-U.S. Holder will be subject to tax on a net basis (that is, after allowance for deductions) at graduated
rates, in the same manner as dividends paid to U.S. Holders are subject to tax, and are generally not subject
to withholding. Any such dividends received by a Non-U.S. Holder that is a corporation may also be subject to
an additional branch profits tax at a 30% rate or such lower rate as may be specified by an applicable
income tax treaty.

We expect to withhold U.S. income tax at the rate of 30% on any distributions made to Non-U.S.
Holders unless:

+ alower treaty rate applies and you provide us with an IRS Form W-8BEN or IRS Form W-8BEN-E or
other appropriate form, as applicable, evidencing eligibility for an exemption from withholding or
a reduced treaty rate;

+ you provide to us an IRS Form W-8ECI claiming that the distribution is income effectively connected
with your U.S. trade or business; or

- the distribution is treated as attributable to a sale or exchange of a “U.S. real property interest” (as
discussed below).

Distributions in excess of our current and accumulated earnings and profits will not be taxable to you
to the extent that such distributions do not exceed your adjusted tax basis in shares of our common stock.
Instead, the distribution will reduce the adjusted tax basis of such shares of common stock. To the extent that
such distributions exceed your adjusted tax basis in shares of our common stock, they will give rise to gain
from the sale or exchange of such shares of common stock. The tax treatment of this gain is described below.
If it cannot be determined at the time we make a distribution whether the distribution will exceed our
current and accumulated earnings and profits, we expect to treat such distribution as made out of our current
or accumulated earnings and profits and we therefore expect to withhold tax on the entire amount of such
distribution at the same rate as we would withhold on a dividend. However, amounts withheld should generally
be refundable if it is subsequently determined that the distribution was, in fact, in excess of our current and
accumulated earnings and profits.

Capital Gain Dividends and Distributions Attributable to a Sale or Exchange of U.S. Real Property Interests

Except as described below, distributions to a Non-U.S. Holder that we properly designate as capital
gain dividends, other than those arising from the disposition of a U.S. real property interest, generally
should not be subject to U.S. federal income taxation, unless (i) the investment in shares of our common
stock is treated as effectively connected with your U.S. trade or business, in which case you will be subject to
the same treatment as U.S. Holders with respect to such gain, except that a Non-U.S. Holder that is a
foreign corporation may also be subject to the 30% branch profits tax, as discussed above, or (ii) you are a
nonresident alien individual who is present in the United States for 183 days or more during the taxable year
and certain other conditions are met, in which case you will be subject to a 30% tax on your capital gains.

Distributions that are attributable to gain from sales or exchanges of “U.S. real property interests” by
us are taxable to a Non-U.S. Holder under special provisions of the Code known as the Foreign Investment
in Real Property Tax Act of 1980 (“FIRPTA”). The term “U.S. real property interests” includes interests in U.S.
real property. Under FIRPTA, a distribution attributable to gain from sales of U.S. real property interests is
considered effectively connected with a U.S. business of the Non-U.S. Holder and will be subject to U.S. federal
income tax at the rates applicable to U.S. Holders (subject to a special alternative minimum tax adjustment
in the case of nonresident alien individuals), without regard to whether the distribution is designated as a
capital gain dividend. The income may also be subject to the 30% branch profits tax in the case of a Non-U.S.
Holder that is a corporation. In addition, we will be required to withhold tax equal to 21% of the amount of
distribution attributable to gain from the sale or exchange of the U.S. real property interest.
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However, any distribution with respect to any class of equity securities which is regularly traded on an
established securities market located in the United States is not subject to FIRPTA, and therefore, not subject
to the 21% U.S. withholding tax described above, if you did not own more than 10% of such class of equity
securities at any time during the one-year period ending on the date of the distribution (the “10% Exception”).
We expect that our shares of common stock will be considered regularly traded on an established securities
market in the United States.

Capital gains distributions by a REIT to “qualified shareholders” meeting certain statutory
requirements, including that the stockholders be eligible for treaty benefits and publicly traded, or constitute
a foreign partnership or other type of foreign collective investment vehicle, are not subject to FIRPTA.
Instead, all such distributions will be treated as ordinary dividend distributions and, as a result, Non-U.S.
Holders generally would be subject to withholding tax on such distributions in the same manner as they are
subject to ordinary dividends.

“Qualified foreign pension funds” are not subject to the taxes imposed by FIRPTA. Accordingly,
capital gains distributions by a REIT to a qualified foreign pension fund are not subject to the rules set forth
above. To qualify, a pension fund must be created or organized under the law of a country other than the
U.S,, and have been established to provide retirement or pension benefits to participants or beneficiaries that
are current or former employees (or persons designated by those employees) of one or more employers in
consideration for services rendered, and meet other requirements. Stockholders that are non-U.S. pension
funds are urged to contact their tax advisors to determine whether they qualify for the exemption to FIRPTA.

Retention of Net Capital Gains

Although the law is not clear on the matter, it appears that amounts designated by us as retained
capital gains in respect of the shares of common stock held by Non-U.S. Holders generally should be treated
in the same manner as actual distributions by us of capital gain dividends. Under this approach, you would
be able to offset as a credit against your U.S. federal income tax liability resulting from your proportionate
share of the tax paid by us on such retained capital gains, and to receive from the IRS a refund to the
extent your proportionate share of such tax paid by us exceeds your actual U.S. federal income tax liability.

Sale of Shares of Common Stock

Gain recognized by a Non-U.S. Holder upon the sale or exchange of shares of our common stock
generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax unless such shares of common stock constitute a U.S.
real property interest under FIRPTA. Shares of our common stock will constitute a U.S. real property
interest if at least 50% of our assets are U.S. real property interests. However, even if shares of our common
stock constitute U.S. real property interests, if we are a domestically controlled qualified investment entity,
FIRPTA will not apply to a sale or exchange of shares of our common stock. A REIT is a qualified investment
entity and will be considered domestically controlled if, at all times during a specified testing period, less
than 50% in value of its shares of common stock are held directly or indirectly by Non-U.S. Holders. We cannot
assure you that we will be a domestically controlled REIT.

Even if we do not qualify as a domestically controlled REIT at the time you sell or exchange shares of
our common stock, gain arising from such a sale or exchange would not be subject to tax under FIRPTA as a
sale of a U.S. real property interest provided that (i) our common stock is regularly traded, as defined by
applicable Treasury regulations, on an established securities market such as the NYSE; and (ii) you owned,
actually and constructively, 10% or less in value of such class of shares of our common stock throughout the
shorter of the period during which you held such shares of common stock or the five-year period ending
on the date of the sale or exchange. We expect that our shares of common stock will be considered regularly
traded on an established securities market.

If gain on the sale or exchange of shares of our common stock were subject to taxation under FIRPTA,
you would be subject to regular U.S. federal income tax with respect to such gain in the same manner as a
taxable U.S. Holder (subject to a special alternative minimum tax adjustment in the case of nonresident alien
individuals) and the purchaser of the shares of our common stock would be required to withhold and remit
to the IRS 15% of the purchase price.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, gain from the sale or exchange of shares of our common stock not
otherwise subject to FIRPTA will be taxable to you if either (i) the investment in shares of our common stock
is effectively connected with your U.S. trade or business or (ii) you are a nonresident alien individual who is
present in the United States for 183 days or more during the taxable year and certain other conditions are met.

Backup Withholding Tax and Information Reporting

We will, where required, report to the IRS and to Non-U.S. Holders, the amount of dividends paid, the
name and address of the recipients, and the amount, if any, of tax withheld. Pursuant to tax treaties or other
agreements, the IRS may make its reports available to tax authorities in the Non-U.S. Holder’s country of
residence. Payments of dividends made to a Non-U.S. Holder may be subject to backup withholding
(currently at a rate of 24%) unless the Non-U.S. Holder establishes an exemption, for example, by properly
certifying its non-United States status on an IRS Form W-8BEN, IRS Form W-8BEN-E or another appropriate
version of IRS Form W-8. Notwithstanding the foregoing, backup withholding may apply if either we or our
paying agent has actual knowledge, or reason to know, that the holder is a United States person.

The gross proceeds from the disposition of our common stock may be subject to information reporting
and backup withholding. If a Non-U.S. Holder sells shares of our common stock outside the United States
through a non-U.S. office of a non-U.S. broker and the sales proceeds are paid to such Non-U.S. Holder outside
the United States, then the backup withholding and information reporting requirements generally will not
apply to that payment. However, information reporting, but not backup withholding, generally will apply to a
payment of sales proceeds, even if that payment is made outside the United States, if the Non-U.S. Holder
sells shares of our common stock through a non-U.S. office of a broker that has specified types of connections
with the United States, unless the broker has documentary evidence in its records that the Non-U.S. Holder
is not a U.S. person and specified conditions are met, or the holder otherwise establishes an exemption. If a
Non-U.S. Holder receives payments of the proceeds of a sale of our common stock to or through a U.S.
office of a broker, the payment will be subject to both U.S. backup withholding and information reporting
unless such holder properly provides an IRS Form W-8BEN or IRS Form W-8BEN-E (or another appropriate
version of IRS Form W-8) certifying that such holder is not a U.S. person or otherwise establishes an
exemption, and the broker does not know or have reason to know that such Non-U.S. Holder is a U.S. person.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Rather, any amounts withheld under the backup
withholding rules will generally be allowed as a credit against your U.S. federal income tax liability and may
entitle you to a refund, provided the required information is timely furnished to the IRS. You are urged to
consult your tax advisors regarding the application of information reporting and backup withholding rules
to your particular situation, the availability of an exemption therefrom, and the procedure for obtaining such
an exemption, if applicable.

Other Tax Considerations

Additional FATCA Withholding

The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act provisions of the Hiring Incentives to Restore Employment
Act and Treasury regulations thereunder, commonly referred to as “FATCA,” imposes a U.S. federal
withholding tax of 30% on certain types of payments, including payments of U.S.-source dividends made to
(i) “foreign financial institutions” unless they agree to collect and disclose to the IRS information regarding
their direct and indirect U.S. account holders, and (ii) certain non-financial foreign entities unless they
certify certain information regarding their direct and indirect U.S. owners. Foreign financial institutions
located in jurisdictions that have an intergovernmental agreement with the United States governing FATCA
may be subject to different rules. Under certain circumstances, a holder might be eligible for refunds or
credits of such taxes. Thirty percent withholding under FATCA was scheduled to apply to payments of gross
proceeds from the sale or other disposition of property that produces U.S.-source dividends beginning on
January 1, 2019, but on December 13, 2018, the IRS released proposed regulations that, if finalized in their
proposed form, would eliminate the obligation to withhold on gross proceeds. Taxpayers may rely on the
provisions in the proposed regulations addressing gross proceeds withholding until final regulations are
issued. The rules under FATCA are complex. Holders that hold our common stock through a non-U.S.
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intermediary or that are Non-U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisors regarding the implications of
FATCA on an investment in our common stock.

Legislative or Other Actions Affecting REITs

The present U.S. federal income tax treatment of REITs may be modified, possibly with retroactive
effect, by legislative, judicial, or administrative action at any time. The REIT rules are constantly under
review by persons involved in the legislative process and by the IRS and the U.S. Treasury Department which
may result in statutory changes as well as revisions to regulations and interpretations. We cannot predict
the long-term effect of any future law changes on REITs and their stockholders. Prospective investors are
urged to consult with their tax advisors regarding the effect of potential changes to the U.S. federal tax laws on
an investment in our common stock.

State and Local Taxes

We and our subsidiaries and stockholders may be subject to state, local or foreign taxation in various
jurisdictions including those in which we or they transact business, own property or reside. We may own
real property assets located in numerous jurisdictions, and may be required to file tax returns in some or all
of those jurisdictions. Our state, local or foreign tax treatment and that of our stockholders may not conform to
the U.S. federal income tax treatment discussed above. Prospective investors should consult their tax
advisors regarding the application and effect of state and local income and other tax laws on an investment
in our common stock.
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ERISA CONSIDERATIONS

The following is a summary of certain considerations associated with an investment in our shares of
common stock by (i) employee benefit plans subject to Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security
Actof 1974, as amended (“ERISA”), (ii) plans, individual retirement accounts (“IRAs”) and other arrangements
that are subject to Section 4975 of the Code, and (iii) entities whose underlying assets are considered to
include “plan assets” of any such plan, account or arrangement (each, a “Plan”), as well as governmental,
certain church, and non-U.S. plans or arrangements that are subject to provisions under any federal, state,
local, non-U.S. or other laws or regulations that are similar to Title I of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code (such
arrangements, “Non-ERISA Arrangements” and such provisions, “Similar Laws”). Moreover, based on the
reasoning of the United States Supreme Court in John Hancock Life Ins. Co. v. Harris Trust and Sav. Bank,
510 U.S. 86 (1993), an insurance company’s general account may be deemed to include assets of the Plans
investing in the general account (e.g., through the purchase of an annuity contract), and the insurance
company might be treated as a “party in interest,” within the meaning of ERISA, or “disqualified person,”
within the meaning of Section 4975 of the Code, with respect to a Plan by virtue of such investment.

THIS SUMMARY IS BASED ON PROVISIONS OF ERISA AND THE CODE, EACH AS AMENDED
THROUGH THE DATE OF THIS OFFERING, AND THE RELEVANT REGULATIONS, OPINIONS AND
OTHER AUTHORITY ISSUED BY THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR (THE “DOL”) AND
THE IRS. THE FOLLOWING IS MERELY A SUMMARY, HOWEVER, AND SHOULD NOT BE
CONSTRUED AS LEGAL ADVICE OR AS COMPLETE IN ALL RELEVANT RESPECTS. ALL INVESTORS
ARE URGED TO CONSULT THEIR LEGAL ADVISORS BEFORE INVESTING IN US AND TO MAKE
THEIR OWN INDEPENDENT DECISION.

General Fiduciary Matters

ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code impose certain duties on persons who are fiduciaries of a Plan
and prohibit certain transactions involving the assets of a Plan and its fiduciaries or other interested parties.
Under ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code, any person who exercises any discretionary authority or
control over the administration of such a Plan or the management or disposition of the assets of such a Plan,
or who renders investment advice for a fee or other compensation to such a Plan, is generally considered
to be a fiduciary of the Plan.

In considering an investment in shares of our common stock with a portion of the assets of any Plan or
Non-ERISA Arrangement, a fiduciary should determine whether the investment is in accordance with the
documents and instruments governing the Plan or Non-ERISA Arrangement and the applicable provisions
of ERISA, the Code or any Similar Laws relating to a fiduciary’s duties to the Plan or Non-ERISA Arrangement
including, without limitation, the following:

+ whether the investment is prudent under Section 404(a)(1)(B) of ERISA and any other applicable
Similar Laws;

+ whether, in making the investment, the diversification requirements of Section 404(a)(1)(C) of
ERISA and any other applicable Similar Laws will be satisfied;

- whether the investment is permitted under the terms of the applicable documents governing the
Plan or Non-ERISA Arrangement;

+ whether in the future there may be no market in which to sell or otherwise dispose of our shares of
common stock;

+ whether the acquisition or holding of our shares of common stock will constitute or result in a
“prohibited transaction” under Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code or violation of
Similar Laws; and

+ whether the Plan or Non-ERISA Arrangement will be considered to hold, as plan assets, (i) only
shares of our common stock or (i) an undivided interest in our underlying assets.

This offering is not directed to any particular purchaser, nor does it address the needs of any particular
purchaser. We will not provide, and none of the Company, any of our respective affiliates nor the underwriters
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will provide any advice or recommendation with respect to the management of any purchase of our shares
or the advisability of acquiring, holding, disposing or exchanging of our shares of common stock.

Prohibited Transaction Issues

Section 406 of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code prohibit Plans from engaging in specified
transactions involving plan assets with persons or entities who are “parties in interest,” within the meaning
of ERISA, or “disqualified persons,” within the meaning of Section 4975 of the Code, unless an exemption is
available. A party in interest or disqualified person who engages in a non-exempt prohibited transaction
may be subject to excise taxes and other penalties and liabilities under ERISA and the Code, and a prohibited
transaction may result in the disqualification of an IRA. In addition, the fiduciary of the Plan that engages
in such a non-exempt prohibited transaction may be subject to penalties and liabilities under ERISA and the
Code.

Whether or not our underlying assets are deemed to include “plan assets,” as described below, the
acquisition and/or holding of shares of our common stock by a Plan with respect to which we, any underwriter,
any selected broker/dealer or any of its affiliates is considered a party in interest or a disqualified person
may constitute or result in a direct or indirect prohibited transaction under Section 406 of ERISA and/or
Section 4975 of the Code, unless the investment is acquired and is held in accordance with an applicable
statutory, class or individual prohibited transaction exemption. In this regard, the DOL has issued prohibited
transaction class exemptions (“PTCESs”), that may apply to the acquisition and holding of our common
stock. These class exemptions include, without limitation, PTCE 84-14 respecting transactions determined
by independent qualified professional asset managers, PTCE 90-1 respecting insurance company pooled
separate accounts, PTCE 91-38 respecting bank collective investment funds, PTCE 95-60 respecting life
insurance company general accounts and PTCE 96-23 respecting transactions determined by in-house asset
managers. In addition, Section 408(b)(17) of ERISA and Section 4975(d)(20) of the Code provide an
exemption from the prohibited transaction provisions of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code for certain
transactions, provided that neither the issuer of the securities nor any of its affiliates (directly or indirectly)
have or exercise any discretionary authority or control or render any investment advice with respect to the
assets of any Plan involved in the transaction and provided further that the Plan pays no more than
adequate consideration in connection with the transaction. There can be no assurance that all of the
conditions of any such exemptions will be satisfied.

Plan Asset Considerations

In order to determine whether the purchase of shares of our common stock by a Plan creates or gives
rise to the potential for prohibited transactions referred to above, an individual making an investment
decision on behalf of a Plan must consider whether an investment in our shares will cause our assets to be
treated as “plan assets” of the investing Plan. DOL regulation 29 C.F.R. § 2510.3-101, as modified by
Section 3(42) of ERISA (the “DOL Plan Asset Regulations”) provides guidelines as to whether, and under
what circumstances, the underlying assets of an entity will be deemed to constitute assets of a Plan when a
Plan invests in that entity.

Under the DOL Plan Asset Regulations, the assets of an entity in which a Plan makes an equity
investment will generally be deemed to be assets of the Plan, unless one of the exceptions to this general
rule applies. Generally, the exceptions require that the investment in the entity be one of the following:

+ In securities issued by an investment company registered under the Investment Company Act;
. In “publicly offered securities;”

- In an “operating company,” which includes “venture capital operating companies” and “real estate
operating companies;” or

+ In an investment in which equity participation by “benefit plan investors,” as defined by the DOL
Plan Asset Regulations, is “not significant” (the “insignificant participation test”).

We expect to satisfy one or more of the exceptions as described in more detail below.
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Exception for “Publicly-Offered Securities.” 1f a Plan acquires a “publicly-offered security,” the assets
of the issuer of the security will not be deemed to be “plan assets” under the DOL Plan Asset Regulations.
For purposes of the DOL Plan Asset Regulations, a “publicly-offered security” is a security that is (a) “freely
transferable,” (b) part of a class of securities that is “widely held,” and (¢) (x) sold to the Plan as part of an
offering of securities to the public pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act
and the class of securities to which such security is a part is registered under the Exchange Act within 120 days
after the end of the fiscal year of the issuer during which the offering of such securities to the public has
occurred, or (y) is part of a class of securities that is registered under Section 12 of the Exchange Act.

Whether a security is considered “freely transferable” depends on the facts and circumstances of each
case. Under the DOL Plan Asset Regulations, if the security is part of an offering in which the minimum
investment is $10,000 or less, then any restriction on or prohibition against any transfer or assignment of
the security for the purposes of preventing a termination or reclassification of the entity for federal or state
tax purposes or which would violate any state or federal statute, regulation, court order, judicial decree, or rule
of law will not ordinarily prevent the security from being considered freely transferable. Additionally,
limitations or restrictions on the transfer or assignment of a security that are created or imposed by persons
other than the issuer of the security or persons acting for or on behalf of the issuer will ordinarily not
prevent the security from being considered freely transferable.

A class of securities is considered “widely held” if it is a class of securities that is owned by 100 or
more investors independent of the issuer and of one another. A security will not fail to be “widely held”
because the number of independent investors falls below 100 subsequent to the initial public offering as a
result of events beyond the issuer’s control.

Although there is no assurance that our shares will meet such requirements, we expect that our
common stock will meet the criteria of the publicly offered securities exception to the look-through rule.

First, our common stock should be considered to be freely transferable, as the minimum investment
will be less than $10,000 and the only restrictions upon transfer of our common stock are those generally
permitted under the DOL Plan Asset Regulations—those required under federal tax laws to maintain our
status as a REIT, resale restrictions under applicable federal securities laws with respect to securities not
purchased pursuant to a registered public offering and those owned by officers, directors and other affiliates,
and voluntary restrictions agreed to by a selling stockholder regarding volume limitations.

Second, our common stock is held by 100 or more investors and we expect (although we cannot
confirm) that at least 100 or more of these investors will be independent of us and of one another.

Third, our common stock included in this offering will be part of an offering of securities to the public
pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act and our common stock will be
registered under the Exchange Act.

Assuming that no other facts and circumstances other than those referred to above exist that restrict
transferability of shares of our common stock and the offering takes place as described in this prospectus,
shares of our common stock should constitute “publicly-offered securities” and, accordingly, we believe that
our underlying assets should not be considered “plan assets” under the DOL Plan Asset Regulations
although no assurance can be given in this regard.

Exception for “Insignificant” Participation by Benefit Plan Investors. The DOL Plan Asset Regulations
provide that the assets of an entity will not be deemed to be the assets of a Plan if equity participation in the
entity by “benefit plan investors,” including Plans, is not significant. The DOL Plan Asset Regulations
provide that equity participation in an entity by “benefit plan investors” is “significant” if at any time 25% or
more of the value of any class of equity interest is held by “benefit plan investors.” The term “benefit plan
investors” is defined for this purpose under ERISA Section 3(42) and is defined to mean any employee benefit
plan subject to Part 4 of Subtitle B of Title I of ERISA, any plan to which Section 4975 of the Code applies,
and any entity whose underlying assets include plan assets by reasons of a plan’s investment in such entity.
In calculating the value of a class of equity interests, the value of any equity interests held by us or any of
our affiliates must be excluded. It is not clear whether we will qualify for this exception since there can be no
assurance that equity participation by “benefit plan investors” will not be deemed to be significant, as
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defined above, at the completion of this offering or thereafter, and no monitoring or other measures will be
undertaken with respect to the level of such equity participation.

»

Exception for “Operating Companies.” The DOL Plan Asset Regulations provide an exception with
respect to securities issued by an “operating company.” For purposes of the DOL Plan Asset Regulations, an
“operating company” (which includes a “real estate operating company” or a “venture capital operating
company”) includes an entity that is primarily engaged, directly or through a majority owned subsidiary or
subsidiaries, in the production or sale of a product or service, other than the investment of capital. Generally,
we will be deemed to be a real estate operating company if during the relevant valuation periods at least
50% of our assets are invested in real estate that is managed or developed, and with respect to which we have
the right to participate substantially in management or development activities. To constitute a venture
capital operating company, 50% or more of our assets must be invested in “venture capital investments”
during the relevant valuation periods. A venture capital investment is an investment in an operating company,
including a “real estate operating company,” as to which the investing entity has or obtains direct
management rights. If an entity satisfies these requirements on the date it first makes a “long-term
investment” or the “initial investment date”, or at any time during the entity’s first “annual valuation period,”
(each as defined in the DOL Plan Asset Regulations) it will be considered a real estate operating company
for the entire period beginning on the initial investment date and ending on the last day of the first annual
valuation period. It is anticipated that, from and after the date we make our first investment, either (1) our
shares will qualify for the exception for a “publicly-offered security” or (2) the terms and conditions of our
investments, and the rights obtained and exercised with respect to such investments, will enable us to qualify
as a “real estate operating company” within the meaning of the DOL Plan Asset Regulations. However, no
assurance can be given that this will be the case.

Plan Asset Consequences

If we do not qualify for an exception under the DOL Plan Asset Regulations, as described above, and
our assets are deemed to be “plan assets” under ERISA, subject to ERISA of Section 4975 of the Code, such
plan assets would include an undivided interest in the assets held by us and this would result, among other
things, in (i) the application of the prudence and other fiduciary responsibility standards of ERISA to
investments made by us, and (ii) the possibility that certain transactions in which we might seek to engage
could constitute “prohibited transactions” under Section 406 of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code. Such
transactions may, however, be subject to a statutory or administrative exemption, such as Prohibited
Transaction Class Exemption, or PTCE 84-14, as amended, which exempts certain transactions effected on
behalf of a Plan by a “qualified professional asset manager,” as discussed above.

Representation

Accordingly, by acceptance of our common stock, each purchaser and subsequent transferee of our
common stock will be deemed to have represented and warranted that either (1) no portion of the assets
used by such purchaser or transferee to acquire and hold our common stock constitutes assets of any Plan
or Non-ERISA Arrangements or (2) the purchase and holding of our common stock by such purchaser or
transferee will not constitute or result in a non-exempt prohibited transaction under Section 406 of ERISA or
Section 4975 of the Code or similar violation under any applicable Similar Laws.

The foregoing discussion is general in nature, is not intended to be all-inclusive, and is based on laws
in effect on the date of this prospectus. Such discussion should not be construed as legal advice. Due to the
complexity of these rules and the penalties that may be imposed upon persons involved in non-exempt
prohibited transactions, it is particularly important that fiduciaries of Plans and Non-ERISA Arrangements
and other persons considering purchasing our common stock on behalf of, or with the assets of, any Plan or
Non-ERISA Arrangement consult with counsel regarding the potential applicability of ERISA, Section 4975
of the Code and Similar Laws to such investment and whether any exceptions or exemptions are applicable
(including the publicly-offered securities exception) and whether all conditions of any such exceptions or
exemptions have been satisfied.

Moreover, each ERISA Plan fiduciary should determine whether, under the general fiduciary standards
of investment prudence and diversification, acquiring common stock is appropriate for the Plan, taking into
account the overall investment policy of the Plan and the composition of the Plan’s investment portfolio.
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UNDERWRITING

Under the terms and subject to the conditions in an underwriting agreement dated the date of this
prospectus, the underwriters named below, for whom Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, BofA Securities, Inc,
Jefferies LLC and Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated are acting as representatives, have severally
agreed to purchase, and we have agreed to sell them, severally, and not jointly, the number of shares of our
common stock indicated below.

Number of

Name Shares
Wells Fargo Securities, LLC . . . . . . ..ot e 2,008,325
BofA Securities, INC. . . . o v o vt 2,008,325
Jefferies LLC . . . o o o 2,008,325
Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated . . . ... ... ... ... ... 1,004,164
KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc. . .. . ... ot e 410,461
BTIG, LLC . 328,369
Truist Securities, Inc. . . . . . o 328,369
Citigroup Global Markets Inc. . . . . ..o it 328,369
Berenberg Capital Markets LLC . . . . . . .. ... 328,368
Scotia Capital (USA) INC. . . o vttt e e e e e e e e e e 328,368
Capital One Securities, INC. . . . . . oot e 164,184
Regions Securities LLC. . . . ... o 164,184
Roberts & Ryan Investments Inc. . . . .. oottt 82,092

Total . .o 9,491,903

The underwriters are offering the shares of our common stock subject to their acceptance of the shares
from us subject to prior sale. The underwriting agreement provides that the obligations of the several
underwriters to pay for and accept delivery of the shares of our common stock offered by this prospectus are
subject to the approval of certain legal matters by their counsel and to certain other conditions. The
underwriters are obligated to take and pay for all of the shares of our common stock offered by this prospectus
if any such shares are taken. However, the underwriters are not required to take or pay for the shares
covered by the underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares described below.

The underwriters initially propose to offer the shares of our common stock directly to the public at the
public offering price listed on the front cover of this prospectus and to certain dealers, which may include
the underwriters, at such offering price less a selling concession not in excess of $0.4476 per share. After the
initial offering of the shares of our common stock, the public offering price and other selling terms may
from time to time be varied by the representatives.

Our common stock is listed on the NYSE under the symbol “NTST.”

Option to Purchase Additional Shares

We have granted to the underwriters an option, exercisable for 30 days from the date of this prospectus,
to purchase, from time to time, in whole or in part, up to an aggregate of 1,423,785 additional shares of our
common stock at the public offering price less underwriting discounts and commissions. To the extent the
underwriters exercise this option, each underwriter will become obligated, subject to certain conditions, to
purchase a number of additional shares of common stock proportionate to that underwriter’s initial
commitment as indicated in the preceding table, and we will be obligated to sell the additional
shares of common stock to the underwriters.

Offering Price, Commissions and Expenses

The following table shows the per share and total public offering price, underwriting discounts and
commissions and proceeds before expenses to us. These amounts are shown assuming both no exercise and
full exercise of the underwriters’ option to purchase up to an additional 1,423,785 shares of our common
stock.
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Total

Per Share No Exercise Full Exercise
Public offeringprice . ......... ... .. ... ... .... $ 1865 $177,023,990.95 $203,577,581.20
Underwriting discounts and commissions . . . ... ..... $ 0.79262 ¢ 752347216 $ 8,651,922.62
Proceeds beforeexpenses . . . ................... $17.85738 $169,500,518.79 $194,925,588.58

The estimated offering expenses payable by us, exclusive of the underwriting discounts and
commissions, are approximately $600,000. We will pay the filing fees and up to $10,000 of the expenses
(including the reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel to the underwriters) related to obtaining the
required approval of certain terms of this offering from the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc.

(“FINRA).

Restrictions on Sales of Similar Securities

Subject to certain exceptions, we, and all of our officers and directors have agreed that, without the
prior written consent of the representatives on behalf of the underwriters, we and they will not, during the
period ending 75 days after the date of this prospectus:

- offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option or
contract to sell, grant any option, right or warrant to purchase, lend or otherwise transfer or dispose
of, directly or indirectly, any shares of our common stock or any securities convertible into or
exercisable or exchangeable for shares of our common stock;

- file any registration statement with the SEC relating to the offering of any shares of our common
stock or any securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for our common stock; or

. enter into any swap or other arrangement that transfers to another, in whole or in part, any of the
economic consequences of ownership of our common stock;

whether any such transaction described above is to be settled by delivery of common stock or such other
securities, in cash or otherwise.

The restrictions described in the immediately preceding paragraph do not apply to the sale of shares
to the underwriters or transactions by any person other than us, our directors and officers relating to shares
of our common stock or other securities acquired in this offering or in open market transactions after
completion of this offering.

The representatives, in their sole discretion, may release, or authorize us to release, as the case may be,
the common stock and other securities subject to the lock-up agreements described above in whole or in
part at any time with or without notice.

Stabilization, Short Positions, and Penalty Bids

In order to facilitate this offering, the underwriters may engage in transactions that stabilize, maintain
or otherwise affect the price of the common stock. Specifically, the underwriters may sell more shares than
they are obligated to purchase under the underwriting agreement, creating a short position. A short sale is
covered if the short position is no greater than the number of shares available for purchase by the
underwriters under their option to purchase additional shares. The underwriters can close out a covered
short sale by exercising their option to purchase additional shares or purchasing shares in the open market.
In determining the source of shares to close out a covered short sale, the underwriters will consider,
among other things, the open market price of shares compared to the price available under their option to
purchase additional shares. The underwriters may also sell shares in excess of their option to purchase
additional shares, creating a naked short position. The underwriters must close out any naked short position
by purchasing shares in the open market. A naked short position is more likely to be created if the
underwriters are concerned that there may be downward pressure on the price of the common stock in the
open market after pricing that could adversely affect investors who purchase in this offering. As an additional
means of facilitating this offering, the underwriters may bid for, and purchase, shares of our common stock
in the open market to stabilize the price of our common stock. These activities may raise or maintain the
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market price of our common stock above independent market levels or prevent or retard a decline in the
market price of our common stock. The underwriters are not required to engage in these activities and may
end any of these activities at any time.

Indemnification

We and the underwriters have agreed to indemnify each other against certain liabilities, including
liabilities under the Securities Act.

A prospectus in electronic format may be made available on websites maintained by one or more
underwriters, or selling group members, if any, participating in this offering. The representatives may agree
to allocate a number of shares of our common stock to underwriters for sale to their online brokerage
account holders. Internet distributions will be allocated by the representatives to underwriters that may
make Internet distributions on the same basis as other allocations.

Discretionary Sales

The underwriters have informed us that they do not intend to confirm sales to discretionary accounts
that exceed 5% of the total number of shares offered by them.

Stamp Taxes

Purchasers of the shares of our common stock offered in this prospectus may be required to pay stamp
taxes and other charges under the laws and practices of the country of purchase, in addition to the offering
price listed on the front cover of this prospectus. Accordingly, we urge you to consult a tax advisor with respect
to whether you may be required to pay those taxes or charges, as well as any other tax consequences that
may arise under the laws of the country of purchase.

Relationships

The underwriters and their respective affiliates are full service financial institutions engaged in
various activities, which may include securities trading, commercial and investment banking, financial
advisory, investment management, investment research, principal investment, hedging, financing and
brokerage activities. Certain of the underwriters and their respective affiliates have, from time to time,
performed, and may in the future perform, various financial advisory and investment banking services for us,
for which they may receive customary fees and expenses.

On December 19, 2019, we entered into a purchase/placement agreement (the “Purchase/Placement
Agreement”), as amended, by and among us, our operating partnership, and Stifel, Nicolaus & Company,
Incorporated, as the initial purchaser and placement agent, relating to the offer and sale of 8,860,760 shares
of our common stock at an offering price of $19.75 per share. In addition, we granted Stifel, Nicolaus &
Company, Incorporated a 45-day option to purchase up to 2,936,885 additional shares of common stock on
the same terms and conditions, which Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated exercised in full. The private
offering resulted in proceeds to us of approximately $233.0 million before deducting the initial purchaser’s
discount and placement fee and estimated offering expenses payable by us. In addition, we reimbursed Stifel,
Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated approximately $0.1 million for reasonable out-of-pocket costs and legal
expenses incurred in the private offering.

Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated may pay an unaffiliated entity or its affiliate, who is also a
lender under our credit facility, a fee in connection with this offering.

On December 23, 2019, we entered into the Credit Facility, pursuant to which Wells Fargo Securities,
LLC serves as the lead arranger and receives customary fees. Because affiliates of one or more of the
underwriters are lenders under our Credit Facility, it is possible that more than 5% of the proceeds from this
offering (not including the underwriting discount) may be received by an underwriter and/or its affiliates.
Nonetheless, the appointment of a qualified independent underwriter is not necessary in connection with
this offering because REITs are excluded from the requirement of Rule 5121 of FINRA.
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In connection with this offering, we engaged Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated to provide
capital markets advisory services, for which Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated will receive a fee in
connection with the closing of this offering.

In addition, in the ordinary course of business, the underwriters and their respective affiliates may
make or hold a broad array of investments including serving as counterparties to certain derivative and
hedging arrangements and actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities) and
financial instruments (including bank loans) for their own account and for the accounts of their customers,
and such investment and securities activities may involve securities and/or instruments of the issuer. The
underwriters and their respective affiliates may also make investment recommendations and/or publish or
express independent research views in respect of such securities or instruments and may at any time hold, or
recommend to clients that they acquire, long and/or short positions in such securities and instruments.

Other than in the United States, no action has been taken by us or the underwriters that would permit
a public offering of the securities offered by this prospectus in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose
is required. The securities offered by this prospectus may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, nor
may this prospectus or any other offering material or advertisements in connection with the offer and sale of
any such securities be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will
result in compliance with the applicable rules and regulations of that jurisdiction. Persons into whose
possession this prospectus comes are advised to inform themselves about and to observe any restrictions
relating to this offering and the distribution of this prospectus. This prospectus does not constitute an offer
to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any securities offered by this prospectus in any jurisdiction in which
such an offer or a solicitation is unlawful.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Canada

The shares may be sold only to purchasers purchasing, or deemed to be purchasing, as principal that
are accredited investors, as defined in National Instrument 45-106 Prospectus Exemptions or subsection
73.3(1) of the Securities Act (Ontario), and are permitted clients, as defined in National Instrument 31-103
Registration Requirements, Exemptions and Ongoing Registrant Obligations. Any resale of the shares must be
made in accordance with an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the prospectus requirements
of applicable securities laws.

Securities legislation in certain provinces or territories of Canada may provide a purchaser with
remedies for rescission or damages if this prospectus (including any amendment thereto) contains a
misrepresentation, provided that the remedies for rescission or damages are exercised by the purchaser
within the time limit prescribed by the securities legislation of the purchaser’s province or territory. The
purchaser should refer to any applicable provisions of the securities legislation of the purchaser’s province
or territory for particulars of these rights or consult with a legal advisor.

Pursuant to section 3A.3 (or, in the case of securities issued or guaranteed by the government of a non-
Canadian jurisdiction, section 3A.4) of National Instrument 33-105 Underwriting Conflicts (NI 33-105), the
underwriters are not required to comply with the disclosure requirements of NI 33-105 regarding underwriter
conflicts of interest in connection with this offering.

Notice to Prospective Investors in the European Economic Area and the United Kingdom

The shares are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be
offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the European Economic Area (“EEA”) or in
the United Kingdom (“UK”). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of:

(i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, “MiFID II”);
or (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97 (as amended, the “Insurance Distribution
Directive”), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of

Article 4(1) of MiFID IJ; or (iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 (as amended,
the “Prospectus Regulation”). Consequently, no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No
1286/2014 (as amended, the “PRIIPs Regulation”) for offering or selling the shares or otherwise making them
available to retail investors in the EEA or in the UK has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the
shares or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the EEA or in the UK may be unlawful
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under the PRIIPS Regulation. This Prospectus has been prepared on the basis that any offer of shares in any
Member State of the EEA will be made pursuant to an exemption under the Prospectus Regulation from

the requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of shares. This Prospectus is not a prospectus for the
purposes of the Prospectus Regulation.

References to Regulations or Directives include, in relation to the UK, those Regulations or Directives
as they form part of UK domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 or have been
implemented in UK domestic law, as appropriate.

The above selling restriction is in addition to any other selling restrictions set out below.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Switzerland

We have not and will not register with the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (“FINMA”)
as a foreign collective investment scheme pursuant to Article 119 of the Federal Act on Collective Investment
Scheme of 23 June 2006, as amended (“CISA”), and accordingly the securities being offered pursuant to
this prospectus have not and will not be approved, and may not be licenseable, with FINMA. Therefore, the
securities have not been authorized for distribution by FINMA as a foreign collective investment scheme
pursuant to Article 119 CISA and the securities offered hereby may not be offered to the public (as this
term is defined in Article 3 CISA) in or from Switzerland. The securities may solely be offered to “qualified
investors,” as this term is defined in Article 10 CISA, and in the circumstances set out in Article 3 of the
Ordinance on Collective Investment Scheme of 22 November 2006, as amended (“CISO”), such that there
is no public offer. Investors, however, do not benefit from protection under CISA or CISO or supervision by
FINMA. This prospectus and any other materials relating to the securities are strictly personal and confidential
to each offeree and do not constitute an offer to any other person. This prospectus may only be used by
those qualified investors to whom it has been handed out in connection with the offer described herein and
may neither directly or indirectly be distributed or made available to any person or entity other than its
recipients. It may not be used in connection with any other offer and shall in particular not be copied
and/or distributed to the public in Switzerland or from Switzerland. This prospectus does not constitute an
issue prospectus as that term is understood pursuant to Article 652a and/or 1156 of the Swiss Federal Code of
Obligations. We have not applied for a listing of the securities on the SIX Swiss Exchange or any other
regulated securities market in Switzerland, and consequently, the information presented in this prospectus
does not necessarily comply with the information standards set out in the listing rules of the SIX Swiss
Exchange and corresponding prospectus schemes annexed to the listing rules of the SIX Swiss Exchange.

Notice to Prospective Investors in the United Kingdom

This document is for distribution only to persons who (i) have professional experience in matters
relating to investments and who qualify as investment professionals within the meaning of Article 19(5) of
the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2005 (as amended, the “Financial
Promotion Order”), (ii) are persons falling within Article 49(2)(a) to (d) (“high net worth companies,
unincorporated associations etc.”) of the Financial Promotion Order, (iii) are outside the United Kingdom, or
(iv) are persons to whom an invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning
of Section 21 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, as amended (“FSMA”)) in connection with the
issue or sale of any securities may otherwise lawfully be communicated or caused to be communicated (all
such persons together being referred to as “relevant persons”). This document is directed only at relevant
persons and must not be acted on or relied on by persons who are not relevant persons. Any investment or
investment activity to which this document relates is available only to relevant persons and will be engaged
in only with relevant persons.

Notice to Prospective Investors in the Dubai International Financial Centre (“DIFC”)

This offering document relates to an Exempt Offer in accordance with the Offered Securities Rules of
the Dubai Financial Services Authority (“DFSA”). This offering document is intended for distribution only
to persons of a type specified in the Offered Securities Rules of the DFSA. It must not be delivered to, or relied
on by, any other person. The DFSA has no responsibility for reviewing or verifying any documents in
connection with Exempt Offers. The DFSA has not approved this prospectus nor taken steps to verify the
information set forth herein and has no responsibility for the offering document. The shares to which this
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offering document relates may be illiquid and/or subject to restrictions on their resale. Prospective purchasers
of the shares offered should conduct their own due diligence on the shares. If you do not understand the
contents of this offering document] you should consult an authorized financial advisor.

Notice to Prospective Investors in the United Arab Emirates

The shares have not been, and are not being, publicly offered, sold, promoted or advertised in the
United Arab Emirates (including the Dubai International Financial Centre) other than in compliance with
the laws of the United Arab Emirates (and the Dubai International Financial Centre) governing the issue,
offering and sale of securities. Further, this prospectus does not constitute a public offer of securities in the
United Arab Emirates (including the Dubai International Financial Centre) and is not intended to be a
public offer. This prospectus has not been approved by or filed with the Central Bank of the United Arab
Emirates, the Securities and Commodities Authority or the Dubai Financial Services Authority.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Australia

No placement document, prospectus, product disclosure statement or other disclosure document has
been lodged with the Australian Securities and Investments Commission (“ASIC”), in relation to the offering.
This offering document does not constitute a prospectus, product disclosure statement or other disclosure
document under the Corporations Act 2001 (the “Corporations Act”), and does not purport to include the
information required for a prospectus, product disclosure statement or other disclosure document under
the Corporations Act.

Any offer in Australia of the shares may only be made to persons (the “Exempt Investors”) who are
“sophisticated investors” (within the meaning of section 708(8) of the Corporations Act), “professional
investors” (within the meaning of section 708(11) of the Corporations Act) or otherwise pursuant to one or
more exemptions contained in section 708 of the Corporations Act so that it is lawful to offer the shares
without disclosure to investors under Chapter 6D of the Corporations Act.

The shares applied for by Exempt Investors in Australia must not be offered for sale in Australia in the
period of 12 months after the date of allotment under the offering, except in circumstances where disclosure
to investors under Chapter 6D of the Corporations Act would not be required pursuant to an exemption
under section 708 of the Corporations Act or otherwise or where the offer is pursuant to a disclosure document
which complies with Chapter 6D of the Corporations Act. Any person acquiring shares must observe such
Australian on-sale restrictions.

This offering document contains general information only and does not take account of the investment
objectives, financial situation or particular needs of any particular person. It does not contain any securities
recommendations or financial product advice. Before making an investment decision, investors need to
consider whether the information in this offering document is appropriate to their needs, objectives and
circumstances, and, if necessary, seek expert advice on those matters.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Japan

The shares have not been and will not be registered under the Financial Instruments and Exchange
Law of Japan (Law No. 25 of 1948, as amended) and, accordingly, will not be offered or sold, directly or
indirectly, in Japan, or for the benefit of any Japanese Person or to others for re-offering or resale, directly or
indirectly, in Japan or to any Japanese Person, except in compliance with all applicable laws, regulations
and ministerial guidelines promulgated by relevant Japanese governmental or regulatory authorities in effect
at the relevant time. For the purposes of this paragraph, “Japanese Person” shall mean any person resident
in Japan, including any corporation or other entity organized under the laws of Japan.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Hong Kong

The shares have not been offered or sold and will not be offered or sold in Hong Kong, by means of
any document, other than (a) to “professional investors” as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap.571) of Hong Kong and any rules made under that Ordinance; or (b) in other circumstances which do not
result in the document being a “prospectus” as defined in the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) of Hong
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Kong or which do not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of that Ordinance. No
advertisement, invitation or document relating to the shares has been or may be issued or has been or may
be in the possession of any person for the purposes of issue, whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere, which is
directed at, or the contents of which are likely to be accessed or read by, the public of Hong Kong (except

if permitted to do so under the securities laws of Hong Kong) other than with respect to shares which are or
are intended to be disposed of only to persons outside Hong Kong or only to “professional investors” as
defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance and any rules made under that Ordinance.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Singapore

This prospectus has not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of Singapore.
Accordingly, the shares were not offered or sold or caused to be made the subject of an invitation for
subscription or purchase and will not be offered or sold or caused to be made the subject of an invitation for
subscription or purchase, and this prospectus or any other document or material in connection with the
offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of the shares, has not been circulated or distributed,
nor will it be circulated or distributed, whether directly or indirectly, to any person in Singapore other than
(i) to an institutional investor (as defined in Section 4A of the Securities and Futures Act (Chapter 289) of
Singapore, as modified or amended from time to time (the “SFA”)) pursuant to Section 274 of the SFA, (ii) to
a relevant person (as defined in Section 275(2) of the SFA) pursuant to Section 275(1) of the SFA, or any
person pursuant to Section 275(1A) of the SFA, and in accordance with the conditions specified in Section 275
of the SFA, or (iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any other applicable
provision of the SFA.

Where the shares are subscribed or purchased under Section 275 of the SFA by a relevant person
which is:

(a) acorporation (which is not an accredited investor (as defined in Section 4A of the SFA)) the sole
business of which is to hold investments and the entire share capital of which is owned by one
or more individuals, each of whom is an accredited investor; or

(b) atrust (where the trustee is not an accredited investor) whose sole purpose is to hold investments
and each beneficiary of the trust is an individual who is an accredited investor,

securities or securities-based derivatives contracts (each term as defined in Section 2(1) of the SFA) of that
corporation or the beneficiaries’ rights and interest (howsoever described) in that trust shall not be transferred
within six months after that corporation or that trust has acquired the shares pursuant to an offer made
under Section 275 of the SFA except:

(a) to an institutional investor or to a relevant person, or to any person arising from an offer referred
to in Section 275(1A) or Section 276(4)(1)(B) of the SFA;

(b) where no consideration is or will be given for the transfer;
I where the transfer is by operation of law; or

(d) as specified in Section 276(7) of the SFA.
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LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the common stock offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Venable LLP. In
addition, certain legal matters will be passed upon for us by Winston & Strawn LLP. Certain legal matters in
connection with this offering will be passed upon for the underwriters by Vinson & Elkins LLP.

EXPERTS

The consolidated balance sheets of NETSTREIT Corp. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2020 and
2019, the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss), changes in equity,
and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2020 (successor), for the period from December 23, 2019
to December 31, 2019 (successor) and the period from January 1, 2019 to December 22, 2019 (predecessor)
and the related notes and the financial statement schedule III—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation,
have been included herein in reliance upon the report of KPMG LLP, independent registered public accounting
firm, appearing elsewhere herein, and upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We maintain a website at www.NETSTREIT.com. Information contained on, or accessible through our
website is not incorporated by reference into and does not constitute a part of this prospectus or any other
report or documents we file with or furnish to the SEC.

We have filed with the SEC a Registration Statement on Form S-11, including exhibits, schedules and
amendments thereto, of which this prospectus is a part, under the Securities Act with respect to the shares
of our common stock to be sold in this offering. This prospectus does not contain all of the information set
forth in the registration statement and exhibits and schedules to the registration statement. For further
information with respect to our company and the shares of our common stock to be sold in this offering,
reference is made to the registration statement, including the exhibits and schedules thereto. Statements
contained in this prospectus as to the contents of any contract or other document referred to in this prospectus
are not necessarily complete and, where that contract or other document has been filed as an exhibit to the
registration statement, each statement in this prospectus is qualified in all respects by the exhibit to which the
reference relates. Our SEC filings, including our registration statement, are also available to you, free of
charge, on the SEC’s website, www.sec.gov.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
NETSTREIT Corp.:

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NETSTREIT Corp. and subsidiaries
(the Company) as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the related consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss), changes in equity, and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2020
(successor), for the period from December 23, 2019 to December 31, 2019 (successor), and the period from
January 1, 2019 to December 22, 2019 (predecessor), and the related notes and financial statement
schedule listed in the financial Statement Schedule III—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation
(collectively, the consolidated financial statements). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2020 and
2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2020 (successor), for
the period from December 23, 2019 to December 31, 2019 (successor), and the period from January 1,
2019 to December 22, 2019 (predecessor), in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S.
federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing
procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

(signed) KPMG LLP
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2019.

Dallas, Texas
March 4, 2021
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NETSTREIT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Assets

Real estate, at cost:

Buildings and improvements . ... .. ... ...
Total real estate, at COSt . . o v v v v vt e e

Less accumulated depreciation . . . .. ... ... ...
Real estate held forinvestment, net. . . .. .. ... .. . .
Assetsheldforsale. .. ... ... . . . . . ...
Cash, cash equivalents and restrictedcash . . ... ...... ... ... . ... .....
Acquired lease intangible assets,net. . . ... ... ...
Other assets, et . o v v v e e

Total assets . . . . oo o

Liabilities and equity
Liabilities:

Term loan, net . . . . oo e,
Lease intangible liabilities,net . . . . .. .. ... ... ...
Liabilities related to assets held forsale ... ......... ... ... . ... .....
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities. . . ... .............

Total liabilities . . . . .

Commitments and contingencies
Equity:
Stockholders’ equity

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 400,000,000 shares authorized; 28,203,545 and
8,860,760 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2020 and 2019,

respectively L ...
Additional paid-incapital . ... ... .. .. ...
Retained (1oss) €arnings . . . . ..o vttt e e
Accumulated other comprehensiveincome . .. .......... ... ... .. ... ....
Total stockholders’ equity . . . ... ... ... .
Noncontrolling interests . . . . . ..ottt
Total eQUIty . . . ..o
Total liabilitiesand equity ... ....... ... ...

December 31,

2020 2019
$189,373 $ 83,996
358,360 140,057
547,733 224,053
(10,111) (132)
537,622 223921
14,802 8,532
92,643 169,319
75024 28,846
5724 3,304
$725,815  $433,922
$174,105 $173,913
16,930 4,672
399 189
6,308 2,716
197,742 181,490
282 89
501,045 164,416
(7,464) 28
235 —
494098 164,533
33975 87,899
528,073 252,432
$725815  $433,922

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NETSTREIT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Revenues

Rental revenue (including reimbursable)

Operating expenses

Property

General and administrative

Depreciation and amortization

Provisions for impairment

Transaction costs

Total operating expenses

Other income (expense)

Interest expense, net

Gain on sales of real estate, net

Gain on forfeited earnest money deposit

Other income (expense), net

Total other income (expense), net

Net income (loss)

Net (loss) income attributable to
noncontrolling interests

Preferred stock dividends and redemption
premium

Net income (loss) attributable to common
stockholders

Amounts available to common stockholders per
common share:

Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic

Other comprehensive income (loss):

Net income (loss)

Change in unrealized gain on derivatives, net . .

Total comprehensive income (loss)

Comprehensive (loss) income attributable to
noncontrolling interests

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to
common stockholders

Successor Predecessor

For the Period from For the Period from

Year Ended December 23 to January 1 to
December 31, December 31, December 22,
2020 2019

$ 33727 $ 513 $ 19,805
2,569 52 1,113
11,340 49 3,555
15,459 195 10,422
2,690 — 7,186

3,169 2 535
35,227 298 22,811
(4,741) 173) (10,712)
6,213 — 5,646

250 — —

10 - -
1,712 173) (5,066)
212 42 (8,072)

(518) 14 —

42 = -
$ 688 $ 28 $ (8,072)
$ 0.04 $ — N/A
$ 0.01 $ — N/A
17,322,182 8,860,760 N/A
21,157,996 8,860,760 N/A
$ 212 $ 42 $ (8,072)
253 — 55
465 42 (8,017)

(500) 14 —
$ 965 $ 28 $ (8,017)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NETSTREIT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Successor Predecessor

For the Period from For the Period from
Year Ended December 23 to January 1 to
December 31, December 31, December 22,

2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Netincome (loss) .. ................... $ 212 $ 42 $ (8,072)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization . . . . ... .. 15,459 195 10,422
Amortization of deferred financing costs . . 621 14 1,024
Amortization of above/below-market

assumeddebt .. ....... ... .. .. .. — — (13)
Noncash revenue adjustments . . ....... (2,192) (13) 1,601
Stock-based compensation expense . . . .. 2,452 — —
Gain on sale of real estate,net . ........ (6,213) — (5,646)
Gain on forfeited earnest money deposit . . (250) — —
Provisions for impairment . . . ... ...... 2,690 — 7,186

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Otherassets,net . .. .............. (1,511) (681) 67
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and

other liabilities .. .............. 3,374 532 (580)
Lessee improvement obligations . . . . . . (1,893) — —

Net cash provided by operating
activities . . ... .. ... ... 12,749 89 5,989

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisitions of assets of the Predecessor, net

ofcashacquired . . . ................ — (166,732) —
Acquisitions of real estate . . . .. ...... ... (408,584) (1,112) (1,232)
Real estate improvements . . . .. ......... (2,033) — (450)
Earnest money deposits . .. ............ 466 — —
Purchase of computer equipment . ....... (51) — —
Proceeds from sale of real estate . .. ... ... 48,069 — 77,616
Net cash (used in) provided by
investing activities . . .. ........ (362,133) (167,844) 75,934

Cash flows from financing activities

Issuance of common stock in initial public

offeringmet .. ....... ... ... ... ..... 227,301 — —
Issuance of common stock in private offering,

Net . o vt 54,559 164,727 —
Issuance of preferred stock, net . ... ... ... 104 — —
Payment of preferred stock dividends . . . . . . ®) — —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Payment of common stock dividends

Payment of OP unit distributions

Payment of restricted stock dividends

Redemption of preferred stock, net

Proceeds from term loans

Principal payments on term loans
Principal payments on mortgages payable . .
Proceeds under revolving credit facility . . ..
Repayments under revolving credit facility . .

Repurchase of common stock for tax
withholding obligations

Deferred financing costs

Partners’ contributions

Partners’ distributions

Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at
beginning of the period ... ... .... ... ..

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at
end of the period

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow
information:

Cash paid for interest

Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investing
and financing activities:

OP units issued as consideration for the
acquisition of the Predecessor

Redemption of OP units and issuance of
common stock upon initial public
offering

Reclassification of deferred offering expenses
to additional paid-in capital upon initial
public offering

OP units converted into common stock . . ..

Dividends declared and unpaid on restricted
stock

Cash flow hedge change in fair value . . .. ..
Reclassification from construction in
progress upon project completion

Accrued construction and development

Successor Predecessor

For the Period from For the Period from

Year Ended December 23 to January 1 to
December 31, December 31, December 22,
2020 2019

(8,057) — —
(777) — —

(10) - -

(138) - -

- 175,000 708
— — (62,983)
- - (14,756)

50,000 — —
(50,000) — —
(137) _ _
(129) (2,653) (199)

— — 537
- - (5,624)
272,708 337,074 (82,317)
(76,676) 169,319 (394)

_ 169,319 - _ 1950
$ 92,643 $ 169,319 $ 1,556
$ 4,212 $ — $ 9,460
$ — $ 87,885 $ -
$ 5,030 $ — $ -
$ 4,191 — —
$ 47,617 — —
113 — —

253 - -

$ 1,954 $ - $ -
$ 375 $ — $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NETSTREIT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1—Organization and Description of Business

NETSTREIT Corp. (“Successor” or the “Company”) was incorporated on October 11, 2019 as a
Maryland corporation and commenced operations on December 23, 2019. The Company conducts its
operations through NETSTREIT, L.P, a Delaware limited partnership (the “Operating Partnership”).
NETSTREIT GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
is the sole general partner of the Operating Partnership.

The Company elected to be treated and to qualify as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) for U.S.
federal income tax purposes beginning with its short taxable year ended December 31, 2019 upon the filing
of its U.S. federal income tax return for such taxable year. Additionally, the Operating Partnership formed
NETSTREIT Management TRS, LLC (“NETSTREIT TRS”), which together with the Company jointly elected
to be treated as a taxable REIT subsidiary under Section 856(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended, (the “Code”) for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

The Company is structured as an umbrella partnership real estate investment trust (commonly
referred to as an “UPREIT”) and is an internally managed real estate company that acquires, owns and
manages a diversified portfolio of single-tenant, retail commercial real estate leased on a long-term basis to
high credit quality tenants across the United States. As of December 31, 2020, the Company owned 203
properties, located in 38 states.

Private Offering and Formation Transactions

On December 23, 2019, the Company completed a series of transactions (collectively the “Private
Offering”) pursuant to which the Company sold 8,860,760 shares of common stock at $19.75 per share in a
private placement under Rule 144A and Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
“Securities Act”). In connection with the Private Offering, the Company completed the formation
transactions described below. On January 30, 2020, the initial purchaser in the Private Offering exercised its
over-allotment option to purchase 2,936,885 shares of the Company’s common stock, which were delivered
on February 6, 2020. The Company contributed the net proceeds of $219.0 million from the Private Offering to
the Operating Partnership in exchange for 11,797,645 Class A units of limited partnership of the Operating
Partnership (“Class A OP Units”). Upon completion of the Private Offering and the over-allotment option,
noncontrolling interest holders owned approximately 27.4% of the Operating Partnership (the Operating
Partnership issued total Class A and Class B OP Units of 15,449,794 and 796,870, respectively).

Concurrently with the closing of the Private Offering, EverSTAR Income and Value Fund V, LP, a
Delaware limited partnership (the “Predecessor”), was merged with and into the Operating Partnership, with
the Operating Partnership surviving, and the continuing investors in the Operating Partnership receiving
an aggregate of 3,652,149 Class A OP Units, other than the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, who
received 8,884 Class B units of limited partnership of the Operating Partnership (“Class B OP Units”, and
collectively with Class A OP Units, “OP Units”), and an affiliate of the Predecessor’s general partner, which
received 287,234 Class B OP Units.

The Operating Partnership entered into a contribution agreement with EBA EverSTAR LLC, a Texas
limited liability company, to internalize the Company’s management infrastructure, whereby EBA EverSTAR
LLC contributed 100% of the membership interests in EBA EverSTAR Management, LLC, a Texas limited
liability company and the manager of the Predecessor, to the Operating Partnership in exchange for 500,752
Class B OP Units. In connection with the internalization, EBA EverSTAR Management, LLC was re-
domiciled in Delaware and its name was changed to NETSTREIT Management, LLC. A 0.01% interest in
NETSTREIT Management, LLC was issued to NETSTREIT TRS.

Concurrently with the consummation of the Private Offering, the Company entered into a $175.0 million
term loan and $250.0 million revolving credit facility. On December 23, 2019, in connection with the
acquisition of the Predecessor, the Company fully drew down on its term loan and used the proceeds to
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NETSTREIT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

acquire the Predecessor, which concurrently settled its outstanding debt facilities. As part of the acquisition,
the Company did not assume any obligations under the Predecessor’s then outstanding debt facilities.

Series A Preferred Stock

To maintain the Company’s status as a REIT, on January 27, 2020, the Company issued and sold 125
shares of 12.0% Series A Cumulative Non-Voting Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share (“Series A
Preferred Stock”), for $1,000 per share to accredited investors pursuant to Regulation D under the Securities
Act. The shares of Series A Preferred Stock may be redeemed solely at the Company’s option for
consideration equal to $1,000 per share, plus accrued and unpaid dividends thereon to and including the
date fixed for redemption, plus a redemption premium as follows (i) until December 31, 2021, $100 and
(ii) thereafter, no redemption premium. The Company redeemed all 125 outstanding shares of Series A
Preferred Stock upon the completion of the initial public offering. See “Note 9—Stockholders’ Equity, Partners’
Capital and Preferred Equity.”

Initial Public Offering

On August 17, 2020, the Company completed the initial public offering of its common stock. The
Company sold 12,244,732 shares of common stock and selling stockholders sold 255,268 shares of common
stock at a price of $18.00 per share. The Company’s common stock began trading on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol “NTST” on August 13, 2020. On September 16, 2020, the Company issued an
additional 1,436,829 shares of its common stock pursuant to the underwriters’ over-allotment option in
connection with the Company’s initial public offering. The net proceeds to the Company from the initial
public offering was $227.3 million, which is net of transaction costs and underwriter fees of $18.9 million. The
Company contributed the net proceeds of the initial public offering and related over-allotment option to
the Operating Partnership in exchange for 13,681,561 Class A OP Units. In addition, an equivalent number
of Class A OP Units were issued for the 255,268 shares sold by selling stockholders.

Note 2—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and the rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC). The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and
subsidiaries in which the Company has a controlling financial interest. All intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation and the Company’s net income (loss) is reduced by the
portion of net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests.

For the periods prior to December 23, 2019, the accompanying consolidated financial statements
represent the historical financial information of the Predecessor.

For the periods after December 23, 2019, the accompanying consolidated financial statements
represent the historical financial information of the Successor. As a result of the Company’s formation
transactions, the consolidated financial statements after December 23, 2019 are presented on a new basis of
accounting pursuant to Accounting Standards Codification 805, Business Combinations.

Noncontrolling Interests

The Company presents noncontrolling interests, which represents OP Units, and classifies such
interests as a component of permanent equity, separate from the Company’s stockholders’ equity.
Noncontrolling interests were created as part of an asset acquisition and recognized at fair value as of the
date of the transaction. Effective with the Company’s initial public offering, each limited partner of the
Operating Partnership has the right to require the Operating Partnership to redeem part or all of its OP Units
for cash, based upon the value of an equivalent number of shares of the Company’s common stock at the
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NETSTREIT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

time of the redemption, or, at the Company’s election, shares of the Company’s common stock on a one-for-
one basis, subject to certain adjustments and the restrictions on ownership and transfer of the Company’s
common stock. The election to pay cash or issue common stock is solely within the control of the Company
to satisfy a noncontrolling interest holder’s redemption request.

Net income or loss of the Operating Partnership is allocated to its noncontrolling interests based on
the noncontrolling interests’ ownership percentages in the Operating Partnership. Ownership percentage is
calculated by dividing the number of OP Units held by the noncontrolling interests by the total OP Units
outstanding at the balance sheet date.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. The Company’s most significant assumptions and estimates relate to the useful lives of real
estate assets, lease accounting, real estate impairment assessments, and allocation of fair value of purchase
consideration. These estimates are based on historical experience and other assumptions which management
believes are reasonable under the circumstances. The Company evaluates its estimates on an ongoing
basis and makes revisions to these estimates and related disclosures as experience develops or new
information becomes known. Further, the uncertainty over the ultimate impact COVID-19 will have on the
global economy and the Company’s business makes any estimates and assumptions as of December 31, 2020
inherently less certain than they would be absent the current and potential impacts of COVID-19. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to conform with current period presentation. Transactions
costs within the consolidated financial statements were previously included within the caption “general and
administrative” and real estate improvements within the consolidated statements of cash flows were
previously included within the caption “acquisitions of real estate.”

Risk and Uncertainties

COVID-19

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization announced a new strain of coronavirus (“COVID-
19”) was reported worldwide, resulting in COVID-19 being declared a pandemic, and on March 13, 2020 the
U.S. President announced a National Emergency relating to the disease. COVID-19 and the measures
taken to limit its spread are negatively impacting the economy across many industries, including industries
in which our tenants operate. The impacts may continue and increase in severity as the duration of the
pandemic lengthens. As a result, the Company is not yet able to determine the full impact of COVID-19 on
its operations and therefore whether any such impact will be material. During 2020, we provided rent deferral
and rent abatement to 12 and 15 of our properties, respectively, representing 0.5%, and 1.7% of annualized
base rent as of December 31, 2020, respectively. All tenants with rent relief agreements in place paid in
accordance with the terms of their new lease agreements, and as of year end, the Company had collected
100.0% of all 2020 contractual rent payments. The Company has not provided for any abatements or
deferrals after August 1, 2020. Accordingly, the Company’s operations and cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2020 were not materially impacted by COVID-19.

The Company also adopted an optional remote-work policy and other physical distancing policies for
its corporate office. The Company does not anticipate these policies to have any adverse impact on its ability
to continue to operate its business. Transitioning to a remote-work environment has not had a material
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NETSTREIT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

adverse impact on the Company’s general ledger system, internal controls or controls and procedures
related to its financial reporting process.

Real Estate Held for Investment

Real estate is recorded and stated at cost less any provision for impairment. Assets are recognized at
fair value at acquisition date. For properties developed by the Company, all direct and indirect costs related
to planning, development and construction, including interest, real estate taxes and other miscellaneous costs
incurred during the construction period, are capitalized for financial reporting purposes and recorded as
property under development until construction has been completed.

The Company evaluates each acquisition transaction to determine whether the acquired asset meets
the definition of a business and therefore accounted for as a business combination or if the acquisition
transaction should be accounted for as an asset acquisition. Under Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”)
2017-01, “Business Combinations (Topic 805): Clarifying the Definition of a Business” (“ASU 2017-01”), an
acquisition does not qualify as a business when substantially all of the fair value is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets or the acquisition does not include a substantive
process in the form of an acquired workforce or an acquired contract that cannot be replaced without
significant cost, effort or delay. Transaction costs related to acquisitions that qualify as asset acquisitions
are capitalized as part of the cost basis of the acquired assets, while transaction costs for acquisitions that are
deemed to be acquisitions of a business are expensed as incurred.

The Company allocates the purchase price of acquired properties accounted for as asset acquisitions
to tangible and identifiable intangible assets or liabilities based on their relative fair values. Tangible assets
may include land, buildings, site improvements and tenant improvements. Intangible assets include the
value of in-place leases and above-market leases and intangible liabilities include below-market leases.

The fair value of the tangible assets of an acquired property with an in-place operating lease is
determined by valuing the property as if it were vacant, and the “as-if-vacant” value is then allocated to the
tangible assets based on the fair value of the tangible assets. The fair value of in-place leases is determined by
considering estimates of carrying costs during the expected lease-up periods, current market conditions, as
well as costs to execute similar leases based on the specific characteristics of each tenant’s lease. The Company
estimates the cost to execute leases with terms similar to the remaining lease terms of the in-place leases,
including leasing commissions, legal and other related expenses. The fair value of above-market or below-
market leases is recorded based on the net present value (using a discount rate that reflects the risks associated
with the leases acquired) of the difference between the contractual amount to be paid pursuant to the in-
place lease and the Company’s estimate of the fair market lease rate for the corresponding in-place lease,
measured over the remaining non-cancelable term of the lease including any below-market fixed rate renewal
options for below-market leases. In making estimates of fair values for purposes of allocating purchase
price, the Company utilizes a number of sources, including real estate valuations prepared by independent
valuation firms. The Company also considers information and other factors including market conditions, the
industry that the tenant operates in, characteristics of the real estate; e.g,, location, size, demographics,
value and comparative rental rates; tenant credit profile and the importance of the location of the real estate
to the operations of the tenant’s business. Additionally, the Company considers information obtained
about each property as a result of its pre-acquisition due diligence, marketing and leasing activities in
estimating the fair value of the tangible and intangible assets and liabilities acquired. Based on these inputs
for measuring and allocating the fair value of real estate acquisitions, the Company utilizes both observable
market data (categorized as level 2 on the three-level valuation hierarchy of Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASC”) Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement), and unobservable inputs that reflect the Company’s own
internal assumptions (categorized as level 3 under ASC Topic 820).
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NETSTREIT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets:

Buildings 13-35 years

Building improvements 15 years

Tenant improvements Shorter of the term of the related lease or useful life
Acquired in-place leases Remaining terms of the respective leases
Assembled workforce 3 years

Computer equipment 3 years

Total depreciation and amortization expense was $15.5 million, $0.2 million and $10.4 million for the
year ended December 31, 2020 and for the periods from December 23, 2019 to December 31, 2019, and
from January 1, 2019 to December 22, 2019, respectively.

Depreciation expense on real estate held for investment and computer equipment was $10.7 million,
$0.1 million and $8.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 and for the periods from December 23,
2019 to December 31, 2019, and from January 1, 2019 to December 22, 2019, respectively.

Amortization expense on acquired in-place lease and assembled workforce intangible assets, and
leasing commission costs were $4.8 million, $0.1 million and $2.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2020 and for the periods from December 23, 2019 to December 31, 2019, and from January 1, 2019 to
December 22, 2019, respectively.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to operations as incurred; major renewals and betterments that
extend the useful life or improve the operating capacity of the asset are capitalized. Upon the sale or
disposition of a property, the asset and the related accumulated depreciation are removed from the
consolidated balance sheets with the difference between the proceeds received, net of sales costs, and the
carrying value of the asset group recorded as a gain or loss on sale, subject to impairment considerations.

Assets Held for Sale

Properties classified as held for sale, including the related intangibles, on the consolidated balance
sheets include only those properties available for immediate sale in their present condition, which are
actively being marketed, and for which management believes that it is probable that a sale of the property
will be completed within one year. Properties held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value, less
estimated selling costs. No depreciation expense or amortization expense is recognized on properties held for
sale and the related intangible assets or liabilities once they have been classified as such. Only disposals
representing a strategic shift in operations are presented as discontinued operations. Accordingly, we have
not reclassified results of operations for properties disposed during the year or held for sale as discontinued
operations, as these events are a normal part of the Company’s operations and do not represent strategic
shifts in the Company’s operations. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, there were three and two properties,
respectively, classified as held for sale.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Fair value measurement of an asset occurs when events or changes in circumstances related to an
asset indicate that the carrying amount of the asset is no longer recoverable. If indicators are present, the
Company will prepare a projection of the undiscounted future cash flows of the property, excluding interest
charges, and determine if the carrying amount of the real estate is recoverable. When a carrying amount
is not recoverable, an impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its fair market value. The Company estimates fair value using data such as operating income,
estimated capitalization rates or multiples, leasing prospects, local market information, and with regard to
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NETSTREIT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

assets held for sale, based on the estimated or negotiated selling price, less estimated costs of disposal.
Based on these unobservable inputs, the Company determined that its valuations of impaired real estate
and intangible assets fall within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy under ASC Topic 820.

The following table summarizes the provision for impairment during the periods indicated below (in
thousands):

Successor Predecessor

For the Period from For the Period from

Year Ended December 23 to January 1 to
December 31, December 31, December 22,
2020 2019
Total provision for impairment . ........ $2,690 $— $7,186
Number of properties:(1)
Classified as held forsale ........... 5 - 2
Disposed within the period . ......... 3 — 4

(1) Includes the number of properties that were impaired and classified as held for sale or impaired and
disposed of during the respective periods. Excludes properties that did not have impairment recorded
during the year.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

The Company considers all cash balances, money market accounts and highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. Restricted cash includes cash
restricted for property tenant improvements and cash proceeds from the sale of assets held by qualified
intermediaries in anticipation of the acquisition of replacement properties in tax-free exchanges under
Section 1031 of the Code. The Company had $14.8 million of restricted cash as of December 31, 2020, which
was included in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash on the consolidated balance sheets. The
Company did not have restricted cash as of December 31, 2019.

The Company’s bank balances as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 included certain amounts over the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limits.

Revenue Recognition and Related Matters

The Company’s rental revenue is primarily related to rent received from tenants under leases accounted
for as operating leases. Rent from leases that have fixed and determinable rent increases is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the non-cancellable initial term of the lease and reasonably certain renewal periods,
from the later of the date of the commencement of the lease or the date of acquisition of the property
subject to the lease. The difference between rental revenue recognized and the cash rent due under the
provisions of the lease is recorded as deferred rent receivable and included as a component of other assets
in the consolidated balance sheets.

Variable lease revenues include tenant reimbursements, lease termination fees, changes in the index
or market-based indices after the inception of the lease or percentage rents. Variable lease revenues are not
recognized until the specific events that trigger the variable payments have occurred. The Company and its
Predecessor recognized variable lease revenue related to tenant reimbursements and lease termination
fees for the periods presented.

Capitalized above-market and below-market lease values are amortized on a straight-line basis as a
reduction or increase of rental revenue as appropriate over the remaining non-cancellable terms of the
respective leases.
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In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued ASU No. 2014-09,
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, which was added to the ASC under Topic 606 (“ASC 606”)
(“ASU 2014-09”). ASC 606 outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenues arising from contracts with customers. As the Company’s revenues are primarily generated through
leasing arrangements, and the Company has elected the lessor practical expedient to report income on one
line within its consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss) from the associated
lease for all existing and new leases under ASU 2016-02, “Leases (ASC 842)”, the Company’s revenues fall
outside the scope of this standard.

An allowance for doubtful accounts is provided against the portion of accounts receivable, net
including straight-line rents, which is estimated to be uncollectible, which includes a portfolio-based reserve
and reserves for specific disputed amounts. Such allowances are reviewed each period based upon recovery
experience and the specific facts of each outstanding amount. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, there was
no allowance for doubtful accounts.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has a share-based compensation award program for our employees and directors. Stock-
based compensation expense associated with these awards is recognized in general and administrative
expenses in our consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). We measure stock-
based compensation at the estimated fair value on the grant date and recognize the amortization of stock-
based compensation expense over the requisite service or performance period. The Company recognizes
forfeitures as they occur.

Transaction Costs

Transaction costs represent costs incurred by the Company to facilitate the private offering and
formation transactions and the initial public offering in addition to costs associated with abandoned
acquisitions and other acquisition related activity. Offering costs were $2.2 million and $0.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2020 and for the period from January 1, 2019 to December 22, 2019, respectively.
There were no such costs incurred for the period from December 23, 2019 to December 31, 2019.
Acquisition related expenses were $1.0 million and less than $0.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2020 and for the periods from December 23, 2019 to December 31, 2019, and from January 1, 2019 to
December 22, 2019, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company elected to be treated and qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes
beginning with its short taxable year ended December 31, 2019 upon the filing of its U.S. federal income tax
return for such taxable year. To qualify as a REIT, the Company must meet certain organizational, income,
asset and distribution tests. Accordingly, the Company will generally not be subject to corporate U.S. federal
or state income tax to the extent that it makes qualifying distributions of all of its taxable income to its
stockholders and provided it satisfies on a continuing basis, through actual investment and operating results,
the REIT requirements, including certain asset, income, distribution and share ownership tests. To maintain
the status of a REIT, the Company is required to declare and pay a dividend of $0.2 million relating to its
2019 fiscal period by December 31, 2020. Accordingly, the Company declared and paid dividends in the
second half of 2020 which were inclusive of the $0.2 million obligation for 2019. See “Note 9—Stockholders’
Equity, Partners’ Capital and Preferred Equity.”

The Company made a joint election with NETSTREIT TRS for it to be treated as a taxable REIT
subsidiary which may be subject to U.S. federal, state, and local income taxes on its taxable income. In
general, NETSTREIT TRS may perform services for tenants of the Company, hold assets that the Company
cannot hold directly and may engage in any real estate or non-real estate-related business.
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As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had no provision for state, local or federal income
taxes in its consolidated financial statements.

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per common share has been computed pursuant to the guidance in FASB ASC Topic 260,
Earnings per Share. Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing net income (loss) allocated to
common stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the reporting
period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue
common stock were exercised or converted into common stock. No effect is shown for any securities that are
anti-dilutive. Net income (loss) allocated to common stockholders represents net income (loss) less
income allocated to participating securities and noncontrolling interests. None of the Company’s equity
awards are participating securities.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value measurements are utilized in the accounting of the Company’s assets acquired and
liabilities acquired in an asset acquisition and also affect the Company’s accounting for certain of its
financial assets and liabilities. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date
(an exit price). The hierarchy described below prioritizes inputs to the valuation techniques used in measuring
the fair value of assets and liabilities. This hierarchy maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes
the use of unobservable inputs by requiring the most observable inputs to be used when available. The
hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on the reliability of inputs as follows: Level 1 inputs, such
as quoted prices in an active market; Level 2 inputs, which are observable inputs for similar assets; or Level 3
inputs, which are unobservable inputs.

The Company uses the following inputs in its fair value measurements:

—  Level 2 inputs for its debt and derivative financial instrument fair value disclosures. See “Note 6—
Debt” and “Note 7—Derivative Financial Instruments,” respectively; and

—  Level 2 and Level 3 inputs when assessing the fair value of assets and liabilities in connection
with real estate acquisitions and impairment. See “Note 4—Acquisition and Disposition of Real
Estate”

The fair value of the Company’s cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (including money market
accounts), other assets and accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities approximate their
carrying value because of the short-term nature of these instruments. Provisions for impairments recognized
during the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 related to assets held for sale and the impairment was
determined based on the estimated or negotiated selling price, less costs of disposal, compared to the carrying
value of the property.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to significant concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents. The Company is exposed to credit risk with respect to cash held at
various financial institutions, access to its Credit Facility, and amounts due or payable under derivative
contracts. The credit risk exposure with regard to the Company’s cash, credit facilities, and derivative
instruments is spread among a diversified group of investment grade financial institutions.

During 2020, the Company’s rental revenues were derived from 63 separate tenants leasing 219 total
properties. During this period there were no tenants with rental revenue that exceeded 10% of rental revenue.

During 2019, the Company and the Predecessor’s rental revenues were derived from 48 separate
tenants leasing 123 total properties. During this period, one tenant, CVS, accounted for 12.6% of rental
revenue.
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Segment Reporting

The Company considers each one of its properties to be an operating segment, none of which meets
the threshold for a reportable segment. The Company allocates resources and assesses operating performance
based on individual property needs. All of the Company’s operating segments meet the aggregation
criteria, and thus, the Company reports one segment, rental operations. There were no intersegment sales
during the periods presented.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Adopted

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (ASC 606)”
(“ASU 2014-09”) (“Topic 606”), that outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes most current revenue recognition
guidance. Topic 606 is based on the principle that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer
of goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. As amended by ASU 2015-14, “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers: Deferral of the Effective Date” (“ASU 2015-14”), Topic 606 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2018. The Predecessor adopted Topic 606 on January 1, 2019, but as the
primary revenue stream stems from leasing arrangements and tenant reimbursements, these fall outside the
scope of ASC 606. The Company and its Predecessor did not have non-rental related revenue that would
need to be considered for ASC 606 assessment.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, “Leases (Topic 842)” (“ASU 2016-02”), which
replaces the existing guidance in Topic 840, “Leases” (“ASC 842”). ASC 842 is effective for fiscal years, and
interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2018. The Predecessor adopted ASC 842 on
January 1, 2019 utilizing the modified retrospective transition method. The Predecessor elected to recast
prior-period comparative information to aggregate prior period tenant reimbursement revenue within rental
revenue to conform with the current period presentation within the consolidated statements of operations
and comprehensive income (loss). The Predecessor elected the package of practical expedients available
under ASC 842, but did not elect the hindsight practical expedient, thereby not requiring the Predecessor to
reassess the lease classification for existing contracts. Accordingly, the Predecessor’s leases continue to be
classified as operating leases as of January 1, 2019. The Predecessor did not make any adjustments to the
opening balance of retained earnings upon adoption of the new standard given the nature of the impacts
and other transition practical expedients elected by the Predecessor.

In April 2020, the FASB issued a question and answer document, “Topic 842 and Topic 840: Accounting
for Lease Concessions Related to the Effects of the COVID-19 Pandemic” focused on the application of lease
accounting guidance to lease concessions provided as a result of the COVID-19 global pandemic. Under
existing lease guidance, the entity would have to determine, on a lease by lease basis, if a lease concession
was the result of a new arrangement reached with the tenant, which would be accounted for under the lease
modification framework, or if a lease concession was under the enforceable rights and obligations that
existed in the original lease, which would be accounted for outside the lease modification framework. Entities
can elect to not evaluate whether certain concessions provided by lessors to mitigate the effects of
COVID-19 on lessees are lease modifications. Entities that make this election can then elect to apply the
lease modification guidance in ASC 842 or account for the concession as if it were contemplated as part of
the existing contract. On April 1, 2020, the Company adopted this guidance and determined that it has not
materially impacted the Company’s consolidated financial statements. For all leases when the Company is
a lessor, the Company elected to not evaluate whether certain concessions that do not result in a substantial
increase in the Company’s rights as the lessor or the obligations of the lessee provided to mitigate the
effects of COVID-19 on tenants are lease modifications, further electing to account for the concession as if it
were contemplated as part of the existing contract.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, “Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326):
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments” (“ASU 2016-13”) which changes the model for the
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measurement of credit losses on financial instruments. Specifically, the amendments in the ASU replace the
incurred loss impairment methodology in current GAAP with a methodology that reflects expected credit
losses and requires consideration of a broader range of reasonable and supportable information to inform
credit loss estimates. In November 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-19 “Codification Improvements to Topic
326, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses”, which clarifies that receivables arising from operating leases
are not within the scope of this new guidance. On January 1, 2020, the Company adopted ASU 2016-13. The
adoption of this standard has not materially impacted the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, “Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure
Framework—Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement” (“ASU 2018-13”). This
new guidance modified the disclosure requirements on fair value measurements. Public entities are required
to disclose the following: (i) the changes in unrealized gains and losses for the period included in other
comprehensive income for recurring Level 3 fair value measurements held at the end of the reporting period
and (ii) the range and weighted average of significant unobservable inputs used to develop Level 3 fair
value measurements. In addition, public entities will no longer be required to disclose the following: (i) the
amount of and reasons for transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, (ii) the policy for
timing of transfers between levels and (iii) the valuation processes for Level 3 fair value measurements.

The new pronouncement also clarifies and modifies certain existing provisions, including eliminating “at a
minimum” from the phrase “an entity shall disclose at a minimum” to promote the appropriate exercise of
discretion by entities when considering fair value measurement disclosures and clarifying that materiality

is an appropriate consideration when evaluating disclosure requirements. On January 1, 2020, the Company
adopted ASU 2018-13. The adoption of this standard has not materially impacted the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

In October 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-17, “Consolidation (Topic 810): Targeted Improvements
to Related Party Guidance for Variable Interest Entities” (“ASU 2018-17”). ASU 2018-17 is intended to
improve the accounting when considering indirect interests held through related parties under common
control for determining whether fees paid to decision makers and service providers are variable interests. On
January 1, 2020, the Company adopted ASU 2018-17. The adoption of this standard has not materially
impacted the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-04 “Topic 848: Reference Rate Reform.” ASU 2020-04
contains practical expedients for reference rate reform related activities that impact debt, leases, derivatives,
and other contracts. The guidance in ASU 2020-04 is optional and may be elected over time as reference
rate reform activities occur. On July 1, 2020, the Company has elected to apply the hedge accounting
expedients related to probability and the assessments of effectiveness for future LIBOR-indexed cash flows
to assume that the index upon which future hedged transactions will be based matches the index on the
corresponding derivatives. Application of these expedients preserves the presentation of derivatives
consistent with past presentation. The Company determined these elections have not materially impacted
the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The Company continues to evaluate the impact of the
guidance and may apply other elections as applicable as additional changes in the market occur.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Issued But Not Yet Adopted

In August 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-06, “Accounting for Convertible Instruments and
Contracts in an Entity’s Own Equity”. ASU 2020-06 simplifies accounting for convertible instruments by
removing major separation models currently required. Consequently, more convertible debt instruments will
be reported as a single liability instrument and more convertible preferred stock as a single equity
instrument with no separate accounting for embedded conversion features. ASU 2020-06 also removes
certain settlement conditions that are required for equity contracts to qualify for the derivative scope
exception, which will permit more equity contracts to qualify for it. ASU 2020-06 also simplifies the diluted
earnings per share calculation in certain areas. ASU 2020-06 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2021, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption will be permitted.
The adoption of this standard will not materially impact the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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Note 3—Leases

The Company acquires, owns and manages commercial single-tenant lease properties, with the
majority being long-term triple-net leases where the tenant is generally responsible for all improvements
and contractually obligated to pay all operating costs (such as real estate taxes, utilities and repairs and
maintenance costs). As of December 31, 2020, the Company owned 203 single-tenant retail net leased
properties spanning 38 states, with tenants representing 56 different brands or concepts across 23 retail
sectors. As of December 31, 2020, the remaining terms of leases range from 2-34 years.

The Company’s property leases have been classified as operating leases and some have scheduled
rent increases throughout the lease term.

On January 1, 2019, the Predecessor adopted the new accounting guidance in Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASC”) Topic 842, Leases, including all related ASUs. The Predecessor elected to use the
alternative modified retrospective transition method provided in ASU 2018-11 (the “effective date method”).
Under this method, the effective date of January 1, 2019 is the date of initial application. In connection
with the adoption of Topic 842, the Predecessor elected a package of practical expedients, transition options,
and accounting policy elections as follows:

+ Package of practical expedients is applied to all leases, allowing the Predecessor not to reassess
(1) whether expired or existing contracts contain leases under the new definition of a lease, (ii) lease
classification for expired or existing leases, and (iii) whether previously capitalized initial direct
costs would qualify for capitalization under Topic 842;

+ For land easements, the Predecessor elected not to assess at transition whether any expired or
existing land easements are, or contain, leases if they were not previously accounted for as leases
under the previous lease accounting standard (Topic 840);

+ Lessor separation and allocation practical expedient—The Predecessor as lessor, to aggregate non-
lease components with the related lease component if certain conditions are met, and account for the
combined component based on its predominant characteristic, which generally results in combining
lease and non-lease components of its tenant lease contracts to a single line shown as rental
revenue in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income

(loss); and

- The Predecessor made an accounting policy election to continue to exclude, from contract
consideration, sales tax (and similar taxes) collected from lessees.

All lease-related income is reported as a single line item, rental revenue (including reimbursable), in
the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). Effective January 1, 2019, with
the adoption of ASC 842, rental revenues are presented net of provision for doubtful accounts.

Fixed lease income includes stated amounts per the lease contract, which are primarily related to base
rent and straight-line lease adjustments.

Variable lease income includes the following main items in the lease contracts:

- Recoveries from tenants represents amounts which tenants are contractually obligated to reimburse
the Company for the tenants’ portion of actual recoverable costs incurred.

+ Percentage rent represents amounts billable to tenants based on the tenants’ actual sales volume in
excess of levels specified in the lease contract.
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The following table provides a disaggregation of lease income recognized under ASC 842 (in

thousands):

Successor Predecessor

For the Period from For the Period from

Year Ended December 23 to January 1 to
December 31, December 31, December 22,
2020 2019
Rental revenue
Fixed lease income(1) .. ............ $31,097 $ 446 $19,350
Variable lease income(2) .. .......... 2,126 69 1,241
Other rental revenue:
Above/below market lease
amortization . . ............... 504(2) (564)
Uncollectible amounts in lease
income .. ... .. — — (222)
Rental revenue (including reimbursables) . . $33,727 $ 513 $19,805

@
@

Fixed lease income includes contractual rents under lease agreements with tenants recognized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Variable lease income primarily includes tenant reimbursements for real estate taxes, insurance,
common area maintenance, lease termination fees, and the write-off of doubtful accounts. There were
no write-offs of doubtful accounts during 2020. During 2019 there were $0.2 million of write-offs of
doubtful accounts.

Scheduled future minimum base rental payments (excluding base rental payments from properties

classified as held for sale and straight line rent adjustments for all properties) due to be received under the
remaining non-cancelable term of the operating leases in place as of December 31, 2020 are as follows (in

thousands):
Future Minimum Base
Rental Receipts
202 L $ 40,796
2022 40,891
2023 e 40,803
2024 . L 40,806
2025 40,700
Thereafter . . .. . e 236,950
$440,946

Future minimum rentals exclude amounts that may be received from tenants for reimbursements of

operating costs and property taxes. In addition, the future minimum rents do not include any contingent

rents

based on a percentage of the lessees’ gross sales or lease escalations based on future changes in the

Consumer Price Index (“CPI”) or other stipulated reference rate.
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Note 4—Acquisition and Disposition of Real Estate

Acquisitions

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company acquired 124 properties for a total purchase
price of $408.6 million, inclusive of $4.7 million of capitalized acquisition costs.

For the period from December 23, 2019 to December 31, 2019, the Company acquired one property for
a total purchase price of $1.1 million, inclusive of less than $0.1 million of capitalized acquisition costs.

For the period from January 1, 2019 to December 22, 2019, the Company acquired one property for a
total purchase price of $1.2 million, inclusive of less than $0.1 million of capitalized acquisition costs.

The acquisitions were all accounted for as asset acquisitions. An allocation of the purchase price and
acquisition costs paid for the completed acquisitions is as follows (in thousands):

Successor Predecessor

For the Period from For the Period from

Year Ended December 23 to January 1 to
December 31, December 31, December 22,
2020 2019
Land . ....... .. $124,998 $ 252 $ 80
Buildings . .......... ... ... ... ... ..... 205,157 745 728
Siteimprovements . . ... ... ............ 27,571 50 192
Tenant improvements. . ... ............. 7,066 — 78
In-place lease intangible assets .. ......... 53,743 98 154
Above-market lease intangible assets . . ... .. 5,673 — —
Construction-in-progress assets . . . .. ...... 270 — —
Fuelequipment .. .................... 156 — —
424,634 1,145 1,232
Liabilities assumed ... ................ —
Below-market lease intangible liabilities . . . . . (14,157) (33) —
Accounts payable, accrued expense and other

liabilities . . . . . ... . (1,893) — —
Purchase price (including acquisition costs) . . $408,584 @ @

On December 23, 2019, the Company contributed the proceeds of the Private Offering to the Operating
Partnership, and the Operating Partnership acquired the Predecessor for a combination of OP Units and
$256.3 million in cash. The Operating Partnership issued 8,860,760 Class A OP Units to the Company for its
contribution and 4,449,019 OP Units (3,652,149 Class A and 796,870 Class B) to the Predecessor’s owners
for the acquisition. The acquisition was accounted for as an asset acquisition and included $0.5 million of
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acquisition fees incurred in connection with the acquisition. An allocation of the purchase price and
acquisition costs paid for the completed acquisition is as follows (in thousands):

December 23, 2019
Land . . oo e, $ 83,744
Buildings . . ... ... 125,140
Site IMProvemMEntS . . . . . o vttt e 8,152
Tenant improvements . . . ... ... ... 5,969
In-place lease intangible assets . . .. ... ... ... . ... 20,665
Above-market lease intangibleassets . . . ... ... ... .. 7,286
Propertiesheldforsale. .. ... .. ... . . . . . ... 8,343
Other assets . .. .ot 3,486
262,785

Liabilities assumed

Below-market lease intangible liabilities . . . .. ... ... ... ... .. ... ... ... .. .. (4,649)
Other liabilities . . . . . .. (1,851)
Purchase price (including acquisition costs) . . ... ..o vvi i $256,285

Dispositions

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company sold 15 properties for a total sales price, net
of disposal costs, of $48.1 million, recognizing a gain on sale of $6.2 million.

For the period from December 23, 2019 to December 31, 2019, the Company had no dispositions.

For the period from January 1, 2019 to December 22, 2019, the Company sold 30 properties for a total
sales price, net of disposal costs, of $77.6 million, recognizing a gain on sale of $5.6 million.

During 2019, the Company entered into an agreement to sell one property to a third-party and
received a nonrefundable $0.3 million earnest money deposit which, upon the third-party’s failure to
perform under the purchase and sale agreement in the first quarter of 2020, was recognized as a gain.

Note 5—Intangible Assets and Liabilities

Intangible assets and liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying

Amount Amortization = Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Assets:
In-placeleases . .. ... .. $69,470 $(4,146) $65,324 $20,763 $(56) $20,707
Above-market leases . .. 9,607 (481) 9,126 7,286 (19) 7,273
Assembled workforce . . . 873 (299) 574 873 7 866
Total Intangible assets .. $79,950 $(4,926) $75,024 $28,922 $(76) $28,846
Liabilities:
Below-market leases . . .. $17,951 $(1,021) $16,930 $ 4,682 $(10) $ 4,672
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The remaining weighted average amortization period for the Company’s intangible assets and
liabilities as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 by category and in total, were as follows:

Years Remaining

December 31,

2020 2019
In-placeleases . . ... .. ... 111 10.5
Above-marketleases . . . . ... 12.6 15.3
Below-marketleases . .. ... ... ... . .. 134 13.2
Assembled workforce . ... ... 2.0 3.0

The Company records amortization of in-place lease assets to amortization expense, and records net
amortization of above-market and below-market lease intangibles to rental revenue. The following amounts
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss) related to
the amortization of intangibles assets and liabilities for all property and ground leases (in thousands):

Successor Predecessor

For the Period from For the Period from

Year Ended December 23 to January 1 to
December 31, December 31, December 22,
2020 2019
Amortization:
Amortization of in-place leases . . . . .. .. $4,437 $ 56 $2,032
Amortization of assembled workforce . . . 292 7 —
Net adjustment to rental revenue: - o -
Above-market lease assets . . . ... ... .. (560) (13) (966)
Below-market lease liabilities . . . ... ... 1,064 11 403
$ 504 5 2) 5 (563)

The following table provides the projected amortization of in-place lease assets and assembled
workforce intangible assets to amortization expense, and the net amortization of above-market and below-
market lease intangibles to rental revenue as of December 31, 2020, for the next five years and thereafter (in
thousands):

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 Thereafter  Total

In-placeleases ............... $6,839 $6,839 $6,808 $6,719 $6,572 $31,547 $65,324
Assembled workforce .. ........ 291 283 — — — — 574
Amortization expense . ......... $7,130 $7,122 $6,808 $6,719 $6,572 $31,547 $65,898
Above-market lease assets . . ... .. $ (774) $ (774) $ (774) $ (769) $ (768) $(5267) $(9,126)
Below-market lease liabilities . . . .. 1,472 1,472 1,464 1,450 1,439 9,633 16,930
Net adjustment to rental revenue .. $ 698 $ 698 ¢ 690 ¢ 681 $ 671 $ 4,366 $ 7,804
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Note 6—Debt
Debt consists of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2020 2019
Term loan:
Term Loan (due December 23,2024) . . .. ... ... it $175,000 $175,000
Less: Unamortized discount and debt issuancecosts . . . . ........ ... ....... (895) (1,087)

$174,105 $173,913

Successor Credit Facility

In December 2019, the Company entered into a senior credit facility consisting of (i) a $175.0 million
senior secured term loan (“Term Loan”) and (ii) a $250.0 million senior secured revolving credit facility
(“Revolver”, and collectively with the Term Loan, the “Credit Facility”). Wells Fargo Securities, LLC is lead
arranger and bookrunner and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association is administrative agent under the
Credit Facility (the “Administrative Agent”).

The Term Loan matures on December 23, 2024 and the Revolver matures on December 23, 2023,
subject to extension up to one year. The Administrative Agent released the collateral in connection with the
Company’s satisfaction of the Collateral Release Requirements in the fourth quarter of 2020, therefore
interest rates under the Credit Facility are based on the Company’s consolidated total leverage ratio, and are
determined by (A) in the case of the Term Loan either (i) LIBOR, plus a margin ranging from 1.15% to
1.60%, based on the Company’s consolidated total leverage ratio, or (ii) a Base Rate (as defined in the Credit
Facility), plus a margin ranging from 0.15% to 0.60%, based on the Company’s consolidated total leverage
ratio and (B) in the case of the Revolver either (i) LIBOR, plus a margin ranging from 1.20% to 1.80%, based
on the Company’s consolidated total leverage ratio, or (ii) a Base Rate (as defined in the Credit Facility), plus
a margin ranging from 0.20% to 0.80%, based on the Company’s consolidated total leverage ratio. Interest
is payable monthly or at the end of the applicable interest period in arrears on any outstanding borrowings.

Prior to the collateral release, the Credit Facility was secured by a first priority perfected security
interest in and lien on all existing and future equity interests of the Company’s direct and indirect subsidiaries
of any Eligible Property (as defined in the Credit Facility) owned by the Company or any of the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Credit Facility also provided that the Administrative Agent has the option to release the
collateral securing the Credit Facility upon delivery of satisfactory evidence from the Company that
Collateral Release Requirements (as defined in the Credit Facility) have been met, which requirements
include, among others, conditions related to the unencumbered asset value and asset diversification of the
Company.

For so long as the Credit Facility was secured, which was through the period ended September 30,
2020, the interest rates under the Credit Facility were based on the Company’s consolidated total leverage
ratio, and were determined by (A) in the case of Term Loan either (i) LIBOR, plus a margin ranging from 1.25%
to 2.25%, based on the Company’s consolidated total leverage ratio, or (ii) a Base Rate (as defined in the
Credit Facility), plus a margin ranging from 0.25% to 1.25%, based on the Company’s consolidated total
leverage ratio and (B) in the case of Revolving Loans either (i) LIBOR, plus a margin ranging from 1.35% to
2.30%, based on the Company’s consolidated total leverage ratio, or (ii) a Base Rate (as defined in the Credit
Facility), plus a margin ranging from 0.35% to 1.30%, based on the Company’s consolidated total leverage
ratio.

The Company is required to pay a Revolver facility fee at an annual rate of 0.15% of the unused
capacity if usage exceeds 50% of the total available facility, or 0.25% of the unused facility if usage does not
exceed 50%. Loans from the Revolver are generally restricted if, among other things, the proposed usage of the
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proceeds from the loan do not meet certain criteria as outlined in the Credit Facility Agreement, if an event
of default exists, or if the requested loan will create an event of default. Loans from the Revolver may not
exceed the total revolving commitments.

During the second quarter of 2020, the Company entered into an amendment to the Credit Facility to
amend and redefine its debt covenant calculations. The Company incurred and capitalized less than
$0.1 million of financing costs relating to this amendment, which has been pro-rated to the Term Loan and
Revolver based on their respective borrowing capacities.

On December 23, 2019, in connection with the acquisition of the Predecessor, the Company fully drew
down on its Term Loan and used the proceeds to acquire the Predecessor who then concurrently settled its
outstanding debt facilities of $168.3 million, including incremental legal and tax costs of $0.4 million,
excluding unamortized deferred financing costs of $0.5 million. As part of the acquisition, the Company did
not assume any obligation under the Predecessor’s then outstanding debt facilities. Settlement of the
Predecessor’s debt was contingent upon the consummation of the Private Offering. In the Successor’s
consolidated statement of cash flows the consideration paid to settle the Predecessor’s debt is included in
acquisitions of assets of the Predecessor. The residual amount of $4.3 million was held in cash, cash equivalents
and restricted cash on December 31, 2019 on the Successor’s consolidated balance sheet.

Deferred financing costs are being amortized over the remaining terms of each respective loan. Term
Loan deferred financing costs of $1.1 million, of which $0.9 million and $1.1 million is unamortized as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, is included within term loan, net on the consolidated balance
sheets. Revolver deferred financing costs of $1.6 million, of which $1.2 million and $1.6 million is unamortized
as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, is included within other assets, net on the consolidated
balance sheets.

Total deferred financing costs amortized on the Term Loan and Revolver were $0.6 million and less
than $0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 and for the period from December 23, 2019 to
December 31, 2019, respectively. This is included in interest expense on the Company’s consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

As of December 31, 2020, and 2019, the Term Loan had a weighted average interest rate, exclusive of
amortization of deferred financing costs, of 1.97% and 3.28%, respectively, which as of September 28, 2020, is
inclusive of the interest rate hedge as described in “Note 7—Derivative Financial Instruments.”

The Company incurred interest expense in connection with the Term Loan for the year ended
December 31, 2020 and for the period from December 23, 2019 to December 31, 2019 of $3.5 million and
$0.2 million, respectively.

The estimated fair value of the Company’s Term Loan has been derived based on market observable
inputs such as interest rates and discounted cash flow analysis using estimates of the amount and timing of
future cash flows. These measurements are classified as Level 2 within the fair value hierarchy. The
Company assessed that the carrying value materially approximated the estimated fair value of the Term
Loan as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.

During 2020, the Company incurred interest expense, exclusive of facility fees for unused capacity, on
borrowings under the Revolver of $0.1 million, with a weighted average interest rate, exclusive of amortization
of deferred financing costs, of 1.54%. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company had no borrowings
under the Revolver. The Company also incurred interest expense in connection with unused capacity for the
year ended December 31, 2020 and for the period from December 23, 2019 to December 31, 2019 of
$0.6 million and less than $0.1 million, respectively.

The Company was in compliance with all of its debt covenants as of December 31, 2020 and expects
to be in compliance for the following twelve-month period.
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Debt Maturity

Payments on the Term Loan are interest only through maturity. All outstanding amounts on the Term
Loan are due on December 23, 2024.

Predecessor Credit Facility and Mortgages Payable

The Predecessor had a syndicated credit facility (the “Predecessor Credit Facility”) with Bank of
America, N.A,, acting as the administrative agent, wherein the Predecessor borrowed funds to acquire its
properties. The Predecessor Credit Facility was secured by a first lien on the Predecessor’s portfolio of
properties. As amended, the Predecessor Credit Facility consisted of legacy term loans and a $30 million
accordion available on or before November 22, 2019. The Predecessor Credit Facility provided for total
borrowings of up to $289.8 million subject to the approval of the lenders. The Predecessor Credit Facility
provided for interest only payments through June 4, 2019 and amortized over 30-years thereafter (with
interest rates based on LIBOR plus 2.4% to 2.5%). The Predecessor Credit Facility was repaid in full on
December 23, 2019.

The Predecessor refinanced three properties in 2017 with a $3.3 million term loan with LegacyTexas
Bank, secured by a first lien on the properties. The loan was interest only and interest was based on LIBOR
plus 3.75%. The loan was repaid in full on December 23, 2019.

The Predecessor assumed five term loans in an acquisition of five properties during 2018 with a
principal amount of $14.1 million with Wells Fargo. The loans were fully amortized, and interest was fixed at
5.773%. The loans were repaid in full on December 23, 2019.

In accordance with the terms of the Predecessor’s credit facilities, the Predecessor was required to
meet certain restrictive financial covenants which, among other things, required the Predecessor to
maintain certain (i) leverage, (ii) debt service coverage and (iii) liquidity ratios.

Total deferred financing costs amortized on the Predecessor’s credit facilities was $1.0 million for the
period from January 1, 2019 to December 22, 2019. This is included in interest expense on the consolidated
statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss).

The Predecessor incurred interest expense of $9.3 million in connection with its borrowings for the
period from January 1, 2019 to December 22, 2019.

Note 7—Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company uses interest rate derivative contracts to manage its exposure to changes in interest
rates on its variable rate debt. These derivatives are considered cash flow hedges and are recorded on a
gross basis at fair value. Assessments of hedge effectiveness are performed quarterly using either a qualitative
or quantitative approach. The Company recognizes the entire change in the fair value in Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income (“AOCI”) and the change is reflected as cash flow hedge changes in fair value
in the supplemental disclosures of non-cash investing and financing activities in the consolidated statement
of cash flows. Effective September 28, 2020, such derivatives were initiated to hedge the variable cash
flows associated with Term Loan.

Amounts will subsequently be reclassified to earnings when the hedged item affects earnings. The
Company does not enter into derivative contracts for speculative or trading purposes and does not have
derivative netting arrangements.

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by its derivative counterparties.
The Company evaluates counterparty credit risk through monitoring the creditworthiness of counterparties,
which includes review of debt ratings and financial performance. To mitigate credit risk, the Company
enters into agreements with counterparties it considers credit-worthy, such as large financial institutions
with favorable credit ratings.
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The Company had the following outstanding interest rate derivatives that were designated as cash
flow hedges of interest rate risk (in thousands, except number of instruments):

Number of Instruments Notional

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
Interest Rate Derivatives 2020 2019 2020 2019

Interestrateswaps . ............. 4 — $175,000 $—

The following table presents the fair value of the Company’s derivative financial instruments as well
as their classification on the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019
(in thousands):

Derivative Assets Derivative Liabilities
Fair Value as of Fair Value as of
Derivatives Designated as ~ Balance Sheet December 31, Balance Sheet December 31,
Hedging Instruments: Location 2020 2019 Location 2020 2019
Interest rate swaps . . . . ... Other assets, net  $253 $—  Accounts payable, $— $—

accrued expenses
and other liabilities

The following table presents the effect of the Company’s interest rate swaps on the consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
(in thousands):

Location of Gain or (Loss) Amount of Gain or (Loss)

Amount of Gain or (Loss) Reclassified from Reclassified from
Recognized in OCI Accumulated Accumulated
Derivatives in Cash on Derivative OClI into Income OClI into Income
Flow Hedging (Effective Portion) (Effective Portion) (Effective Portion)
Relationships 2020 2019 2020 2019
Interest Rate
Products . ...... $227 $55 Interest expense, net $(26) $55

The Company did not exclude any amounts from the assessment of hedge effectiveness for the year
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. During the next twelve months, the Company estimates that an
additional $0.1 million will be reclassified as an increase to interest expense.

The valuation of these instruments is determined using widely accepted valuation techniques
including discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows of each derivative. This analysis reflects
the contractual terms of the derivatives, including the period to maturity, and uses observable market-based
inputs, including interest rate curves.

To comply with the provisions of ASC 820, the Company incorporates credit valuation adjustments to
appropriately reflect both its own nonperformance risk and the respective counterparty’s nonperformance
risk in the fair value measurements. In adjusting the fair value of its derivative contracts for the effect of
nonperformance risk, the Company has considered the impact of netting and any applicable credit
enhancements, such as collateral postings, thresholds, mutual puts, and guarantees.

Although the Company has determined that the majority of the inputs used to value its derivatives fall
within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, the credit valuation adjustments associated with its derivatives
utilize Level 3 inputs, such as estimates of current credit spreads to evaluate the likelihood of default by itself
and its counterparties. However, as of December 31, 2020, the Company has assessed the significance of
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the impact of the credit valuation adjustments on the overall valuation of its derivative positions and has
determined that the credit valuation adjustments are not significant to the overall valuation of its derivatives.
As a result, the Company has determined that its derivative valuations in their entirety are classified in
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The table below presents the Company’s derivative assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
as of December 31, 2020, aggregated by the level in the fair value hierarchy within which those measurements

fall (in thousands):

Fair Value Hierarchy Level

Description Levell Level2 Level3 Total Fair Value
December 31, 2020
Derivative @ssets . . . .o oo vt i i $— $253 $— $253

There were no derivative assets or liabilities as of December 31, 2019.

Note 8—Supplemental Detail for Certain Components of the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Other assets, net consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2020 2019
Earnest money deposits . . . . .ottt e @ $1,100
Deferred financing costs,net . ... ... ... 1,198 1,552
Accounts receivable, net. . . . .. 1,489 625
Deferred rent receivable . . . . . . 1,407 15
Otherassets . . .. ... e 996 12

$5,724  $3,304

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities consists of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2020 2019
Accrued eXPenSEs . . . . it M $ 438
Accrued bonus . . . ... 1,561 —
Prepaidrent . . . ..o 1,551 607
Accounts payable . . ... 916 1,165
Other liabilities . . . . . .. e 245 506

$6,308  $2,716

Note 9—Stockholders’ Equity, Partners’ Capital and Preferred Equity

Common Stock

Total net proceeds to the Company from the Company’s initial public offering in August 2020 were
$227.3 million which is net of underwriting discounts and offering costs of $18.9 million. The initial public
offering resulted in the issuance of 13,681,561 shares of common stock.

The Company’s initial public offering also resulted in the noncontrolling interest conversion of
255,268 of operating partnership units into common stock.
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During the year ended December 31, 2020, portions of restricted stock unit awards granted to certain
of the Company’s officers and directors vested. The vesting of these awards, granted pursuant to the Omnibus
Incentive Plan, resulted in federal and state income tax liabilities for the recipients. As permitted by the
terms of the Omnibus Incentive Plan and the award grants, certain executive officers elected to surrender
approximately seven thousand shares of common stock valued at $0.1 million, solely to pay the associated
statutory tax withholding during the year ended December 31, 2020. The surrendered shares are included in
repurchase of shares of common stock on the consolidated statements of cash flows.

Total net proceeds to the Company from the Company’s Private Offering in December 2019 and
January 2020 were $219.0 million which is net of initial purchaser’s discount and placement fees of
$13.9 million. The Private Offering resulted in the issuance of 11,797,645 shares of common stock.

Preferred Equity

To maintain the Company’s status as a REIT, on January 27, 2020, the Company issued and sold 125
shares of 12.0% Series A Cumulative Non-Voting Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share, for $1,000 per
share to accredited investors pursuant to Regulation D under the Securities Act. The shares of Series A
Preferred Stock may be redeemed solely at the Company’s option for consideration equal to $1,000 per share,
plus accrued and unpaid dividends thereon to and including the date fixed for redemption, plus a
redemption premium as follows (i) until December 31, 2021, $100 and (ii) thereafter, no redemption premium.

In May 2020, the Company declared a preferred dividend of $51.33 per share of Series A Preferred
Stock to holders of record as of June 15, 2020. The preferred dividend was settled in cash on June 30, 2020.

The Company redeemed all 125 outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock upon the completion
of the initial public offering in August 2020 for approximately $0.1 million, which included the payment of
accrued dividends for the period from July 1, 2020 to August 18, 2020 and a redemption premium of $100 per
share. As of December 31, 2020, there are no shares of preferred stock outstanding.

Dividends

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company declared and paid the following common
stock dividends (in thousands, except per share data):

Declaration Date Dividend Per Share Record Date Total Amount Payment Date

August 18,2020 . . .. $0.10 September 15, 2020 $2,430 September 25, 2020

October 27,2020 . .. 0.20 December 1, 2020 5,627 December 15, 2020
$0.30 $8,057

The holders of OP Units are entitled to an equal distribution per Class A and B OP Unit held as of
each record date. Accordingly, the Operating Partnership paid distributions of $0.4 million and $0.4 million
to holders of OP Units as of September 25, 2020 and December 15, 2020, respectively.

For federal income tax purposes, distributions to stockholders are characterized as ordinary dividends,
capital gain distributions, or nondividend distributions. Nondividend distributions will reduce U.S.
stockholders’ basis (but not below zero) in their shares. The following table shows the character of the
Company’s common stock distributions paid on a percentage basis for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Successor
Year Ended December 31,
2020
Ordinary dividends . . ... ... ... . .. . . 2.6%
Nondividend distributions .. ........ ... .. .. ... .. .. . ... ... 97.4%
Total .. @%
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Inclusive of the $2.4 million common stock dividend paid on September 25, 2020, was $0.2 million of
dividends paid relating to the Company’s 2019 fiscal period.

Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling interests represent noncontrolling holders of OP Units in the Operating Partnership.
OP Units are convertible into common stock as the OP Units may be redeemed for cash or, at the Company’s
election, exchanged for shares of the Company’s common stock on a one-for-one basis. As of December 31,
2020 and 2019, noncontrolling interest represented 5.8% and 33.4%, respectively. During the year ended
December 31, 2020, OP Unit holders converted 2,441,869 OP Units into shares of common stock on a one-
for-one basis.

Effective with the Company’s initial public offering, 13,681,561 OP Units were issued to the Company
in exchange for $227.3 million and 255,268 of OP Unit holders converted their units into common stock of
the Company.

Effective with the Company’s Private Offering, the Company contributed $219.0 million of the Private
Offering proceeds to the Operating Partnership, and the Operating Partnership acquired the Predecessor
for a combination of OP Units and cash. The Operating Partnership issued 11,797,645 Class A OP Units to
the Company for its contribution and 4,449,019 OP Units (3,652,149 Class A and 796,870 Class B) to the
Predecessor’s owners for the acquisition. Class A OP Units and Class B OP Units have identical rights and
preferences, except that the Class A OP Units will, and the Class B OP Units will not, be entitled to receive the
special stock dividend, if applicable.

Note 10—Stock Based Compensation

Under the NETSTREIT Corp. 2019 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Omnibus Incentive
Plan”), which became effective on December 23, 2019, 2,094,976 shares of common stock are reserved for
issuance. The Omnibus Incentive Plan provides for the grant of stock options, stock appreciation rights,
restricted shares, restricted stock units, long-term incentive plan units, dividend equivalent rights, and other
share-based, share-related or cash-based awards, including performance-based awards, to employees,
directors and consultants, with each grant evidenced by an award agreement providing the terms of the
award. The Omnibus Incentive Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors.

As of December 31, 2020, the only stock-based compensation granted by the Company were restricted
stock units. The total amount of stock-based compensation costs recognized in general and administrative
expense on our consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss) was $2.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2020. No stock-based compensation expense was recognized in 2019.

Performance-Based Restricted Stock Units

Pursuant to the Omnibus Incentive Plan, the Company made performance-based restricted stock unit
grants to certain employees and non-employee directors. The performance condition required the Company
to effectively file a shelf registration statement. Up until the point of filing the registration statement,
performance was not deemed probable and accordingly, no restricted stock units had the capability of vesting
and no stock-based compensation expense was recorded. As a result of the Company’s initial public
offering in August 2020, the performance condition was satisfied and the Company recorded a stock-based
compensation expense catch-up adjustment of $1.4 million. The vesting terms of these grants are specific to
the individual grant and vest in equal annual installments over the next three to five years.
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The following table summarizes performance and service based restricted stock unit activity for the
period ended December 31, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair Grant Date Fair
Shares Value per Share Shares Value per Share
Unvested restricted stock grants
outstanding, beginning of year . ... .. 168,353 $19.75 — $ -
Granted during the period . . . .. ... ... 85,441 19.75 168,353 19.75
Forfeited during the period .. ........ (11,391) 19.75 — —
Vested during the period . . .. ... ..... (34,600) 19.75 - -
Unvested restricted stock grants
outstanding, end of year. . . . ....... 207,803 $19.75 168,353 $19.75

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company recognized $2.2 million in stock-based
compensation expense associated with performance-based restricted stock units. No stock-based
compensation expense was recognized in 2019. As of December 31, 2020, the remaining unamortized stock-
based compensation expense totaled $2.6 million which is expected to be recognized over a weighted
average period of 2.6 years. These units are subject to graded vesting and amortization is recognized ratably
over the requisite service period for each vesting tranche in the award.

The weighted average grant date fair value of unvested restricted units is calculated as the per share
price determined in the Private Offering.

Service-Based Restricted Stock Units

Pursuant to the Omnibus Incentive Plan, the Company made service-based restricted stock unit
grants to certain employees and non-employee directors in August 2020. The vesting terms of these grants
are specific to the individual grant and vest in equal annual installments over the next three to five years.

The following table summarizes service based restricted stock unit activity for the period ended
December 31, 2020:

2020
Weighted Average Grant
Shares Date Fair Value per Share
Unvested restricted stock grants outstanding, beginning of year . . . — $ -
Granted duringtheperiod . ... ... .. ... ... . ... ... ... ... 169,793 18.00

Forfeited duringtheperiod . ........... ... ... ... .. ...... — —
Vested duringtheperiod . .. ..... ... ... ... .. ... ... ... ... — —

Unvested restricted stock grants outstanding, end of year ....... 169,793 $18.00

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company recognized $0.2 million in stock-based
compensation expense associated with service-based restricted stock units. No stock-based compensation
expense was recognized in 2019. As of December 31, 2020, the remaining unamortized stock-based
compensation expense totaled $2.8 million which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average
period of 4.6 years. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over the total requisite service period
for the entire award.

The weighted average grant date fair value of service based unvested restricted units is calculated as
the per share price determined in the initial public offering.

F-31



NETSTREIT CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Note 11—Earnings Per Share

Net income per common share has been computed pursuant to the guidance in the FASB ASC Topic
260, Earnings per Share. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted
earnings per share is similarly calculated except that the denominator is increased by using the treasury
stock method to determine the potential dilutive effect of the Company’s outstanding unvested restricted
stock units and using the if-converted method to determine the potential dilutive effect of the Company’s
Class A and B OP Units. The Company has noncontrolling interests in the form of OP Units which are
convertible into common stock and represent potentially dilutive securities, as the OP Units may be redeemed
for cash or, at the Company’s election, exchanged for shares of the Company’s common stock on a one-for-
one basis. The following table is a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used in the computation
of basic and diluted net income per common share for the year ended December 31, 2020 and for the
period from December 23, 2019 to December 31, 2019. Net income per share information is not applicable
for the reporting periods prior to December 23, 2019.

Successor

For the Period from
Year Ended December 23 to
December 31, December 31,

(in thousands, except share and per share data) 2020 2019

Numerator:

Netincome . ... ... $ 212 $ 42
Net loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interest . . . . . . . . 518 (14)
Cumulative preferred stock dividends and redemption premium . . (42) —

Net income attributable to common shares, basic .. ............ 688 28
Net loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interest . . . . . . .. 518 (14)

Net income attributable to common shares, diluted . . ... ... ... .. $ 170 $ 42

Denominator:

Weighted average common shares outstanding, basic . .......... 17,322,182 8,860,760

Effect of dilutive shares for diluted net income per common share:

OP UnNits . o vt e et e e e e e e e e 3,807,022 —
Unvested RSUS . . . oot 28,792 —
Weighted average common shares outstanding, diluted . .. .. ... .. 21,157,996 8,860,760

Net income available to common stockholders per common share,
basic . ... $ 0.04 $ —

Net income available to common stockholders per common share,
diluted .. ... $ 0.01 $ —

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, there were 1,751,882 and 4,449,019 of OP Units outstanding,
respectively.

Subsequent to December 31, 2020, 182,418 of OP Units converted into shares of common stock on a one-
for-one basis.
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Note 12—Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation and Regulatory Matters

In the ordinary course of business, from time to time, the Company may be subject to litigation, claims
and regulatory matters, none of which are currently outstanding, which the Company believes could have,
individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition or results of
operations, liquidity or cash flows.

Environmental Matters

The Company is subject to environmental regulations related to the ownership of real estate. The cost
of complying with the environmental regulations was not material to the Company or Predecessor’s results
of operations for any of the periods presented. The Company is not aware of any environmental condition on
any of its properties that is likely to have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial statements
when the fair value of such liability can be reasonably estimated and is required to be recognized.

Commitments

As of December 31, 2020, the Company did not have any commitments for re-leasing costs, recurring
capital expenditures, non-recurring building improvements, or similar types of costs.

Note 13—Related-Party Transactions

Successor Transactions

Effective with the Private Offering and commencement of the Company’s operations on December 23,
2019, the Company executed a facilities agreement with a subsidiary of EB Arrow. Under the facilities
agreement, the Company shares in office rent and office related expenses primarily based on employee
headcount. For the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company incurred $0.2 million and less than
$0.1 million, respectively, in related expenses.

Predecessor transactions

The Predecessor’s fees paid and accrued to the benefit of related parties for the for the period from
January 1, 2019 to December 22, 2019 are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Predecessor

For the Period from

Entity Transaction Type January 1 to December 22,
EverSTARIVFVGPLLC . ................ Asset management fees $2,767
EBA EverSTAR,LLC . . ... ... .. .. ... ...... Disposition fees 909
EBA EverSTAR,LLC . . ... ... .. .. ... . ..... Acquisition fees 18

Note 14—Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated all events that occurred subsequent to December 31, 2020 through the
date on which these consolidated financial statements were issued to determine whether any of these events
required disclosure in the financial statements.

Real Estate Investment Activity

The Company acquired eight properties for a total purchase price, including transaction costs, of
$17.4 million. Additionally, on February 8, 2021, the Company invested $1.3 million in a development
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project in Yuma, Arizona. The Company’s total investment is expected to be $4.4 million with the sole tenant
in the property commencing lease payments in 2022.

OP Unit Conversions to Common Stock

There were 182,418 OP Units that converted into shares of common stock on a one-for-one basis
subsequent to December 31, 2020.

Common Stock Dividend

On March 3, 2021, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of $0.20 per share for
the first quarter of 2021. The dividend will be paid on March 30, 2021 to stockholders of record on March 15,
2021.

Alignment of Interest Program

On March 3, 2021, pursuant to the Omnibus Incentive Plan, the Compensation Committee of the
Company’s Board of Directors adopted the Alignment of Interest Program (the “Program”). The Program
allows individuals who are eligible to receive awards under the Omnibus Incentive Plan, as selected by the
Committee from time to time, to elect to receive restricted stock units (“RSUs”) under the Omnibus Plan in lieu
of a specified percentage of cash compensation. For 2020, eligible participants elected to receive an
aggregate of $0.7 million in the form of RSUs in lieu of cash compensation. The number of RSUs will be
determined on March 8, 2021, the second business day following the release of the Company’s fourth quarter
earnings. Awarded RSUs will vest over three years, in substantially equal annual installments, generally
subject to continued provision of services.

2021 Restricted Stock Unit Grants

On March 3, 2021, pursuant to the Omnibus Incentive Plan, the Company made performance and
service-based restricted stock unit grants to certain employees. The Company issued an aggregate of
$4.0 million of RSUs of which 60% will be earned over a service period of three years and be based on the
Company’s total shareholder return (“TSR”) as compared to the TSR of 33 peer companies and total absolute
TSR over the cumulative three year period. The remaining 40% of the award will vest over a period of
three years from the date of grant, subject to the individual recipient’s continued provision of service to the
Company through the vesting date. The number of RSUs will be determined on March 8, 2021, the second
business day following the release of the Company’s fourth quarter earnings.

F-34



SIB9X €€ 016 6102/€2/21 €102 (€9) 2521 9e8 LT% - 9e8 LT% - MO UBWION §81035 Ie[[0Q
s1e9X 1€ 016 6102/€2/21 €102 #e) 9911 €8 zee - #E8 2ee - HO weypuIm §81035 Ie[[0Q
189X Z€ 016 6102/¢2/21 €102 #e) 8L0T 898 602 - 898 602 - HO QoD §81035 IB[[0Q
189X 7€ 016 6102/€2/21T €102 (023) 6511 6€6 012 - 6€6 012 - HO weyburug §810315 Ie[[0Q
s189% €€ 01 0T 6102/82/21 %102 (se) 8221 0%6 182 - 0%6 182 - SN UeIpLS 581035 Ie[[0Q
SIB9X €€ 016 6102/82/21 €102 (8%) S6%'T 62T 9%¢ - 6%2'T 9%2 - SW Lepnyg 21018 Te[[0Q
s189% €€ 01 0T 6102/82/21 %102 se) #L0'T 8€6 9€T - 8€6 9eT - S BuunENONg 581035 Ie[[0Q
SIB9X €€ 016 6102/82/21 €102 (99) 890°T €96 S0T - €96 S0T - SN onyD snbog 581035 Ie[[0Q
SIE9Z 47 01ZT 6102/82/21 9102 #e) 65T 9L 7% - L k484 - NI speibleg §8103G 1B[[0Q
SIBSX €€ 016 6102/82/21 %102 (e%) LT9T 6511 89% - 6511 89% - YIN PPRo01g 581035 1e[[0Q
SIB9X 92 01% 6102/82/21 €102 (€9) €00°T 119 z6¢ - 119 26€ - NI stjodeuerpug 21033 Te[[0Q
s1ea) zg 0121 6102/82/21 9102 (€9) 9STT 258 %0g - 258 %0€ - VI  juiod Ausqmeng 21038 Te[[0Q
s1eax zg 0121 6102/82/21 9102 (ee) 660°T 8%8 052 - 8%8 052 - VI AD et 21033 Te[[0Q
SIedk g€ 018 6102/82/21 1102 (92) 2L2T L€6 see - L€6 see - 4 BUOIR(J 21033 Te[[0Q
188X 92 019 6102/82/21 5002 (L52) 0S%'L $6%'S 956°T - 6%'S 956°T - OW ydesop 15 [1819 1UNO2SI
SIB9X 9Z 019 6102/82/21 %661 (e22) 8699 €e8% 5981 - €e8%y 5981 - N PUe[oH [re39y UnodsIq
SIE9X 0 01 G 6102/€2/21 0102 (69) S60°T 1€6 €91 - €6 €91 - N apenbrey Burui enseD
SIB9% 2€ 0121 6102/€2/21 9102 (€%) 5912 2STT €10°T — 2STT £10T - S BHIM Burui enseD
SIE9X Z€ 018 6102/€2/21 £002 (29) SHC 1251 %26 - 1251 %26 - NI Bingsusain) Buruiq [ensed
SIE9 2Z 016 6102/€2/21 9161 (1) 0S4 98%'1 %92'T - 98%'1 %921 - vd UMONIqRZI[T Bupfueg
S1B9X GT 016 6102/€2/21 €L6T (@) 068 0L2 029 - 0.2 029 - N pueauIA Bupfueg
189X 22 016 6102/€2/21 0461 L8 €55 T 99. L8L - 99L 18L - N poomypry Bupfueg
189X 22 016 6102/82/21 0261 (26) 129 76T 989 - 6T 989 - N od1y Bupjueg
s189% 81 016 6102/¢2/21 0661 (€9) 0seT 0LS 08L - 0LS 08L - N ooy Bupjueg
s189% 6T 01 0T 6102/€2/21 8161 (19) S8%'1 9501 62% - 950 62% - 0D  sBuudg opero[o) seo1AISg
aAnowoMy
SIB9X Z€ 016 6102/82/21 €102 (e%) 8521 T6TT L9 - T6TT L9 - IM  puoOWydRy MEN sued omy
SIB9% € 016 6102/82/21 €102 1% 0€ST 8ITT %4 - 8ITT 2y - OW S[[rAuOsLIIEH sued omy
S1e9% 82 019 6102/82/21 5002 (69) L%T 1€8 0%9 - 1€8 0%9 - XL Andepuerp oy [ereddy
S1B9% Z€ 019 6102/82/21 2102 (s%) 989°T 980°T 665 - 980T 665 - X1 ©SS3pPO [ereddy
SIe9X Z€ 019 6102/82/21 0102 (19 L6LT L02°T 065 - L02'T 065 - X1 opare] [ereddy
s1esx 1€ 019 6102/82/21 €102 (2e) ¢ 866 ¢ 989 ¢ 21e ¢ —$ 989 $ AR —$ VI g[ouerpu] [ereddy
pendwo st (ssoT) (g)peamboy uononnsuo) (9)(g)uonerardeg [eiol sjuswesoidwy pue] uonysmboy sjuswdaoxdw] pueT SedUBIqUINOUT d3BIS £1D Axnsnpujg
swodu] sarsuayaiduo) pue ajeq jo azeq pajenunddy pue Burping 03 jusnbasqng pue Burpying
suoneradQ Jo sjuswajelg ur —uwuﬂm#mmo 350D
uoneroaxda( YOIYM uo 9§11 (S)(%)(1)0202 ‘IE 12quedeq Auedwo) 03 350D [enTU] uondriosaqg

mO SE junouy ssoin

(spuesnoy3 ur sxe[[oq)
0202 ‘1€ 1oquadsq
uonjeroaxda( poje[nuNody pue ajejsy [eay—III o[npPaY2S
*d10) LITYSIAN

F-35



SIeaf Tg 016 6102/€2/21 9002 (zL1) 8819 929% 95T - 929% T9S‘T - XL uonelg 863110) $9101g SINITUIN]
SIEaf Zg 016 6102/€2/21 S66T e) 018's £2LT £80°T - £2LT L80°T - 4 S[IAuosyOERL $2101g SIMiruIng
STe9% Z€ 01 0T 6102/€2/21 5102 (oo1) 82T'e 6097 61S - 6092 615 - in pre[red sarddng wireg
SIe3% 87 019 6102/€2/21 2102 () %20C 68¢T 79 - 68T 7€9 - X1 oue[T sarddng wireg
STedL € 01 €T 6102/€2/21 L102 (C) ¥62°C 986°T 80¢ - 986°T 80¢ - HO REEEERIEIY sarddng wieg
STedL H€ 01 €T 6102/€2/21 L102 L) 0%%2 1€0°2 60% - 1602 60% - HO BMENO sarddng wirey
SIe9% 97 019 6102/€2/21 1002 @) €80T 958 LLT - 958 LLT - ai s[[ed OYEpI Buisea pue
[esusy 3uswdmbg
SI1E9 2 01GT 6102/€2/21 %002 (59) $607 68T'T 956 - 68T'T 956 - AM suedINy seroBwIIRYq
x sa101g Bnug
SIeak £ 01%T 6102/€2/21 8002 (86) 2059 1562 155°e - 1562 155°€ - YA Bmgsyorepaig sotorRMIEYq
x sa101g Bnuig
s1eag 1€ 0107 6102/€2/21 %002 (99) €10% 8981 7912 - 8%8'T $9TC - NL urpuer] serorwIRY(
) sa101g Bnig
sIeaf 7 01 0T 6102/€2/21 6661 (TL) 1892 LTIST 0LTT - LTIST 0LTT - HO erpwy setorRMIIRY]
x sa101g B
SIeaf gg 01GT 6102/€2/21 0102 (To1) €919 610 HL'e - 6T0°C LS - NN anbrenbnqry seroRWIIRY(
g sa101g Bnig
STed% /7 010T 6102/€2/21 6861 (66) 2LS'E 15%°2 12T°T - 15%2 21T - NI unsny saroRWIIRY
% sa101g Bnig
S1e9% /7 01GT 6102/€2/21 %002 (s8) 80%'S 2512 952 - 25TC 9s2'e - IN diysumog,
umﬁmLU woﬂumghmﬁﬁ
pIojIa1epM ) sa101g Bnug
SIea 67 016 6102/€2/21 €002 (16) 18L% L1ET 0T%2 - LLET 0T%2 - NI stjodeuetpuy setorRMIEYq
) sa101g Bnuig
SIeaf 7 01GT 6102/¢2/21 %002 (@9) €08'T 9L0'T 121, - 9L0°T 121 - NI IerouEH seroBwIRYq
) sa101g Bnig
sIeag Tg 01%T 6102/€2/21 8661 (89) LBEE 19T 9YLT - TS9°T 9YLT - vO yeuueARg setorRMIIRY]
x sa101g Bnig
SIeaf £Z 01GT 6102/€2/21 %002 (1) L¥%2 68LT 859 - 68LT 859 - ¥D uojue) seroRWIIRYq
% sa101g Bnig
sI1eaf Tg 01GT 6102/€2/21 %002 (69) 600°C 0%9°T 69¢ - 0%9°T 69¢ - Y I0oUIEM serorRwIEYq
% sa101g Bnig
s1eag 1€ 01GT 6102/€2/21 %002 (69) 180°€ 2€6'T 0STT - 2e6'T 0ST'T - Y ArawoBuopy selrULIEY]
% sa101g Bnig
sI1e9% 1€ 010T 6102/€2/21 %002 (69) %827 09T 0€9 - 09T 0€9 - v uojue[) setorUIEYq
% sa101g Bnuig
SIE9 HE 0157 6102/€2/21 8102 (ze) %60°T 288 212 - z88 212 - M e X04 21013 Te[[0Q
sIeag £z 01% 6102/€2/21 %002 (ze) 218 78S 812 - 78S 812 - X1 uolsNoH §81035 Ie[[0Q
sIeag gg 01% 6102/€2/21 2102 (ze) 2081 sel 195 - sel L95 - X1 uojsnoH 581035 Ie[[0Q
sIeaf ¢ 01 0T 6102/€2/21 %102 (1e) LT0°T 608 602 - 608 602 - X1 pue[eAR[D 21013 T8[[0Q
s1eag (g 01 0T 6102/€2/21 %102 e 92T 166 11¢ - 1c6 T1¢ - vd suspati] 21013 T8[[0Q
peindwo) st (ssoT) (g)peamboy uononmsuo) (9)(g)uonerosidsq [elol sjuswesoidwry pue] uonysmboy sjuswdaoxdw] pueT SPdUBIqUINOUT d3IBIS £1) Axnsnpujg
swodu] sarsusyaiduo) pue ajeq jo areq pajenunddy pue Burping 03 jusnbasqng pue Buipying
suonerad( jo sjuswale)g ul paziende) 3s0)
uoneroaxda YOTYM uo 1] (S)(%)(1)0202 ‘IE Toquadeq Luedwo) 03 350D [eTIIU] uondriossqg

mO Se junouy ssoin

F-36



STedL H€ 01%T 0202/1€/T 6102 624) ey SYeT 686°T - SEC 686°T qY yITwg 104 sjueINEISY
SJIAISS xuwﬁo
s1eax Gg o1 1T 0202/L2/T 5102 (&%) 9459 500G T4ST - 500G TLST HO uojrey S)eID B SUY
0202/%2/1 9002 - LOLT - LOLT - - LOLT I I2AT POOM. sjueIEISSY
9DTAISG YPINYD
SI89% GE 01 GT 0202/%1/1 2961 @ 0L%2 $9LT S0L 065°T $LT S0L yY MO0Y SMMIT  SII0IG SOUSIUSAUOY
s1B9% GE 018 0202/L/T 9661 (@71 9€5'G 286% %55 - 286% %55 N uig [1839 1UN02sI(
SIB9X 2 01GT 6102/1€/21 0002 (623) 8%0T 961 €52 - 96L €52 VI A xnotg  juswesordw] swWoH
SIB9X 0F 01/, 6102/€2/21 9002 (52) 96€T %89 2L - %89 2L MO ssumeys sjuBInEISSY
9O1AISG YoM
SIB9% GZ 01GT 6102/€2/21 8161 (52) S0€T LLS 82L - LLS 82L SN uosxoep sjueInEISSY
901AI8G MOINQY
SIBSX 0F 01/, 6102/€2/21 £002 (82) €251 YLL 0SL - YLL 0SL OW eI[epag sjueInEISSy
901AI8G MOINY
STe3X £€ 019 6102/€2/21 9102 (2e) 6%€'T 806 [oiz% - 806 (0474 NN [TeysIey sjueINEISY
901AI8G YOI
S1e9% GZ 01GT 6102/€2/21 9861 (9¢) e1eT 0%8 eLy - 0%8 eLy S £31D uonounp sjuRINE}SDY
9DTIAISG YOINY
S189% 2€ 01 T 6102/€2/21 €102 (@%) 9€2'2 2€21 S00T - 2€21 S00T ¥D UMOIPA0TE) sjuBIEISY
9DTAISG YPINYD
SI89% 92 01 GT 6102/€2/21 L66T (43) 2502 8L 1421 - 18L 1421 v pesug sjuBIEISSY
9D1AISG YPINYD
sIB9% €€ 01GT 6102/€2/21T 2102 (0%) 5802 $ST'T 1€6 - $ST'T 1€6 v Aeg pay sjuBInEISSY
901AI8G MOINQY
SIeaf g 01GT 6102/82/21 L102 (0%9) 825°T 008 12L - 008 L2L v AnD xtuayq SIUBINE)ISY
901AI8G MOINY
s1ea% 0 01 GT 6102/€2/21 £002 (L8 0€02 1107 6T0°T - T10T 6101 v umolfeny sjueInEISRy
901AI8G YOI
STedk O 01GT 6102/€2/21 2661 () Z89°T 966 989 - 966 989 v weyburug SIUBINEISRY
SJIAISS VAUMSO
SI89X 22 019 6102/€2/21 8661 (8¢) 286 z8L 052 - zeL 0S2 YA urpuely jusweAoiduw] SWoH
SIE3 87 01/, 6102/€2/21 0002 (16) 96Lc L002 68LT - 100 68L°T NL ebooueney) jusweroIduw] SWOH
s1e9% 97 019 6102/£2/21 66T (12) €6L 9% 628 - 9% 62¢ oS Bimquenredg  juswesordw] swop
s1eax 1€ 019 6102/€2/21 £002 L2) €911 569 89% - 569 89% oS pue uerpu]  juswasoidw] SWOH
SIBSX €€ 01/, 6102/€2/21 9102 (62) 1662 €802 806 - €802 806 oS usyly  juswsaordw] swoH
SIB9X GT 019 6102/€2/21 L66T (808) €9T'L 2LTY 1662 - LTy 1662 ON uoibuxs]  juswesordw] SWOH
SIB9X GZ 01/, 6102/€2/21 L66T (88¢) 8e2°0T LLES 1981 - LLE 1981 vO UodR  jusweAordw] SWOH
SIB9X €€ 01 % 6102/€2/21 6002 (03] 889 $9€'T #2€ - $9¢'T #2€ 0D  sbuudgesobeq juswasoidwy swop
SIB9X %€ 016 6102/82/21 1102 (99) €871 620°T #5% - 620°T #5% NL guifwg  sBurystuang swoy
s1e9x 8T 018 6102/82/21 L86T (181 228% 8562 #98'T - 8562 %981 NL stydwey L1901
SI89% $€ 01 TT 6102/€2/21 2102 69) 8%€2 88LT 095 - 88T 095 yY Foog s sdoyg nusanog
pue “Q[2aoN YD
peindwo) st (ssoT) (g)peamboy uononmsuo) (9)(g)uonerosidsq [elol sjuswesoidwry pue] uonysmboy sjuswdaoxdw] pueT SPdUBIqUINOUT d3IBIS £1) Axnsnpujg
swodu] sarsusyaiduo) pue ajeq jo areq pajenunddy pue Burping 03 jusnbasqng pue Buipying
suonerad( jo sjuswale)g ul paziende) 3s0)
uoneroaxda YOTYM uo 1] (S)(%)(1)0202 ‘IE Toquadeq Luedwo) 03 350D [eTIIU] uondriossqg

mO Se junouy ssoin

F-37



SIE9X G 01GT 0202/S1/9 0661 e) 189 £08T 628 - £08T 628 - X1 SUIEg PUBID  S3I01S OUSIUSAUOD
SIE3X GE 01/, 0202/S1/9 1861 %) 019°€ TLLT 68T - TLLT 688°T - X1 IS[pUBYD  S9I01F OUSIUSAUOD
SIEak Gg 019 0202/S1/9 €661 (@9) T68°C 9122 9LTT - 9122 9LTT - X1 IS[pUBYD  S9I01G OUSIUSAUOD
sIeag G 018 0202/S1/9 €102 (66) §%59 £18% ZeLT - £18% zeLT - X1 IS[pUBYD  S9I01G SOUSIUSAUOY
SIE9k G 01GT 0202/S1/9 6661 () 06T°€ 0202 0LTT - 0202 0LTT - X1 0I0QSUMOI]  $3I0}G SOUSTUSAUOD
sIeag g7 018 0202/8/9 €661 (19) G152 954T 618 - 9SLT 618 - X1 uonelg 86910) [re3ey unodsiq
s1eag 0g 01 1T 0202/02/5 961 (@2) 90%'T 286 2y - 286 vy - il obearyd 891035 Ie[[0Q
sIeag 1z 019 0202/8/S G661 (%9¢) 08L2T 6LTOT 1092 - 6LT0T 1092 - ¥D a[epIaARy [1e19Y [e12URD)
sIeag (07 01 ¢ 0202/9/S 1661 (89¢) 1228 SE9'L £6S - S89L £6S - AN JremaN [1e19Y [e19URD)
sI1e9 G 01 0T 0202/9/S SY6T (98) 1212 VLT 08¢ - 9YLT 08¢ - an arowneg 21013 Te[[0Q
sIeag Og 01% 0202/L1/% 9861 (¥8) 910% £19C S0%'T - £19°C £0%'T - X1 0o'M [1e35y 1UNODSI
sIeag Gg 018 0202/€1/% 0961 (0%3) L82°T 98T'T ST - 98TT ST - NN [emsoy seq oy
S1e9% 0g 01 % 0202/¢/% %661 (eL) 662 986'T 266 - 986'T 266 - S of2dng, [re19y JunodsIq
S1e9% Gg ol g 0202/¢/% 6861 @) 9Te 8L8T €82°T Ges €%0°T €82°T - MY YOOy S[NITYMON  S2I01G 90USIUSAUOD
STe9% 0 01 0T 0202/92/¢ %661 624 €6T'e 06%2 €0L - 06%2 €0L - XL Mmatabuo [re19y JunodsIq
s1eax Gg 010T 0202/92/¢ G861 (01D 6L0°G 169% z8¢ - 169% z8¢ - NI eEMEYST [1e33y 1UN02SI
s1e9% 07 01 0T 0202/92/¢ G861 (¥6) TLLE 2022 6951 - 2022 695°T - 'B) elsnbny [re19y JunodsIq
S1e9% 0Z 01 TT 0202/92/¢ 1861 81D 8%%'S %992 812 - %992 %812 - VA™ uosong, [re19y JUNodsIq
SIE3X GE 018 020z/€2/¢ 8102 @) 6T9°T 292°T 8s¢ - 292°T 8s¢ - AM uouueyong JusWaA0IdW] SWOH
SIE9X £€ 01%T 0202/61/¢ L102 (69) 715 6T €L5°T - 96T €LST - XL Asuuryp SuBINE]SY
901AI8G VAUEO
SIE9X GE 01 €T 0202/01/2 G861 &1 9.6 88% 88% - 88% 88% - M spideyg sao1AI9g
E..ﬁmﬂoom.g\/ ®>ﬁ080u3<
s1eag 0z 019 0202/01/2 8661 (@2) 0S2 8%% T0¢ - 8%y T0g - M uopuoT MaN S901AIDG
®>SOEOMS<
SIeag 77 016 0202/01/2 2661 &1 96% L0€ 68T - L0€ 681 - M W sed1AIeg
w\éuoscﬁ;&
SIe9L g 01 TT 0202/01/2 6861 (61) 900°T L85 6T% - L85 6T% - 14 Aoumpy S901A19G
m>ﬁOEOu3<
SIea G 01 %7 0202/01/2 0002 61 £90T 685 w1y - 685 HLY - 14 qEO 9T S901AI9G
A owoINYy
SITe9% H€ 0107 0202/01/2 8661 (8D 098 A 44 - L85 228 - 14 S[[IApIojMEID sao1AI9g
sAnowoNy
SIe3X GZ 019 0202/01/2 8661 (o1 LS9 zs¢ s0¢ - zs¢ S0g - v s[anelq sao1AI9g
®>SOEOMS<
SIEaX GE 016 0202/5/2 1661 %9) 9697 £6L°T €06 - €6L°T €06 - S uopuelg Burui [ensed
0202/%/2 2661 - TTILL - TTILL - - TILL - 1 s[[asiureq juswasordw] SWOH
s1e9% (g 01 0T 0202/%/2 0102 (12D 86L% 8%e'e 6951 - 8%ee 6%%T - vd S[epsieLay £190015
SIEa G 01/ 0202/¢/2 8002 (9%) 9z9°c 602°T L1%2 - 602°T LT1%2 - il oBamsQ seo1AIeg
aAnowoNy
peindwo) st (ssoT) (g)peamboy uononmsuo) (9)(g)uonerosidsq [elol sjuswesoidwry pue] uonysmboy sjuswdaoxdw] pueT SPdUBIqUINOUT d3IBIS £1) Axnsnpujg
swodu] sarsusyaiduo) pue ajeq jo areq pajenunddy pue Burping 03 jusnbasqng pue Buipying
suonerad( jo sjuswale)g ul paziende) 3s0)
uoneroaxda YOTYM uo 1] (S)(%)(1)0202 ‘IE Toquadeq Luedwo) 03 350D [eTIIU] uondriossqg

mO Se junouy ssoin

F-38



s1e8% 0Z 019 0202/82/8 0461 ® £6% $ee 65T - $ee 65T - HN I9)sEOURT s901A19g
sAnowoINy
SIBSX 1Z 01/, 0202/82/8 ¥861 (D) LTL %25 €61 - %25 €61 - HN yooiqe[od S901A19G
sAnowoNy
s189% 0Z 019 0202/82/8 068T (oD 905 S6€ 111 - s6¢ 11T - LA uoeq sued oy
SIBdX 1Z 01/, 0202/2/L €661 (22) #88%1 62L°8 SST'9 - 62L°8 SST'9 - I 31ed pue[lQ Juswasoidw] SWop
SIB9X 0Z 019 0202/2/L 2661 (Lem) 2699 09%% €€22 - 09%% £€27 - S oppdng £190015)
SIE9X 0Z 019 0202/2/L 2661 (5€2) 962°0T T%E°L 5562 - 7€' 5562 - SW oedng, [re39y [e1eURD
s1B9X 62 018 0202/62/9 G661 (61) 126 1€9 162 - 1€9 162 - vd S[[HH uuad sued omy
SIB9X GE 016 0202/62/9 8661 (61 eLTT 920'T 13T - 920'T 15T - SW [mme] sued omy
SIB9X GE 016 0202/62/9 8661 (@A) 9€0°T €68 €%l - €68 548 - SW usARY001g sued omy
s1B9% GE 018 0202/62/9 6661 (oD 090T %89 9Le - %89 9Le - S smoT g Leg sued omy
SIB9X GE 016 0202/62/9 8661 (€2) 521 0L6 1.2 - 0L6 142 - ON SIMOT g sued omy
SIB9X GE 016 0202/62/9 6661 (oD 2L6 8.8 76 - 8.8 6 - ON STIH
abpriuaxoaig s1Ieq oIny
SIBSX GE 01/, 0202/62/9 0002 (sD G521 869 LSS - 869 1SS - V1 seTezuon sued omy
s1esx 1€ 019 0202/62/9 S66T (6D 068 java 6L1T - T1L 6LT - I ©L103( 1S9M, sueq omy
SIB9X GE 016 0202/62/9 6661 (61) 90T'T 158 §52 - 158 ler4 - vO UFED sied oy
s1e) GE 01 0T 0202/62/9 6661 (@A) 2L6 LL8 S6 - LL8 6 - vO UoIXe[D sued omy
SIB8X GE 016 0202/62/9 0002 (02) 68€T 8%8 0%5 - 8%8 0%S - '6) Jommsunig sued omy
sIe8X G 016 0202/62/9 8661 (C) 95T 985 066 - 985 066 - 4 S[IAsnILL sued omy
SIB9X €€ 016 0202/62/9 6661 (8D 6T%'T 2L9 9L - 2L9 9L - 14 opue[IQ sued oy
s1eax Gg 0101 0202/62/9 6661 (22) 211 S00T 80% - S00T 80% - 14 pueeeT] sued omy
SITe9X G 0107 0202/62/9 L66T (12) ISTT 726 L12 - 726 L12 - 4 901914 1107 syed omy
189X 0Z 01 0T 0202/61/9 5002 (s61) 1078 §8L°S 9192 - §8L'G 9192 - ') eump e juswssordu] SWoy
s1eax Gg 01017 0202/61/9 9102 () 1€6% $05°€ 12%'T - %05°€ 1251 - 14 S[[rauosyep aredyI[EsHq
SIB9X GE 010T 0202/61/9 9102 (029) 8% 9997 SLTT - 9997 SLTT - 14 S[[rauosyoEp a1edYI[EsHq
SIBdX GE 01/, 0202/51/9 6861 (€9) 8681 Z5eT 955 - Z5e1 955 - XL 3STOYRIIY | SII0]S SOUSIUSAUOD
SIB9X GE 01GT 0202/51/9 %861 (23) 290G 19T ST - 1591 )543 - XL IB[A],  $9I01S BOUBIUBAUOD
SIB9% GE 01 GT 0202/51/9 7661 (€2) 9eLT 98T'T 0SS - 9811 0SS - XL IB[A],  $9I01G BOUBIUBAUOD
SI89% GE 01GT 0202/51/9 0661 (52) 152 19671 188 - 1961 £88 - XL IB[A],  $9I01G BOUBIUBAUOD
SIB9% GE 01GT 0202/51/9 0661 (52) 1802 €821 86L - €821 86L - XL IB[A], $9I01G BOUBIUBAUOD
s1B9% GE 018 0202/51/9 8002 (2z1) 8718 eILS Se%2 - eILS Ge%'2 - XL IB[A],  $9I01G BOUBIUBAUOD
SIB9% GE 01GT 0202/51/9 6002 (€9) #98'S 812'c 9%9°C - 812 9592 - XL IB[A], $9I01G SOUBIUBAUOD
sIB9% GE 01GT 0202/51/9 G661 (0¢) 8102 66€T 619 - 6651 619 - XL B[OSUIJ  S9IOIG SOUBIUBAUOD
sIB9% GE 01GT 0202/51/9 5002 (19) 150°G 9LT'E SL8T - 9LTE SL8T - XL 3[EPUIT  $9I01G SOUBIUBAUOD
sIB9% GE 01GT 0202/51/9 1102 (89) 298% 810°€ e%eT - 810°¢ £HeT - XL 3[EPUIT  S9I0G SOUBIUBAUOD
peindwo) st (ssoT) (g)peamboy uononmsuo) (9)(g)uonerosidsq [elol sjuswesoidwry pue] uonysmboy sjuswdaoxdw] pueT SPdUBIqUINOUT d3IBIS £1) Axnsnpujg
swodu] sarsusyaiduo) pue ajeq jo areq pajenunddy pue Burping 03 jusnbasqng pue Buipying
suonerad( jo sjuswale)g ul paziende) 3s0)
uoneroaxda YOTYM uo 1] (S)(%)(1)0202 ‘IE Toquadeq Luedwo) 03 350D [eTIIU] uondriossqg

mO Se junouy ssoin

F-39



SIB9X GE 01/, 0202/6/1T %002 (92) 8299 €67 $0LT 7E6% $0LT HO Bingsproudsy SO10109[g
Iswinsuo)
SIB9X GE 01 0T 0202/0€/0T LT02 (1D 0202 1621 62L 1621 62L vd ybmashid §8103G Ie[[0Q
s189% GE 010T 0202/0€/0T 9002 (oD 9%LT L%2T 00§ L%2T 005 vO SUIGOY TUTBM sued omy
s1e9% GE 01 0T 0202/%1/01T 0202 (€D 6L6'T LL9T 208 LL9T 208 14 BUUBLIEJ] sued omy
s1ea% 67 01 0T 0202/¢1/0T 8002 (€2) zeeTe €e0C 86T°T €€02 86T MO pIrojIayieam saddng wireg
s1e9) GE 01 0T 0202/1/0T 5002 © 156 zeL 612 2€EL 612 X1 ©SS3pPO syed omy
s1e8% 0Z 019 0202/1/0T 1961 © %65 S0% 68T S0% 681 oS poomusars sied omy
STedk GE 01 TT 0202/1/0T 8002 ® €ee'T 296 16€ %6 16¢ NI anowaq sued omy
SsIedx G 01% 0202/0/6 $102 (om) T1ET 481 %25 181 %25 aN oBrey jusweaoidw] WO
STe9% G 010T 0202/0¢/6 6102 GD 0991 TIeT 6%¢ T1eT 6%¢ YA Biqsialeg 21013 T8[[0(
STe9X G 010T 0202/0¢/6 ST02 (€)y) 9191 18¢€°T 4 1861 4 AN Amqsussnd $8103§ Ie[[0Q
SIE9X GE 019 0202/0¢/6 %002 (I 88¢'T 886 00% 886 00% M sprdey
UTSUODST M s11ed oy
189X GE 019 0202/0¢/6 %002 D 9851 T0TT S8% T0TT 58% M S nBMII sued omy
S189% GE 01 0T 0202/0</6 LT02 (oD $L1C 1951 €19 19571 €19 vd J[iaduend sued omy
189X GE 016 0202/0</6 ST02 GD 1191 6121 26€ 612°T 26¢ vd UMOISISAN sued omy
SIB9X GE 016 0202/0</6 %102 (D 909'T L50T 855 10T 855 vd 1IsYPUBN sued omy
sIB9X GE 018 0202/0</6 L66T (oD LT0T se8 281 se8 28T vd UMOISIMET sued omy
s189% GE 01 0T 0202/0</6 9102 (oD SH8T €561 26% €561 26% vd Banqgsnen sued omy
SIB9X £Z 019 0202/0</6 1661 (oD 968 ST9 182 ST9 182 vd Bingsuaqg sued omy
SIB9X Z€ 01§ 0202/0</6 L66T () 266 152 1574 1SL e HO preybunds sued omy
s1e9x Gg 018 0202/0</6 %102 (@) 862°T %26 SLe %26 SLE HO a1dfeg sied omy
SIB9X GE 016 0202/0</6 %102 &D 6L%'T 2L2T £02 2L2T L02 AN edg uossireg sied omy
S189% GE 01 T 0202/0¢/6 9102 (oD 9eT1e eyt €0L eey'1 €0L CN poomabpa sied omy
SIe9X GE 016 0202/0</6 %102 (22) $8%2 0L6°T 71§ 0L6T 715 N digsumog,
1oqieH B67 siIed oIny
sIe8X GE 016 0202/0</6 9102 (€)y) 6£02 0e%'T 809 08%'T 809 an ToATY S[PPTIN sied oy
SIB9X GE 016 0202/82/6 6002 (om) 50T SLL 692 SLL 692 qY o0y oI 81035 1B[[0Q
SIBdX GE 016 0202/52/6 6102 (om) 0€T'T 0%L 16€¢ 0%L 16€ qY o0y oI 810315 1B[[0Q
s183% €€ 031 0T 0202/%1/6 0102 (L61) 00512 G889T S19% G889T S19% YA weeg  juswsaordw] SWoH
SIBSX 2 01/, 0202/82/8 666T (om 029 65% 191 65% 191 LA SuBq[y IS sao1AISg
sAnowoINy
S189% GZ 019 0202/82/8 2961 (D 8%8 199 181 199 L8T LA UMOISLLIO 90119
aAnowoMy
s189% 0Z 018 0202/82/8 €L6T ® 98% €LE 711 €Le 71T LA piojpeig 90119
aAnowoMy
SIB9X LT 01§ 0202/82/8 6161 (D 2LS €% 1528 €% 528 HN 1odmaN s901AI9g
aAnowoNy
peindwo) st (ssoT) (g)peamboy uononmsuo) (9)(g)uonerosidsq [elol sjuswesoidwry pue] sjuswsaoxdw] pue ssduBIqWNOUT 9jelS £1D Ansnpujg
swodu] sarsusyaiduo) pue ajeq jo areq pajenunddy pue Burping pue Buipying
suonerad( jo sjuswale)g ul paziende) 3s0)
uoneroaxda YOTYM uo 1] (S)(%)(1)0202 ‘IE Toquadeq Luedwo) 03 350D [eTIIU] uondriossqg

mO Se junouy ssoin

F-40



:(spuesnoys ur) pejussaid spouad a3 10] sjuswaaoidwl pue Butp[ing pue pue[ 10j enfea BUIA11eD Jo UOTIRI[IOUOD31 B sT Bumoroj sy,  (G)

.wEmo:Q&m 10U
aIe coﬁmﬁowaw@ I10] SJ1 pe1BWIISS pPUR Goﬁﬂomawﬁ 210J219] ‘pue[ oy} \ﬁco sumo Aueduwo) 31 Y21yM 10] K11edoid e jussaidai SN[BA PUE[ OU M senedoid @v

‘A1radoad a3 wwbs_.uom 108$900NG 9Y1 91BP 31 1B PaIeIs 91B GT(Z ‘€ 12qui2de(J O} zotd @wbswom sorpadord 10] $31Bp uotjisinboe YL AmV

‘syuswsaoiduit Burping 103
sies4 GT 031 dn pue sBuIp(ing 10 sies4 G¢ 01 dn ST YOIYM 1eSS® 91} JO SJI[ [[JSSN PSIBWIISS Y3 19A0 poyisw aull-1yBrenis ay3 Buisn peienored st uoneaidsq ()

‘puBsnoyl 990‘gT9% st sesodind xel swooul [BISps] 10] 3500 21eBa1bBe oYL, (1)

(TtT'oD$ €ELLYS$  09€'85€$ €LE'68T$ eradas 9€6'G5e$ €LE'68T$ —$
SIB9X £Z 01 G 0202/1€/21 9661 © €LST 9.8 169 - 9.8 £69 - vd 191894 810315 1B[[0Q
SIB9X GE 01 TT 0202/62/21 1861 © $eL'E €21 1197 - €212 1197 - X1 se[eq  sydg ‘1eag ‘SUIM
0202/62/21 0202 - 6122 - 6L2°C - - 6122 - vO SUIqOY ISUTEM Burui [ensed
s1B9X Gg 018 0202/82/21 L66T © 9e5% 2882 #59'T - 2882 #59°T - X1 nemoy  syuds ‘resg Suim
189X 22 019 0202/82/21 6861 © 59%°c 5252 076 - §25°C 0%6 - NI SINEBH SIS, [re3sy JunodsIq
0202/€2/21 2002 - 0S6°¢ - 056°€ - - 0S6°¢ - YIN uoysBury L1s0019
s189% 12 019 0202/¢2/21 %002 © 9662 6002 186 - 6002 186 - Y ueyioq [re3sy yunodsIq
S1B9X 0 01 % 0202/12/21 8661 © 255 8%€2 S02°T - 8%€C 5021 - HO yresH SO10n09[g
IaWwInsuo))
s1e9x 1€ 018 0202/12/21 G961 @) 198 995 562 - 995 S62 - IA a11eg YInog seo1AI8g
[ATIOWIOIMY
SIB9X $Z 01 1T 0202/12/21 5681 @ 0%6 208 8¢eT - 208 8eT - IA s[red Bingsouz seotAleg
sAnowoINy
s1esx 0g 018 0202/12/21 6%61 @) 2L8 L18 S - L18 ss - LA s[[ed smofeg seo1AIeg
sAnowoNy
SIE3X GE 016 0202/81/21 9102 @ L8ET 72T €St - %e2'T €sT - vd umolsuyop $21013 Te[[0(
SI1e3X €€ 01 G 0202/91/21 9661 an 72601 6ET'L S8L°€ - 6ETL G8L'E - AN uonpunp
[[emadoy £190015)
SIBSX GZ 01/, 0202/11/21 6661 @ GSS'T 818 LEL - 818 LEL - v sowwag seroRULIRY
x sa101g Bnug
189X GE 016 0202/6/21 2002 ™ 8ST'T €L8 982 - €L8 982 - yY Fo0yg BT sued omy
s1B9% €€ 018 0202/¢/21 8102 @ 69T 046 699 - 046 699 - vO sbueineT ButseaT pue
[eyusy juswrdmbg
s189% 0F 019 0202/1/21 1661 w 095G L90% ¥6%'T - L90% 7691 - YM  4eep sueods [re3sy yunodsiq
s1e9% €€ 01 0T 0202/%2/T1 8002 ® 8L6'T G251 €5% - §2ST €S% - XL us[y SIedITERH
peindwo) st (ssoT) (g)peamboy uononmsuo) (9)(g)uonerosidsq [elol sjuswesoidwry pue] uonysmboy sjuswdaoxdw] pueT SPdUBIqUINOUT d3IBIS £1) Axnsnpujg
swodu] sarsusyaiduo) pue ajeq jo areq pajenunddy pue Burping 03 jusnbasqng pue Buipying
suonerad( jo sjuswale)g ul paziende) 3s0)
uoneroaxda YOTYM uo 1] (S)(%)(1)0202 ‘IE Toquadeq Luedwo) 03 350D [eTIIU] uondriossqg

mO Se junouy ssoin

F-41



wat} Bununosoe o1qnd paisisibai juspuadepur jo 1ode1 82g

"siseq uonismboe-a1d a1 1€ 1055908pald
a1 £q psp10da1 319M sjuswaA01dW] paleal pue Bulp(ing ‘pueT eyl sk pa1ussaid Usaq 10U 2ABY 10S52303Pald oY1 10] STUSWISIAUL 9181SS [BaI Ul aBuRyD 8],

— TITOTE v bowad jo pus woue[Eg
— (Q0B) e stomsodsi(
_ (BIG) e {6 10§ p[o1] 01 8355828y
wCOSOS_.UQD
zeT e ssuadxs oneraidag
SuonIppY
_ ¢ GET  § e potzad jo BuruuiBaq ‘eoue(eq
6102 0202

‘1€ 19qUIaD9(J 03 g IoqUILdS  ‘IE IoquIada( papud Jeax
wolj poriad a3 10

10SS909Ng
i(spuesnoyy ur) paiussaid sporiad a1} 10] UoTiRIDRIdep PRIB[NWNIOR JO UOTIRI[IOU0Da1 B st Bumoror syl  (9)
mmONHNNN% mmpmﬁwmﬁ ..................................................... @OMHQQ Wo Tgw nwogmﬁmm
_ Awmmam.ﬁv .......................................................... WQOHHHWOQWMD
. A._H@mammv ................................................. wﬁww HOW ﬂvﬁwﬂ OH wwmmmﬁowm
suononpag
_ wou_.\«N ........................................................ WMCWEONVO.HQEH
m“_.NOT_” @._”N“mmm .......................................................... wQOHMHwHSUOA&
SUonIppy
mOORMNN% mmOJ.NNN% ................................................ TOMH@Q WO @CACEAOOO— awogmﬁmm
6102 020¢

‘1€ 19quIa09(J 03 gZ IoqUILdS  ‘Ig JoquIada( papud Jeax
woJlj poriad ay3 10

JI0Ss200Nng

F-42



L'

NETSTREIT

NETSTREIT CORP.
9,491,903 Shares of

Common Stock

PROSPECTUS

Wells Fargo Securities
BofA Securities
Jefferies
Stifel
KeyBanc Capital Markets
BTIG
Truist Securities
Citigroup
Berenberg
Scotiabank
Capital One Securities
Regions Securities LLC
Roberts & Ryan

April 7, 2021



	FINAL PROSPECTUS
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	PROSPECTUS SUMMARY
	RISK FACTORS
	FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
	USE OF PROCEEDS
	DISTRIBUTION POLICY
	CAPITALIZATION
	DILUTION
	UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
	OUR BUSINESS AND PROPERTIES
	MANAGEMENT
	EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
	CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
	SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
	STRUCTURE AND FORMATION OF OUR COMPANY
	POLICIES WITH RESPECT TO CERTAIN ACTIVITIES
	DESCRIPTION OF OUR CAPITAL STOCK
	CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF MARYLAND LAWAND OUR CHARTER AND BYLAWS
	DESCRIPTION OF THE PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT OF OUR OPERATING PARTNERSHIP
	U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS
	ERISA CONSIDERATIONS
	UNDERWRITING
	LEGAL MATTERS
	EXPERTS
	WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION
	INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS


	BACK COVER

